Sussex County Board of Supervisors Regular Meeting
Thursday, November 18, 2021 — 6 pm
General District Courtroom — Sussex Judicial Center
15098 Courthouse Road, Sussex VA 23884

Approval of Minutes: Corrected September 16 and October 21, 2021 Regular Meeting

Surry Building Official Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) Amendment

Regional Industrial Facilities Authority (RIFA) Consideration of Ordinance and

Appointment to the Department of Social Services Advisory Board

1. Commencement
1.01 Call to Order/Determine Quorum
1.02  The Invocation
1.03 The Pledge of Allegiance
1.04 Agenda Amendment(s)
1.05 Approval of Regular Agenda
2. Approval of Consent Agenda
2.01
2.02  Warrants and VVouchers
2.03  Treasurer’s Report — for information only
2.04  Financial Update — for information only
2.05 Departmental Reports — for information only
2.06  Fuel Tank Donation to Surry County
2.07
2.08 Opioid Settlement
3. Recognitions/Awards/Presentation
3.01  Animal Services Update — Ms. Debbie Broughton
3.02 County Property Reassessment — Mr. Pearson
4. Public Hearing
4.01 Sale of County-owned Property
A. Citizens Comments
B. Board Member Comments
C. Action, if any
4.02
Resolutions
A. Citizens Comments
B. Board Member Comments
C. Action, if any
5. Appointments
5.01 Nomination for Appointment to Board of Equalization
50.2  Sussex Service Authority Alternate At-Large Position
5.03
6. Action Items
6.01 Use of ARPA Funding
6.02

Board of Supervisors Vacancy — Waverly District

(next page)—



7. Citizens’ Comments

8. Unfinished Business — none

9. New Business — none

10. Board Members Comments
10.01 Blackwater District

10.02 Courthouse District

10.03 Henry District

10.04 Stony Creek District

10.05 Wakefield District

10.06 Waverly District

11. Closed Session — none

12. Recess/Adjournment
12.01 Recess/Adjournment
12.02 Next Regular Meeting, December 16, 2021 @ 6 p.m.




At a Regular Meeting of the
Sussex County Board of Supervisors
Thursday, October 21, 2021 at 6 pm

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT
C. Eric Fly, Sr.

Debbie P. Jones

Wayne O. Jones

Susan M. Seward

Rufus E. Tyler, Sr.

Steve White, Tie Breaker

BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT
Marian D. Johnson

STAFF PRESENT:

Richard Douglas, County Administrator

Jeff Gore, County Attorney

Ellen G. Boone, Commissioner of the Revenue

Deste J. Cox, Treasurer

G. Reid Foster, Public Safety

Pamela Jones, Sheriff’s Office

Kelly W. Moore, Director of Finance

Michael Poarch, Planner

Beverly Walkup, Director of Planning

Shilton R. Butts, Assistant to the County Administrator/
Deputy Clerk to the Board of Supervisors

1. Commencement

1.01 Call to Order/Determine Quorum (6:15 p.m.)

The October 21, 2021 rescheduled meeting of the Sussex County Board of Supervisors was called
to order by Chair Seward.

1.02 The Invocation

The Invocation was offered by Supervisor Tyler.

1.03 The Pledge of Allegiance

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited by all.

1.04 Agenda Amendments

1 | Page — Minutes of October 21, 2021 Meeting of Board of Supervisors



There were no agenda amendments.

1.05 Approval of Agenda

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR W. JONES, seconded by SUPERVISOR and carried:
RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves the October 21, 2021
regular agenda was approved as presented. All Board members present voted aye.

2. Approval of Consent Agenda

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR |, seconded by SUPERVISOR  and carried: RESOLVED
that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves the Consent agenda inclusive of the
following: (a) September 13 Joint Finance and Personnel Committee and September 16, 2021
Regular Meeting minutes; (b) the Approval of Warrants and VVouchers; (c) the Treasurer’s Report;
(d) Financial Update; (e) Departmental Reports; and (f) Appropriation of Law Enforcement Bonus.
All Board members present voted aye.

3. Recognitions/Awards/Presentation

3.01 CDBG Program Update and Mission Ministries Housing Donation — Ms. Beverly Walkup

Ms. Beverly Walkup, Planning Director, gave a brief CDBG program update on the Urgent Need
and Pocahontas Block Grants.

Ms. Walkup introduced Mr. Robert Spain, with CHA, the new Program Management Consultant.

Mission Ministries will be in attendance to present donations in the amount of $2,500 (Mission
Ministries $1,900 and Food Pantry $600.).

Ms. Walkup recognized and introduced Sharon with Mission Ministries.

Resolution 21-94 FY22 Budget Amendment was included in the Board packet.

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR , seconded by SUPERVISOR and carried: RESOLVED that
the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby accepts and adopts resolution for FY22 budget

amendment, to-wit:

WHEREAS, the Sussex County Board of Supervisors held its regular meeting on October
21, 2021 at the Sussex County Courthouse; and

WHEREAS, Mission Ministries, along with the help of Horizon Health, will makes a
donation from a disaster relief fund to Sussex County’s disaster relief fund; and

WHEREAS, Mission Ministries donated $1,900 and Horizon Health donated $600 to help
with a housing project; and

2 | Page — Minutes of October 21, 2021 Meeting of Board of Supervisors



WHEREAS, the Sussex County Board of Supervisors accepts this heartfelt donation in the
amount of $2,500.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors
hereby adopts the following budget amendment for the Community Development be and is hereby
made for the period of July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022.

FUND # 100 GENERAL FUND

REVENUE

Fund 100 Local Revenue $2,500
Total Revenues $2,500
EXPENDITURE

Fund 100 Community Development $2,500
Total Expenditures $2,500

All Board members present voted aye.

3.02 Erosion and Sediment Control (ESC) Certification Recognition for Mr. Michael Poarch —
Ms. Beverly Walkup

Ms. Beverly Walkup stated that the Commonwealth of Virginia requires each locality to have a
Certified Combined Administrator on staff for Erosion and Sediment Control. If not, the County
would have to contract this service out to a firm or individual that is certified under the state’s
requirements.

Mr. Michael Poarch was hired in March 2021 under The Berkley Group contract. He completed
his certification as Erosion and Sediment Control Combined Administrator within 4 months
satisfying this requirement, and saving the County money and time by providing this service in-
house.

A copy of the Erosion and Sediment Control Combined Administrator Certification for Michael
Poarch was included in the Board packet.

3.03 Proposed Regional Industrial Facilities Authority (RIFA) — Mr. Keith Boswell, Virginia
Gateway Region

Keith Boswell, Executive Director of Virginia’s Gateway Region, gave an overview of a proposed
Regional Industrial Facilities Authority (RIFA) to accommodate joint economic development
projects. Staff has been working with regional county administrators/city managers, Gateway
staff, and their retained legal counsel to develop this concept, and strongly recommends that the
Board of Supervisors move forward with the process of establishing a RIFA. A RIFA Agreement
Creating Virginia’s Gateway RIFA, RIFA ordinance, RIFA Bylaws, and draft Notice of Public
Hearing are attached for your review.

It was noted that if engaged in lots of projects, there are potential costs.

3 | Page — Minutes of October 21, 2021 Meeting of Board of Supervisors



Staff recommends that a public hearing be scheduled for the November regular meeting to consider
the establishment of a RIFA.

Copies of RIFA Agreement Creating Virginia’s Gateway RIFA, RIFA ordinance, RIFA Bylaws,
and draft Notice of Public Hearing were included in the Board packet.

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR FLY, seconded by SUPERVISOR D. JONES and carried:
RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby authorizes the Public Hearing
for the November regular meeting to consider the establishment of a Regional Industrial Facilities
Authority (RIFA).

Voting aye: Supervisors Fly, D. Jones, W. Jones, Seward, Tyler

\oting nay: none

Absent: Supervisor Johnson

3.04 VDOT Proposed through Truck Restrictions — Mr. Jerry Kee, VDOT

Mr. Jerry Kee, with VDOT, advised that this was an informational meeting. He discussed a
proposal from the Prince George County Board of Supervisors to restrict truck traffic on Rowanty
Road and Zion Road, which extend between Prince George County and Sussex County in the
vicinity of 1-95, State Route 35, and Cabin Point Road (see attached map). These roads have seen
an increased amount of truck traffic in an effort of truck drivers to avoid the 1-95 scales. While
Railroad Bed Road has a minimal section in Prince George County, staff recommends that this
road also be added for consideration, due to its close proximity to Zion Road. If the Board of
Supervisors is in agreement to move forward with the truck restriction process, a public hearing
would be scheduled and anticipated to be held in January 2022.

Staff recommends that a public hearing be scheduled by VDOT in coordination with Prince George
County to consider these truck restrictions, but to also include Railroad Bed Road.

A copy of the VDOT Proposed Truck Restricted Road Map was included in the Board packet. Mr.
Kee provided the Board with a copy of the VDOT manual as well.

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR TYLER, seconded by SUPERVISOR W. JONES and carried:
RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby authorizes a Public Hearing, at
the appropriate time, by VDOT in coordination with Prince George County to consider these truck
restrictions, but to also include Railroad Bed Road

Voting aye: Supervisors D. Jones, W. Jones, Seward, Tyler

Voting nay: Supervisor Fly

Absent: Supervisor Johnson

4. Public Hearing

4.01 Henry Technology Park and Commerce Center Hunting Lease

Chairman Seward opened the Public Hearing.

4 | Page — Minutes of October 21, 2021 Meeting of Board of Supervisors



County Administrator Douglas stated that staff requested bids and advertised a public hearing to
consider hunting leases for the county-owned Henry Technology Park and Commerce Center
property near Jarratt. This property has been under lease to a hunt club for the past several years,
but the current lease and lease extensions have ended. As BFPC finalizes its assessment of county-
owned industrial sites and recommendations on how to proceed with each site, staff recommends
that a one-year non-renewable lease be considered.

Mr. Douglas stated that the public hearing has been properly advertised.
County Administrator Douglas stated that bids were received from Cemetery Ridge Hunting Club
and Bent Barrel Hunting Club.

The bids were discussed.

Public comments were heard from:
e Ron Keller (Cemetery Ridge Hunting Club)
e Scott Enos (Cemetery Ridge Hunting Club)

Board comments were heard from Supervisors W. Jones.
Chairman closed the Public Hearing.
Copies of the advertisement and previous lease were included in the Board packet.

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR FLY, seconded by D. JONES and carried: RESOLVED that
Cemetery Ridge Hunting Club received the one-year non-renewable hunting lease for the Henry
Technology Park and Commerce Center property.tt

Voting aye: Supervisors D. Jones, W. Jones, Seward, Tyler

Voting nay: Supervisor Fly

Absent: Supervisor Johnson

4.02 Conditional Use Permit #2021-02. Pit Crew, LLC, applicant

Chairman Seward opened the Public Hearing.

Ms. Beverly Walkup, Director of the Planning, provided the staff report for Conditional Use
Permit #2021-02, Pit Crew, LLC, applicant.

Ms. Beverly Walkup, stated that the applicant, Pit Crew LLC is seeking a conditional use permit
to construct and operate a materials recycling/sorting facility for non-hazardous carwash waste on
approximately 10 acres of land. The property is located on the west side of Rt. 460 (General
Mahone Highway) approximately 1.5 miles south of its intersection with Rt. 602 (Cabin Point
Road). The property is Zoned General Agriculture A-1 in the Waverly Election district.

The proposed location for the materials recycling/sorting facility is on tax parcel 7-A-19 consisting
10 acres out of 147 acres. The property is bordered between Rt. 460 and the Norfolk Southern

5 | Page — Minutes of October 21, 2021 Meeting of Board of Supervisors



Railroad. To the north, there is mostly agricultural and forested land. To the south, there are pieces
of land zoned for industrial development known as “Sussex County Megasite” as well as Sussex
Service Authority (SSA) Wastewater Treatment Plant and Atlantic Waste Landfill. To the west,
there are some forested areas and Smithfield Grain. To the east, there is a service shop, service
garage, and a couple of residential dwellings.

The applicant has been established and specializing in the extraction, transportation, processing,
and disposal of non-hazardous carwash waste for 23 years. Currently, Pit Crew is operating a
facility in Prince George, VA where they store their equipment and transfer waste on 5 acres of
land. The subject property is currently unoccupied and considered as agricultural land. The
applicant seeks to expand his material recycling/sorting business to this location due to its close
proximity to the landfill where compacted sediment that comes from the sorting process is sold
and utilized

The Planning Commission held an advertised public hearing on the application on October 4, 2021.
The Commission unanimously recommended approval of the application with the following
conditions:

1) Provide screening for all operations from Rt. 460; 6 to 8 feet high fencing with landscaping.
2) Maintain existing tree line around the site.

There were no public comments. Board member comments was heard from Supervisor Fly.

This public hearing has been properly advertised. A copy of the staff report, further detail
information and a copy of the advertisement were included in the Board packet.

Chairman Seward closed the Public Hearing.

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR D. JONES, seconded by W. JONES and carried: RESOLVED
that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves Conditional Use Permit #2021-02,
Pit Crew, LLC, applicant, with the following conditions:

1) Provide screening for all operations from Rt. 460; 6 to 8 feet high fencing with landscaping.
2) Maintain existing tree line around the site.

Voting aye: Supervisors Fly, D. Jones, W. Jones, Seward, Tyler

Voting nay: none

Absent: Supervisor Johnson

5. Appointments

5.01 Nominations for the Board of Equalization

County Administrator Douglas stated that the County is currently undergoing a reassessment for
2022. As part of the reassessment, the County makes recommendations for nomination to the
Circuit Clerk Judge for appointment to the Board of Equalization. In 2018, the Board of
Equalization was put in place; however, no terms were set and one member is no longer eligible

6 | Page — Minutes of October 21, 2021 Meeting of Board of Supervisors



to continue to serve. Staff contacted members appointed in 2018. They were willing to continue
to serve if it’s the Board’s desire.

The four members currently serving on the Board of Equalization are: (1) Ms. Antionette Jones,
13174 Shands Road, Stony Creek, Virginia 23882; (2) Mr. Dennis Mason, 407 East Main Street,
Wakefield, VA 23888; (3) Ms. Carla Mayes, 2837 Petersburg Road, Waverly, VA 23890; and, (4)
Mr. Jerry Parham, 33117 Sussex Drive, Waverly, VA 23890.

FYI. The Board of Equalization is composed of five members. Staff has contacted members
appointed by the Circuit Court Judge in 2018. All are willing to continue serve, if reappointed.

The five member panel must meet the following requirements: (1) Each member must be a resident
of the County; (2) A majority of the board must be freeholders; (3) Thirty percent shall be
commercial or residential real estate appraisers, other real estate professionals, builders,
developers or legal or financial professionals; and, (4) Each member shall attend and participate
in the basic course of instruction given by the Department of Taxation.

No action was taken at the time. This item will be on the November agenda.

5.02 Appointment to Sussex Service Authority

This item was on the October Board meeting agenda. County Administrator Douglas stated that
staff was advised by Mr. Frank Irving, of Sussex Service Authority, that there was a vacancy for
an unexpired term on the Sussex Service Authority for an alternate in the At-Large position.

The position is for any citizen who resides in Sussex County (prefer them to be in our service area,
but not mandatory) and is not an elected official. The position is currently held by Sam Harrison
but he has moved out of Sussex County and is no longer eligible. He will continue to serve until
his replacement has been appointed.

This position will serve through December 2022 at which time they can be renewed for another
four-year term.

Board members are to provide names at the November meeting.

5.03 Appointment to the Department of Social Services Advisory Board

This item was tabled from the September 16, 2021 Board of Supervisors regular meeting.

At previous Board meetings, the Board discussed contacting members of the former DSS
Administrative Board in regards to their interest in serving on the Advisory Board. There was also
the Board’s general consensus to have representation from each district.

The former Board consisted of seven members with one being a Board of Supervisors
representative. Three members—Stony Creek, Wakefield and Waverly Districts—were interested
contingent upon further information provided.

7 | Page — Minutes of October 21, 2021 Meeting of Board of Supervisors



No action was taken.
6. Action Items

6.01 Request for Funding for Fire Engine Equipment and Change Order

County Administrator Douglas stated that Mr. Reid Foster, Public Safety Coordinator, is
requesting funding to cover change orders for the three new fire engines (serving Waverly,
Courthouse, and Jarratt) and equipment for the same. Specifically, $175,054 is requested from the
$250,000 contribution for fire equipment as part of the Cabin Point solar project approval process.
The attached memo and equipment list provides detailed information on this request.

Change orders totaling $42,122 are primarily related to new NFPA safety requirements and
changes to compartment shelving, where equipment is being mounted, and how switches are
located inside the cabs. Based on a request from the fire chiefs for equipment needed for the new
fire engines, Mr. Foster obtained quotes and is recommending piggy back procurement for this
equipment through the City of Chesapeake, totaling $133,000. Also to account for any additional
price increases and other potential equipment needs, Mr. Foster is requesting an allocation of
$12,000 in contingency funding.

Staff recommends approval of the attached resolution authorizing the use of $175,054 from the
fire equipment contribution for the Cabin Point solar project to cover fire engine change orders,
necessary equipment, and contingencies.

Mr. G. Reid Foster’s letter to Mr. Douglas, County Administrator, RE: Engine Funding, dated
October 5, 2021 and Appropriation Resolution #21-99

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR FLY, seconded by SUPERVISOR W. JONES and carried:
RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves Resolution #21-99
transferring $175,054 from the fire equipment contribution as part of the Cabin Point solar project
(Fund 302/Local Revenue) to the Public Safety operating budget (Fund 100/Fire, Rescue &
Emergency), to cover the cost of change orders, necessary equipment, and contingencies related
to the acquisition of three new fire engines.

Voting aye: Supervisors Fly, D. Jones, W. Jones, Seward, Tyler

Voting nay: none

Absent: Supervisor Johnson

6.02  Branch Street (Wakefield) Surplus Property

County Administrator Douglas stated that a couple property owners in the Pocahontas
Neighborhood/Branch Street in Wakefield have expressed interest in acquiring from Sussex
County three small parcels located at the southeast intersection of Branch Street and Higgins
Street. These parcels were likely obtained as part of a previous county housing program but now
must be maintained by the county (including lawn maintenance). Staff has not identified a public
purpose or benefit for retaining these properties in public ownership.

8 | Page — Minutes of October 21, 2021 Meeting of Board of Supervisors



Staff recommends that a public hearing be advertised for the November meeting to consider
disposal of the three lots.

It was also discussed drafting a Surplus Property Policy.
A map illustrating adjacent land ownership was included in the Board packet.
By general consensus, Administration is to advertise for a Public Hearing at the November

meeting. The Board will consider bids at that meeting.

6.03 OEMS Rescue Squad Assistance Fund Grant Award

The Sussex County Sheriff’s Office was recently awarded $49,507 in funding from the Virginia
Office of Emergency Medical Services, Financial Assistance for Emergency Medical Services
Grant Program/Rescue Squad Assistance Fund (RSAF). This funding will address the
implementation of state-mandated emergency medical dispatch, which is defined as “a systematic
program of handling medical calls pursuant to which trained dispatchers determine the nature and
priority of the call, dispatch the appropriate response and give the caller instructions to help treat
until the arrival of the appropriate responder.” This grant requires a 50 percent local match for
some portions of the project and a 20 percent local match for others, with a total local requirement
of $14,252.

Staff recommends approval of the attached resolution appropriating $14,251.81 in local revenues
and $49,507.21 in OEMS grant funds, for a total of $63,759.02, to the Sheriff’s Department for
the implementation of emergency medical dispatch.

EMD literature was included in the Board packet.

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR FLY, seconded by SUPERVISOR D. JONES and carried:
RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby accepts and approves Resolution
#21-101 appropriating $14,251.81 in local revenues and $49,507.21 in OEMS grant funds, for a
total of $63,759.02, to the Sheriff’s Department for the implementation of emergency medical
dispatch.

Voting aye: Supervisors Fly, D. Jones, W. Jones, Seward, Tyler

Voting nay: none

Absent: Supervisor Johnson

6.04 VACo Voting Credentials

County Administrator Douglas stated that the Virginia Association of Counties’ (VACo) Annual
Conference will convene Sunday, November 14" through Tuesday, November 16", 2021 at the
Hilton Norfolk (the Main) in Norfolk, Virginia. The Annual Business Meeting of the Virginia
Association of Counties will be held Tuesday, November 16, 2021. Each County is to designate
a representative and an alternate of its Board of Supervisors to cast vote(s) at the Annual Business
Meeting.

9 | Page — Minutes of October 21, 2021 Meeting of Board of Supervisors



It has been advised that per Article VI, VACo Bylaws, if a member of the Board of Supervisors
cannot be present, the County can designate a non-elected official from the county or a Board of
Supervisors member from another county to cast a proxy vote(s) for the Sussex County.

A copy of Voting Credential Forms and Information was included in the Board packet.

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR FLY, seconded by SUPERVISOR D. JONES and carried:
RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby designates Susan Seward,
Chairman, as the representative and Wayne Jones, Vice Chairman, as the alternate to cast votes at
the Annual Business Meeting. All Board members present voted aye.

7. Citizens’ Comments
e Brenda Drew (Virginia HCV Program) — Thanked the Board; Housing Choice Voucher

Program; Sussex still first priority; tie up loose ends of County business.
e John Stringfield (Wakefield District) — Property on Branch Street in Wakefield.

8. Unfinished Business

There was no Unfinished Business.
9. New Business

There was no New Business.

10. Board Member Comments

10.01 Blackwater District — Election day — vote.

10.02 Courthouse District — none

10.03 Henry District — none

10.04 Stony Creek District — none

10.05 Wakefield District — Community Day cancelled. Parade in December.

10.06 Waverly District — absent

11. Closed Session

11.01 Convene to Closed Session

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR FLY, seconded by SUPERVISOR W. JONES and carried:
RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby enters Closed Session for

10 | Page — Minutes of October 21, 2021 Meeting of Board of Supervisors



consultation with legal counsel or actual or probable future litigation, pursuant to VVa. Code Section
2.2-3711(A)7. All Board members present voted aye.

11.02/03. Reconvene to Open Session/Certification of Closed Session

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR FLY, seconded by SUPERVISOR W. JONES and carried:
RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby reconvened to Open Session
and convened a Closed Meeting on this date pursuant to an affirmative recorded vote in accordance
with the provisions of the Virginia Freedom of Information Act; and

WHEREAS, the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves adoption of resolution for
certification, to-wit:

WHEREAS, that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors convened a Closed Meeting on this date
pursuant to an affirmative recorded vote in accordance with the provisions of the Virginia Freedom
of Information Act; and

WHEREAS, Section 2.2-3712 of the Code of Virginia, as amended, requires a certification by the
Board that such Closed Meeting was conducted inconformity with Virginia law.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Supervisors hereby certifies that, to
the best of each member’s knowledge (i) only public business matters lawfully exempted from
Open Meeting requirements by Virginia law were discussed in the Closed Meeting to which this
certification resolution applies, and (ii) only such public business matters as were identified in the
motion convening the Closed Meeting were heard discussed or considered.

Voting aye: Supervisors Fly, D. Jones, W. Jones, Seward, Tyler

Voting nay: none

Absent: Supervisor Johnson

11.04 Action Resulting from Closed Session

There was no action on the Closed Session meeting.
12. Adjournment

12.01 Adjournment

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR W. JONES, seconded by SUPERVISOR TYLER and carried:
RESOLVED that the October 21, 2021 rescheduled meeting of the Sussex County Board of
Supervisors hereby adjourned at 9:35 p.m.

Voting aye: Supervisors Fly, D. Jones, W. Jones, Seward, Tyler

Voting nay: none

Absent: Supervisor Johnson

12.02 Next Meeting

11 | Page — Minutes of October 21, 2021 Meeting of Board of Supervisors



The next regular Board of Supervisors meeting will be held on Thursday, November 18, 2021 at
6 p.m.

12 | Page — Minutes of October 21, 2021 Meeting of Board of Supervisors



At a Regular Meeting of the
Sussex County Board of Supervisors
Thursday, September 16, 2021 at 6 pm

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT
C. Eric Fly, Sr.

Marian D. Johnson

Debbie P. Jones

Wayne O. Jones

Susan M. Seward

Rufus E. Tyler, Sr.

Steve White, Tie Breaker (Virtual)

STAFF PRESENT:

Richard Douglas, County Administrator

Jeff Gore, County Attorney

Ellen G. Boone, Commissioner of the Revenue
Deste J. Cox, Treasurer

Lisa Danuser, Solid Waste Manager

William Hagy, Director of Social Services
Kelly W. Moore, Director of Finance

Michael Poarch, Planner

Beverly H. Walkup, Planning Director

Shilton R. Butts, Assistant to the County Administrator/
Deputy Clerk to the Board of Supervisors

1. Commencement

1.01 Call to Order/Determine Quorum

The September 16, 2021 regular meeting of the Sussex County Board of Supervisors was called
to order by Chair Seward.

1.02 The Invocation

The Invocation was offered by Supervisor Johnson.

1.03 The Pledge of Allegiance

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited by all.

1.04 Agenda Amendments

It was requested to add under Item #6 Action Items, as Item 6.11 Sheriff’s Department Request
for Funding for Mandated Bonuses.

1| Page — Minutes of September 16, 2021 Meeting of Board of Supervisors



There was also a request to add under Item 9. New Business, as Item 9.02 Historical Assets.

1.05 Approval of Agenda

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR W. JONES, seconded by SUPERVISOR FLY and carried:
RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves the September 16,
2021 regular agenda inclusive of: (1) adding under Item 6. Action Items, as Item 6.11 Sheriff’s
Department Request for Funding Law Enforcement Bonuses and (2) under Item 9. New Business,
as Item 9.02 Historical Assets. All Board members present voted aye.

2. Approval of Consent Agenda

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR D. JONES, seconded by SUPERVISOR JOHNSON and
carried: RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves the Consent
agenda inclusive of the following: (a) August 19, 2021 regular Meeting minutes; (b) the Approval
of Warrants and Vouchers; (c) the Treasurer’s Report; (d) Financial Update; and (e) Departmental
Reports. All Board members present voted aye.

3. Recognitions/Awards/Presentation

3.01 Solid Waste Services Update — Ms. Lisa Danuser

Ms. Lisa Danuser was in attendance and gave an update on Solid Waste Services, to include
convenience center staffing and operational improvements, increased services to be provided at
the convenience centers (bulk containers, appliances, scrap metal, and tires), illegal dumping
removal, and litter removal.

4. Public Hearing

4.01 American Recue Plan Act of 2021 (ARPA)

County Administrator Douglas stated that purpose of the public hearing was to receive public input
on the use of American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (ARPA).

Chairman Seward opened the Public Hearing.
County Administrator Douglas stated that the majority of the ARPA funds are proposed to be used
for operating and capital items removed in the current year operating budget, as well as matching

funds for the proposed VATI broadband project. However, no action was required at that time.

There was discussion to schedule a Budget Work Session for the ARPA funds and presenting at
the October 2021 Board meeting.

Public comments were heard William Ricks (Retired Sussex County School Teacher/Property
Owner/Sussex County Youth and Adult Recreation Association).

2 | Page — Minutes of September 16, 2021 Meeting of Board of Supervisors



Board comments were heard from Supervisors Tyler and Seward.

Chairman Seward closed the Public Hearing.

No action was taken. Budget Work Session to be scheduled.

Copies of State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds Fact Sheet; FAQ July 19, 2021, County
Administrator’s ARPA Spending List, and the Notice of Public Hearing were included in the Board
packet.

Supervisor Tyler departed at approximately 7:07 p.m.

5. Appointments

5.01 Department of Social Services Advisory Board

At its regular Board meeting in August 2021, the Board discussed contacting members of the
former DSS Administrative Board in regards to their interest in serving on the Advisory Board.
There was also the Board’s general consensus to have representation from each district.

The former Board consisted of seven members with one being a Board of Supervisors
representative. Three members—Stony Creek, Wakefield and Waverly Districts—were interested
contingent upon further information provided.

This item was tabled. No action was taken.

6. Action ltems

6.01 Flatfoot Solar, 2232 Review Appeal of Planning Commission Determination Sussex Drive
(Route 40), Stony Creek Election District

Ms. Beverly Walkup, Planning Director, provided the staff report for the Flatfoot Solar, 2232
Review Appeal of Planning Commission Decision from April 5, 2021 by Flatfoot Solar Public
Facility Application Review for REF #2021 in Sussex County.

Flatfoot Solar, LLC are the applicants. The request is for review of the Flatfoot Solar pursuant to
Virginia Code Section 15.2-2232. The application was submitted August 31, 2020—revised
February 9, 2021.

The Flatfoot Solar, 1.62 MW ac project location is within the Stony Creek district on the southern
side of Sussex Drive (Route 40)., west of Concord Sappony Road, 2.8 miles west of Stony Creek
in Sussex County, Virginia—parcel numbers 65-A-45 and 65-A-37. The acreage affected is ten.

3 | Page — Minutes of September 16, 2021 Meeting of Board of Supervisors



The Planning Commission considered the subject application on April 5, 2021 and voted to
recommend denial of the application and determined that the proposed use is not substantially in
accord with the Comprehensive Plan with written reasons for its decision as follows:

1. The project area is in the Stony Creek/1-95/U.S. 301NA Route 40 planning area.

2. The project is located on land primarily used for timber production.

3. The project is adjacent to a residential land use and near (within a 3-mile buffer of the project

limits) a Virginia Department of Forestry conservation easement, 39 architectural resources,

and 52 archaeological resources.

The project location is in close proximity to a number of residences.

The proposed entryway into the project site is only approximately 25 feet from an existing

residence, and there is concern for accumulating dust and noise to residences in close

proximity.

6. The total impacts it may have on the residential area are not known due to a lack of
communication with existing residents.

S

APPLICANT'S APPEAL

The applicant appealed the Planning Commission's determination in a memorandum dated August
24, 2021 (Attachment A). The applicant sets forth a case that the project meets, or meets the intent
of, most of the criteria set forth in the Comprehensive Plan. They provide narrative and maps to
demonstrate their case. They assert that the proposed facility is a temporary land use of
approximately 40 years and is more compatible to the surrounding area and proposed future land
uses than many other types of land uses such as commercial or industrial.

STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS (from the 2232 report presented on April 5, 2021)
A. Applicant's Position

In the application materials dated August 31, 2020 and revised February 9, 2021 (Attachment D),
the Applicant set forth its reasons why the proposed project is substantially in accord with the
Comprehensive Plan.

The Applicant identifies the following items in support of its project:

* The proposed project is

Located in an agricultural district

Less than 1,500 contiguous acres

Less than 65% solar panel coverage

Greater than two (2) miles from a permitted solar facility

Adjacent to a few residential properties with existing forest buffers

Not proximate to eligible historic, cultural, or recreational areas or scenic viewsheds
Adjacent to surface waters and wetlands, but mitigation measures are proposed to
protect these areas

* A Dominion transmission line is near the property for interconnection to the grid.

O O0O0O0O00O0

4 | Page — Minutes of September 16, 2021 Meeting of Board of Supervisors



* The project will generate minimal offsite noise, little glare, and no emissions or safety
hazards.

» After the construction is complete, there will be limited ongoing maintenance, and the
ingress/egress traffic will remain similar to current use patterns.

* The project will generate tax revenue and create temporary construction jobs.

» Solar facilities are a low intensity use that do not require county infrastructure or resources.

Staff Analysis

Staff has analyzed the proposed project considering the recently approved amendments and other
relevant sections of the County's Comprehensive Plan, primarily:

» Chapter Il, section B, item 23. Utility-scale Solar Facilities

» Chapter Il, section C, item 2. Vision Statement

» Chapter IX, section B. Land Use Conflicts

» Chapter X, section D. Stony Creek/1-95/U.S. 301/VA Route 40 Planning Area goals and
objectives

In addition to the items identified by the Applicant above, analysis considerations include:

* The project is 2.8 miles from the town boundary for Stony Creek.

* The project is in the Stony Creek/1-95/U.S. 301/VA Route 40 planning area.

» The project is located on land partially used for timber production, but the surrounding
wetlands make seven (7) acres of timberland challenging to harvest.

» The project is proximate to one Virginia Department of Forestry (DOF) conservation easement.

» The project is proximate to 52 archaeological resources and 39 architectural resources within
a 3-mile buffer of the project limits.

The location, character, and extent of the proposed utility-scale solar project are in accord with
these guidelines set forth in the Comprehensive Plan, Chapter 11, section B, item 23. Utility-scale
Solar Facilities.

» The project section of the parcels is zoned agricultural.

* The total size is less than 1,500 contiguous acres.

» There is no more than 65% solar panel coverage.

* The location is further than two (2) miles from other existing or permitted solar facilities.

The location, character, and extent of the proposed utility-scale solar project are not in accord with
these guidelines set forth in the Comprehensive Plan, Chapter I1, section B, Item 23. Utility-scale
Solar Facilities.

* The project is less than three (3) miles from the town boundary for Stony Creek.
* The project is in the Stony Creek/1-95/U.S. 301/VVA Route 40 planning area.
» The project is located on seven (7) acres primarily used for timber production.

5 | Page — Minutes of September 16, 2021 Meeting of Board of Supervisors



» The project is adjacent to a residential land use and near (within a 3-mile buffer of the project
limits) a Virginia Department of Forestry conservation easement, 39 architectural resources,
and 52 archaeological resources

Staff has analyzed the Comprehensive Plan elements, and the proposed project does not meet the
Comprehensive Plan's land use goals, objectives, and strategies. Staff finds that the proposed
utility-scale solar facility is not substantially in accord with the Sussex County Comprehensive
Plan, or parts thereof.

As recommended in the Comprehensive Plan, the Commission, however, should look beyond the
plan and consider whether proposed developments, even if consistent with the plan, advance the
best interests of public health, safety, and general welfare. This very general criterion calls for
consideration of a wide range of issues, including, but not limited to the potential impact of a
development on:

The natural environment

Important natural resources

The County economy

Important historical, architectural, archeological, and cultural resources
Neighboring development

Community function, character, and attractiveness

VVVVVYY

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS ACTION

The Board may uphold the Planning Commission's determination or overturn it based on the
evidence presented or other reasons related to the 2232 review process. The reasons for the Board's
action should be clearly stated and documented in writing.

If the Planning Commission's determination is upheld, then there is no conditional use permit to
be considered. If the Planning Commission's determination is overturned, then REF# 2021-01 will
be deemed substantially in accordance with the Comprehensive Plan and the application may
continue and be scheduled for a Planning Commission public hearing.

Brendan Grajewski and Scott Foster, with Flatfoot Solar, were present for discussion and to
answer questions.

Applicant's Notice of Appeal dated August 24, 2021 (with supplement al material); Memo dated
April 4, 2021 provided at the April 5, 2021 Planning Commission meeting; Staff Report, Planning
Commission April 5, 2021 meeting; and, CUP Application, submitted August 31, 2020 and revised
February 9, 2021 were included with the Board packet.

A PowerPoint presentation was provided to the Board members.
ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR D. JONES, seconded by SUPERVISOR JOHNSON and

carried: RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby upholds the Planning
Commission’s decision to deny the application and determine that the proposed use is not

6 | Page — Minutes of September 16, 2021 Meeting of Board of Supervisors



substantially in accord with the Comprehensive Plan with written reasons for its decisions as
follows:

1. The project area is in the Stony Creek/1-95/U.S. 301NA Route 40 planning area.

2. The project is located on land primarily used for timber production.

3. The project is adjacent to a residential land use and near (within a 3-mile buffer of the project

limits) a Virginia Department of Forestry conservation easement, 39 architectural resources,

and 52 archaeological resources.

The project location is in close proximity to a number of residences.

The proposed entryway into the project site is only approximately 25 feet from an existing

residence, and there is concern for accumulating dust and noise to residences in close

proximity.

6. The total impacts it may have on the residential area are not known due to a lack of
communication with existing residents.

Voting aye: Supervisors Fly, Johnson, D. Jones, Seward

Voting nay: W. Jones

Absent during vote: Supervisor Tyler

SRR

6.02 Literary Loan Refinancing Resolution

County Administrator Douglas stated that as presented at the August 2021 Board of Supervisors
meeting, Davenport recommended that Sussex County consider a refunding of 2005 and 2008
literary loans for school construction, with an estimated net savings over the next seven years of
$210,644 due to lower interest rates (beginning with an annual savings of $37,836 in FY22). The
county submitted an initial application to the Virginia Public School Authority (VPSA) in late
August, and Davenport has worked with the Sussex County School Board on required refinancing
approval. As a final step of the process, the Board of Supervisors will need to adopt a resolution
by October 4.

Staff recommended approval of the attached resolution prepared by bond counsel Sands Anderson
to submit a debt refunding application to VPSA for the 2005 and 2008 literary loans.

A copy of the VPSA Pool Fall 2021 BOS Bond Resolution was included in the Board packet.

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR FLY, seconded by SUPERVISOR JOHNSON and carried:
RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves the Resolution
prepared by bond counsel Sands Anderson to submit a debt refunding application to VPSA for the
2005 and 2008 literary loans, to-wit:

Resolution #21-80 authorizing the issuance of a General obligation school refunding bond of the
County of Sussex, Virginia, to be sold to the Virginia public school authority and providing for the
form and details thereof:

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors (the "Board™) of the County of Sussex, Virginia (the
"County"), has determined that it is necessary and expedient to borrow an amount not to exceed
$4,250,000 and to issue its general obligation school refunding bond (as more specifically defined

7 | Page — Minutes of September 16, 2021 Meeting of Board of Supervisors



below, the "Local School Bond") for the purpose of refinancing all or a portion of the County’s
$7,225,403 Literary Loan Obligation, Series 2005, (the “2005 Obligation”) which financed capital
improvements to Sussex Central High School (the “2005 Project”) and the County’s $7,002,530
Literary Loan Obligation, Series 2008, (the “2008 Obligation, and, together with the 2005
Obligation, the “Refunded Bonds”) which financed capital improvements to Sussex Middle School
(the 2008 Project,” and, together with the 2005 Project plus costs of issuance for the Local School
Bond, the “Projects™), all of which constitute capital projects for public school purposes;

WHEREAS, no public hearing or request from the School Board of the County is required in
connection with the issuance of the Local School Bond in accordance with the requirements of Section
15.2-2643, Code of Virginia 1950, as amended (the "Virginia Code™) as it refunds existing County
obligations thereunder;

WHEREAS, Virginia Public School Authority ("WVPSA") has offered to purchase the Local
School Bond along with the local school bonds of certain other localities with a portion of the proceeds
of certain bonds to be issued by VPSA in the calendar year 2021 (the "VPSA Bonds");

WHEREAS, the Bond Sale Agreement (as defined below) shall indicate an amount requested
(or such other amount as may be requested by the County and permitted by VPSA, the "Proceeds
Requested) from VPSA in connection with the sale of the Local School Bond of an amount
sufficient to refinance the Projects subject to the parameters established in paragraph 4 hereof, and
an amount sufficient to finance the costs of issuance of the Local School Bond;

WHEREAS, VPSA's objective is to pay the County a purchase price for the Local School
Bond which, in VPSA's judgment, reflects the Local School Bond's market value (the "VPSA
Purchase Price Objective™), taking into consideration of such factors as the amortization schedule the
County has requested for the Local School Bond relative to the amortization schedules requested by
other localities, the purchase price to be received by VPSA from the sale of the VPSA Bonds and
other market conditions relating to the sale of the VPSA Bonds; and

WHEREAS, such factors may result in the Local School Bond having a purchase price other
than par and consequently (i) the County may have to issue the Local School Bond in a principal
amount that is greater than or less than the Proceeds Requested in order to receive an amount of
proceeds that is substantially equal to the Proceeds Requested, or (ii) if the maximum authorized
principal amount of the Local School Bond set forth in section 1 below does not exceed the Proceeds
Requested by at least the amount of any discount, the purchase price to be paid to the County, given
the VPSA Purchase Price Objective and market conditions, will be less than the Proceeds Requested.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE
COUNTY OF SUSSEX, VIRGINIA:

1. Authorization of Local School Bond and Use of Proceeds. The Board hereby
determines that it is advisable to contract a debt and issue and sell its general obligation school
refunding bond in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $4,250,000 (the "Local School
Bond") for the purpose of refunding the Refunded Bonds and refinancing the Projects. The Board
hereby authorizes the issuance and sale of the Local School Bond in the form and upon the terms
established pursuant to this Resolution.

8 | Page — Minutes of September 16, 2021 Meeting of Board of Supervisors



2. Sale of the Local School Bond. The sale of the Local School Bond, within the
parameters set forth in paragraph 4 of this Resolution, to VPSA is authorized. Given the VPSA
Purchase Price Objective and market conditions, the County acknowledges that the limitation on
the maximum principal amount of the Local School Bond set forth in paragraph 1 of this
Resolution restricts VPSA's ability to generate the Proceeds Requested, however, the Local School
Bond may be sold for a purchase price not lower than 95% of the Proceeds Requested. The
Chairman of the Board, the County Administrator, or either of them (each a "Delegate™) and such
other officer or officers of the County as either may designate are hereby authorized and directed
to enter into an agreement with VPSA providing for the sale of the Local School Bond to VPSA
(the "Bond Sale Agreement™). The Bond Sale Agreement shall be in substantially the form
submitted to the Board at this meeting, which form is hereby approved, with such completions,
insertions, omissions and changes not inconsistent with this Resolution as may be approved by the
County officer executing the Bond Sale Agreement.

3. Details of the Local School Bond. The Local School Bond shall be dated 17 days
prior to the date of its issuance and delivery or such other date designated by VPSA; shall be
designated "General Obligation School Refunding Bond, Series 2021 [ ]"; shall bear interest from its
dated date payable semi-annually on each January 15 and July 15 beginning July 15, 2022 (each an
"Interest Payment Date"), at the rates established in accordance with paragraph 4 of this Resolution;
and shall mature on July 15 in the years (each a "Principal Payment Date™) and in the amounts
acceptable to a Delegate (the "Principal Installments™), subject to the provisions of paragraph 4 of this
Resolution.

4. Interest Rates and Principal Instaliments. Each Delegate is hereby authorized and
directed to accept the interest rates on the Local School Bond established by VPSA, provided that
each interest rate shall be five one-hundredths of one percent (0.05%) over the interest rate to be
paid by VPSA for the corresponding principal payment date of the VPSA Bonds, a portion of the
proceeds of which will be used to purchase the Local School Bond, and provided further that (a)
each Delegate is hereby authorized and directed to select the particular portion or portions of the
Refunded Bonds (if any) to be refunded and direct VPSA to provide a Proceeds Requested that
achieves the refunding of the selected portion or portions (if any) provided that the refunding of the
Refunded Bonds selected shall result in an aggregate net present value debt service savings of not less
than three percent (3.00%) of the par amount of the Refunded Bonds to be refunded and (b) the Local
School Bond shall not mature later than June 30, [2029.] The Interest Payment Dates and the Principal
Installments are subject to change at the request of VPSA. Each Delegate is hereby authorized and
directed to accept changes in the Interest Payment Dates and the Principal Installments at the request
of VPSA based on the final term to maturity of the VPSA Bonds, requirements imposed on VPSA by
the nationally-recognized rating agencies and the final principal amount of the Local School Bond;
provided, however, that the principal amount of the Local School Bond shall not exceed the amount
authorized by this Resolution and the final maturity of the Local School Bond shall not exceed 30
years from the date of the issuance and delivery of the Local School Bond. The execution and delivery
of the Local School Bond as described in paragraph 8 hereof shall conclusively evidence the approval
and acceptance of all of the details of the Local School Bond by the Delegate as authorized by this
Resolution. Each Delegate is hereby authorized and directed to cause the redemption proceedings,
including the giving of redemption notices to the holder of the Refunded Bonds shall be done
pursuant to the terms of the Refunded Bonds (or otherwise as agreed to by the holder).

9 | Page — Minutes of September 16, 2021 Meeting of Board of Supervisors



5. Form of the Local School Bond. The Local School Bond shall be initially in the form
of a single, temporary typewritten bond substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A.

6. Payment; Paying Agent and Bond Registrar. The following provisions shall apply to
the Local School Bond:

@ For as long as VPSA is the registered owner of the Local School Bond, all
payments of principal, premium, if any, and interest on the Local School Bond shall be made in
immediately available funds to VPSA at, or before 11:00 a.m. on the applicable Interest Payment
Date, Principal Payment Date or date fixed for prepayment or redemption, or if such date is not a
business day for Virginia banks or for the Commonwealth of Virginia, then at or before 11:00 a.m.
on the business day next succeeding such Interest Payment Date, Principal Payment Date or date
fixed for prepayment or redemption.

(b) All overdue payments of principal and, to the extent permitted by law, interest
shall bear interest at the applicable interest rate or rates on the Local School Bond.

(© The County Administrator is authorized to designate a Bond Registrar and
Paying Agent for the Local School Bond. The County may, in its sole discretion, replace at any time
the Bond Registrar with another qualified bank or trust company as successor Bond Registrar and
Paying Agent for the Local School Bond. The County shall give prompt notice to VPSA of the
appointment of any successor Bond Registrar and Paying Agent.

7. Prepayment or Redemption. Unless otherwise directed by VPSA, the Principal
Installments of the Local School Bond held by VPSA coming due on or before July 15, 2031, and the
definitive bond for which the Local School Bond held by VPSA may be exchanged that mature on or
before July 15, 2031, are not subject to prepayment or redemption prior to their stated maturities. The
Principal Installments of the Local School Bond held by VPSA coming due on or after July 15, 2032,
and the definitive bond(s) for which the Local School Bond held by VPSA may be exchanged that
mature on or after July 15, 2032, are subject to prepayment or redemption at the option of the County
prior to their stated maturities in whole or in part, on any date on or after July 15, 2031, upon payment
of the prepayment or redemption prices (expressed as percentages of Principal Installments to be
prepaid or the principal amount of the Local School Bond to be redeemed) set forth below plus
accrued interest to the date set for prepayment or redemption:

Dates Prices
July 15, 2031 through July 14, 2032 101%
July 15, 2032 through July 14, 2033 100%
July 15, 2033 and thereafter 100

Provided, however, that the Principal Installments of the Local School Bond shall not be subject
to prepayment or redemption prior to their stated maturities as described above without first
obtaining the written consent of VVPSA or other registered owner of the Local School Bond. Notice
of any such prepayment or redemption shall be given by the Bond Registrar to VPSA or other
registered owner by registered mail not more than ninety (90) and not less than sixty (60) days
before the date fixed for prepayment or redemption.

10 | Page — Minutes of September 16, 2021 Meeting of Board of Supervisors



If VPSA refunds the VPSA Bonds in the future and such refunding causes the Local School Bond
to be deemed refunded, the prepayment or redemption of the Local School Bond will be subject to
VPSA approval and subject to similar prepayment or redemption provisions as set forth above that
correspond to the call period of the VPSA bonds issued in part to refund the Local School Bond.

8. Execution of the Local School Bond. The Chairman or Vice Chairman and the
Clerk or any Deputy Clerk of the Board are authorized and directed to execute and deliver the
Local School Bond and to affix the seal of the County thereto.

9. Pledge of Full Faith and Credit. For the prompt payment of the principal of, premium,
if any, and the interest on the Local School Bond as the same shall become due, the full faith and
credit of the County are hereby irrevocably pledged, and in each year while any portion of the Local
School Bond shall be outstanding there shall be levied and collected in accordance with law an
annual ad valorem tax upon all taxable property in the County subject to local taxation sufficient in
amount to provide for the payment of the principal of and premium, if any, and the interest on the
Local School Bond as such principal, premium, if any, and interest shall become due, which tax shall
be without limitation as to rate or amount and in addition to all other taxes authorized to be levied in
the County to the extent other funds of the County are not lawfully available and appropriated for
such purpose.

10. Use of Proceeds Certificate and Tax Compliance Agreement. The Chairman of the
Board, the County Administrator and such other officer or officers of the County or the School Board
as either may designate are hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver on behalf of the
County a Use of Proceeds Certificate and Tax Compliance Agreement (the "Tax Compliance
Agreement™) setting forth the expected use and investment of the proceeds of the Local School Bond
and containing such covenants as may be necessary in order to show compliance with the provisions
of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), and applicable regulations relating
to the exclusion from gross income of interest on the VPSA Bonds issued as tax-exempt. The Board
covenants on behalf of the County that (i) the proceeds from the issuance and sale of the Local School
Bond will be invested and expended as set forth in such Tax Compliance Agreement and that the
County shall comply with the other covenants and representations contained therein and (ii) the
County shall comply with the provisions of the Code so that interest on the VPSA Bonds issued as
tax-exempt will remain excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes.

11. State Non-Arbitrage Program; Proceeds Agreement. The Board hereby determines
that it is in the best interests of the County to authorize and direct the County Treasurer to participate
in the State Non-Arbitrage Program in connection with the Local School Bond. The Chairman of the
Board, the County Administrator and such officer or officers of the County as either may designate
are hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver a Proceeds Agreement with respect to the
deposit and investment of proceeds of the Local School Bond by and among the County, the other
participants in the sale of the VPSA Bonds, VPSA, the investment manager and the depository,
substantially in the form submitted to the Board at this meeting, which form is hereby approved.

12. Continuing Disclosure Agreement. The Chairman of the Board, the County
Administrator and such other officer or officers of the County as either may designate are hereby
authorized and directed to execute a Continuing Disclosure Agreement, as set forth in Appendix D to
the Bond Sale Agreement, setting forth the reports and notices to be filed by the County and

11 | Page — Minutes of September 16, 2021 Meeting of Board of Supervisors



containing such covenants as may be necessary in order to show compliance with the provisions of
the Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 15¢2-12, under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
as amended, and directed to make all filings required by Section 4 of the Bond Sale Agreement
should the County be determined by VPSA to be a MOP (as defined in the Bond Sale Agreement).

13. Refunding. The Board hereby acknowledges that VPSA may issue refunding bonds
to refund any bonds previously issued by VPSA, including the VPSA Bonds issued to purchase the
Local School Bond, and that the purpose of such refunding bonds would be to enable VPSA to pass
on annual debt service savings to the local issuers, including the County. Each of the Delegates is
authorized to execute and deliver to VPSA such allonge to the Local School Bond, revised debt
service schedule, IRS Form 8038-G or such other documents reasonably deemed necessary by VPSA
and VPSA's bond counsel to be necessary to reflect and facilitate the refunding of the Local School
Bond and the allocation of the annual debt service savings to the County by VPSA. The Clerk to the
Board of Supervisors is authorized to affix the County's seal on any such documents and attest or
countersign the same.

14. Filing of Resolution. The appropriate officers or agents of the County are hereby
authorized and directed to cause a certified copy of this Resolution to be filed with the Circuit Court
of the County.

15. Election to Proceed under Public Finance Act. In accordance with Section 15.2-2601
of the Virginia Code, the Board elects to issue the Local School Bond pursuant to the provisions of
the Public Finance Act of 1991, Chapter 26 of Title 15.2 of the Virginia Code.

16. Further Actions. The members of the Board and all officers, employees and agents of
the County are hereby authorized to take such action as they or any one of them may consider
necessary or desirable in connection with the issuance and sale of the Local School Bond and
otherwise in furtherance of this Resolution and any such action previously taken is hereby ratified and
confirmed.

17. Effective Date. This Resolution shall take effect immediately.
Voting aye: Supervisors Fly, Johnson, D. Jones, W. Jones, Seward
Voting nay: none
Absent during vote: Supervisor Tyler

6.03 Dominion Broadband Agreement

County Administrator Douglas stated that attached for your review and consideration is a
Memorandum of Understanding between PGEC/Ruralband, Dominion Energy Virginia, and
Sussex County that will allow PGEC/Ruralband to expand broadband services into unserved areas
of Sussex County within Dominion Energy Virginia’s service territory.

This agreement is a critical component of the proposed VATI grant-funded project to extend
broadband service to all unserved areas of Sussex County. The County Attorney has reviewed and
proposed some minor changes to the document.

12 | Page — Minutes of September 16, 2021 Meeting of Board of Supervisors



Staff recommends approval of the MOU between PGEC/Ruralband, Dominion Energy Virginia,
and Sussex County.

County Administrator Douglas noted that he had already signed the Sussex Ruralband
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU).

A copy of the Sussex Ruralband Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) was included in the
Board packet.

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR D. JONES, seconded by SUPERVISOR W. JONES and carried:
RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves ratifying the MOU
between PGEC/Ruralband, Dominion Energy Virginia, and Sussex County.

Voting aye: Supervisors Fly, Johnson, D. Jones, W. Jones, Seward

Voting nay: none

Absent during vote: Supervisor Tyler

6.04 Convenience Sites Monitoring and Management Contract Award

County Administrator Douglas stated that County staff recently advertised RFP #2021-05 Request
for Proposals for Sussex County Convenience Site Monitoring and Management, and received
proposals from United American Security (GardaWorld Security Services) and Admiral Security
Services. The Solid Waste Services Manager, Public Works Director, County Administrator, and
Jason Williams, of Waste Management, reviewed the two proposals and recommend that United
American Security be awarded a contract for these services. (They are currently serving the county
but the contract previously expired) In addition to having experience managing the county’s
convenience centers, United American Security submitted a proposal with a total annual operating
cost of $400,804, compared to a $466,668 proposal from Admiral Security Services (Section 3 of
the proposal submission forms are attached for your review).

Staff recommends that United American Security dba GardaWorld Security Services be awarded
a contract for management of the Sussex County convenience centers.

There was discussion of the County manning the convenience site.

Copies of RFP #2021-05 Convenience Sites Monitoring and Management Contract Award and
Proposal Submission Forms received were included in the Board packet.

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR FLY, seconded by SUPERVISOR JOHNSON and carried:
RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby awards the contract for
management of Sussex County Convenience center to United American Security dba Gardaworld
Security Services with one year to monitor with the possibility of renewing; and

FURTHER RESOLVED that the County Administrator is authorized and directed to execute the
contract. All Board members present voted aye.

6.05 Virginia Diner Performance Agreement

13 | Page — Minutes of September 16, 2021 Meeting of Board of Supervisors



County Administrator Douglas stated that the attached for your review and consideration is a
performance agreement with the Virginia Diner for a Governor’s Agriculture and Forestry
Industries Development Fund (AFID) grant through the Virginia Department of Agriculture and
Consumer Services for $100,000. In return for the Virginia Diner meeting capital investment and
employment measures for its recently announced warehouse/office expansion project, Sussex
County agrees to provide $70,000 as a cash grant over the next four years, and to complete $30,000
in drainage improvements adjacent to Virginia Diner facilities. The County Attorney has reviewed
this document and has proposed some minor non-substantive changes for state review.

Staff recommends adoption of the performance agreement with the Virginia Diner.

The Governor’s Agriculture & Forestry Industries Development Fund Performance Agreement
was included in the Board packet.

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR W. JONES, seconded by D. JONES and carried: RESOLVED
that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves the Performance Agreement with
the Virginia Diner. All Board member present voted aye.

6.06 Crater Regional Workforce Development Board Disallowed Costs

County Administrator Douglas stated that included in the packet for the Board’s review and
consideration is a letter from Crater Regional Workforce Development Board (CRWDB) Attorney
Jay C. Paul requesting payment of $1,819 from Sussex County for its calculated portion of $28,420
in disallowed costs incurred by the CRWDB (note that the letter was sent to an incorrect email
address and therefore not brought to the Board of Supervisors attention at the August board
meeting).

These disallowed costs identified by the State are associated with training provided by Cherry
Creek Services in FY2016-17. According to an associated email, all local governments in the
region have paid their portion of this cost, with the exception of Petersburg which is pending.

Staff deferred to Supervisor Fly, who has been a long-time CRWDB member, on recommended
action. There was discussion of the audit and mention of 17 findings of disallowable costs.
Supervisor Fly recommended not paying costs until CRWDB gets things organized and straight.

A copy of the Jay C Paul, Attorney at Law, PLLC letter, dated August 2, 2021, was included in
the Board packet.

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR FLY, seconded by SUPERVISOR JONES and carried:
RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby authorizes not paying
disallowed costs, as well as authorizes the County Administrator to send letter to the Crater
Regional Workforce Develop Board.

Voting aye: Supervisors Fly, Johnson, D. Jones, W. Jones, Seward

Voting nay: none

Absent during vote: Supervisor Tyler

14 | Page — Minutes of September 16, 2021 Meeting of Board of Supervisors



6.07 Children’s Services Act (CSA) Funding and Revolving Loan Cap Request

County Administrator Douglas stated a memorandum from Will Hagy, Director of Social Services
was included for consideration regarding requested actions related to the Children Services Act
(CSA) negative fund balance. Specific actions being requested are to: 1) appropriate $145,000
from the General Fund fund balance to the CSA fund; and 2) extend the CSA fund cap from
$150,000 to $250,000 until December 1, 2021. The CSA fund has a current negative fund balance
of $140,520.89 and consistently has started each fiscal year, at least for the past four years, with a
negative balance. Staff does not know for certain why this fund has consistently started each fiscal
year in the negative, but it is likely due to costs not being submitted to the State for reimbursement
within deadlines. CSA currently has $214,000 of outstanding invoices, and with the large negative
fund balance and a fund cap in place, staff is unable to submit additional invoices to the Office of
Children’s Services for reimbursement by the September 30 deadline for the past fiscal year (and
the County would ultimately be responsible for 100 percent of these costs if the deadline is missed).

Mr. Hagy was present and gave an overview of the background of CSA Fund being set up as a
revolving account, discussed the negative balance, and the County’s agreement to cover any
expenditures made, up to $150,000, with the expectation that reimbursements will be received into
the CSA fund in the near future to bring the fund back into good standing.

Staff (and the DSS Administrative Board) recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve the
DSS Director’s request to: 1) appropriate $145,000 from the General Fund fund balance to the
CSA fund; and 2) extend the CSA fund cap from $150,000 to $250,000 until December 1, 2021.

There was discussion of CSA providing quarterly reports.

A copy of the letter from Mr. Will Hager, DSS Director, CSA Negative Balance, dated 9/16/21,
was included in the Board packet.

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR FLY, seconded by SUPERVISOR W. JONES and carried:
RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves the DSS Director’s
request to: 1) appropriate $145,000 from the General Fund fund balance to the CSA fund; and 2)
extend the CSA fund cap from $150,000 to $250,000 until December 31, 2021. All Board
members present voted aye.

6.08 Children’s Services Act (CSA) Professional Coordination Services Agreement with the
City of Franklin

County Administrator Douglas stated that at staff’s request, the County Attorney prepared an
agreement for shared services with the City of Franklin for the Children Services Act coordinator
position. The City of Franklin was previously served by the City of Suffolk but has since hired its
own coordinator.

Sussex County has had difficulty in attracting quality candidates for the CSA position.

15 | Page — Minutes of September 16, 2021 Meeting of Board of Supervisors



County and city staff have discussed and recommend sharing the CSA Coordinator position
between the two jurisdictions. This shared agreement should allow the County to cost-effectively
provide for this position with a trained professional.

Staff recommend that the Board approves sharing the CSA Coordinator position between with the
City of Franklin.

The City of Franklin will be the Fiscal Agent.

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR D. JONES, seconded by W. JONES and carried: RESOLVED
that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves sharing the CSA Coordinator
position between with the City of Franklin.

All Board members present voted aye.

6.09 Wakefield Drainage Improvements Project and FEMA Grant Request — Mr. John Grey,
The Wooten Company

County Administrator Douglas stated that John Grey of the Wooten Company was in attendance
to present an overview of the proposed Wakefield drainage improvements (primarily extending
from US 460 at the Virginia Diner to the railroad trestle past Railroad Avenue). This area of
Wakefield has experienced significant flooding issues and negatively impacted local businesses.
This work is composed of two separate projects: 1) ditch maintenance and 2) comprehensive
physical improvements. Staff previously authorized the Wooten Company to proceed with Phase
1 of the ditch maintenance project, at a cost of $9,800, and that work is underway (a memorandum
is attached outlining this project).

Staff was recently contacted by VDEM to consider applying for FEMA funding for the broader
study of comprehensive physical improvements, which requires a 25 percent match (VDEM
should be able to provide a 20 percent match but has requested that the County commit to the full
amount for grant purposes; in addition, the Town of Wakefield is considering funding for a portion
of the match). At VDEM'’s request, the Wooten Company prepared a proposal to complete a
Preliminary Engineering Report, which would be completed with an advanced assistance grant
funded by FEMA, at a projected cost up to $125,000. This PER must be completed by April 2022
and would be used as the justification for additional FEMA grant funds to complete recommended
physical improvements (also requiring a 25 percent match).

Staff recommends that the Board of Supervisors commits up to $16,000 as the required match for
the advanced assistance grant through VDEM to complete a Preliminary Engineering Report for
the Wakefield drainage improvements project.

Wooten’s Engineering Report, Wildcat Swamp, dated 8/13/21 and Tributary at Highway 460 and
Creek Maintenance of Highway 460, dated 3/19/21, were included in the Board packet.

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR W. JONES, seconded by Supervisor JOHNSON and carried:
RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby commits up to $16,000 as the

16 | Page — Minutes of September 16, 2021 Meeting of Board of Supervisors



required match for the advanced assistance grant through VDEM to complete a Preliminary
Engineering Report for the Wakefield drainage improvements project.

Voting aye: Supervisors Fly, Johnson, D. Jones, W. Jones, Seward

Voting nay: none

Absent during vote: Supervisor Tyler

6.10 District Court Law Clerk Funding

County Administrator Douglas stated that included for the Board’s review and consideration is a
request from Judge Tomko with the Sixth Judicial Circuit, requesting that Sussex County provide
$5,600 annually to cover a portion of salary and mileage for a law clerk position serving the Sixth
Judicial Circuit. Apparently Prince George County and the City of Hopewell are the only two
jurisdictions in the Sixth Judicial Circuit that have covered these expenses for the past 18 years,
and the other jurisdictions are now being asked to cover a portion of these costs (with the intent of
increasing the starting salary).

Staff recommends and requests that $5,600 be appropriated from fund balance to cover this
requested expenditure for FY2021-22 and build into budget.

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR W. JONES, seconded by SUPERVISOR D. JONES and carried:
RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby appropriates $5,600 from Fund
Balance to cover the requested expenditure for FY2021-22 for District Court Law Clerk Funding.
All Board members present voted aye.

6.11  Sheriff’s Department Request for Law Enforcement Bonus Funding

County Administrator Douglas stated that Administration received a request from Sheriff Giles to
provide funding for a one-time bonus request for non-Comp Board to employees in the amount of
approximately $80,000. Administration was advised that there were approximately 16 positions
that would not receive a bonus. Some of those employees were Waverly employees of which the
Sheriff is requesting the Town of Waverly to pay for those employees. The Sheriff’s Department
is requesting the County to provide $68,000 from the Fund Balance Fund.

County Administrator Douglas stated that the appropriation would be done at the October 21, 2021
regular meeting on the Consent agenda.

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR D. JONES, seconded by SUPERVISOR W. JONES and carried:
RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves the Sheriff’s request
for $68,000 for non-Comp Board employees from Fund Balance. All Board members present
voted aye.

7. Citizens’ Comments
o Alfred Futrell (Waverly District) — Convenience site and its employees.

e Clarence Bain (Wakefield District) — No recreation; losing kids; County’s support to the
community; leadership.

17 | Page — Minutes of September 16, 2021 Meeting of Board of Supervisors



e Tracy Artis (Waverly District) — Convenience site.
e Randy (Waverly District) — Convenience site; residents’ behavior visiting sites.
e Joe (???) — Convenience site.

8. Unfinished Business

8.01 Annual Term Contracts for Professional Engineering Services on Multiple Small Projects

County Administrator Douglas stated that the following was presented to the Board of Supervisors
at the August 2021 regular meeting, prior to being tabled for further review and discussion:

Staff advertised a Request for Proposals (#2021-03) for annual term contracts for professional
engineering services on multiple small projects in April, and received proposal from the following
seven firms:

CHA Consulting (Richmond) Moseley Architects (Richmond)
Koontz Bryant Johnson Williams (Richmond) Dunlap & Partners Engineers (Richmond)
The Wooten Company (Raleigh) Timmons Group (Richmond)

MSA (Virginia Beach)

A staff committee comprised of the County Administrator, Public Works Director, and Public
Safety Director reviewed each proposal to determine which firms would best meet the engineering
needs of Sussex County.

Staff recommends based on proposal review, that the following firms be approved for negotiation
of term contracts for small engineering projects: Timmons Group, The Wooten Company, CHA,
Koontz Bryant Johnson Williams, and Moseley Architects.

A copy of RFP #2021-03 was included in the Board packet.
ON MOTIN OF SUPERVISOR W. JONES, seconded by SUPERVISOR FLY and carried:
RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves the following firms

for negotiation of term contracts for small engineering projects: Timmons Group, The Wooten
Company, and CHA. All Board members present voted aye.

9. New Business

9.01 Redistricting

County Administrator Douglas stated that Supervisor Fly requested that a discussion on 2021
redistricting be included on the agenda.

Staff has discussed Crater PDC assisting the County with district mapping as needed. In addition,
some redistricting-related information provided by the County Attorney was included in the Board
packet for their review.

18 | Page — Minutes of September 16, 2021 Meeting of Board of Supervisors



Supervisor Fly stated that the County needed redistricting; however, no redistricting can be done
unless the State does redistricting according to new State law.

No action was requested at this time.

Elections Redistricting Laws Update, Guide to Local Redistricting for 2021 and Certificate to No
Objection were included in the Board packet.

9.02 Historical Sites

Supervisor Fly recommended that the County Administrator be tasked with getting quotes for a
Historical Asset Study in the County with a special focus on Cactus Hill.

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR FLY, seconded by SUPERVISOR W. JONES and carried:
RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby authorizes the County
Administrator to develop a Historical Asset Study focusing on Cactus Hill and provide information
at the October 21, 2021 meeting. All members present voted aye.

10. Board Member Comments

10.01 Blackwater District — none

10.02 Courthouse District — Clothes drive, Saturday September 18" at 202 Prospect Street,
Wakefield from 9 am. to 5 p.m.

10.03 Henry District — absent

10.04 Stony Creek District — none

10.05Wakefield District — Noted having a discussion of personnel matter in Closed Session.

It was recommended that the Personnel Committee meet to discuss to make recommendation.

10.06Waverly District — none

11. Closed Session
There was no Closed Session.
12. Adjournment

12.01 Adjournment

19 | Page — Minutes of September 16, 2021 Meeting of Board of Supervisors



ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR W. JONES, seconded by SUPERVISOR FLY and carried:
RESOLVED that the September 16, 2021 regular meeting of the Sussex County Board of
Supervisors hereby adjourned at 9:45 p.m.

Voting aye: Supervisors Fly, Johnson, D. Jones, W. Jones, Seward

Voting nay: none

Absent during vote: Supervisor Tyler

12.02 Next Meeting

The next regular Board of Supervisors meeting will be held on Thursday, October 21, 2021 at 6
p.m.

20 | Page — Minutes of September 16, 2021 Meeting of Board of Supervisors



November 18, 2021
WARRANTS & VOUCHERS SUMMARY

TOTAL ALL WARRANTS FOR APPROVAL $678,666.68

TOTAL ALL VOID CHECKS FOR APPROVAL $0.00

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE WARRANTS: CHECK NO. AMOUNTS PROCESS DATE

FOR MONTH OF October 2021 220113-220167 $ 98,000.60 RUN DATE 10/1/21
220168-220203 $ 102,864.92 RUN DATE 10/7/21
220214-220272 $ 165,250.39 RUN DATE 10/15/21
220273-220321 $ 81,049.30 RUN DATE 10/21/21
220332-220369 $ 119,137.18 RUN DATE 10/28/21

Total Regular Warrants $566,302.39

PAY. DEDUCTION WARRANTS: 220204-220213 $ 56,917.62 RUN DATE 10/15/21
220322-220331 $ 55,446.67 RUN DATE 10/29/21

Total Deduction Warrants: $112,364.29

TOTAL VOUCHERS & WARRANTS FOR APPROVAL $678,666.68

VOIDED CHECKS






SLEZBR66TTI00V0Y # ELZINSJLedaY 7 BIURLAIUIEH D|DIYIA

25 ESp
JIY AJTHHS XISSNS EELTO
L3V NOSNHOP 3 EEL10
123% ROSKHOr 3 €ELT0
L3V ROSKHOC 3 EEZLO
120V SHIAID A EELLO

WL 00
53| | ddng Juawaddojul me
S|ean
seg/abed| iy
s|eay

sy |ddng pooy

133V SMIAID' A EEZT06ujuted) uOy-abea)in/auL|ose)

130V SH3AID A E€ELLD
137¥ SHIATD A EELTD

b 892
120V SHIAID A EELTO

sa} jddns pooy
satjddns poo

Wik 00
sat |ddng pooy

122¥ SHIAID A £E£T106uuLes] uoy-3Dea|H/aul (0SRY
139V SNIAID A £E/10bULULeL] WON-BDe3| (H/auL foseD

130V SNIA1D A EELTO
130V SNIA1D A EELTD
130¥ SNIAID A EELTO
130V SNRRID'A EEL1D
10V SNIAID'A ELLTO
120V SNIAID A EELTO
123¥ SHIATD A EELTO

Gf' 128
130V 3HIAM'D EELTD
L3V IHIAM'D EEL10
133V 3HOAM™D ECLT0

133V NOSIHEW'T €ELTD0
13V NOSTHYW T 2ELTD
10V 53119°7 £EL10
133V §3119°3 €EL10

Sy
say (ddng pooy
sa1(ddng pooy
sal|ddng pooy

SOSUadx] |EJ1pay Iewu]

BuiSt1a9ApY
SJ3YIQ SNO3UE| (ISIW

WI0L [t
591 1ddng JuawaI0)u3 Me)
Sa) |ddng JuawddI0)ul Me
saL|ddng ad§ )0
534 |ddng JuauR2I0puT MET
53t |ddnS Juawadiojul Me)
SJ2Y1) SNOSUB| |3ISIK
SJaYlQ snoaue| |3ISIK

120% 5311977 £84105Jteday § IoueUIIULEH B[ D3N

L3V Ve EEL10
133 e £e41n

6v'86L €
9980/€£2ES # £CL10

{6 828
ICV1I5ISEBONLY # EELTO

00 59

diyssaquay uoLieziuebug
53| |ddng poo4

‘Wi0L o’
sasuadxy {ed)pan I1ew|

WIGL 00
Juawdinb3
il 00

JIVC AINNDD X3ISSNS EEZ1041eddy § doueudjulen bulp|ing

A1)

WiBL 00

6E009 # EEL10SJ10daY § ADUPUIULEN SPURC.Y
6£009 # EEL1041009y T adusuauiey bulp|jng

81 86
EPEGE # EEZI0

HOELIYISID ANT HILVE

[ 39vd

Wit 0o
Sa34 S0 7 J)/Aved

1g10¢e &L 09

WIOL 1Wd Ad3 00

02102 0 vS2
0¢10¢¢ 01 SI

0210c¢ 98 8E
0e10Ze 5 1t
021022 00 €

02102 56 0F
02102 SY 6
021022 68 6E

WI0L IWd Ad3 00

611022 {2 01
61i0¢¢ 81 b
611022 B0 02
611022 10 91
6li0é2 05 {1
611022 08°01
6il0d¢ S6°12
6ll0z22 &'l
61022 82°96
611022 B6H'61

WI0L LHd Ad3 00°

gll02Z 98°6b
8l10g¢ Sb'2él
glloge LE'vE
glLI02Z £6°0v
81102 09 '8¢
8Ll0zZ 09'1E
811022 00°052
811022 00°G22
8il02¢ 00°SE
8Ll0geé 0001

WI0L IHd Ad3 00

{11022 6v B6L £

W1I0L 1Wd Ad3 00

911022 16 B2E

WI0L 1Hd Ad3 00

GEEDZZ 0D 59

L0t IHd Ad3d 00

vii0Ze (6 66
vitoge Stv

101 1Hd Ad3 00

E110ZZ 81 86

ON ENNOWY

HV HIY  A)3H) 13N

0L/1202 - PdI3Y

01&-¢ve-5921-00v120-001F

WIOL IWd ¥d3 00
015-615-9v21-001150-001F
B15-215-5021-001150-001F
015-21%-¥321-001150-0011
015-¢15-5021-001150-001F
015-195-9v21-005150-001F
015-195-¥921-00S150-001F
016-195-9v21-005150-001F
015-195-9¥21-005150- 001F

WIOL 1Hd ¥dd 00
015-195-9r21-005150 001
015-155-¥9¢1-005150-001¢
015-155-v321-005150-001¢
015-195-9021-005150-001¢
015-155-9v21-005150-00 T
015-195-9v¢1-00S150- 001k
015-155-9v21-005150- 001
015-155-86¢1-005150-001F
015-195-5€21-005150-0010
015-155-66¢1-005150- 001

WI0L IWd Vd2 00
015-215-5v21-001150-001#
015-215-5+21-001150-001¥
015-155-1+21-005150-001v
015-215-6121-001150-001F
015-215-5v21-000150-001
015-215-6621-001150-001F
015-215-6621-001150-001¥
015-215-99¢1-001150-001F
015 195-1021-005150-001¥
015-155-9v21-005150- 001+

WI0L 1Wd ¥dd 00°
OEG-155-E621-005150-001¢

WI0L IWd Vd) 00
0Ec-112-6521-001120-001F

V0L IWd ¥dD 00
015-155-2421-005150-001¢

I0L 1Hd YdD 00
01¢-12€-vL21-002120-001v
012-122-2£21-0021£0-001¥

WI0L 1Hd ¥dD 00
OLb-11p-Z62E-0011KD-00LY

ON
1RN0JDV

95-80°0L-3HIL

1e02/E2/8

TWI0L WD HJY
120¢/L1/8
120é/2ern
1épe/ec/n
1202/61/8
120¢/01/6
1202/60/6
1202/50/6
1202/10/6

WIOL 1Hd HY
1202/10/6
1202/42/8
1202/92/8
1202/52/8
1202/ve/8
L20z/éei8
120/81/8
120¢/91/89
1202/€1/8
120z/21/8

WIOL IWd HOV S {28
120e/L1/8
1202/41/8
1202/51/8
1202/20/6
1602/ 1E/8
1202/20/6
120¢/20/6
1202/02/8
1202/20/6
1202/¢1/8

‘IVI0L 1Wd HIY
1épéseess

WI0L 1Hd H¥
1202/51/6

WIOL 1Hd HOY 0059
[202/Le/6

WIOL IKd HXY 2¢ vl
120278216
1202/82/6

WI0L 1Hd HW Bl 86
1202/L1/6

€5 £5¥

¥S 89¢

{6 82t

THIW g
d7y THOANT

HILSTO93 NIIHD dfY

6k 86/

0207-3A%H-EHOT

10 1260 8EES

WI0L ¥33H) 00
L0 1260 5520
£0 1260 8120
¢0 1260 810
10 1260 BY20
pl 1260 2220
El 1260 £220

1398 {9100 000C0CO

W01 "J810
¢10000 000CO00
tiooon 0000000
010000 0000000
010000 0000000
010000 0000000
010000 0000000

¢l 1260 2220 010000 0000000
L1 1260 €20 VA JGISHINOS J0 NVE 010000 0000000

WI0L X331 00 wioL 3SId
0L 1260 2220 010000 0000000
60 1260 220 010000 00D0ODOD
B0 1260 2220 010000 0000000
{0 1260 222D 010000 0000000
90 1260 €220 010000 0000000
S0 1260 2één 010000 000000D
v0 1260 éech 010000 0000000
£0 1260 2220 010000 DOOOOOD
20 1e60 ééel 010000 0000000
10 1260 2¢ch VA JOISHINOS 30 NNve 010000 000DODD

W0 AI3H) 00 WwioL 2S1a
£0 1260 viZ0 010000 000GOGO
€0 1260 ¥120 010000 0OODOOD
10 1260 viz0 010000 0DDODOD
20 1260 9020 010000 ODOOCOO
10 1260 9020 GE000C 0000000
€0 1260 1E10 010000 0000000
€0 1260 (ET0 010000 0000000
10 1260 1E10 010000 0000000
¢0 1260 010 010000 0000000
10 1260 L010 VA J0ISHLNOS 40 XNvE 010000 0000000

£ TYIOL 303H) 00 w0l 3s0o
S1£¢STEELCES UTIINHS 9SSOUD IN'1E WIHLNY 110100 0000000

WI0L M) 00 w0l 3SIa
SIAEIS WILdY) NOZVWY L1G100 0000000

TIOL X0 00 0L 351
121260420V ¥ JLIWHIL SNOSVIS TW £26000 0000000

WIO0L ¥I3H3 00 W0l 3510
9/60481 Zreo0 0000000
/50481 NI "VA-THOV 2vE000 0000000

WI0L HI3H3 00 WI0L JSId
£515500001 NI "SIHIHAVA 12V 096100 0000000
‘ON FWyN HOGNIA 1] ON
JJ10AN] HOGN3A 0d

ALROOD X3ASSNS 120¢/10/01 001V



0 vh

WI0L 00

1005 # €E/10 SJ1RU3Y JIUBUSIIRH BLHYTA
1005 # £6/10 541003y SoUBUSIUIEY B[I1YTA
1005 # EC{105J1eday § 20ULUIUIRY 3| FLYBA

05 #9¢
{041 # EELT0
L1041 # EELTO0

05 /5

TvioL a0
SIINAIDG |RIIPHY
SIINAJIS |RIIPI

WI0L 0

J4IYIHS XISSNS EEL10SJ1eday 7 JuBUBULEY 3| ILY3p
JATYIMS XISSNS £E/10  SJ1eday DUBLINLEY I(INIA

00 5¢

WI0L 00

OISSTHWOD SNINNYd €E£10U0)IESUIMIN] PIROP/UOYSSLID]

00 54

WI0L 00

NOISSIHOD ONINNVIA EC/T0UCLIRSUOOT PJBOR/UDYSS D]

00 Ove
ESEZBBRGTTI0OV0Y £ EELLO
£5£28B66LLI0970F # ECLTO0
£6E2BB6O1TI09P0F £ EELTO
£5E2BB661110970F # ECLI0
EGEZBB66TTIO9V0r # EELIO0
£5E28B661T109P0F # EELTO
£5EZBE66TTI0GKOY # EELTO
£GE2BAGETILO9Y0Y # EEL10

Er 2€9°S
£SE2BB6611109V0F £ EELTO
£GE2BR6611100v0F # EELTO
£5£2886611109v0F # EEL10
9yE2B86611109¢0F # EELTD
9y£¢BEEELLI0oV0V # EELID
9yEZBAG6TT1109k0r # EELT0
BEL2BBEOLLT09¥0F # EELID

WI0L 00
SPMFIFJu0] pue SdoysyIoM
$30U3J3JU0T pUR SAOUSIIOM
S3DUIIIJUOT PUR SADYSHIOM
S30UAJIJU0T pUR SAOYSHIOH
SIUAIDJUCTY pue SAOYSHJOM
S3AJUIIBJUDY pue SAOYSHIOM
S32UIJIJUD) pue SOoYSHIoM
S30UBLIIIUD] puE SAOYSHIOH

w101 0
say(ddng 201110
sal|ddng 221410
1507 J012EJIUD]/SaLeday
Butbpo
abea| 1y
abea| 1W
530U3J3JU07 pue SAOYSHJOM

BEEZBBGELLI00V0Y # £6/10u041ed1 (ddy/2uEm1J0§ J3INN0)

BEEZBRAGIT1109¥0Y # EEZ10
BEEZBBOGLT109¥0Y # EEL10

02 EB°L
BEEZBREGTLI0OY0Y # EELID
8££Z88661 110910V # EEL10
BECZBR6ELII09¥0Y # EEL10
8EEZAAGETTTO9YOY # EEL10
BLE2BBE6ILL09Y0Y # EEL10
BCT2BB66EIT109V0Y # EEL10
BECZBBEGLII09Y0Y # CEL10
BEEZBBAGLLI09POY # EEL10

sat(ddng (eany(nayaby
saL|ddng |eany[ndLJaby

WI0L 0o
sat ddng (eany(noLaby
satiddng 231330
sat(ddng 31330
say(ddns ad(jp0
satyddng adtjjig
SJ3YIQ SNOBUBY§BISIH
sayddng 824340
diysaaguay Uo13ezZIuebap

BEE2EBAATLIOOYOY # £E/10u0)1RI) |ddy/ademijas J3Indeod

NO11d1¥IS30 AN] HILVE

]

359vd

101 1Hd Ad3 00

821022
821022
821022

0z Sv
96 2v
6s

VI0L 1Hd Ad3 00

{2022
{21022

05 861
a0 0L

WIOL IWd Ad3 00

92102
921022

00 5¢
052t

TWIOL IHd Ad3 00

Selhee

00 5¢

TIO0L IWd Ad3 00

re1oce

00 5/

WIOL 1Kd Ad] 00

€¢loce
£e10ee
£210c¢
£2102Z
£eloee
EC10¢¢
€202
AL

00 0E
00 0F
00 0
00 0F
00 0F

WLI0L {Hd Ad3 00

221022
£210é¢
celiege
celnee
2etnie
¢ctee
£eiee
éeinee
¢cl0ce
2einge

8y 91
er 16
et 2l
a0 €€

29 8L

BT BZ
00°005
00 96¢ ¢
BZ 2’1
¥ XA

WI0L IHd Ad3 00

12l0ee
1eilee
izinge
121022
iciDéé
ieioee
leloge
12102
1210¢¢

3530 INNOJIY /D IWd IHd N

HIY HIY  AJ3HD

OF 491
Ll SE1
950
04 2
66 6

00 08¥
pl 10E
00 05
86 62

INMOY
I

WIOL kWd ¥d) 00
015-615-992E-001150-001F
015-615-5921-0011S0-00ik
015-215-5921-001150-00EF

WI0L iHd ¥d3 00
012-19¢-£2¢1-009120-00LF
0iZ-192-4221-009120-001%

WIO0L 1Hd vd3 00
015-215-5921-001150-001¥
015-615-5921-001150-001¥

W01 1Hd ¥dD 00
012-1ve-£121-00v120-001y

WI0L 1Hd vdD 00
012-1ve-£121-00%120-001¥

WIOL Hd VdD 00
O1r-IT¥-E021-0011¢0-001F
O1b-11r-E021-00TTR0-001¢
O1k-11p-E0Z1-00TTV0-00TY
Olr-11p-£021-00TTH0-00TF
OTb-110-E0ZT-001LP0-001¥
01~ 11P-€0ZT-00TTr0-001F
OTIb- 1T -E0Z1-0011PD-001Y
O01b - 11p-E0CT-001TPe-00TF

WIO0L 1Wd Vd2 00
012-292-1v21-009120-001¢
012-292-1vZ1-009120-001F

0125 -000180-1E1k
012-292-¥0Z1-009120-001F
012-292-¥aZ1-009150-001¢
012-292-¥921-009120-001¢
012-192-E0Z1-009120-001F
012-192-8521-009120-001F
012-192-2r2[-009120-001F
012-19¢-2v21-009120-001F

WI0L 1Hd vdD 00
012-192-2¢21-009120-001F
0EZ-162-1¥21-001€20-001F
0E¢-162-1¢21-001E0-001F
0E2-162-1¥21-001E20-001Y
01Z-112-1¥Z1-001120-001F
01¢-112-66¢1-001120-001F
012 -112-1k21-001120-001F
0EZ-T12-T0Z1-001120-001F
0E2-112-BS21-001120-001¢

0N
IRN0JDY

O Lene = PdIdY  95-80-0E-IWIL

WE0L 1Wd HJY L0 ¥b
102/ 1E/6
1202/02/6
i2ee/L1/6

WIOL 1Wd HDV 05 89¢
1202/EL/6
120¢/80/6

WI0L IWd HDY 05 45
120e/velb
120272276

WIOL IWd HV 00 8¢
1202/91/6

WI0L IWd HOV 00°SL
1202/91/6

WIOL IHd H)Y 00 0v2
1202/€1/6 ii
1€0¢/E1/6 1]
120275176 60
1202/51/6 80
1202/€1/6 10
1202/51/6 90
1202/€1/6 a0
1202/E1/6 v

WI0L IHd HIY £F 2£9°¢
1202/82/8 £0
120g/ig/8 gl
120¢/02/8 0
1202/82/8 €0
180/ 4e/8 2o
120¢/v2/8 10
1202/£1/6 4
1202/91/6 £l
1¢0¢/91/6 zl
1202/v1/6 I

WIO0L IWd HOV 0z €81
120e/v1/6 o1
1202/60/6 60
1202/60/6 80
1202/60/6 10
1202/v0/6 90
1202/£0/6 S0
1202/£0/6 v
l20e/ic/a £0
1202/12/8 20

WY a1v0

div I10ANL

HILSTOIY NI iy

WI0L YOI 00
0bSBe -SEEST
06r8e-SEEST
Igp82-SEESL

IR X3H) 007

22169
£Di6Y

WI0L %J3H) 00

1968
5v68

w0l "3S1a
822000 0000000
82/000 OOODOOD

T30J3A¥H 40 1SIN0UVD BZL000 0000000

wioL Jsia
152100 0000000

AYVNIY3L3A LHIOd NIEVD 152100 0000000

oL JSI0
8€£000 0000000

QNY DNIMOL S.u33LN8 B8E/000 0000000

WI0L ¥I3HD) 00
YONIYA "55398N8 #LPI00C 0000000

129160 88

WI0L A33H) O

129160 94

WI0L J33HY 00

1260 £5€2
1260 £5€2
1260 £5€2
1260 €522
1260 £5€¢
1260 £5£2
1260 €52
1260 £5¢£2

Wi0L 33 00

1260 £5E2
1¢60 £5£2
1260 €582
160 9Vl
1260 9vEs
1260 9vte
1¢60 8EEe
1260 8tte
1260 8E€2
1260 BEEZ

WI0L ¥I3HD 00

1g60 BEES
1260 BEEZ
1260 BEEZ
1260 BEES
1260 BEEC
1260 BEEZ
1260 8EEZ
1260 BEEE
1260 BEEe

‘0N
uu_c>z_

ALRNQD X355NS

1]
NIAZN "ADVYE

w0l JSi0

W0l "JSi
¢£F100 0000000

w101 JSid

£9£100 0000000
49100 0000000
49100 0000000
19100 0000000
£9/100 0000000
494100 0000000
£9£100 0000000

1389 £9£100 0000000

W10L 3510
£9£100 0000000
£9£100 0000000
£9£100 0000000
£9£100 0000000
£9£100 0000000
£9£100 0000000
£9£100 0000000
£94100 0000000
£9£100 0000000

1399 (94100 0000000

w0l Jsi0

£94100 0000000
£9£100 D0OODOD
£94100 0000000
£9£100 9000000
£9£100 0000000
£94100 0000000
£9£700 D0O0DOD
{9100 DO0OODOO
£9£100 0000000

] oM
HOONIA 0d

1202/10/01 0014V



9€ 6/6°8
100SNS # EEZ10
100SNS # £EZ10
o0sns # £€710
100snS # €EL10
100sNS # €€£10
[00snS # £EL10
100SNS # EELED
100SNS # EELTD

00°001

wioL

SAIIAJDS
S3NAJES
SaDIAJaS
LERTENELS
EERTTNELS
S2ItAIAS
LERTENE"S
CERTENE S

W01

0o
LeUOLSS3)00g JaYI0
| BUOYSSI)0Ig Sl
LBUOLSSA)0UG JayD
LBUDISSB)01d 40
|BUISSa)0Id JAI0
|BUDISS3)0ud JAND
|RUCISS3}04d 43I0
|BULSS2J0d J3Y10

00’

OISSTWWOD ONINNVIA EEZ1DUOLIESUBABO) PJROG/UDESS HULO]

88 9
vi6yesiaes # £CL10

£6° 500

w0l

Wi0L

00
IR R

00°

V3UL ALRNOD XISSNS CCLTO 10BLIU0) 9D1AGIS 2IUBLIIULRY
|EuaYy/aseaT juandinby

4J 1S10 MID X3SSAS EELTD

oo
sa¢|ddng pooj
sai|ddng pooy

00"
S3J1AJ3S |BILPaY

0”

221656VC # CLLT0IVEID WITA UOLUIWO0/ddIY 244

00"

50015 AWG-4I0ISIH

00

00’
S3D|AJIS JITEM
Sa){AJaS JT)EM

00
PLASIY YI R J9T01)

0

sai | ddng (21a03que;

o0
s34 | ddng pooy

G5 [tE w101
TUVE ALNNOD X3SSNS EELT0
YT ALNNOD X35SNS EEL10
0458 WI0L
ALNNOD X3SSNS £££10
9/ °9¢1 W10l
006411 W01
6102v91009%S # £€L10
08681 WI0L
INFWISHNSAT Y EELT0 1IBJIUD] BILANAG SuBUIUL Y
9L7¢ll W0l
FOlC0ELEBIBELE # ECL10
2LveSELneserLl # £2L10
G2 al0'(E Wi0L
202 YILHYND ONODIS EELT10
86752 wvioL
AERMOD X3550S EELID
00°825°'C WioL
00/0E009 # £EL10
09°19 w01

J4[Y3HS A3ISSNS £ELT10

HOTLdIYISI0 ANT HOLYE

€ 3wd

00’
sa1|ddng pooy

"3530 LNNDJJY WD JHd IWd ON

WI0L 1Wd Ad3 00
2rigge 2y édi’l
eripze v 22r’l
2ridéz ey 221
Zrioge 2v 22t’1
erloze 2p 2¢1°t
evinge gy 221°1
oringe ey 22l’l
cvinez év'zet’l

WIOL IWd AdD 00°
Ir10ee 00°001

TWI0L IHWd Ad3 00
0vikee 889

Wi0L IHd AdF 00°
681022 ¥6° 491
61022 66°LE

WI0L 1Hd Ad] 007
BEL0ZZ Db 681
BEI0EZ ST BkT

W10 IHd AdJ 00°
{£1022 0498

WI0L 1Hd Ad3 00°
9E1022 9£°9¢1

WIOL IWd Ad3 00°
SEL02Z 00°SLL°1

TWI0L IHd Ad3 00°
vEi0ee 087681

WEGL IWd Ad3 00°
EEI0ZZ 1B'YE
EEI0eE 68744

WI0L IHd Ad3 007
2e1022 S2°6L0°LC

TI0L 1Hd Ad3 DD°
1€10¢¢ 8675

WIOL IHd Ad3 00"
0E102¢ 00°BES°E

WIOL IHd Ad3 00°
6e102Z 09°19

LNNOWY
HIV HOVY W33ND 13N

01/1202 - P41V

WIO0L 1Hd vd) 00 WIOL IHd KV 92 668 WI0L a3 00 oL 3510
012-¥92-6221-009120-001¢ 1202/£1/6 bSIg1s £2£100 0000000
012-¥92-6221-009120-001F 1202/ L1/6 £61214 £2100 0000000
012-v92-6221-009120-001F 120¢/L1/6 cGieid £¢{100 0000000
012-v92-6221-009120-001F 1202/i1/6 t5igls £2£100 0000000
012-v92-6¢21-009120 001k 120274146 05iclL £2/100 0000000
012-¥92-6¢21-009120-001v 1202/£1/6 oviciL £2/100 0000000
01E-v92-6221-009120-001F 1202/ L1/6 ariéis £2£100 0DDODOD
012-¥92-6221-009120-001v 1202/41/6 L1214 TAYIS ALFENJ3S OT40MVOHYD E2100 DODOODOO

WI0L IHd vdD 00 W01 LHd HY 00 001 WI0L YJ3H)  o0° W01 CISIa
01g-1¥e-L121-00¥120-00TF 1202/91/6 129160 370 JLLIAVAYT " "ONOWO3 £21000 0000000

WI0L IWd ¥d) 00 WIO0L 1Hd H)V 88 9 TIOL ¥ 00 W0l JSia
015-155-9421-005150-001¢ 120¢/4¢/8 1280 PI6YBGIZ6E  HIMO VINTOHIA ROINIWOG ¥60000 0000000

WI0L 1Hd vd) 00 WIOL IRd H)Y £6 S0¢ WI0L WM 00 WI0L 3514
01p-LTp-5521-0011v0-001¥ 1202/51/6 689411 159100 0000000
019-219-¢5¢-001190-001 120272116 S09411 SWILSAS INIWNJ0Q 159100 0000000

WI0L LHd VdD 00 WI0L IWd HV 95 LEC WIOL JW3H) 00 TIOL 3514
015-155-9r¢1-00515D-001F le02/i2/6 SEL981M ¢06000 0000000
015-155-9¢21-005150-001p 120E/0¢/6 B/9981H 13V S, 43WHVA 300 206000 0000000

WI0L 1Hd ¥dD 00° IO IHd HDY 0:°58 VI0L ¥33H) 00 WI0L "J510
012-192-£221-005120 00 120270276 05825¢ VildSDH WHINY YINVINGSIQ SBTTI00 0000000

WIOL IWd ¥dd 00° TI0L IHd HV 97981 WI0L H03H)  00° wiel 3810

119-012-£52-6621-005120-001% 120¢/01/6  Dl601ExeCiaseve 17°AL23410 268100 0000000

WIOL IWd ¥dd 00° WI0L EWd HDV (I -TAN WI0L 038D 00° Wi0L “J5i0
0TP-TT¥-66e1-0011r0-001) 1¢0¢/82/6 BL£00Ev21202  SINDIHIA BOLOW 40 1¥vd30 £61000 000DO0OD

TYIOL IHd ¥dD 00° VI0L IWd HDY 08 681 WI0L N3 00 wi0L “3sI0
012-1£2-95¢1- 004 120-001F tebe/ee/o 1€éga0 03 J0u1 " HISNNVD SEGT00 0000000

WI0L IWg ¥dd 00 WI0L 1Hd H)Y 9L 2ll WI0L %33> 00 wI0L 510
018-119-£21- 001190001 1202/91/6 129160 ¥I1E0EL 128000 0000000
012-112-££81-001120-001% 1202/91/6 129160 givestl SONIYdS VISAYD 1/6000 0000000

WI0L 1Hd ¥dD 00 TIOL IWd HV S2 6/0°4E WI0L X032 00 wI0L 3514
018-108-011Z-001180-001¥ 1202/€E2/6 €202-20EB1  1J1¥1SIQ HLW3H ¥3Lv¥3 p&PD0D 0000000

WI0L LHd ¥dD 00 WI0L IWd HV 86 G2 WI0L J03HD  00° WI0L 3S10
012-122-{vel-004120-001p 1202/82/6 Li64 3D1AY3S BNINVITD WINDI0Z 6EC100 0000000

WI0L 1Hd vdD 00 IOL IWd HOV 00 825°¢ WI0L N03HD 00 w0l JS1]
015-195-921-005150-001F 1202/22/6 0294EL126-¢1 SY3IHI0UA AIN3HD OE9E00 0OCOOOD

WI0L IWd vdD 00 TIOL IWd HOV 09 19 0L ¥D3H)  00° WIGL "ISId
015-155-9+21-005150-001) 1202/12/6 0019260 SSINISNATHIY “WHIN3D SBPI00 000OCOD

ON THIV 3iva ON IHVYN HOONIA ON ON
INNOJIV /v JII0MN] JII0ART HOONIA 0d
95:80-01-3WIL YILIS193Y NDIHD ofY ALNNOD X3S50S  1202/1B/0F 00%dV



9 BE9 W10L 1]
ALLY WHOD XISSNS EE/T0v0JTRIY | ddy/asemijos Janduo)
59 il W10L il
1-0Z-X3S5NS #00Ud ECLT0  S82)1A495 |PUOLSSIS0Ud Jayl)
91 € W01 00
ANFHISUNBWI Y €CLTOSIIRASY § AOUBUSIULEY 3|31yBA
00 005 WL0L 00

ALNNQD X3SSNS EELT0 adueuajuley Juawdinb3
05 2ve '€ wioL 00

ALNNOD X3SSNS £CZ10SJeddy 7 SURPUBIULEY B|IL4BA

ALNNOD X3SSNS €ELI0SU1edSY 7 SJUBUSWLEY B(DLY4ap

65 VE9 WioL U]
9£9000-94800 # EELI041RdaY ¥ 3JURUBIULEN BuLpLLng
00 005 0L
ALNMQD X3ISSNS EEZ10SArRddy B wu:m:wa:pm: SpunoJ}
00°GL W01 00"
1NIHISUNGHITY EELT0 S3ILAIDS W0f iU
B& £9¥ L 00°
60529verey # CCL10 SUCLIRI UMD | 3L
05 8 w10L 00
2619262698 # £££10 SUDLIEDIUNIIE0ID| 31
005 WL0L 00’
OISSIHHOD ONINNY £€£10U011ESUAAI0) PJROG/UOLSSIUG])
58 6Vl wL0L 00

44TYIHS X3ISSNS £ELT0S41003Y § BIUEUIIULEW 31D
44143HS X3SSNS ££/ 1054103y § SDURUIIUIRH BIYBA
J4THIHS X3SSNS EELI0  SJ1ed3Y JIUBUIIULRH I(IIUIA

00 005y WwioL oo
ALRNOD XISSNS €CLID 19BJIUD) 3ILAISS JIUBUIIULLY
00 005°8 W01 1))
ALNMDD %ASSNS £ELTO 53N AIIS (BB
00 8942 w101 00

ALNGOD XISSNS E£E£10 aueudjuley Juawdinb)

00 00T'1 WI0L 00
ALWNOD X3ISSNS EELT0  S331AJ3S |BUDLSESI0Ud o430

ROiLdiYISI0 ANE HOIvE

r Id

0530 1NN0JY 149 Hza mza ON  LNNOWY
HI¥ HIVY 30310 I3

TWIOL IHd Ad3 00
861022 9L 8E9

TI0L iHd Ad3 00
{51022 S9 vit'e

WIOL 1Wd Ad3 00
951022 91 £E

WIOL IWd Ad3 00
551022 00 005

VI0L LHd Ad3 00
p5l0¢2 85 ffl°e
yG10ec 26 vov

W01 IWd Ad3 00
£5i02¢ 65 PE9

WI0L IWd Ad3 00
¢5ibge 00 005

WI0L IWd Add 00
15i0¢¢ 00 SL

WIOL IWd Add 00
051022 86 €9

WIOL IHd Ad3 00
6vinzz 0S5 'v8

WL0L 1Kd Add 00
grioZe 00'S£

Wi0L 1Hd Ad3 00°
10ee 96 6
r102e 56 6b
{¥10e¢ 56 6¥

WI0L IHd Ad3 00
9b10ce 00 005 v

WIOL IHd Ad3 00
sr102Z 00 00S'8

WIOL 1Wd Ad] 00
pbl0ZZ 00 B

IOl 1Hd Ad3 00
£vioge 00 00T 1

01/1202

WI0L YJ3H) OO wioL Jsia
Q3LIHI NN F¥vMLI0S v2ST00 0000000

WOl 1Hd ¥dD 00
0£9-2£9-8521-001£90-001¥

WI0L IHd HOV 94'8£9
1202/60/¢ i

WIOL 1Wd ¥dD 00° WIOL 1Wd HV 59 vil'2 WIOL ¥3HY 00 WioL JSia
012-292-6221-009120-001% 1202/1E/8 Lvee "ONI TY3NOYYD HLIWS 9vBI0D 0000000
WI0L IHd ¥dd 00 WI0L iHd HXY 91'ge WI0L X33 00 WI0L “JS10
015-195-9921-005150-001¢ 1202/12/6 126160 SP° SIWYC "ONNVHS £81000 0000000
WIOL 1Hd ¥dd 00 WI0L {Hd H)Y 00 Q05 IVWL0L ¥JAHDY 00 WI0L 510
012-192-¥521- 00512000 1Y 1202/60/6 0gel 414 1231-08d 59000 0000000
WIO0L IWd Vd) 00 WI0L 1Wd HIY 05 22'°¢ W01 I 00 Wil 2SI
012-292-9921-009120-001¢ 120¢/8l/6 296v1 960000 0000000
012-292-9921-009120-001F 1202/£0/6 geerl INT QHO4 NIMO 950000 Q000000
WI0L 1Hd ¥d3 00 WIO0L tHd HIV 65 Pt WI0L #)3H) 00 WI0L 3510
015-155-2/21-005150-001¢ 1202/80/6 10 601bSE ANVJHOD ONYI0N 0¥5000 0000000
WIO0L 1Hd ¥dd 00 WI0L IWd HOV 00 005 WIOL WI3H) 0k el 3510
012-P92-bLE1-009120-001F 1202/€1/6 £881 JYYD WMV S, AHJHNW 569100 0000000
QL [Wd ¥dd 00 IOL 1Hd KXY 00 G¢ WIOL H3HD 60 W01 "SI0
015-155-vP21-00G150-001 ¢ 120e/1e/6 121080 Wy J VONYWY ' A3180W SELT00 0000000
WIGL IWd ¥d) 00 TWL0L 1Wd H)Y 86 £9v WIOL X3 0D W01 3510
0i¢-£92-vEZT-009120-001F 120244146 647230601 ANVAWOD ROZIH3A ¥ 12W 6/6100 0000000
WiDL FHd ¥dD 00 WI0L 1Hd HY 05 v8 TWI0L WO3HY 00 WI0L JS1d
it2-e92-ve2i-009ic0-00tF 1202/81/6 1260 L1SS9vEvEr I2M 9¢0100 0OC0000
WI0L fHd ¥dD 00 WI0E 1Wd HIV 00 ¢ WI0L N34 0D w101 "351d
0Lé-ive-Lici-00piCO-001F 1202/91/6 [29160 ¥ H3IT0H ONIN ZLp100 0000000
WI0L iWd ¥d) 00 WI0L IHd HJY 5§ 6bi TI0L X034 00 I0L “2510
015-¢15-99¢1-00L150-0010 1€02/1e/6 VSEQRE BES100 0000000
015-215-99¢1-001150-00L) 1eDZ/L1/6 £92901 8ES100 0000000
015-615-9921-001150-001¥ 1202/51/6 291901 Y3IN3D “AHIS S.NWIIHA WIT BESTO0 0000000
WI0L 1Hd ¥dD 00° WI0L EWd HDY 00 005°¢ WI0L HIIHD 00 wioL Is[0
012-11e-95¢1-001120-001¥ 120e/t0/9 B/¥5£20 dHOJWISNI €9E£T00 0000000
WI0L iHd ¥d] 00 WI0L IHd HDY 00°005'8 WI0L 4D3HD 0L Jsia
022-182-£221-001220-001% 1202/52/6 sovir  Jd uzcw m A3TEM AL43H £0LE00 D0D0OOO
V101 IKd ¥dd 00 WI0L 1Hd HOV 00'8L¢ WIOL X)3H) - 00 Wi0L "ISHD
012-£52-¥521-005120-001% 1202/€¢/6 661EI012ZH  "3DIAYIS 21¥1I373 S.3W BBLIOD D0COCOD
W01 IWd ¥dd 00 WI0L IHd HY 00 ooL'1 WI0L W33H) 00 W0l ISk
012-£92-6¢21-005120-001¢ icoz/si/e 125160 Wy SILVIDOSSY ONY SWY3H IN3D £6£100 0000000
0N RV 31va o JWYN HOONIA ON N
IRNO3DV dry 310AH1 FII0ANT HOONIA ‘0d

P13V 96 80 OL-MIL HILS1934 WIIHD Jd/Y ALNNOD XISSNS  1202/10/00 00Ldv



¢l 99
100621800020 # CELTO0
100621800020 # €CLIO

RiTALHY 0
12 u2y/asea Juawdinb]
|£u3y/ 2527 Juawndinby

S9EIS 1 wvioL 0o
10000-v2B023025 # TELI0 IR LATOU TN ETET
10000-¥2B02902G # £EL10 SUDLYEIP UKD | 3]
10000-t+28029025 # €EL10 SUDLTeILUNUL0dAEA]

00 G/ WL0L 00

OISSIHA0D SNINNY)d £££10001725US000) P.UECH/UOLSS IO

00811 w101 o0’

[o08LvL00020 # £LL10 Lejuay/asea wandinb3
2y 109 WI0L 00
JATYIHS XISSNS £EL10  SaLRday adURUFIUILH 3D1YdA

91 19§ W01 00
20000-EBOVIEEY, # £LL10 SUGH TR UG 3]
20000-E80VIE2Y: # ECLT0 SUD)IEIUNLHIOIB| DY
20000-€80V1ERY. # €EL10 SUOLIEDIUMILA| 2

¥5 592°1 W01 00

2910006£92€155 # £€£10 SUD1TENUNILIGIS| 3]
2910005/92E155 # £EL10 S49Yy10 snoaue||3dSiY
2910005£92€155 # £££10 SUO01TEHUNEIS| 31
€910005£92E155 # £CL10 SUO( 1R UMD | L
2910005/92E155 # £££10 SUOLEINUMEOIS| 3L
£310005£92E155 # £LL10 SUOLIRDIUMILL0DB| 8]
Z910005492€155 # ECL10 SUOLIRIIUMILB0D3| 8]
2910005£92E155 # ECL10 SUOLYEI JUNUNIF |3
2910005£92€195 # €EL10 SUOLIRILUNN0IB| 31
¢910005£92€155 # £CL10 SUOLIRDEUNUBOIA| 3]
£910005£92E155 # £LL10 SUDLIeDiUMEB0DR| 3]
£910005£92€155 # EEL10 SUDLIPDEUMIIN0IB| B)
¢910005£9¢E15S # EELL0 SUDLIEILUNIUB0I | 3]
£910005£92€155 # €EL10 SUDLIeDLUMLN0IB|3)
¢91000G£92E155 # EELL0 SUOLIEI LU0 | 3]
Z910005492E15S # €EL10 5401 1edlunmn0da|a)
£910005£9¢E155 # EELLO SU011eDLUNIW0IA| 3]
2910006/92€155 # £ELLD TSR IUTG TR ETET
€910005/92£155 # €EL10 SUOLIEDLUNUIOIBY Y
¢510005£92E155 # EELLO S1D|1eDLHMIN0J3Ea |
Z910005£92E155 # EEL10 SUOLIeILUMIW0IA|3)
2910005/92£155 # £EL10 SUOLJEDLUNIINIB| 3]
2910006/92E155 # EEL10 SUOLIEDLUNUB0I3| 3]
2910005/92£155 # £EL10 SUOLIEI| UMD (B
2910005£92E145 # EELID SUDLIeILUNU0I3|3)
99 WI0L o’

£vel # £EL10

HO[LJTHIS30 AN] HOLYE

S 3Iwd

S3ILAJES Jo)EM

W01 IHd Ad3 0O

9910ee
99102

00 £8Y
¢l £8¢

TI0L 1Hd Ad3 0O

§5910¢¢
§91022
591022

447551
{£ 089
15 449

WIOL IWd Ad3 0O

ro1oze

00 5

WIOL IWd Ad3 00°

£91022

00 Bitl

TIO0L IWd Ad3 00

29108¢

ey 109

WIOL IWd Ad3 00

19102
191022
19102

50 /81
50 /81
90 /81

TWIOL IWd Ad3 00

091022
091022
091022
091022
09102
091022
09102
0310c¢
091022
091022
091022
091028
03102
081022
031022
09102¢
09102
091022
091022
09102¢
091022
091022
091022
091022
091022

¢6 15
€8 (1
{20
£6 ¢l
6t 82
6E B¢
8E°8¢
8E°62
8€°82
2t 8¢
8t 8¢
8t 82
8t 82
8e'82
8E°82
8t 8¢
BE 82
8g' 412
68745
68745
68 L%
68 {5
681G
68 (5
€6 2f

WIOL 1Hd Ad3 00

651022

3530 1NN0JJY /D JWd IWd  ON

HIV HOV 33D

19°9¢

INTIOHY
13N

0t/12ng - pdIY

WI0L LKd ¥dD 00

015-199-¢5¢1-005150-001F
015-215-2521-001190-CO1Y

WI0L iHd ¥dD 00

015-155-PE2T-005150- 001V
015-915-vECT-00T150 00TH
015-¢15-v€21-001 15000 1Y

Wi0L iHd ¥dD 00

0l2-ive-Liai-00vi2a-001y

WI0L IHd vdD 00

012-19£-€5¢1-009120-001¥

WI0L IWd VdD 00

015-615-5921-001150 -001¢

WIGL IHd ¥d2 00

015-155-vE21-00S150-001¢
015-915-¥£21-001150-001¢
015-215-vEC1-001150-001¥

I0L JWd ¥dD 00°

O1:-11£-PEST-00110-S01Y
Ble-112-66€1-001120-001¢
019-219-vESL-001190-001F
019-Z19-¥EZ1-001190-001v
BI9-2i9-FECL-001190-001¥
019-219-vEZL-001190-001¥
0lc-1ig-pECI-001120-001F
DTE-Tl¢-vECi-001120-001y
019-119-FES1-001190-001F
019-T19-pEC1-001190-001Y
019-219-pEZI-001190-001¢
015-¢19-¥ECL-001190-001¥
019-119-vESE-00190-001¥
019-119-¥EE-001190-001¥
O1F-T1P-PECE-0011FO-001Y
01¢-112-vEST-00ET120-001¥
012-£5¢-vEZL-005120-001¥
019-219-¥ECE-001190-001F
O1E-TIE-¥EET-001LED-OOLP
0€2-162-vEZ1-00EESD - 001D
012-112-VECT-O0TE2D-0DTP
019-119-vEZT-00EE90-001p
019-219-¢€¢T-00TE30-001F
0E9-¢E9-E21-001E90-00iF
012-19¢-¥E21-009120-001F

WIO0L IWd ¥dD 00

012-122-££21-002120-00TF

ON
1NNV

95 80 0T-3WIL

THY 3iva
d/y JFI10ANT

d31S1934 NIMD d/v

TIO0L LHd HOV ¢1 996
1202/01/6
1202/01/6

WIOL 1Wd H)Y 59 £i5'1
1202/21/6
1202/21/6
1202/21/6

TIOL IWd HOV 00 S/
1202/91/6

WIOL 1Hd HV 00 811
1202/¥1/6

WIOL IWd HOV oy 109
1202/v2/6

WICL IHd H)Y 91 195
1202/61/6
120¢/61/6
120¢/61/6

WVI0L 1Hd HJY rs592° 1
1e0g/1e/6  1c60
1202/12/6 1260
1e0g/1e/6 1260
{e0e/1e/6 1260
1202/12/6 1260
1202/12/6 1260
1202/12/6 1260
1202/12/6 1260
[202/12/6 1260
1202/12/6 1260
1202/12/6 1260
[202/12/6 1260
1€0g/1e/6 1260
1202/1g/6 1260
120z/712/6 1260
le0z/12/6 1260
120g/1e/6 1260
1202/12/6 1260
1202/12/6 1260
1e0e/1e/6 1260
120¢/1e/6 1260
1202/12/6 1260
120e/1e/6 1260
1202/12/6 1260
1202/12/6 1260

WIOL 1Wd HOY 19'9¢
1e0e/S1/01

125101 £161

WIOL X3y 00 wioL 3510
£99E182 ¥¥3100 0000000
L9VEI8Z  SIDIAYIS TWIDNVNIA XO¥3X 9100 0000000

WIOL 433H3 00 wioL “JSI10
£8651£8086 6£0000 0000000
£B651£8886 6E0000 0000000
£B8651£8886 SS37134IM KDZIY3IA 6E0000 0000000

TG H03H) 00 WI0L 3S10

129160 AY HC 1HIA0W "DNNOA 21E000 0000000

V0L ¥J3HD DD w101 JS1d

E6EKZBZ  STDTAYIS WIDNVNIZ XOHIX PIL00 0DODOOD

VI0L 303D 00 wiol ISia
6E991 ORI "SHOLOW ATY3IAVM 060000 0000000

WI0L ¥23HD 00 WGl JSHD
6ZEL08BBBG 6£0000 GOODODD
62E£088866 6E0000 DOODOOD
6cE080686 SSATIHIM NOZTH3A 620000 0000000

WI0L X03D 007 WL sto

120521090 694000 0000000
Lr{0521090 694000 0000000
1r20521090 694000 0000000
Lp£0521090 692000 0000000
k0521090 694000 0000000
1rZ0521090 692000 0000000
1r20521090 692000 0000000
Lr£0521090 694000 0000000
1r£0521090 69/000 0000000
1r£0521090 694000 0000000
1pL0521090 69/000 0000000
12051090 694000 0000000
0521090 69/000 0000000
20521090 69£000 0000000
1r0521090 69/000 0000000
0421090 69/000 0000000
10521090 69£000 0000000
0521090 69000 0000000
05210940 69000 0000000
1r£0521090 63£000 0000000
0521090 69£000 0000000
120521030 63000 0000000
iv£0621090 69/000 0000000
20521090 69{000 0000000
[+£0521090 KOZ1Y3A 69000 GOO0OOD

WI0L ¥3H) 0t WI0L 3510
07131433¥M 40 KMOL Z1€000 QOCCO00

0N JWYN HOONIA ] ON
J310ANT HOUN2A 0d

ALNNDD X35SNS  T20¢/10/01 0OTdY



09 00086
09 000786

10 820°C
10000 -EVBYBZZRL # CELIO

NOE1dIYISI0 AND HIivE

g IWd

"0ILSNPOY SY STVIOL 133HS 907 ATAIIM HL $INDI -09°000°86 V0L 3HL
Q3LNIKNI00 ATSNCTAIYA HO MOT3d 0FLS1T SNOILDIIXI HLIM INIHAVA ¥04 H3LS193Y SiHL 3ACHddY AG3H3H |

Wil 00 TIOL 1Wd Ad3 00 WI0L IWd ¥dd 00° WI0L iHd HIV 0900086 WI0L W3H) - 00
W01 00 WIOL iWd Add 00 WI0L tRd vdd 00 WI0L 1Wd HOY 0900086 WI0L ND3HD 00
Wi0L 00 IO0L IWd Ad3 GO WIOL IHd ¥dD 00 WIO0L IWd HDV £0820°¢ WIOL ¥33H) 00 Wi0L JSHD
SUOLIRINLAIN0IS | 3] {91022 {0 80 '€ 0ic-£9¢-¥Eei-009120-001v icoe/ol/6 6889088886 SSI13YIM NOZIYW3A GEODDD DOOCODD
3530 INNOJOY 1/ IWd LRd  ON  INROWY ;] THIW i ‘ON YN HOONIA ON ON
HY HOY  3J3H) 13N 1ROV dfy JI10ANI 3I10AR] HOANIA 0'd
01/1202 - P41V 95 80 01-3Wll YS9 D diY ALNNDD X3SSNS 1202/10/01  001dY



00 0EL°2 wigL 00

ALNNDD XISSNS PESTO  S9ILAJSAS (BUOLSSA0d JayI0
€9 95 1oL 00

SLIL # YELTO $321AI35 JFJEN
00°558 6 wiod 00

20081690 #00ud vEL10
10081630 #0Yd VEL1O

vy 1/8'8 v10L 00
100SNS # PELIO  Sed1AJ3S (euDiSSajoad Jayio
100SNS # PELLID  S@DLAJBS BUD|SSD)0JY JIYID
1005NS # PELTD S2OIAJDS |BUDLSSDYO0UY JBYID
100SNS # YCLTI0 S821AJ3S |BUOLSSD)OIY JAYI)
100SNS # VLD S8D1AJBS |BUOLSS3O0JY JIYID
100SNS # bELID S9I1AJDS |BUDLSS3JO0U 4BYY)
100SNS # bELLD  S821AJBS |BUDLSSB0UY JBYID
100SNS # PLL1D  S@O1AJDS | BUD|SS30Ud J3YY)

S8J1AJES (EN]IRIILOTD
S$331AJaS |BNYDRJIUOD

15°6¢ WI0L [t
11728 & VELTD 531 |ddng Juawadiojuy me
e i1 w10L 00

nod LINJYID X3SSnS vEL10
IWGY ALNNODD X35SNS vELTO

| BJuzyasea Juauwdinby
$35uadx3 61-01AGD

G¢ 8re WI0L {0

TIVE ALNNODD X3SSNS vELTD sa1|ddng pooy
8wy WI0L a0

BB/1609/012011 # vELIO 5331AJ85 JB1EH

SSOZSELBLIEVIT # vEL10 S3J1AJ35 JaleM
6C 61 WI0L 00

100035 # vEL10 saseydung Juawd)nbl J4ayl0
11691 W01 00

ALNNOD X3SSNS VELT0SI1eday § DDUBUSIUIEW 8| DIY3A
0919 WI0L on

J4IH3HS X3SSNS vELLD 53| |ddns poo4
B6 6F W10L oo

9£82 # ¥E/10SJ1eday T BJUTUAIULRW 3| ILYIA
L1162 W01 00

ICVLISISEAMNLY # vELID 534 |ddng 324530
966 wI0L 00

62009 # VELLOD 2JuruILi By Juawdinb]

NO11did3530°ANT H2LYE

I I

2530 IRNOJDY 1/ IWd 1Hd  OM
HV HIV  303H)

WiOL 1Hd Add 00

gl

00 08L°2

WI0L 1Hd Ad3d 00

0810ce

¢9 9%

WI0L IHd Ad3 0O

641022
641022

00 05179
m's0s't

WI0L 1Hd Ad3 00

BL102¢
81022
B1022
81022
BL10¢2
81022
81022
81022

eregl’l
evZel'l
05 vin'l
eregl'l
ereel'l
Zr'Een’l
Zreet't
evéer't

WIDL 1Hd Ad3 007

£Li0zé

15°5¢

WIO0L IWd Ad3 00°

L1022
9:1022

9g°ss
00°66

WIOL 1Hd Ad3 00°

S10ze

52 ave

WIOL IWd Ad3 00°

pi1022
vil0ce

v6 91
8642

WI0L 1Hd Ad3 00°

€102

6E°61

WICL IWd Ad3 00°

¢ilbee

1£°169°1

WI0L IWd Ad3 007

11022

09719

WIOL IHd Ad3 00°

0410e¢

86°6b

TWEOL YWd Ad3 0D°

6910e¢

L1 16e

101 JHd Add 00°

89022

96° (6

IRNOWY
1IN

0L/120e - PdIav

W01 IKd vdD 00
0tZ-2ve-622i-00p120-001y

WI0L THd ¥d) 00
01¢-£9¢-4421-009120-001¥

WI0L 1Hd vd) 00
012-1v-B8221-00¥120-001
012-1¥¢-B2ci-00r120-001¥

WI0L 1Wd YdD 0B
01¢-¥92-6221-0091¢0-0010
012-¥92-6221-009120-001¥
012-t9¢-6¢¢1-009120-001F
012-¥9¢-6221-009120-001F
012-¥9¢-6221-009120-0010
012-¥92-6221-009E20-001
012-¥92-6221-009120-001P
012-¥32-6221-009120-001F

TIOL IWd ¥d) 00°
015-215-5r21-001150-001p

WIOL IHd ¥dD 00°
029-149-2521-001290-001F
£02-012-112-0412-001120-00TF

TIOL IWd ¥dD 00°
015-155-9¢21-00S150-001F

WIOL IWd ¥dD 00°
029-129-££21-001290-001¥
019-219-L£21-001190-001F

WIOL 1Hd ¥d3 00
015-215-6521-001150-001F

IO IHd ¥d2 00
012-2b2-5941- 00120001

WIOL LHd ¥dD 00
015-15%-9p21-005150- 0011

TVIO0L IHd ¥dD 00
012-112-99¢1-0011£0-501F

WI0L IHd VdD 00
B1E-£52-1re1-005120-001Y

W0l iKd ¥dD 00
012-12¢-P5e1-002120-001F

N
IRNODY

95456 -IHIL

WI0L YHd H)Y

WL0L AHd HV

TI0L 1Hd H)Y

WI0L IWd HWV

1202/60/6

29 9%
1202/20/6

1202/50/01
1202/50/01

l202/va/6
1202/vE/6
1202/v2/6
120e/ve/6
120é/¥e/6
1202/¥2/6
1202/¥2/6
1202/ves6

WIGL 1Wd HIY 15°6¢

WI0L 1Wd HOY

WIGL JWd HY

VI0L IWd HDY

WI0L TWd HDY

WI0L IWd HWY

WI0L 1Wd HIVY

VI0L 1Wd HJY

WI0L 1Wd HOY

WIOL 1Wd HJY

TV
dry

Le0e/L1/e

120e/Ee/6
1202/01/6

120¢/00/01
18 vy
120¢/91/6
1202/91/6
6t 6l
1e0¢/6¢/6
tebe/1e/8

03°19
120¢2/8B¢/6

86 6V
{202/vD/01

1202/10/01

96 {6
1202/50/01

a1v0
JINOANI

HILSIIIY AI3H] div

00 0£°2
1280-65-1030 211 ONITING ¥OJA JLNLILSNI #26T00 0000000

00°558°6

v 188

9EvLl

5¢°8ve

1Ei69'1

¢¢h82-5EES1

{1 16e
Q¥IM-6aHY- 2171

WIOL 333D 00

WIOL I3H) 00

WI0L N33 00
¢0 081690
10081690

WIOL X033 00
8IKSIL
LTPGTL
91p51L
S1KS1L
rivsis
£1vsie
2irs1L

WI0L 3S[0

w01 JSI0

122060 S4T1  HILWM ALNNQD ITIASNITYD 9/2000 0000000

WI0L "JSIG
198100 0000000

SHOISIZ3E 039 198100 0000000

w0l 3S1a

€22100 0000000
£22100 0000000
££/100 0000000
£¢L100 0000000
€24100 0000000
£2/100 oooto00
£24100 0000DO0D

1TVS1L TAYIS ALTHND3S OWOMYOYVY €22100 000000D0

TI0L ¥I3HD 0D
veeenil

wi0L AJ3H) 00
08411
XY 72K

WAOL ¥3HD) 0D
268981

WI0L ¥I3H) 00

129160 881609
129160 950£5E1

WI0L ¥ 00°

619202

WI0L ¥3aWdy  00°
1-02€2

WI0L 233H) 00
yB1924r

WI0L X233H) 00

WIOL WI3H) 00

W01 3510

‘M) CINI(IAI 0KBTOC 0000000

‘W01 J810
159100 0000000

SHILSAS IN3WNJ00 159100 0000000

Wwiol 3510

LIHUVH S ¥V 200 £06000 D000DOD

‘WieL 2810
[£B000 0000000

SONTHAS TWiSAHD 178000 0000000

oL 3sI0

SYIHI0HE 9N1TIMOD 020000 000DAOD

WI0L "JSI0

SIHII3H WINDT0D 695100 0000000

wioL JSI0

SSINISNAIHY TWHINID S8LT00 0000000

wioL JsI0

MI4TAVM 40 LSINDYYD B2/000 0000000

vioL 3510

SITAYIS WILdYD MOZVWY Z16100 0000000

WIOL X330 00 WI0L 3510
9784481 JNI "vA-TH9V 2¢E000 0000000
ON JHYN HOONIA ON ON
10ANT HOOK3A 0d

ALNNOD X3SSNS

[20Z/70/01 0QOLldY



59°269°B TL0L 00
av0d ALHC4 070 PELED  S221AJSS |BUDLSSa}0L J3YID
S dd0 O¥0H 3SMHIYD PELTD  S8I1AJRS |BUDLSS3JO.4 J3UI)
J0N Qw0 NOSNIBOY PELTD3LD 18due) § 195 )04d J3UID
71306V T1IH NID PEZED(D 19due) R U35 Joad 3410
OvOd NOLIDNTYD PELIBDLD 13due) § “J43S 10N 311D
0N OV0d NOSNIGOY PELID PLy 15413/ 410 Snoaue||83SLH
JATHD ALNNG) HINOS PELTDDLD 18dUe) R JBS  JOad 3410
V0d SMIHONY PELID SJLAJSS [ELDLSS3)0Jd JIYID
1334LS SHIDOIH PELI0ALD 1804e]) § "43S “Joud J34I)
Qv0Y NMOL3ZY03D PELI0  SOJLAUDS |PUDLSSAJ0N JBU10

£ 6vy'S WL oo
AMH INOHVH TWd3IN3D vELLD  S8ILAJSS (BUOLSSB)O0JY J3YlD
INVT WYHEVd $ELLD  SRD1AJAS (RUOLSSAI0N4 JBYID
Qv0Y 0334 vELLD S8ILAJAS |BUOLSSR)0Md J3ylD
av0Y 39014854313d ¥EL10910 13due]) B 435 “J04d 43Ul0
avoy SMIUONY PELI0  $921A49S 1EUDL553)04d JIYID
OV0d ALH0d G110 pEZID SADEAJAS [PUDLSSAI04d J9410
OV0d ISNOHLYNOD YELLD  SADTAIAS |BUOLSSA0S J8UY)
JUNT OVOY MOSNISOY ¥E/10813 18dae) § "4 ~joug Jaylp
TILJONYT TT0H NID PELI0SID 12dae) § “uas “Jodg JayID
OV0Y NOLIDNIHd vEL10317 18due] 7 "uas Joad 4yl

00°'62r'2 WI0L 00
85EL2 # ¥EL10 S3DIAIBS |RIIPAM
B5¢L¢ # vEL10 S3D1AM35 |RIIpayt
85¢Le # ¥ELI0 SUCLIeUD] |oJ43u0} |BmluY

00 ¢z V101 i
ALNNOD X3SSNS PE£10921A435 Burynsuoy juasabeury
g8 U 101 i

INIWISHNITY VELTO UBISUFIXT BALIRIS000] YA

(1] 74 vi0L 00
23143HS X3SSNS vEL10 SJ3YI0 SNOSUR||ZISIH

£L 899 w101 00
02 11NJ¥1D %3SSNS ¥ELTGLAJAS Buruueds § Buw|Ljoddiy

56 bY wvioL 00
JTYIHS XISSAS pELTIOSI1eday T SIURLIIIEH 3| HY3A

00 £09°1 WI0L 00’
ALKNDD X3SSNS pEZ10J1eday § dduLudjuLey buiping
ALRNOD X3SSAS pELT041eday 7 ddueuauiey Buipling

00 008'¢ WI0L 00
OULKOZ TWNY X3SSAS bE/T0J1RdaY B adusuaquiey Buipling

ROILJIYISIA ANI HOLVE

¢ 3vd

2530 IKNDDDY /9 JKd IKd ON
HIY HIV  1D3HD 13N

WI0L 1Hd Ad3 00
16102¢ §1 L&
161022 £E €91
161022 9€ 601°1
161022 ¥S'ppl'l
161022 Sy 0891
161022 E9 99 °¢
161022 8E 821
1610 S0 Set
161022 Sv BED'1
I6t0zé 1€ 612

W01 IHd Ad3 00
06102z IE 612
0610¢¢ € b6l
06i02e DE fbe
06i02¢ 1E bic
0610e¢ 1E°6lE
06i02¢ Sl ice
0610¢¢ €€ €91
0610ZE 9E€ 601 'L
061022 FSpbL'L
061022 S 0891

WI0L IWd Ad3 00
68102z 00 OEL'1
6810¢¢ 00599
681022 00 0%

WI0L 1Wd Ad3 00
BBl0ZZ 00 £2

W01 IHd Ad3 00
{81022 EE'lL

V101 1Hd Ad3 00
981022 00 ¥2

WI0L 1Hd Ad3 00°
5810¢¢ ££ 899

iDL {Hd Ad3 00
vBi0zZ S66v

WA0L 1Kd Ad3 00°
€8i022 00 0BL'1
£81022 00 igv

W0 IHd Ad3 00
ZBi0zZ 00°008°¢

1HNOWY

01/1202 - P41V

WIO0L IWd ¥d) 00
012-v92-62¢1-009120-0011
012-v92-6¢21-00910-001F
012-12¢-62¢1-002120-0011
012-122-6221 -002120-001F
01Z-122-6£21-002120-001F
012-12¢-6621-002120-001F
012-122-6¢21 0021200010
012-+92-6221-009120-001F
012-12¢-6¢21-00¢120-001F
012-192-6¢21-009120-001¢

WI0L LHd V4D 00
012-1v92-6221-009120-001F
012-¥92-6221-009120-001F
012-r92-6221-009120-001F
012-122-6221-002120-001F
012-¥92-6¢21-009120-001F
01Z-¥9¢-6221-009120-001r
012-¥92-6241-009120-001F
012-122-6221-002120-001F
012-122-6Z21-002120-0011
0t2-122-6221-002120-001F

WI0L IWd ¥dD 00
0ic-192-£221-009120-001F
0EC-19¢-£221-069120-001F

055-0E2-19¢-66¢1-005120-001F

101 FWd ¥dD 00
01g-tbg-Sezt-0eorizo-0oiy

W01 IHd Yd) 00
018-Z2R-0EZ-00ETBO-0OLP

WIOL iWd vd) 00
0ES-155-66¢1-005150-00EF

WI0L IWd V¥dd 00°
029-i29-9E21-001290-001F

WIOL 1Hd Vd) 00
015-215-99¢L-00L1S0-001P

WI0L iHd ¥d)d 00
01g-1¢¢-¢¢2i-002120-001p
012-ig¢-¢{el-00¢12n-00Ly

WI0L 1Hd ¥dD 00
Di2-192-¢/2L-009120-001V

1NNV

99 {96 -IIL

WI0L 1Hd WY 59289 '8
1202/10/01 ¥91LE
1202/10/01 £91EE
1202/10/01 291EE
120¢/10/01 191£¢
1202/ 10/01 031LE
1202/01/6 D0DEE
1202/ 10/6 ¢ehet
1202/10/6 1262€
1202/10/6 02628
1202/ 10/6 6162t

TWIOL iWd HOV It 6Yr'S
120¢/10/6 8162t
1202/ 10/6 L1628
1202/10/6 9162t
1202/10/6 S164E
1202/ 10/6 vi6et
120¢/10/6 t16cE
1202/10/6 ¢le6et
1202/10/6 1162t
1202/10/6 0162€
1202/10/6 6062E

WIO0L 1Wd KOV 00 Sev'e
1202/22/6 25119
120¢/£1/6 921%9
1202/¥1/6

WI0L LWd HIV 00 €2

1202/0E/6

WI0L LWd HIY £E 1

1202/0E/6

WI0L 1Wd HIY 00 v

WL0L H33HY 00

TI0L ¥IIHI 00

WI0L W3H) oo

w101 Js1d

60£100 0000000
60£100 0000000
60£100 0000000
60£100 0000000
60£100 0000000
604100 0000000
604100 0000000
604100 0000000
604100 0000000
INI"SIJYISNMYT ZLTNHIS 602100 0000000

wioL 3510
604100 0000000
604100 0000000
604100 0000000
604100 Q000OOD
60£100 0000000
602100 0000000
604100 0000000
60£100 0000000
604100 0000000

JM1SVISHMYT ZLINHDS 604100 0000000

WI0L 3510
886100 0000000
886100 0000000

£80F9 HI'3N9YIT TWWINY QNOWHDIY 826100 0000000

WIOL X030 00

BEVELED

TL0L W03 00

120E60 WP

WI0L 0D 00

W01 "I510
277 9¥Sd 150000 0000000

W0l 3510
3 STV NOSWW ¢EIT00 0000000

W01 "ISI0

1202/6¢/6 1B995YSTITESTE v NO[LYLIHOdSHVYL ONYIAMVH 666666 0000000
TWL0L {Kd HOY {7895 TWI0L H0IH) 00 WI0L 3510

1202/51/6 95955 JNI "SWILSAS WvD01 621000 0000000
TWL0L IHd HJY 56 o WI0L HJIH) - 00 WI0L "3510

VO990T Y3LNID “AYIS S.NVIIMM WIC 8ES100 0000000

W0 HJ3H) 00

IO NI3H)  00°

W01 3510
696100 0000000
ONT IWIINVHIIN NISHIC 696100 0000000

W01 3SIQ

[29260 J9SC NOJ TWHINID NOLTIHS SIWVE 616100 DOODROD

120¢/16/0t
WI0L IHd HY 00 £09°1
1e02/9¢/6 élel
1202/90/6 {601
WIOL IWd H)Y oo ooe’e
1202/90/6
TV EIN ON
dry JDI0ANT 1i0ANE

YI1S193y8 AI3HD d/Y

JHYN HOONIA ON O
HOONIA 0d

ALNNOY X35SNS 1202740701 001dV



Z6 ¥98°201
¢6°¥98°201

997451
1ooL118210020 # VELID

00 Bv0'2

vioL oo
wioL 00
w101 oo’

|ejuayyasea] audinby

WI0L 00

OHLNDD TNV X3SSNS PELID4teday B SdueuzuLey Buip|Lng

56 Z£¢
100981800020 # VELID

v6 et
INIHISUNBAIIY VELID

00 906°%
10-NOJSSNS # vELLD

00 0E1
SINVENOSYW YELTO

00 0052

WI10L

an’
jejuay/asea juaudinby

Wil 00

UOL5UAINI BA17RJAd00T YA

W01 00

J3Y3Q noaue| |aIsIy

W01 00

UOLSUAIN] aA13e4ado0] VA

WI0L 00

Od-12-£01-SNS-¥A # YELIOOI43A UON) S3ILAJAS BduRJNSU]

8b byl
0-30%S # VELID
0-00x$ # vELTD

0052
8600v0F181 # VEL10

00 0v'2
619F # VEL10
649 £ vELIO

2% 000 0
OYINOD TWNY X3SSNS bELTO

v6 98C°'¢

00
sat|ddns 831340

sat|ddng 21550

Wi

Wil 00
LERIENELS

WL0L [V

JOlEM

1]
|eJuaysaseay wauwdinbl
|ejuay/aseal awdinbl

WI0L

w101 00

30440 WWHLSION PELI031D 19ddR) § "4 “J0ug
JATHO ALNNOD HINDS PEZT0D|D 1adUR) § "JIS “)OSd

OVDYH SMIBONY PELTO

5331AJ3G | BUD]SSI)OId

133445 SHI99IH vEL1091D F8d4R) § "Jag 4044

0vOd NMOLIDUGID vEL1D
AMH INOHYH TYHINID bELTO
ANV WvHdYd ¥ELTOD

OvOd 0334 vEL1D

av0y 3901485¥313d vELTD
OV0Y SMIBONY vELTO

NOLLJIY)SI0 ANT HOLVE

£ 3d

SA0LAIIS | PUDLSS3)0SY
SBILAJAS | BUD) 5SSOI
533|AJ3S | BUO|$S3)00
530135 | PUDL553)00d
S3D|AJIS | PUDLSSAJOLG
S3ALDS | BUO)$SIJOLY

00
sasuadxl Gi-

alAdd

N0
a0
J2410
43410
Jay1p
S0
S0
Jaylp
J3Y 10
Jay10

TI0L (Hd Ad3 00
WIOL IWd Ad3 00"
TWIOL LWd Ad3 00

£0202

95 451

WIOL IWd Ad3 00

202022 00 BY0'2

TIOL IWd Ad3 00

wenes

56 ¢t

WI0L 1Wd Ad3 00

002022

v6 21

WI0L IWd AdD 00

661022 00 906 ¥

TIGL IHd Ad3 GO

861022

00 0ET

WIO0L 1Hd Ad3 00

£61022 00 0052

WI0L IHd Add 00

96102¢
961022

S 06
£0°FS

WI0L 1Hd Ad] 00

561022

o &t

WI0L 1Hd Ad] 00

y6i02e
v6i0e2

00 021°1
00021t

WIOL 1Wd Ad3 00

£61022 25°000°0v

WI0L IHd Ad3 00°

261022
<6022
¢6l0ce
26102
¢61022
¢bl0ze
¢bl0Ze
261022
261022
¢b102e

‘353G LNNOJJY /Y IWd IWd ON

HIVY HIVY  AD3HD

12 £595
Bt B2l
50528
G¥ 820°1
IE 61
lE'612
IE 61¢
0E {2
IE 612
IE 612

INNCHY
13N

01/1202 - Pd¥W

Q3LSNray SV STYIOL L1IIHS 90T ATHIIM 3HL STWD3 €6 ¥98°201 WI0L 3HL

Q3INIHNT00 ATSNOTATEd ¥0 MOTIB 031SIT SHOTLJIOKI HLIM LNIHAYG WO Y3LSEIIY SIHL IACYddY ABIUIH 1

WIOL IHd Ydd 00 TWIO0L 1Wd WOV &6 ¥98 201 W01 XI3HD o0
WI0L IHd ¥dD 00 WIOL IWd HOV 26 ¥98°201 WHOL WI3HD 00
WI0L 1Hd Vd2 00 WIOL IWd HY 95 {51 i0L ¥03H) 00 W0l JS10
029-1£9-2521-001290-001¥ 1202/11/6 IBIEZBE  SIDEAHAS TWIONVNIA XO43X #FOL00 DOCOCOOD
WI0L IHd Vd2 00 IVI0L 1Wd HDV 00 8¥0°2 0L §03H) 00 vi0L JSI0
012-19¢-¢£21-009120-001¥ 1202742716 642041 INI™SITULSNONT 3S¥3Id tBBB SB6E00 D00DODOD
WI0L JHd ¥d3 00 WI0L IHa HY G6 2t WI0L X03H)  00° wHoL 3500
0i9-219-¢5¢1-001190-001¥ 1202/51/6 £9EGZ8Z  SIDNAMIS WIINVNIS XOU3X 9100 0000000
TWI0L IHd YdD 00 WI0L 1Hd HIY b6 2l WIOL WI3H) 00 WI0L JSIa
018-2¢8-011¢-00E1BO-001Y 1202/0€/6 120E60 ML VAINVL " T18WOM 986100 0000000
W01 IWd YdD 00 WI0L 1Hd HY 00 906'v TI0L 031 00 TYL0L JSI0
0E2-152-6621-005120-001¥ 1202/v0/01 MY OWI AINIOV JONVHNSHI SNIHLVA BITLIO0 0000000
WI0L IWd vdd 00 TVIO0L 1Hd HOY 0o 0£l WIOL X033 00 WI0L JSI6
0tB8-ZZ8-0112-00€180-001% 1206/10/01  22A3 SINA ¥SIA VSIA 666666 0000000
0L 1Hd Yd 00° WIOL LHd HW 00°005°2 WI0L ¥I33H3 00 WI0L 3514
012-1i¢-5621-00E120-001+ [202/v0/01 60v6L21202£01 dHO3VA 1E8000 DODODOD
I0L 1Hd ¥dD 007 WIOL IWd HW By bl WI0L XY 00 WI0L "3SId
0¢9-129-TrE-001250-001F 1202/62/6 i00-ZLb0p10 (80000 0000000
029-129-tveZt-00E290-00 1y 1202/51/6 100-TVEOPTD  S1004d 331340 ALID THL 080000 0000000
WI0L 1Wd vdD 00° WIOL 1Hd HY 00°5¢ WI0L 23D 00’ wI0L “IS1a
012-€92-£421-009E20-001¥ 1202/1£/8 1280 B&OOYOVIBL ATHIAVM 30 NMOL BIEO0O (000CO00
WIOL 1Wd ¥4I 00° WI0L IWd HIV 00°0v2'2 VI0L WI3HY 007 W01 "SI0
012-¥92-25¢1-009120-001P 1802/€1/6 2-054191 £28100 0000000
012-¥92-2521-009120-00 1Y 1e0e/el/e ¢-Nnogest INI "HIMOd-dW3L /28100 0000000
WIOL LHd ¥dd 00° WI0L JWd HIY 25°000° 0% W04 HI3H) 00 W01 3510
£02-012-112-0212-001120-001¥ 1202/%0/01 1£2EV00 "IN 1370WAIHD HIOIHSCULS 066100 0000000
WIO0L IHd ¥dd 00° IO IWd HDY v6'882'€ VI0L ¥J3HD 00 wioL “Js1a
012-122-6221-002120-001F 1202/10/01 ¥SEEL 604100 0000000
01¢-12¢-6221-002120-00%F 120e/10/01 CLIEL 604100 0000000
012-192-6221-009120-001F 1¢0é/10/01 eLiLe 602100 0000000
012-122-6221-002120-001F 1202/10/01 LLIEE 607100 0000000
012-¥92-6221-009120-001% 1202/ 10/01 0L1gE 604100 0000000
012-¥92-62Z1-009120-001¢ 10é/10/01 691EE 60100 0000000
012-+92-6221-005120-001% 1202710701 BIIEL 602100 0000000
012-¥92-6241-009120-00T0 120¢/10/01 £91E8 60100 0000000
012-1v92-6221-009120-001F 1¢0¢/10/01 99igE 604100 0000000
012-¥92-6221-009120-001F 12o¢/10/01 SOIEE  "INIT'SIdVISHMYT ZLNHIS 60100 0000000
0N TV 31va ‘ON JHYN HOONIA ‘0N ‘0N
IRAOJOV d/v JII0AN] I310ANT HOOMNIA 0d
95°49°6 -MIL HILST9IY ¥IIHD d/v ALNNDD X3SSNS  1202/£0/01 00TdY






YO E6Y'T
00L0E000 & SELIO
00LOCO0Y ¥ SELTO

IVLIOL L]
ear1ddng poes

satyddng TeyaojjUEp

09°'13 TYLOL 00"
d4THAHS YXRSENS SCLIOG sayyddng poog
05°L0T TNLOL oo*

SYYZ B SELTO BOOTAISE [PUDTPRRIOId 340
¥L"9E TYIOL [T

9E9Z # seitosateday 3 IoUELAITUEH STITUSA

9EL8Z # SELTOSITRGIY 3 POUPULITURH BIITHSA

00° oz TYIOL 00"
AATHHME ¥HESNS Strtosayeday ¥ GDURUAIUTEW BIDTYSA

00" ¥¥l TVIOL o0
A¥d HIVRNI SELTO Aea s3wumx
SL LES'9V TVIOL oo*

ALNRDO YHBBNS SE4T0  Aavaqyn [euojBay/iejeayoderg

00 REY'LT ™ol oo*
R1D734Y [O#d 8103 SELT09a7Aazeg Bupjtnsucy juswabeuey
ENYId YHEGY 'TIVWS SEL10 UD20Y¥Aleg TEUCTBESJOId IRYID
HOLIAHIO DNINNVIA SELT08DTAIRS BUTITNBUCD Juawmabeued
HOTLISOd WHRNWId SELTIDBOTAISS Bupltnsuoy Juaawsbeted

TE'599°LT TVLIOL 00"
ALISENS # SELIO auyjosen
1108808 # SEL10 seD/REReTTH
ALISENS § SELIO ebes 1IN
A1asens § SELIO obeaTTH
ALISENS § SELTIO abea1IN
ALISENS # SELTID abeaTTH
4108808 # SELTO aERDTYH
ALDSENS # SELYO oEeaTTH
00°¥00°TT IYi0L oo*
BHYLE HAM STL-5OHN SELTO 119 Guysnol DEQD-S0MI
I8 MHN S0t-80HN SELTO 129 BuyBnoH DECD-S0MA
IE HIVW'M IT6-50HO SELTO 119 Buyenci DACD-SONI
g NIVH'M 0TOT-S0MN STLTO 3319 Buyenol DECD-SONA
L8 LNNTYM TOL-5O0N0 STLIO 129 Buysnon pa@D-sONN
I8 LONTVH ¥OF-S0HN SELTO 330 BUYENOH PAM)-BONN
15 MNVE SYE-50HN SELTO0 129 GuysnoH DAMD-SONA
LHOTTIML 909-¥D0d SELTO JURIH A - BEIUOTEIO]
8 ENIDOIH SI9-¥D0d SELTO JWEIH HACD - PEINOTI0
6T LT THIOL 00"
tri6t # SELTO 8984 I94ID 1 J0/¥uvd

HOILATUOEHA ANI HOLYE

*D5Eq INROOOY /D JHI TN

IVIOL 1Kd XdH DO°
YZEDZE EE@TSLT'E
YEEZDEE EC'CCE

TYLOL W4 A48 00
fLEZDEE 0919

TYLOL IMd AdH 00
EEZOLT 058°L01

TYIOL IHd XdH 007
TLZOEE  9T° LT
TETOTE  B5°6T1

TYIOL IWd Ad3 00"
OTZOILZ 00°'0T

TVIOL IHd XdH 00°
6TITOZT  00'vF1

TYIOL IWd XdH 00"
BTZOTT SLLES'IF

TY10L 1Md Ad8 00°

LIZOGZE 007053

LTTOZE 00 0SE°S
LTZOZT 007809 'Y
LIZOEE Q0" 0TO'V

TVIOL IHd A48 00°

9TLOZE OF'LIL‘1
3TLOTT 09 1EB°6
STTOCZT OL'B0E
9TTOET  S9°SP
9TLOLZ S ¥ST
9TLOCE KT 6EE
STZOLE LO'5E9
3IZOLZE T9EE

TYIOL 1Wd AdA 007

STZOZE 00'0ST'T
STEOLE 00 0CC'L
STZOTE 00 050°T
STEOTT 00’055
STZOCT ©0'365°t
STZOZE 00 LYE
STZOTE 00'33¥°C
STEOZE OO'6FL
STLOLT  00°9%L

VIOL dWd AdE 00°
PITOCE 61 LET

“ON
¥ DY 30FEID

THLOL LHd ¥dD 00"
0T5-T55-9*ZT1-D05T50-D0T ¥
0T5-TS5-L¥CT-00STS0-00TH

TYLOL LW ¥dd 00
0T5-T55-9¥ZT-D05STS0-00TY

TVLOL LK wad 00’
OTY-TI¥-6ZTT-00TTYO-00T

TYLOL Ikd ¥dJ 00°
0TZ-TZZ-S9ZT-0DZTLZD-0OTY
0TZ-TTZ-S9TT-00TIZO-001Y

TYLOL LWd ¥dD 00"
0T15-C15-59ZT-0DTTISD-0OTY

TYIOL IHd w4 00°
OTS-TS5-STZT-00STSO-00TY

TYLOL 1Wd ¥dD 00°
018-9Za8-0TTZ-COYTEO-0OTY

TYLOL IWd ¥dD 00~
OTE-1¥Z-SZZT-0DFIZO-0DTY
OTC-TYZ-6TZZT-00FTTO-0OTY
OTE-T¥Z-SZZT-00YIZO-001Y
OTZ-T¥Z-SZZT-OOPTIZD-DOTY

TYLOL IWd Y42 00°
OTL-TTL-YITT-QOTTLO-5S0TY
0TS-ZTS-¥ITT-00T1S0-D01Y
OTZT-EST-¥ITT-QOSTIO-0OTY
0TT-TrZ-¥IZT-00FTLZO-00TF
0TT-ZTHZ-¥ITT-00PITO-0DOTY
0TT-TTT-¥ITL-0OLTLZO-0D0TY
QTZ-T19Z-¥OC1-009TZD-DOTY
0tE-TtE~-$9Z1~-00T1Z0D-DDTY

TYLOL IWd ¥d2 00"
0TZ-TET-¥006-00ETTO-0ODTY
0TZT-1EZ-¥OO6-00ETZO-00TF
0TZ-TET-¥Q06-00ETT0-00TY
OET-TET-POO6-00ETTO-00TF
0TZ-TET-¥006-00ETTO-00TY
OLZ~-1EL-¥006-D0ETZD-00TY
OTZT-TEZ-¥006-00ETTO0-00TY
OTZ-¥¥Z-t006-00FIZ0-001Y
0TZ-¥¥C-£0D6-00FTIZD-DDTY

IVIOL IWd ¥d4D 007
aTY-TT¥-T6TT-00TTPO-00TY

DI/TIEDOE - POV PI-IT-8 -HWIL

AVLOL IWd KOV YO 66Y'E TVIOL ¥JEHD 00" TNIOL DS10
1ZOZ/30/01 GSEZOBTZ6-ZT 0¢3100 0000000
10Z/90/0T TZETOBTZE-LT FUEHLOME AHMSIHD OCST00 0000000

TYLOL 1WA KOV 09°19 TVIOL MIEKD 00" TVIOL °DSIO
1T0Z/90/01 99zszur STENIENEIHOV TVAIHED SO¥I00 0000000

TVLOL IKd IOV 05°L0T TYI0L XKD 00" V0L DSIQ
120Z/0E/6 TESGEN ‘ONI 'MMHASS SVO BSCTI00 0000000

YLOL IWd KOV (TR 15 TVIOL ¥DEHD  00° TVLOL *O81a
1Z0Z/90/0T 5669Z-GEEST 9£L000 0000000
120Z2/60/6 6¥T8Z-GEEST CMIATJEINK 40 1SANONYD BZLOGO 0000000

IVLOL 1WA HOV 00°0Z TVIOL 08D  00° TvioL ‘asta
Tz0/s0/0t 11773 auV DNIMOL §,HEIINGE 8CLOGC 0000000

VIOL IWd 1OV 007 T TVLOL DEHD  00° TvioL ‘2sta
1z0Z/50/01 1Z60 @o HOUOSD 'HMONE 666666 0000000

TVIOL 1K WDV SLULES'9F Tviol ¥oEHD  00° Yol ‘osIa
1zoz/tofot (23 TUNOIOZH HELVIIOVIE ST6000 0000000

TEIOL 1Md HOV 00°0z9'ZT TVIOL ¥JEKD 00" TVIOL DSIQ
tzoz/vo/ot TUNANT LHOM 99100 0000000
1z0Z/v0/0T T-TUHANT EHOM 949100 0000000
1Z0Z/%0/0T FPINAMT BTZAOH 3L9100 GOGO000
1ToT/v0/0L PLNANT VZNOM dNOND ASTNUEG $L3T00 0000000

AVLOL IWd KOV TE7599°LT TVIOL NOEKD  00° w10l 2891a
120Z/0E/6 1Z0E60 X1OSSAS LOSTO0 0000000
1T0Z/0E/6 TZOEE0 ALDSSNS LOSTOD 0000000
1Z0Z/0E/6 TLOEE0 ALISENRG LOSTOD 0000000
1T0Z/0E/6 TZOEE0 ALISSNS LOSTOD 0000000
1Z0Z/0E/6 1Z0E60 ALISSNG LOSTOD 0000000
1Z0Z/0E/6 TZ0C60 ALISSNS LOSTOD 0000000
1Z0Z/0E/6 1Z0EED ALISSHE LDSTDD 00DODOD
1Z0T/06/6 1Z0EED AIDISSRT ‘OMI SMI0 STVASNUYE LOSTO0 DODDODOD

IYLOL IH3 KOV 00" ¥00° LT VIO AWEKD 00" V1oL -2g1a
tz0z/L0/0T 15-1C 98LI00 DOOOOOD
1202/L0/0T os-1E I¥LIOD 00OOODD
1z0z/vE/6 9¥-1C 9%L100 DODODDD
L0/ VE/E sy-12 9¥LTO00 0000000
tzaz/ve/6 ¥r-1C 9¥L100 DDDDDDD
TZOZ/VE/E £v-12 9¥LT00 0DOODOD
tzoz/ve/e Ty-1it 9FLIOD DDDDDDD
1Z0Z/VE/E »-12 9KLTO0 DOOODOD
tzoz/ve/6 O¥-1C 'IVIDHAS ODMISNOH NYDIHEWY 9¥LI00 0000000

TVLOL LWd HOV 61°L0T TVIOL MDD 00" TYLOL "38Id
TZOL/LT/6 ¥STS500001 'ONI ‘SLHHAVE IOV 096100 0000000

THOV giva ‘oH oM
am HII0ANI 2I10ANT ‘0'a

HALSIOEY NOEND 4/V

ALHNNOD XEESNE TZOT/ST/0T  00TdV



06" £0L
OZI¥SEZTT # SCLTO

00°5Z¥%
ALRNOD YHEBNE SELTO

gE"RES
TOSZYEDL96 W SELTO
T000EED996 ¥ SELTO
TOSLIEOETE § SELTOD
EE¥YTOLLYYE W SCLTO

E6°6¥3°S
6TRTGE5580 B SELTO
fEgTOLELEL B SCLTO
SO0S0606TL N SELTO
&r10910999 ¥ SCLTO
TTLBSESOEY M SELIO
gOSLOCO69S W SCLID
ITLLELDBOS N SELLID
oococorozy ¥ SELIO
G00SEEOOSE § SCLIO
BEEELSZORO W SCLIO

&6°SE6
HNIWOY XHSSMS SELTO
ONIHNWYId XYBEERS SELIO
ONINNYId XHESNS SCLTO0
NVNI4/HIWIY XABSNS SELIO
AHH 40 HWCO XABENE SELTO

00" 009
6TOZ¥YITOCIYS N SELTID

00" ¥l
A¥d HLYMWNI SELTID
85°BBZ’9
B4 BOVED TTOT IJHE STLTO

55" 08
COOYOS # SELID

95 ZLE'T
OLVULBININIY JENOD SELTO

SLOT6'E
9 RLOOV STLTO

00°0ZE
ALNNOO XBSSENS SELTO

ROTLATHOERA ANT  HOLVE

TYLOL Q0"
aen atedozd
TVLOL 00"

gayiddng TeTICITURL

TYLOL oD-
2TIINTH
oFa3eTa
ofIIetE
FIELT4

‘IVLOL Q0*

afiletd

ayIzoats

ar1iaty

a73I30TH

a111091H

oyasoerd 3 sep euedozg
a123918

a7230871H

EIEETEN]

DYTIBTH

TELOL oo*
1eauey/eses Juendynbg
Teuedfases] Jueaxdynbg
TeIuey/epean Juamdynbg

sastadx® 61 -TEAQD
TeueN/esean Juandynbg

TVIOL 00"
A8 AWI-YA0 ' SFTH

TELOL 00"
fed ajeuml
THLOL 00"

UOTSPTIEND GIED YINOK 1831

TYLOL a0’
se17ddng JUWIDIOJUE ATT

TYLOL [ 1M
Ao3je1ieTurupy jane) dood

TVLOL 00"
aojealeyuupy Janoo da

TVI0L o0”
S3DTAIBE TUOTPIH

‘080 IHNODOV ‘T/D LD 1WA

TYLOL IWd XdR 00°
SETOZZ 06°'THL

TYLOL IWd X33 00~
SEZOTT OO0'SEF

THLOL LHd A3 00"

PEZOLZZT TL'¥ET
FEEQIT L¥ LED
PETOZT ZT1°6SF
YETOZE OO0'LT

TYLOL IWd AdH 00°

EETOELZ ET'CPG
EETOZT PL'ES
EEZOLT 6T GST
EETOTT 05" OTF
EEZOLL T¥'SP
CETOLT £6°'&ET
ELTOLT LLTLS
CETOCE SE°RT
CETOTE SEUPEE'T
CECOEE GSCLGB'E

TVIOL IS X4 00°

TECOTE LE7H@EC
TEEDZE EBL°00Z
cLroTe 647002
EEEDZE 00°66
CELOEE 007 G¥

TYLOL 1Wd Ad8 007
TEEOZZ 007009

TYLOL IHd Add 00°
DEZOZZ 0O FFPI

IYIOL IWd AdH 00°
GZLOZE 95 RAT'Y

TVYLIOL Lkd AdE 00"
@ZZOZE 59°08

TVLOL IHd AJH 00"
LTCOTT 35°TLG'T

TYLOL lWd AdH 0D
9ZIGIZ SL°DI6'E

TWiOL lkd AdR 0D
SEIDEE DO DZE

"N LROOHY
N oY MOFEH} 188

= B

TVLOL IHd ¥dD 007

015-155-6LCT-00STS0-00TY

TYLOL Ikd ¥d0 00°

OTZ-%9Z-L¥Z1-009TZ0-00T ¥

TVIOL 1Wd ¥dD 00°

0TZ-E9Z-9LTT-009TZ0-00TY
0TZ-E9Z-9LZT-009TED-00TF
OTZ-C9T-9LTT-009TZ0-00TY
0TZ-€9Z-9LZT~-009TZ0-00TY

IVIOL IHd ¥dD 00°

0TZ-E9T-ILTT-009TZO-001Y
0TZ-¥9T-9LTT-009TIZ0-001Y
0TT-EIT-ILTT-009TZ0-00TY
QIZ-E9T-ILTY-009TZ0-0OTY
OTT-¥IT-ILTI-002TLO-COTY
OTZ-TST-6LTT-005TZ0-00TY
DIT-EIT-ILTT-0OYTLZO-00TY
OTT-¥3T-DLTT-009TEZO-00TY
0IT-£9Z-9LET-0091TO-00TY
DIZ-£9C-9LZT-0DITTO-DOLY

TELIOL W3 ¥ad 00°

OIT-TIT-TSTI-00TTZ0-00TY¥
OTZ-Z¥E-CSTT-00FPTTO-001Y
OTT-T¥Z-TSZT-00FTITO-00TH

£0Z-01E-11Z-0LTZ-00TTTO-00TY

OTE-TIE=ZSZT-00TTED-00TY

TYLOL 1Wd ¥dD 00°

OTP-TTH-GETT-00TTPO-00TY

TYLOL LWd ¥dD 00°

0TS-T155-STZT-005T50-00TY

TVLOL IWd YWdO 00°

0T8-E98-0TTT-00ATHO-00TY

TYI0L IMd VdD 00°

OIZ-19C-S#ZT-008TLEO-0O01Y

TYLOL 1kd ¥4I 00°

OT9-TI9-PITI-001TH0-00TF

TYIOL IHd ¥dD 00°

DT9-TI9-F¥IET-0DITH0-00TY

TWIOL IMd ¥d2 DD°

0TE-TIC-LEZT-00TTIED-00TY

PL:ZZ 0 -HHIL

TYLOL ADIHD 00"

SITTILITIT

TYLOL “O8Id

SVITIEYYRA TES100 0000000

‘TLOL NDEHD 00”
6SOLOT DNI TVAOMEY HLSVM SANNWAR SZLTO00 0000000

Y10L

“281d

TVIOL XSy o00* TVLDL "J381d
TOSZYEOLIE yRO000 0000000
EOODEED996 ¥20000 00DDDOD
ZOSLTEOESE ¥80000 0000000
TEPTOLLFYE HEHOd VINIDHIA NOINIWOO ¥80000 0000000

TYLIOL MOEHY 00° TVLOL “O8Ia
GEBTSHLGED ¥80000 0000000
EG9EOLBLEL ¥80000 0000000
S00S0606TL ¥80000 0000000
6¥109T0989 ¥80000 Q000000
TILOSCS0E9 ¥80000 0000000
BOSLOCO69S ¥80000 0000000
BELLELOBOS Ya0000 0000000
QOECEOROLY Y0000 0000000
6005EE005€ ¥a0000 0000000
BEEELSEBYD  HEMOd VINIDYIA KOINITWOO PEOOOD 0000000

TYLOL ADFHD oD" TVIOL “3SIa

T61IBTT 159700 DOOOODD
D6TETIT 159100 0OOOODOO
DBEIBTT 159100 DOOOOOD
FETRTT 159100 000000DOD
¥OPLIT EWHLEAS LNEKNOO0Q 1S9T00 0000000

TTVLOL XOHHD ao” IVLOL “DSIq

0C900ELZTZOZ SHIDIHNAA BOLOW 40 ldvdi#d €6T000 0000000

TYIO0L IWd HIV 06" ZBL
tzoz/a0/6

TYIOL LW HOV LI 4)
tzoz/10/01

TYIOL IMG HOV DE"BEE
TTOL/OE/E 1260
Tzor/ecse 160
1ZOZ/6L/E TZ60
TTOZ/¥L/6 TZ60

TYIOL IWd Y Z6T6¥9'S
1zoe/6ti6 60
1zoz/er/e 160
1Z0Z/6T/6 TT60
1Z0T/6T/6 60
1T0L/BT/6 TZ60
1Z0T/6T/6 TZ60
1ZOZ/LESE TZ60
TZOL/6T/6 1T60
TZOT/6T /6 1260
TZOT/LE/E 1260

TVLOL Ikd HOVY 56'5¢8
TZ0Z/0T/0T
TZOZ/0T/0T
TT0T/0% /01
TZ0Z/90/01
1Z0Z/60/6

TYIOL IWd HOV 00" 009
1zoL/Lo/ot

TYIOL IWd HOV
TTOE/S0/0T

TYIOL 1M HOV 9579829
1eoz/ve/e

TYLOL IMd HOV 59°08
teoe/ot/e

TYLOL JHd HOV 95" TLE'T
1zoz/ET/OT

TYLOL IKd HOV SL°016°C
tzoz/1o/01

IVIOL IWd HOW DD"DZE
tzoz/eT/6

THIOW
an HOTOANT

WHISIDHH ADEHY d/¥

IYI0L MDAK) a0

1260 @1

TYI0L ADEED Q0
H¥YD HINOA EHIWVD ¥YIO000 0000000

[14:]144

TYLOL JNJED o0’
SY¥HHLONE OHNI'INOG DTO0D0 0000000

¥LETOE

TYLOL AJHHD 00"
58080 HONISEd 40 ALNNOD TEE000 0000000

TTOz T Wb

TYLIOL ATBHY 00°
HTIIASNENED 40 ALNNQO £Z9000 0000000

56T

TVLOL AIEHHD 00"
890TS6 ‘TVHOLLYVAADO0 HLTVAMNOHWID 9¥6T00 0000000

HWYR HOQNEA

ALNNOD XHSENE

TW¥IOL “DEIg
SIN0r] ‘G1ANQ 666666 0000000

THLOL

THIOL

“‘TYLOL

THLOL

‘o81d

"oa1a

"a81a

“2BIa

IVLOL "DSIa

HOQHRAA

‘0'd

TEOE/S51/0T QOTIV



BL'S5TF
LOTATS000T ¥ SELTO

TV.LOL og*

B3DIAIBE TENIDEIJIUCD

OE' ST THLOL 00"
AYd HIVWNI SELTD Aea ajesmy
TL LE9 TVLOL [ 1.8
OOTBLO900C # SELTD 2713918
GOLO0OLIGT § STLTOD oyI3818
COOOTOLTYT B SELT0 ayIzetd
COTEOOETHT K SELTO apzyatE
01°10L°6 “TYLOL oo-

LINNOD XHESNS SEL1082TA208 Bupainsuad Jusmabeten

TV.LOL oo*
BadtAlag TeUOTERRJOId ABYIOD

00" 008
AINNCO XHESNS SELTD

00°000°9
ICC000LS KLOOV SELTO

‘INLOL o0
S00TAISE TeEniDeIjuad

56 °6¥F ‘IVLOL o0
A4T¥EHS XHEENS STLToerTedad ¥ aoUPUAIUTEM BYITUIA

YE'VG TYI0L oo’
65T ¥ stiToayedey 3 souruaqujen Buypiyng
€T # stetoeiyeday 3 0OURLSINTEW BUMAIN

TY1OL unt
BEDTAIRE TENIDRIJUAY

S LIS
SELEOTIHA ¥rod4d SELto

ez 9 TELOL 00"
SLIT # SELLO BADTAIRE JOIEN

DT EI9'S TYLOL 00
T008NE # SCLTIG S9dJaIafg TeUOTEE2JOad IBYIO
1005n8 # SELIO B9DTAISE [EUOTEE3J0ad I9Y3I0
100505 N SELTO Bedjatag [euofesajord 18yl0
TOOSNS N SELTIO BODTAIRS TEUOTEASJOId 194D
100508 N SCLTI0 BOJTAIAS (euOTESajJOId 19430

oL F¥ZZ'11 TYLOL L+ [+
100BNS # SELTO BOITAles TEUOTES8JCAd 29Y3ID
100808 # SELTID SIDTAINF TPUOTHESJOIY 218430
I008N8 # SELI0 BOEITAIDE TEUOTSS3JCId J8yl0
1008NS § SELID BLOTAISS TRPUOTES8J0Id I9Y3ID
100508 # SELI0 PaDTAIag TEUOTSS3JCII IPYIO
T006NB # SELTI0 ©a5TAlag TRUOTESSIQI4 ISYIO
TO0SNE # SELIO0 BH32TAINE TVUOTSS3aJoId 38430
1008NS # SELI0 BIDTAIGY TEUOTS80J0I4 39U30
TI00ENS # SELIO0 BH3DTAISg TVUOTESajold 3ayl0
100ENS N SELTO0 E8DFAIGS TEUOTEEEJOIJ INI0

"OFEQ IHNOOOY '1/0 1WA LWd

TYIOL 1K AJH 00
B¥TOTT BL STV

TYLOL IW3 AdH 00°
L¥TOZT OE°ST

TYIOL IWd AJH 007

9FTOTT SE°96E
9¥TOTT LY OTT
SPZOZT TT°LL
SPLOZZ 6T 2F

TVLOL 1Wd AdR 00°
SYZOZZ OT'T0Z'6

TWLOL LHd AdH 007
¥PZOZZ 007009

TYLOL LAd Ad8 00°
E¥ZOZZ 00°000°'9

TVYLOL lWd AdH 00°
LYZOEZ S6°6F

V10l M3 Rd48 00°
T¥ZOZT L¥'EE
TFEOTE LE°TT

IOL IWd AdE 00
OFEOLT SC L3S

TYIOL 14 AdH 007
&EFOZE BE'CY

TYIOL IMd AdE 007

gECOTE EZ¥FEEL'T
girore ECPETL'T
@ETOTZ E¥ LET'T
BEEOZZ Z¥-ZIT'T
BETOTT ZTPITT'T

TYLOL LWd AdH 00°

LEZOZZ EVEZI'T
Lezozce TRUzIl'l
LEEDTZ ZF¥IZT'T
LEZOZZ ZT¥ TIT’T
LETOZEZ ZTWITI'T
LEZOZZ ZT¥ TTT'T
LEZOTZ I¥ LTI'T
LETOTT Z¥EZI’T
LEZOTT ¥ LtI1'T
LETOZE ¥ ETI'T
‘OH LHNOWY
HOY HOY WJHHD LN

TVLOL IWd ¥dJ DD
OIC-TIE-BEZET-00TTZO-00TH

TYIOL IWd ¥dD 00
Q1s-TS5-STET-DOSTS0-00TW

TYIQL IHd ¥4I DO~
OTT-C9C-9LET=0091Z0-00TY
0TZ-E9C-9LET-DOITEO-00TY
DIE-€9E-9LZT-009TL0-00TY
0TE-£9E~-S5LET-009T20-00TY

TYIOL IRY VaD 00°
0tE-E1E-SEET-00TTEO-QOTY

TYIOL IK4 w4 00°
DIZ-¥9T-6TTL-009TZ0-00TY

TYIOL 1Kd ¥dD 00°
OTE-TT1E-QCET-00TTZO-00TY

TVIOL IWI w40 00°
0I5-ET15-S9ZT-001150-001Y

TYLOL 1Wd WD 00"
0T5-T55-Z4TT-Q05TS0-001Y
0TZ~-TZZ-PLET-OOZTTO-00TY

TYLOL LHd ¥dD 007
OTZ-TIZ-BZZT-DDITZD-DOT¥

I¥I0L 1Wd W40 007
OTZT-E3T-LLTT-009TZ0-00TF

TYLOL IWd ¥dD 007
DIT-¥9T-GTTT-009TZ0-00TF
DIT-¥IT-6TTL-009TE0-00TY
OIZ-¥9T-6TTI-009TZ0-00T ¥
DIZT-¥9T-6TTT-009TZ0-00TH
DIZ-¥9T-6TTT-009TLO-00TY

TYLOL IWd V4D 00°
OTT-¥9Z-6ZTT-0O09TE0-00TY
OLZ-¥9T-6TZT-00STLO-0O0TY
0TZ-¥9C-6ZZTI-00ITTO-0OTY
OTZ-¥9L-6ZLT-009TED-DOTY
0TT-¥IT-6TTT-0OSTEO-DOTY
OTZ-¥IL-6XET-DDOTED-DOTY
0TZ-¥9Z-6TTI-00STEO-00TH
OIZ-¥IC-6ECT-009TEO-00TY
0TIZ-¥9E-6CCT-D09TCO-001Y
OTC-¥IC-6ZCT-009TEO-00TY

0T/IZ0Z - P42V ¥T:-ZC:9 -HWIL

TYLOL 1K HOW UL STY Y10l MDD oo* TYLOL "D514
TZ0Z/O0E/E LYGZZT0000 2T1 'S0 LI-OHMEE HTYTO0 0000000

IYLOL IKd HOV¥ [ 13814 TYLOL MDD 00 Yiol o814
1Z0L/50/01 1Z60 W1 HHHLOT 'HOSQUVHOIS 666666 00DDDOD

TYLOL LHd HOV L TED TYI0L MDAHD 00" TYLOL 'DSIT
TZOZ/SO/OT  TZOT 0OTBZO900T 190000 0DODOOD
TZOT/6T/6 TT6D DOTOOOLIST 1950000 DODDDDOD
1202 /6276 TZ60 DDOOTOEIPL 190000 DOODOOO
120Z/6T/6 TTED QOZEOOETHT DIMLDETH HOYOHOD HONIHA T90000 000000

TYLOL Ind Y o1°10T'6 TYLOL ¥DHID 00" TVLOL "J5Id
TZOT/LD/DT TZLOOT 98 ANEG 'TYFIVHAAY 8.NOSHVEd €9T000 0000000

TYIOL 1Hd HOV [ 1 1 1) TYLOL AOEHD [ TYLOL ‘J51d
1ZoL/11/01 SETZ MV ONY L5Hd JILNVILY-GIW £R6T00 0000000

TYLOL 1Hd HOV 00°000'S TYLOL YDHH) 00" TVLOL “DSIa
TTOZ/LE/E LOEGCO008T HIIANHS HONVHNSHI A4TH00W COET00 0000000

TELOL LWd HIY S6°6¥ TYLOL ADTHY 00" TYLOL 'DSI1a
120Z/90/0T POS90T HELNED AHES S.HWTIHM WID BCSTOO 0000000

TYIOL 1Kd HOV [ 1:08 1 TVLOL A3aHD 0o0* V1oL "D91d
TTOT/0E/E ¥00860-60TZ 6¥0000 0000000
TZOL/L0/6 0L9560-60TL BUVAOUVHE LLVHNVC 6¥0000 0000000

TYLOL L4 HOV ST'L94 TVIOL MDA oo* TVLOL 'D8Iq
TZoT/1T/01 9800TNI T £9H 156100 000DOD0

IVLOL IHa MOV 1484 TVIOL NDFHD 00" TYLOL “Jfid
1ZOT/6L/6 TC6C60 SL1T UAIVM ALNNGO STIIASHEHUD 9LI000 0000000

IVLOL 1Wd WOV DI'E1Y’S TVLOL AOTHD 00" TYLOL ‘D81d
1eo0t/eo0/o1 99SEEL [ZLTOO 0000000
1zoefeofot S9SELL CZLT00 0000000
tzoz/en/ot »ISEEL C£ZLTOG 0000000
1zoz/eon/ot [§:1:14.43 EZLIO0 0000000
1rozfeofol T9STZL IAKES ALITHNAOHE TTUOMYONY £ZL100 0000000

IVIO0L IKd HOV 0z ¥EE'LIT TYLOL YDBHD 00" Tei0L ‘D910
1toz/eo/ot T9SEEL £TL100 0000000
TEDE/90/DT 095ZZL £ILI00 0OGOOOO
tzoz/to/ot ZYZOTL £ILI00 0D0OODO
1z0Z/10/01 TPZOTL £ZL100 0ODOODO
1zoz/i0/01 oyzorL €ZLI00 DDDOODD
1z0Z/10/01 SETOTL £ZLTOD DOOOODD
Tzoz/10/01 BETOTL £ZLT00 DDDDDODD
tzot/10/01 LELOLL £ZL100 0000DODO
1Z0T/10/01 9ETOTL €ZLTO0 000DODOO
1zoL/10/01 SErofL IAMAS ALTMNOHS CTHOMVIMVD CZLT00 0000000
THIOV 21va ‘o HWYN BOGMEA ‘oM “oN
da/v HITOANT HITOANI UOGHHA ‘o'd
HALSIDHY ADBHD d/%¢ AINAOO XBSENS  TCOC/ST/OT 00TV



13°03°1
T0000-TLSOVYPSOE § GELTO

OC'LEY
TTAVEILIL Kk SELTO
TTOYEITK N SELTIO
TTOFEITE N SELTO
TTOPEITA N SELTO
LTZAYEITL # SELTO
TEAPEITA N SELTO
LTZAPEITK K SELTO
TTOYEITX W SELTC
TTEPEITX 1 SELTO

PE'TES

PLIOOODOTLEELISE N SELTO
YLTDDOOOOTLEETSE # SELTO
TTTOODERLPQETST # SELTO

£0°0§
0-HD8 # SELTO

00°¥ST
T1ELRIS # SECLTO

00°63
GG00VOFTRT & SELTOD
01" ZEY
DHINNV'Id XHESNS SELTO
YYRISIDHY XHSSNS SELTO

eT 11

Y101 oo-
*Av 'me) / pung Cjaog Brug
Y101 oo-
FUOTITDTUNRPOOBTAL
FUOTJPI TUTEIDOIS TAL
WO RO TRMEBOIB 8L
SUOTITITUMRILODE TOL
SUOTITDTUTREOOID AL
SUOTJEDTUNIBOISTOL
SUOTIETD FUNKIRNOI I AL
SUOTIBPDTUNNCIATL
SUDTITOTUMIDODB AL
™NiOL oo
SUOTIEOTUNRITOIITIL
SOt e TUNRNCIITeL
AN0TIeDTUTUINCOO [ 8L
TYLOL oo
say1ddng ed1330

TVLOL 00"
B2a0TAlDE TEUOTSSIIOIL 184D
TYLOL 00"
S80TAI0E IDIEN
IYLOL 00
ga71ddng 837330
sa11ddng 821330

TVLOL 00"

00ST¥E # SELToIYeday % eouwnequied Buypyyng

05 ks ‘ot
B669C # SELTO
BE9Z ¥ SELTO

TL™H6T
ESEONLY9 ¥ SELTO
ESEOPLYS # SELTO

05" ¥
AVd BLWHNT SELTO

08" EL
TO0Z96TIS # SELIG

00°Z6T
ALNNOD XHESNS SCLIO

NOLLITHOSAA ANTI HOLVE

TVL0L D
£32TAL38 383N
FSITAI8E I8N

TVL0L o00-
sen/ebeattH
sen/obeatIH

TYi0L [
Aeq eyewmiz

TVIOL (11 g
27330818

TYLOL oo*

S00TAISE [ETIDEIJUCD

‘OFHd INNCOOV 11/D IWd IWd

TVLOL IWd AdH 007
TIZOZT TH O¥°1

TYIOL W4 AdH 00"

09z0zZZ ALY
09TATT  A¥'LY
09z0ZT BY'LY
09zOZT ALY
09Z0ZZ AF'LY
09Z0ZL BP°LY
09Z0ZZ A¥'LY
09zOZT BY'LY
09Z0XE  9%°LY

TYLOL lHd AdH 00"
6SZOZZ ZTETIZS
65T0ZT OT'68
6SZOET ZIL'OL

TVLOL IHd Ad8 00"
95Z0ZT E0°0S

TVLOL 1k idH 00°
LSTOTZT Q0T ¥ST

TYLOL 1Wd A48 00"
9azTOTL 00769

‘IMLOL IWd AdH 00"
§STO0TE  TI°L9T
SSIOIT B6PIT

TYLOL 1Hd AdH DO°
¥STOZTZT BI'TT

T¥I0L iMd AdH DO*
ESTOTT 00 O6L'Y
ESZOZE 05 ZSL'S

TTYLOL JkWd Ad8 00°
TSTOTT TT'9%
TSTOTT 0S°T9L

TYIOL 1Hd A48 00°
TIS5Z0EL DS'¥

TYIOL JWd Ad# 00°
QSTOTE 08"fL

TVIOL IXd AdH 00"
6¥IDLL 0D 6T

“ON
HO¥ HO¥  NDHEHD

BN

IVLIOL LWd W42 00°

~T¥85-00LTEO-SETY

TYIO0L LHd YdD 00°
0E9-TEI-FETT-00TEIO-0OTY
0T5-915-PEZT-00TISO-001Y
OYE-ESE-FEZT-00STEO-00TY
OEZ-T6Z-FPETT-00TETO-00TY
OTE-TTE-FETT-00TTEO-DOTY
OTP-TTF-FETT-00TTRO-00TY
OTZ-ZHT-PETT-0O0FIZO-00TY
OTZT-T¥Z-FPEZT-00FPETO-00LY
0TZ-TIE-¥EZT-00TTTO-00TH

TVL0L IWd YWdD 007
OTS-ZTS~PETT-00TTSO-00TF
015-155-¥ETT-005150-00TY
0E9-TEI-FEZT-00TESD-00TY

TYIOL 1Wd V4D 00°
OTE-TEE-TPIX-00TILO-00TH

TVYIOL 1Wd ¥dD 00°
O0IG-TIS-6LLI-00TTS0-00TY

TYIOL IWd ¥aD 00"
OTT-C9E-LLZT-009TTO-0OTY

TYIOL 1Hd V4D 00°
OIZ-1rE-1#E1-00FIEG-0OTH
OET-T6C-TFCI-ODTETO-0OTY

TYIOL IMd VdD 00°
OTT-TEE-CLET-DOLTLO-DOTR

TYLOL IWd YWdD 00°
DIEZ-€9E-LLET-DOOTED-OOTY
OTE-£9E~-LLET-DOOTED-QOTY

TYLOL IMd Y42 00"
0T15~-E15-¥SZTI-00TTS0-00TY
DIS-ZIS-¥3CT-00TTIS0-00TY

TVIOL Mg VadD 00°
0TS-T55-STFT-00STS0-00TY

TVIOL W V4D 007
DIZ-¥9E-9LET-009TL0-00TY

TNIOL IWd Y42 007
OTE-TLT-@ZTT-00LTEO-0OTY

0L/1z0E - BdISY PL:EZ:D -HHIL

TVIOL LWd KOV 19°0¥9°T TVIOL NOHHD 00" TYLIOL "DSIa
TZ0C/O1/6 TZELETRONG BEEIHHIA HOZIHHA 6£0000 0000000

TYIOL 1Wd HOV 0E"LEY TVIOL MOHHD 00" 1VI0L "D5Ia
Tzoz/ot/ot 0B996LTY L5L00D0 0000000
izoTfotfot 09996L19 LSLOOO 0000000
1L0C/DT/OT 08996LTI LSLO00 DOOODOD
1zor/ot/ot DRIIELTD LSLOOD DODOOOO
zocfot/ot 09996L%9 LSLOOO 0000000
1zoz/ot/ot DB9IELTS LSLOO0 0000000
1zoC/ot/ot 09996LT9 LSLOOO 0000000
1Z0T/0T/0T 08996LTY LSLOOO 0000000
1ZOT/OT/0T 09996LT9 BERNIBNE HOZIHAA LSLOOD 0000000

VIOl IWd HOY e 1a9 VIOl NOEHD oo’ 1¥Il0L “DSIa
TLOC/90/0T  TZOT 9¥CECLISLO 69L000 DOOODOD
TLOC/90/0T  TZOT 9YECELISLO £9L000 0000000
TTOT/vE/E 1Z60 BLEOSASHLO NOZIHHA 69L000 0000000

TYIOL 1Wd HOY €0° 05 TVLOL MDHD [N TVioL ‘O8Id
1T0C/0E/6 T00-EO¥0FT0 BLONCOYA HOIA40 ALID THL 080000 0000000

TYIOL Idd HOW 00°¥ST TYIOL ADFHD co" viol "DSIa
1z0L/T0/0T GOTZOT-TICLU9S VNHELTY % NETH HOINNSHYHL E€L9IO0 0000000

VIOl 1WA HOV 00769 TVIOL MIHHD oo" Tviol "2814
1Z0T/0E/6 1260 B600¥0¥18T ATHHEAYA 20 HWOL BTEO0O 0OCODOO

IVIOL IHd HOVW 0T Z6¥ TYI0L AJHHD 00" TVIOL ‘D8Ia
1zoz/TT/OT 0+ LSTEOTY $3L100 DDDODDD
1Z0L/9Z/6 D-BSTEEEY WOOH A1dd0S HHL 99LT00 0000000

TVIOL IKd HOV 14841 TVIOL NDHHD 00° TVIOL ‘DSIO
1L0T/1Z/6 TfELISL HYVNITIVE HEMOYHL TE0D0D D0DDOOO

TYIOL IMd HOV 0S5 T¥S 0T TVLOL AORHY 00" Y10L "2SIa
1Z0Z/0E/6 BLTSTROOZ LLOOOD DODDOOD
1Z0Z/1E/R 9LTSTROOZ ALTHOMLOY HDIAWHB YHSSNS LL0000 0000000

TVLOL IHd HOV [ 73 13 TYLOL ADSHD [T TVLOL °D8Ia
120Z/0E/6 Te50¥S £91000 0000000
tzoc/e/e BLLEES ONI SHIDHENA ¥IO4d0S £91000 0000000

TVLIOL 1Hd HOVW 0S¥ TVLOL AIHHD 00" TVLOL °J51d
tz0z/50/01 1Z60 BB THEOWYS "HAINAdS GEGEEE 0000000

IVIOL 1Wd HOY 08 €L TVLOL NOFHD [T TYLOL ‘D8Id
1Z0Z/90/01 TZOT TOOZYETIS HHAOOO IITHIOATH HAISHLNOS ZLLTOO 0000000

IVLIOL 1M HOV 00" ZET TVLOL NOFHD oo’ W01 "DSIa
tz0Z/60/01 BLO-9STZT WOO EI4HIS LOL100 0000000
0¥ 21va ‘o HHYN UOKIHEA ‘oM ‘oM
anm HDTOANT HDIOANT HOMREA ]
HELFIONM NDEHD 4/¥ ALHNCO XHEENE  TZOC/S1/01 0014V



6E°05C759T
6E"0ST 59T

96°5ZT'T
GLT0009TLOGELSE § SELTO

9791
SBTO00LRGTSYOSY ¥ SELTID

E9°LLS T
GLTO00BLLSGETSE # SELTO
6LTIDOORLLSGETSE # SELTO
GLTO00BLLSGTTSE R STLTO
GLTOODBLLSGETSE ¥ SELTO
ELTODDBLLSEETSE ¥ SELIO
6LIO0DBLLSEETSE ¥ SELIO
6LIODDBLLSE6ETSE ¥ SELIO
GLTIODDBLLSGETSE ¥ SELTO
6LTODDBLLSECTSE ¥ STLTO
G6LTOODDBLLSGETISE ¥ STLTIO
6LTODDBLLSEETISE # STLTO
GLTODDBLLSGLETSE ¥ GELTO

09 Est

H6T0006PSEECTSE # STLTO

LT RS

00

TYLOL Ll

oo*
BUDT IR TUTEINOSS TAL

TYLOL 00"
BUOTIEITUTIIOISTOL
TYIOL 00
FROTARITUNMBADS TIL
FUOTITITUTRERIDD TSL
SUOTIEDTUTERIOOS T
SHOTILITUNIDODSTEL
PUOTIED TUTIRIODDTOL
SUCTIEDTUTRIIOIBTOL
SUOTILITUNIMDOOD [BL
SUOYIRITUNRIOOST 3L
BUHOT eI UTUODS T BL
SUOTIRITUMRIOOSI L
SUOTIED FUTImROIS T BL
FUOTIEDTUMIOOS TBL
TTNLOL oo*
FUOT IR TURTRIOIS TR,

IVLOL 00"

65T ¥ SELtoBuTuTElL UON-BERRTTH/GUTOSeD

65T § SELTD

BI'SE

sayrddng juowadrouy AeT

IVLOL on*

100828 & stLtoxyedey T ecueuejuyed Luypryng

6T'S
TO00S B SELTID

00 OLS
TOOCOCELOOOED # SELTIOD
TOOTOTELOGOED B SELTO
TOOTOTELOOOTO N SELTO

o1 rit
A¥d HIWHNI SELTD

BT '1¥E
SO00LT-LPCBO-5T B SCL10
900E5-E50CE-0T ¥ SELTID

00°S1€°€
ALNNGD WEEENT SLLTO
ALDCO XHESNS SELT0

HOLLATMOSHO " ANT HOLVE

TY.LOL 00"
sxyedoy adueusjuUTER STOTYBA

TYLOL o0
Tejusy/eses] jusadynbg
Tejusy/eses] juamdynbg
Tejusy/eges] uomdinby

TYLOL 00"

Aeg s3vwmr

I¥LOL D"

30 BUYENOH DEAI-SOMN
B8OTAIRE TRUOTSBIJCIg I9YIO0

TVLOL on*
BOJTAIBE TPUOYEEaI0Id 23YI0
#82jA208 TEUOTE88I0IJ IOL3I0

*DS80 IRNOOJY T/D LH3 Ik
HOW HOW  D3HD

TNLOL IW3 A3°8 00°

TYLIOL W4 AdH 00°

TYIOL IWd AJH 00
TLTOTT

TY.IOL 1WA Ad8 0D°
TLEDEE 157911

TEIOL W3 AdE 00°

QLTOTT BF 5¥9
QLTOZT T6'EL
OLTOZE  FP EPT
OLZOZZ £576T11
0LZOZT £9°S6
GLIOIT £9°56
OLZOEZ ZIL'1L
OLZOZEZ T6°ET
GLZOZEZ T6°%LZ
QLTOTZ EILTIL
GLZOLZ T0°LY
OLTOZEZ YI°SIZ

IVLOL 1Wd Add 00G°
6IT0ZC 09°BSE

INLOL 1Wd Add 00°
99Z0LL 66° €T
99z0zZC BIYE

TTYLOL IHd AdH 00"
L9TOTZT W@1°ST

TYLOL IWd XdE 00"
99Z0TT 6BT°S

TYLOL IM3 XdH 0067
S9ZOZT OS5IV
S9ZO0ZE 05°Z¥T
§9202T 00°S8T

TVLOL IHd XdH 0O°
PITOTT 01" ¥ET

TYLOL IWd AdH 00"
£9Z0TT 00" S0F
€IE0TT BT 9Ly

TYLOL IWd XdH 00"
TIZOTE
[4:14:144

13K

B6°SZT'T

05°L59°'T
05" L53'T

“aELENDNAY 5W

"AELINTROO0A ATSNOIAHYD HO WOTEH TALSIT

TV10L IMd Y42 007
TYIOL IHA Y30 00°

TYLI0L IHWd ¥VaD 00~
0E3-TES-FETT-DOTIESO-00TY

TWi0L 1Wd ¥dD 00"
0¥3-€T9-+EET~-DOTITS0-00TY

TVLOL WA VIO 007
OTL-TTIL-PEET-00TTLO-SOTY
0E9-ZEI-FETT-DOTERO-00TY
OL9-TL9-FETT-00TESD-D0TH
DE9-TES-YELZT-ODTIESD-DDIW
OTE-TIE-FEZT-DOTTILO-00DTY
OT¥F-TTP-FETT-OOTT¥O-DOT¥
OET-T6Z-PEET-ODTIEZO-DDTIY
O1E-ESE-FEZT~OOSTED-DDIN
0IZ-T9Z-#ETTI-009TEO-DDTW
OTZ-ZeZ-FLZT-OOVILO-DDTIN
OTZ-T9L-FELT-0OFTEO-DDTH
0IT-TLE-FELT-OOTTEO-DOTN

TYLOL LHd ¥dD 00"
0T5-9T5-PEZT-DOTTSO-00TH

‘THIOL LHd ¥dD 00"
0T5-155-¥9CT~DOSTSO-00TW
0TS-TS5-S¥ET-00GTS50-00TH

TVLIOL W3 WD 00°
0TT-TTT-TLTT-0OCTIEO-00TY

TVLOL LWd ¥dD 00°
0T5-6TS5-59CT-DOTT50-00TH

TYLOL 1Hd ¥dD 04°
OIZ-Z¥L-ZSET-00¥TIZO-DOTY
OLZ-THE-ZSTT-0OFTED-DOTH
OTZ-TTZ-ZSTI-DDTTED-DOTW

TYLOL IWd ¥dD 00"
0TS-TGG-STIET-00STS0-001F

TYLOL LWd Y320 00"
OTZT-TEZ-¥0O6-DOETED-00TY
OTZ-¥9C-6ZET-DDITED-OOTY

TYLOL LWd ¥aD 00°
0LZ-TiT-6ZLT-00TTED-00TH
OTE-TIZ-6TLZT-DDTITED-00TY

ot/1eoz PN FIIEL'E -HMWIL

7=
mmw%

STVIOL IBHHS D01 ATNHEM HHL STYNOA

-6£7 0527597

) 8-S /~0/
12-5/-0/
(€-sl-ol

TVIOL HHL

BNOILJHDXH HITM INEMWAYd HO4 HHEGIOHM SIHL HADUJIJY XHEHHAH I

TYLOL thd HOY 6E* 05T 59T TYLOL NDHED a0"
IVIOL LHd HOV GE"OST'S9T TYLOL MDA oo"

TVLOL IHd HOW 96°STI'Y TYIO0L NOAHD oo 1¥i0L ‘2810
tZ0Z/90/0t  TZOT 9000C16890 HOZI¥HA 692000 0ODODOO

TVLOL IWd HOV 9 91T TYIOL NOEHD 0o* vloL "o81d
1z0Z/0E/6 TZ60 STIELDISLO ROZIZHA 692000 GOOO00O

TYLOL IRd HOW €8 LLS'T TYLOL ADHHD 00" TYLOL "2514
tzoz/LT/e TZG0 LTLTI0ELED 63LOD0 DOOOODD
1zoz/Lz/6 TZ60 LTLTIOELEO 62L000 0000000
1zoz/ie/e TZ60 LTLZIDELED 69L0OD0 OO0DO0D
1Z0Z/LE/E TZ60 LTLZIOCLED 692000 0DOODOO
1Z0Z/LT/6 TZE0 LTLZ90ELED 63,000 0000000
1E0z/LE/6 T¢60 LTLZOOCLEOD 694000 0000000
teoz/LT/e 1Z60 LILESODELEO 63L000 0000000
Tzoz/iT/e 1Z60 LTLZIOELEO 63,000 0000000
TToT/LT/6 1260 LILZFOCLEOD 63,000 0000000
tzoz/iz/e TZ60 LTLTI0ELED 69L000 0000000
tzoc/fLe/e TEED LTLISOCLED 69,000 0000000
1zoL/Le/e TZ60 LTLISOELED HOZIMAA 694000 0000000

TVIOL 1IR3 HOoY 09789¢ TYLOL HOFHD 00" TYLOL 'DEIQ
tzozfoc/e 1260 OVE0695690 RUZIHHA £3L000 0000000

TYLIOL IR HOV LZ*9S TYLOL ADHD 00" TEIOL "D8T0
teoz/oz/e 96960-60TT 6¥0000 ©ODOOOD
1z0z/20/6 ¥YZES60-60TE HUVATHVH LLVWHYC 630000 DOODOOD

TYIOL IWd HOW ) X1 TYLOL MOEHD 00" vioL "ds1a
1z20Z/0Z/6 6TSTOC FEHHLOHE ONI'INOD OZO0DD 0000000

TYLOL 1Wd HOV 6275 TYLOL MDHHD 0g* ™vIOL 'J81d
tzoz/s0/0t 95682~ SEEST CHILENYM 30 LEANDEVD §TLO0D 00DO00D

TYLOL IWd HOY 00°0LS HYLIOL MOEHD oo ‘YL0L “JS1a
teoz/Ln/e agrurzas *¥510D0 0000DDD
1z0Z/L1/6 a9%8¥Zaz P9T00 0000DOO
TZOZ/LT/6 ¥I¥OFZINZ BEDIAMNME TVIONYHIA XOWHY ¥#9100 DOOODDO

AVLIOL IWNd HOV 0T ¥ET YIOL NJFHD oo ¥LOL "D31a
1z0z/50/0T 1260 NY HABHYY 'ELIHK 666666 DDDODOD

TYLOL 1Kd HO¥ [l § 11 TELOL FIHHD 00" ‘L0l “J51a
tzoz/10/01 0-¥T¥Z-90LTGEE £L2000 0DODDDOD
teoz/LE/6 6-T¥T-SLEBPSE A0 LOEMEOVNYH HBLSYK £L6000 0000000

TYLOL INd HOV 00°STE’E TYLOL NOAHD 00" TYLOL "J8IQ
TZ0Z/T0/0 114 Z96TO0 00000DD
TZ0Z/TI/01 665T ROTOEM A¥YRILIVD B.VIMIDWIA T96T00 0000000
THIOW a1va ‘ON HHYN HOMEA “oH “ON
arn HOT0ANT HAJTOANT HOMEA "0'd

HRLESIDHH WOFHD 4/¥

ALNNOD YHSSAS  1ZOZ/ST/0T  001dY



0E Siv
JIVE ALNNGD X355NS 9EL10
TEVE ALNNGD X3SSNS 9410

91 6L
ALNNGD X3SSNS 9EL10
ALNNGD X3SSNS 9EL10
ALNNDD X3SSNS 9ELT0
ALNNDD X355NS 9ELIOD

527891
2ZT6S6VE # 9EL10
00 9t

JATHINS XISSNS 9EL10
J4TH3IHS ¥3SSNS 9ELTD

2l 12

wiol 00
satqddng pooy

sai|ddns pooj

wioL 00
SAIAIBS |BIIPAM
S3IAIBS JBI Py
S3I1AJS (RIIPM
S301AJIS [BD{PH

wioL o
SUDHE eI LNMUIGI| 3]
Wi0L Lili]

SIINAJBS UMD LN
S3I1AJDS U0 LUf)

INIWISUNGATIY 9E£T06ULULRS) UON-3ER2| IH/3UL| OS]

INIHISHNBHI Y 9ELTD

09°19
AITHIHS XISSNS 9ELT0

0L 6v

WI0L 00

s|eal
wioL mm_—mmzm ey
™l 00

1005 # 9C/T0 SJsreday adueUAIUIEY F1D1Y3s
1005 # SE/10S4teddy 9 adueuajuIey 3131Yas

00'6/2°1
L041 & 9ELTO
1041 # 9ELT0
£0L1 # 9EL10
LOL1 # 9EL10

WI0L 00
SaJ1AJAS |R2IPIY
SIDLALAS |eIIpA
S3IEAJDS |RIIPM
SAILAJIS |E2IPI

00 08 Vi0L 00”
J41YIHS XISSAS 9EL10SJ1edaY § BIUCUDIULEY }IIYIA
J4143IHS X3SSNS 9E/10SJ1eday § @dUeuBIuLEY 3(IJyAA
A4THIHS XISSNS 9EL10SI1edaY § BduBUDIULEY B[D1YIA
44193HS X3SSNS 9L T0S41Bd3Y ¥ SMEUIIULEH B[ILYBA

£5°1FE
AVLISISERCNLY £ 9EL10
IVLISISEBCNTY # 9EL10
HvLIsIseamniy # €710
JICVYLISISEBNLY # 9E£10

26" 11g
62009 # 9EL10

£0°€9
EVI6E # 9LL10
EvLee # 9EL10

NOLLAIY3530° AN HOAvE

wi0L (HIy
sat(ddns a1t3)0
Sa| |ddng (eany(nataby
53| |ddns |eLaoliuep
sat|ddng 3140

W01 a0’
531 |0dnS | 4N} NILIbY

V101 0
Sad4 Jay10 7 J)/ueq
5334 Jayi0 ¥ J)/3ueg

3530 LNNOJDY /9 IWd IWd  CON
HIY HIV  A33HD 1IN

TWICL 1Wd Ad3 00
vB20Ze 59 L€
vecoee 49 2€2

101 JHd Ad3 00
£8enee  Si ¢/l
£B20Z¢ S8 99
£8e0ge ES B
£8202¢ £9°1R

WI0L IHd Ad3 00"
£820e¢ 527891

TIOL LHd Ad3 00°
182022 00 ¢l
1820¢¢ 00 82

WIO0L IWd Ad3 00
0820¢¢ LE BII
0820¢¢ G 01

WI0L IWd Ad3 00
6202 09 19

WIO0L iHd AdI 00
82022 e 2E
82022 9v L1

WIGL 1Hd Ad3 00
£420¢ 05 'BIS
Lichee 00 €22
Li20ég 05 EFE
Lreneg 00" vel

WIOL IHd Ad3 00°
9£202¢ 00°0¢
9/202¢ 00°02
9/802¢ 00°02
92022 0002

WIOL IHd Ad3 00
Sf202¢ L1
52022 Sy vl
G£202¢ 90902
5{e02¢ 66°El

WI0L IWd Ad1 00°
vi20éé é6'1ig

WIOL IHd Ad3 00°
£E£20¢Z 60°0S
£L20ée ¥6°21

LNNOHY

01/120¢ - PdIoV

TWI0L JHd ¥dd 00
0E5-195-9k¢1-005150-001F
015-155-9¥<1-00S150-001v

WVI0L IWd ¥dd 00
012-192-£221-009120-001%
012-19¢-£2¢1-009120-001¢
012-192-£221-009120-001¢
012-192-£221-009120-001Y

WIOL 1Wd VdD 00°
012-E5¢-¥E€1-005E¢0-001p

WI0L 1Hd ¥dD 40
015-155-¥r21-005150- 0010
015-215-vb21-001150- 00T

WI0L 1Hd ¥dd 00
OTk-T1¥-P921-0011r0-00EY
Oly-T1-S021-001140 00TV

WIO0L IWd ¥d2 00
015~ 155-9v21-005150-001F

WI0L 1Hd Y43 00
015-615-5921-001150-001F
015-215-99¢1-001 150001 ¥

VI0L 1Wd ¥dd 00°
012-19¢-£¢¢1-009120-001¢
012-19¢-£221-009120-001F
012-19¢-£221-009120-0011
012-19¢-£2¢1-009120-001r

WI0L 1Kd vdD 00
015-215-59¢1-0011%0-001¢
015-215-9%¢1-001150-001¢
015-215-9921-001150-001F
015-215-9921-001150-00T¥

WI0L IKd ¥d2 00
012-192-1¥21-009120-001F
012-192-2v21-009120-0011
012-192-Lt21-009120-001¥
012-192-1¥21-009120-001b

WI0L IHd VdD 00
012-192-¢vei-009120-001v

WI0L 1Wd ¥dD 00

Oly-11¥-2621-0011vD-001¢
0Lt-114-¢621-0011¢0-001

B0.92'6 -3HIL

WA0L IWd H)Y 0t Siv WI0L M) o WioL Js10
1202/81/01 9028 206000 0000000
120¢/21/01 6r0LB LM 1354V S.Y3WHV4 200 206000 0000000

WIOL 1Hd HV 91 L6t WIOL WI3HY 00 wiloE "Isia
1202/11/01 {91¥5¢ SB1100 0000000
1202711701 991r5e 581100 0000000
1202/11/01 991rGe S81100 0000000
[2oa/ts01 ¢91F5¢ YLIdSOH WHINY VINVINGSIA SB1100 0000000

WI0L IWd HV 52891 WIOL W03 00 WI0L 3514
1202/00/01  010T12X2216960E IM7ALINIG 268100 0000000

WIOL 1Hd HIV 00091 WIGL ¥3HD 00 wIOL JS10
160¢/¢1/01 [/ 44! £19100 000L000
120¢/21/01 iveel SYINVITD WOLSND 19100 000OCO0

WIOL 1Wd HOY el 1ze WI0L ¥J3HD) 00 WI0L JS1a
120g/81/01 ¢0 128101 X0 #0100 0000000
120e/81/01 10 128101 20 31530 "X0J v/0T00 0000000

TWI0L IRd HDY 0919 WI0L N33H) o0 wIioL 3510
1202/€1/01 1529240 SSINISNATHIY WHINID Serioe 0000000

WI0L LHd H)Y DL 6y WIO0L XJ3H)  d0° w0l “JSia
1202/60/01 00162-5EE51 824000 0000000
¥202/80/01 £1062-5EEST 0731434vM 40 1S3N08VD 82000 9000000

WIOL 1Hd HDY no6ig’l WI0L ¥33HY 00 WL0L 3810
£202/80/01 ¢EVE9 152100 0000000
120e/50/01 00¥69 152100 0000000
1202/42/6 56269 152100 0000000
1202/ve/6 €269  AYVNIYILIA INIOd Ni8VD 152100 0000000

WI0L 1Hd H)Y 06 08 WIOL 2330 00 WI0L 3510
120¢/21/01 6406 8E£000 0000000
1202/21/01 ££06 8E£000 0000000
1202/ 11/01 1406 8E££000 0000000
1202/11/01 2506 QNV DNIMOL S.¥371Nd 8EZ000 000DOOD

WIOL IWd WOV 15 TvE WI0L ¥13HI 00 Wi0L "J51d
1202/61/01  D496-PELA-MCIT £16100 0000000
1202/11/01  OUJH-/EdI-40ME £16100 0000000
1202/11/01  D¥3W-IEdE-40uL £16100 0000000
120z/21/01 XHOT-MA0-6401  SIDIAYES WILdYD NOZWWY 16100 0000000

WIOL IWd HOV 26 1€ EOE YI3HD 00 W01 2SI
L2oz/kt/ot 9/0va8t INT “VA-THIY ZPEOOD 000000C

WIOL IWd HOV €0 £9 Wi0E ¥I3HD) 0D WI0L JS1d
Lgoe/st/ol 15E£500001 096100 000OODD
1802/ 11/01 5089500001 INI "SINIWAVA 1DV 096100 0000000

IV Jlvd O HVN HOONIA ON ON
afy JI10AN] III0ANT HOON3A ad

YISO AIIHD d/Y

ALNNGD X3S8NS  120£/12/01 ODLdY



00 08¢ Wi0L 00 WI0L IHd Ad3 00 WIOL §Wd ¥dd 00 TWEOL IWd HDY 00 0B WI0L ¥33H) 00 TWI0L 3SIA
34¥S 21780d %3S5NS 9EL10 pung s ueu:il4 #1075 {62022 00 082 ¥05-012-152-0112-005120-001p 1202/0€/6 B9BLOTT 0034vN 162100 ODODDOD
00 55 TWL0L 00 WI0L 1Hd Ad3 00° WI0L iHd ¥dd 00 WI0L JHd HIY 0055 WI0L W3H) 00 WI0L 3510
CHINDD THNY X3SSNS 9EL10SJ1RA3Y § SOUBUSIU LR SPUNOJT 962022 00 55 0ig-19¢-¥£el-009120-001p 120/€1/01 2bZ¢ WY1 ONY 1S3d JLLNVILV-OIW E86T00 0000000
¥ 201 101 g WI0L 1Hd Ad3 00 WIDL 1Kd Yd3 00 WI0L EWd HOY vS €01 W01 NIIHD D0 wioL 3500
09E0LEE0066 # 9EL10412day § 2duRUAIULEY DUIpLINg G62022 ¥5 201 015-195-2£21-005150-001% 1202/80/6 i/65%il6 $.3K07 EEFT100 0000000
WEss'1 W01 00 WI0L IHd Ad3 00 Wi0L 1Kd ¥dJ 00 WIOL IHd HOY 10°£55°L WI0L X)3H) 06 wiol Jsi0
€8E # 9EL10 SUGLIRILUIMINGIA | 9] v620e2 10 €95°'1 012-£92-¥E£21-009120-001¥ 1zoz/soe/01 2EP6L NOLLNTOS INIMHOMLIN X3INEN DSST00 DDoOOCO
00 286 w101 00 WIOL 1Hd Ad] 00 VIOL LWd ¥dd 00 WI0L 1Hd HY 00286 WI0L A3 0D w101 JS1a
TLNATHINGD 22/1ZA4 9E£10869| |07 A1D|unuo] J3|4) uyol £6202z 00 ¢Bo 01g-1€8-0112-005180-001% 1202/10/01 22/12A4 3937703 WW0D Y3TAL NHOC ET11000 000DDDD
00 212°1 ™IOL 00 WI0L 1kd Ad3 00 WIOE IHd vdD 00 WI0L 1Hd H)V 00 2gie’l WL0L X2 00 w01 JSIa
E0TL1Y #Y3EW3W GELTO dwys.Jaquay uo)jeziuebp 262022 00 2121 012-112-1041-00T 120001y 1202/81/01 126101 0¥ STVMINIY JIHSHIBWIH WW31 68100 0000000
£5 €pLE il 00 TL0L 1Hd Ad3 00 WIOL fWd ¥dD 00 WI0L 1Wd HIY £5 EpLE wieL ¥I13HD 00 wioL Jsid
A41Y3HS X3SSNS GELT0  S£Leday SDURUBIULEY 3| L1434 162022 €5 Eve'e 015-615-5921 00T1S0-001F 1202/90/01 SLVEEPYY HINOS 0404 A3TWH [E9100 0000000
0D GOE°T wioL 00" WI0L 1Hd Ad3 007 WIOL 1Hd Vd3 00 WI0L IHd HY 00 001°1 WI0L ¥3H) 00 WwI0L 3510
ALNNOD X35SNS 9ELE0 Aduabuyjuo] ~SoAS Haaug 062022 00 00171 012-t52-6621 -005120-0010 120¢/91/01 129101 vd9 $3LVID0SSY ONV SWY3Y 3N3D 262100 0000000
05 G4 w10t 00 W1I0L IHd Ad3 00 WIOL 1Hd Vd) 00 TWI0L IWd H)Y 05 St WIOL ¥J3H) 00 WI0L 3510
S6EL1KS # 9CL10 S3VLANIS WO LU 6B8c0gz 05 SL 015-155-Pb21-005150-0010 1202/22/6 rbibbEsT 271 "STVD 251000 0000000
00 05 oL HH WI0L IHd Ad3 00 TWL0L 1Hd Y42 00 TYI0L IWd HOY 00 05 WI0L ¥W3H) 00 oL Jsio
ALKNOD X3SSNS 9EL10 S3ILASIT BILPAY B8¢0Z¢ 0G 05 012-11e-£2C1-001120- 0011 120e/rli6 3621 ILVID0SSY WIIAIM Yin0dW3 6100 0000000
08°0eL’2 w01 00 WI0L JHd Ad3 00 WI0L 1Hd ¥dD 00 WIOL 1Hd HY 08 0EL ¢ WI0L ¥I3H) 00 wieL 3510
S000EEDS96 # 9EL10 J1433(3 18202z ¢¢ fo2 012-£92-9£21-009120-001F 1202/0E/6 1260 SO00EL0S96 ¥20000 0000000
E0G/¥E0956 # 9EL10 41343 82022 90°EIv'e 0tg-£92-9£Z1-009120-001¥ [20e/0E/6 1260 E0S/VE09S6 ¥ae00e0 0000000
100090€626 # 9££10 31412913 {82022 181§ 0F2-¥92-9£21-009120-001¢ 1202/10/01 1201 100090€626 r80000 0000000
£L9EC6EL06 # 9EL10 31433913 {82022 99 ¢9 0E5-155-9£21-006150-001F 1202/62/6 1260 EE9EL6EL06  HIMOd WINIDYIA HOIHIWOO ¢BO000 000000
TARLTI A w101 00’ WI0L iHd Ad3 00 W01 IHd YdD 00 WIOL LWd HOV L1 94L°E WI0L XO3H) 00 WI0L 3510
£922v2098L # 9€L10 143313 982022 68 Z6L 012-€9¢-94¢1-009120-001F 1202/E/6 1260 192¢k2098L y80000 0000000
vI66698v2L # 9EL10 341313 98202¢ v 6E9 01g-£92-9£21-009120- 001 1202/10/01 1201 ¥566658vZL ¥80000 0000000
8:¥5218E19 # 9EL10 21472311 982022 68 L2 012-¥92-9421-009120-001F 120e/10/0T  TZ0T B{¥SZIBELS 80000 0000000
95v61BE2LY # GELTO L3313 98202¢ 60 681 01Z2-€92-9421-009120-001F 1202/10/0T  ECDT 9SP6IBCELY y80000 0000000
99680594 € # 9E£10 31431313 982022 659 01¢-€92-9£21-009120-001F 1202/0E/6 1260 996805944€ 780000 DODOODOD
v16v851262 # 9E£10 20432213 982022 ¥5 8 015-155-9421-005150-001¥ 1e0E/6¢/6 6D ri6KBGEZEE v80000 0000000
S0529£9002 # 9EL10 J14333(3 992022 (€ eTZ'Z 015-195-9¢21-005150-001F 12D2/62/6 1€60 S0529€900¢ v80000 0000000
1Z21EEPBBOT # 9EL10 41313 982022 05 Bel 0i¢-£9¢-94¢L-009120-001p 1202/10/01 1201 1ZIECPBOOE ¥80000 0000000
S82991£960 # 9EL10 23313 982022 &L ttl 01¢-£92-9421-009120-001F 120¢/10/01 1201 SB8Z99i£960 vB0000 0000000
256£621950 £ 9EL10 RIEREE| 982022 (99 012-£92-9421-009120-001F 120¢/0t/6 1260 296E621950 YIMOd VINIDYIA NOINIHOO ¥B0000 0000000
19 911 Wi0L 0o WIOL IWd Ad3 00 Wi0L iHd ¥dd 00 WI0L IWd HDY 49791t WI0L NFH) OB wioL JsIa
OHLKOD WiV X3ISSNS SELTD | #juay/asea] Juaudinbg q8202¢ €8 15 012-192-¢521-009120-001% igoe/0t/01 ¢hIBIL 159100 0000000
WYNIJ/NIWQY XISSNS 9EL10 sasuadx3 61-01A0D S8202¢ 66 61 €02-012-112-0212-001120-001¥ 120¢/80/0L EEIBIL 159100 0000000
HIUNSYIHL XISSNS IELT0 IIL4IU0D FILASS FIURUBIULEY Sge0éc S8 vb 01t-1iv-5521-0011¥0-001% 1202/80/0L cEiBll SH3LSAS LNIWND00 159100 0000000
HOTLdTH3S30 ANT HOLvE 3530 IKAOIDY VO Ihd IWd 0N INNOWY oM WXV e ‘0N JWVN HOONIA “ON ON
HOV HOV 103HD k| 1NNOJ2Y d/¥ III0ANT III0ANT HOONIA 0d

¢ Iwd 01/1202 - PdIW  60-92°6 -JHIL 43151934 AIIHD diY ALNME) X35SNS  1202/12/0F 00TV



05 16% W10L an
22-L01-NS-YA # 9E2T0 ERITTRLN

00 0zt WI0L 00
AVO"SHYIT1IM 9T£10 diyssaquay uojieziuebug

00 Bv6 WI0L 00
ALNNDDY X3SSNS SELI0  suoLIeuNuw0da|al 2| 1oy

00 0v2°2 wI0L 00
6{9v # 9EL10 L2juay/asea) Juawdinb3
649 # 9210 |ejuay/asea] juawdinbi

vE'viS'e WiGL 00

PBrOPL99 # 9ELI0 abea| 1y
¥BrOpL99 # 9EL10 SJAY1Q SNOdUE| A5 1K
¥BrOPZ99 # 9EL10 110

¥BPOVL99 # 9EL1D
¥BPOPL99 # 9EL10
vBYOKL99 # 9CL10

0" Z9v W10L o
SISNIdXI 301440 9EL10 sa|ddng d31)40
S3ISN3dX3 308440 9EL1D sat|ddng 231110

80° 200 W01 0
SISNIJXI 3D[440 9EL10 say (ddng 231340
S35N3dX3 301430 96210 sa1ddng 200110

80°29% W10L 0
SISNIAXI 101440 98410 say|ddng 921110
SISNIdXI D490 9EL10 sa11ddng 22110

00705 W01 00°
J4THIHS XISSAS GELI0  SBILAJLS WALSAS uC1)euuciu]
J4TYIHS XISSNS 9EL10 SIILAIBS SWAYSAS UD|IRULIOJU]

05°'GE8 WI0L o
0968211 # OC/T0  528I1AJ0S WAYSAS UD)IPMIO)U]

(ang (asag
SJ3UIQ SNOBUD| (IS |
Lang (asalg

00" 081 w0l 00°

10SSNS # 9E/10  S3seydund Juandinbl Jayip
12 €55 W10t 00

301440 WWALSIDIY 9EL10910 12d4e) § "I9S "J04d JIYI0
¥Z 666°1 wi0L 00

929811 # 9EL10 sal (ddns pooy

00 ¥5E oL 00
Gph2E01 # 96/ 1041eday 9 ddueudjuLey Buipging

NOILdTYDS30 AN] HDLYE

£ 39

JS30 ENNODDY /Y IWd IWd  OM
HIV HIV 2034 13N

N

WI0L 1Hd Ad3 00
11E022 05 169

WI0L IWd Ad3 00
01€0¢2 00°02€

WI0L iWd Ad3 00
60E0E 00 BY6

WI0L JWd Ad3 00
80£0Z2 00 021°1
80E0ZZ 0D 0ZL°L

101 IHd Ad3 00
10€02¢ 69 9S1
{0€02c ¢k 99¥
[0E0ZZ 06 'E9
{08022 b1 6VS
108022 V1 69%
10€02¢ 51608

TI0L {Hd Ad3 GO°
90E0Z¢  ¥0 EEC
90€02¢ v0iEC

TIO0L IHd Ad3 00°
S0E0ZZ W) 1EC
G0E0cZ 0 '1EZ

WI0L IWd AdD 00
vOtléc 0 1E2
poEozE  v0IES

WIOL IWd Ad3 00°
£0t0éc  00°G¢
£0E0CZ 00°52

WIGL 1Wd Add 00°
e0E0ee 09°SE8

Wi0L 1Hd Ad3 00°
10g0zZ 007081

WIOL tHd Ad3 00°
00£02¢ 12 €99

WI0L 1Kd Ad3 00
662022 ¥ 6661

WI0L 1Hd Ad3 00
862022 OO0 v5€

IRNOHY

DI/1202 - P12V

WIOL IWd ¥dd 00 WIOL IHd HIY 05165 WIOL 23 o0 WI0L "3510
012-292-2921-009120-0DTF 1202/82/6 [-010v-0S016 dUOVA 1E8000 0000000
WIOL IWd ¥d2 00 TI0L Hd HOY 00 02t VI0L ¥J3H) 00 W01 3810
029-129-10¢1-001290-001F 1eoz/else SING-22/12A4  'D0SSY \SHHITD 1HNOD VA [E2100 0000000
WIOL IHd ¥d2 00 WI0L LHd H)Y 00 86 WI0L H03H) 00 W0l "3S10
01¢-¢9¢- ¥EC1-005120-00TF 120¢/01/8 201559001 J77 LvSn 166100 0000000
WIOL IWd YdD 00 TWI0L 1Hd HJY 00 0vZ ' WIO0L Y)Y 00 Wi Jsi0
012-v92-2521-009120-001F te0e/11/01 Z-dSi191 £28100 0000000
012-1v92-£521-009120-001F 1202/11/01 2-A08ES1 INI "d3M0d-dWiL /26100 0000000
WI0L 1Kd ¥dD 00 WIOL IHd H)Y vE ¥IS'2 WI0L X330 00 wioL “Jsia
012-19¢-19¢1-009120-001¢ [202HE/6 519005 ¢91000 0000000
012-112-66¢T-00T120-001Y 1202/0E/6 S190¥5 ¢91000 0000000
012-122-8£21-002120-001V 1202/0E/6 Si90¥S ¢91000 0000000
012-¥9¢-8£21-009120-001¢ 1202/08/6 S190¥S €91000 0000000
Oig-112-6621-001120-0011 1202/1E/8 Zh{6ES £91000 0000000
012-v92-8£21-009120-001¢ 1202/1¢E/8 EPL6ES INT S3TTYINT H1044NS 291000 0000000
WI0L 1Hd ¥dD 00 WIOL IWd KV 80 29v WI0L 2I3H) 00 WI0L "SI0
019-119-1¥Z1-001190-001r 1Zoz/81/01 120¢ 4380130 96/100 0000000
019-119-1+21-001190-001F LZoz/81/01 1202 Y3GW3AON 0D L1NJ¥1D WI1210AC HIXIS 96£100 000000O
WI0L IHd ¥dd 00 WIO0L IWd HY 80 29v Wi0: XJ3HD) 0D ™I0L JSI]
019-119-1¥21-001190-00TF 1202/81/01 [£0¢ W3IB0LI0 106000 0ODOOOD
019-119-1¥21-001190-001¢ 1202/81/01 1202 H3GHIA0N 0D LINDYID WIDIONE HIXIS 106000 00OOCCO
TWIOL IHd Vd3 00 WI0L 1Hd HOV 80 29V WI0L X03H) 00 WwioL 2SIa
019-119-1v21-001190-001¢ 1202/81/01 1202 4380130 896000 6000000
O19-119-1ve1-001190-001¢ 1ées81/01 1202 HITIAON NOJ LINJYID WIRONC HEXES BIGDOD 000O0DOO
TI0L 1Hd ¥dD 00° WI0L tHd HIV 00 05 WL0L J3H) 00 w0t JSEQ
GE5-215-v2el-001150-001v 1202/80/01 S10-t022l {84100 0000000
GES-155-keel-00S150-001+ 1202/80/01 S10-£0221 HOJ FdHIS {82100 0000000
W01 IHd ¥dD 00 WI0L {Hd H)Y 05 5¢8 WIOL W) 00 L0L JSIO
015-¢15-¥22i-001150-001¥ {202/ L0/01 PEGE/TYTIE  dUDD TVNOTAYNYILND [HS T£5T00 0000000
Wi04 IWd ¥dD 00 WI0L IHd HIV 00 081 WIO0L XI3HD 00 WI0L JSIG
015-9E5-65¢1-0011S0-001v 1202/¥0/01 T063660HT ONT " SNOLLVOINMAWOINIS 266100 0000000
W04 1Wd ¥dD 00 WI0L 1Hd HW ig €55 WI0L DB) 00 WI0L 3514
01¢-12¢-62¢1-00¢120-001¥ [20¢/10/6 9982C  "IHI'SIJVISNMYT ZLMNHIS 60100 0000000
WIO0L 1Hd Vd) 0O WIOL Ind HV vZ 666°1 WIOL HO32 00 I0L JSIA
015-155-9v21 -005150-001F [202/¥1/01 €51202¢ 331A4356004 S¥Y 98¢100 0000000
M10L LHd ¥dD 00 WI0L IWd HV 00 ¥5¢ WIOL W3HY  00° IOl 3514
012-14¢-24¢t-00¢ien-001¥ 1202/90/01 GL1961012 TOUINOD 153d WINHO 651000 0000000
On Y e ON FWVH HOONIA ON ON
1NN0JDY d/v JI0ANT JJ10AN] HOON3IA 0d

60 92 6 -MIL d431S1334 2D d/v AINNOD X35S0S  1202/12/01 0014V



08020500066 # 9£/10S410d3y § AJUBLAIUIRY SPUNOT
0B0ZNS00066 # 9£/10S410d3y § AJUPUAIULRH SPUn0JT
08020500066 # 9£/10541ed3Y 4§ IDURUIIULEY SPUNCJT

08020500066 # 9£L10
Bz {22

sa1dang anyi0
vI0L 00’

CUINGD THNY X3SSS 9E/10SJ1eday § 23UeUIULEN IINYBA
CUINDD THNY X3ISSAS Of10SJreday § adueudluey ajdnyaj
OUINOD TWNY XISSNS 9E/10541803Y 7 SIRUIIULRH 3{I1YdN

00 045
10002€££00020 # 9ELI0
10020ZE£00020 # 9EL10
100202€00020 # 9ELT0

ot il
INIHISUNTWIIY 9ELTO

00 Syl

WwioL 0o
(2uay/esea jusudinb]
|®Ivay/asea] juawdinb]
{Pjusy/asea juswdinb)

WI0L 00
S99 Jayip § J3)/3ued
TL0L 00

ALNNOD ¥3SSNS 9E/10SH1edaY 7 SOUBUAIUIBY 3|2 1U3A

£ 116°1
900E6-LEPTE-GE # SELIO
£0DEE-2ZSTIE-02 # 9EL10
BO0ES-EET60-S2 # 9ELTD

81 /90°€2
LINATHINDD €2/12A4 9ELE0

vZ €026
VIO 1ST 220¢ A4 9EL1D

06 Lly'1
[0000-¥6£052508 # 9EL10
10000-+6£052508 # 9CL10
10000-76€052508 # 9EL10
10000-¥6£052508 # 9££10
10000-v6£052508 # 9£L10
10000-t6£052508 # 9££10
10000-+6£052508 # 9££10
10000-¥6£052508 # 9£L10
10000-v6£052508 # 9££10
10000-¥6£052508 # 9EL10
10000-v6£052508 # 9££10
10000-¥6£052508 # 9E£10
10000-¥6£052508 # 9€L10

92 0501

WI0L 00

S331AJS | PUOLSEI0Ug JBYID
S3DIAJAS |PUD|SSBL0Ud JAUID
S301AJS (PUDLSSAIONY JBYID

wIoL Lili]
i0}70U1 %3 3414 158403

W0 00
UDLSUAIXT 2A11243d007 WA

Wi0L G0
SUOLBI1UNKI0IA| 3]

NIRRT R ETET
SUD$RIIUNE0IA | 3]
SU013RIIUNINODA | 3]
SUOLIRIIUMLIB0IA| 3] 3] 1QOH
SUDYIIIUNELNDA | 3L
SUOLYEIIUML0I3| 3]
SUOLIED U0 [ 3]
SUOY TR UNUNOI3 | 3L
SUDL B UN0I3 | 3]
sasuadx3 6I-0IADD
SUOLYEDLUNII0DS | 3]
SUDL U0 |31

iDL 00

0EbZZ # 90/ 1051003y § 2JURUIILLY I|IYIN
0EPLZ # O9CL10 SJLECY 3 AIUEUAIULEH S[ILY3A
0Eb(Z # 910 SJLedy § BoUCUIIULDH 3|I1LBA

y 3vd

3530 1NRO3OY /D L

HIV HX¥Y

88 81
9z €2

128022
12£0¢¢
120082 9L 0%
18022 60 191

WI0L 1Hd Ad3 00
028022 9v 659
Q2E022 S2°695°1
02€022 [0 €IE

WIOL IRd Ad3 00
6If0ge 05 2vl
61E022 05 ¢kl
61t0ZZ 00 S82

WIOL 1Wd Ad3 00
81E022 0141

WIO0L 1Hd Ad3 00
L1802 00 GvL

WIOL IWd Ad3 00
91£022 05 262
91£022 6L
918022 v6 £49'1

WI0L 1Hd Ad3 00
Slenpde el f90°¢€z2

W0 EWd Ad3 B0
FiEQee ve €026

TI0L IHd Ad3 00°
E1E0¢¢ 10 OF
£I1e0ge 10 0¥
Eit0ee 1070
£1E0e¢ 10 O
£1e0ge
£1E0ee
£1E£02¢
£1£0e¢
£ichee
£1e02e
£ienze
£1e0ee
£1e0ze

Wi0L 1Hd Ad3 00
¢1€0¢e
21E0Z

ate0ee 2v 6126

Wd IWd 0N LRNOWY
A3HD 13N

01/1202 - IV

01-12¢-p{2T-00ETE0-001F [202/E2/6 S18116 EEF100 0000000
0ig-Ezg-piZE-0DZIZ0-0DLY 1202/60/6 eLLTl6 EEY100 0000000
0E2-12¢-p£21-002TE0-00LY 1e0z/e1/a 99606 EEYI00 000D0DD
0i2-122-1pZ1-00Z120-001P 1202/6¢/¢ 11E606 S.3%01 EEb100 0000000
WI0L 1Hd ¥d2 00 TWIOL IWd HDY 8e ter'e WI0L N3 00° wioL 510
012-19¢-59¢1-009120-00iF 120¢/50/01 SE06 BE£000 0000000
0i2-192-5921-009120-001y 1¢0¢/82/6 £668 BEL000 0000000
012-192-9921-009120-001Y i202/91/6 clog ONY INIMOE S.Y371NQ BELDOD 0000000
Wi0L 1Wd vd2 00° WIOL IWd HIV 00°045 WIOL N13HD 007 Wi0L TISE
012-2v2-2521-00¥120-001¢ 1202/81/01 85116482 prFo100 0000000
0ie-1re-2521-00vic0-001y 1202/81/01 85116402 yr9100 0000000
012-112-2521-001120-001y 1202/81/01 v6l16£82 SIDNAYIS WIINVNIL XOU3X pPOI0D DOOOODOD
WI0L IRd ¥d3 00 WI0L 1Rd HWW ozt WI0L ¥33H3 00 WI0L 510
029-129-2621-001290-001¢ [202/+1/01 12r101 MAD MUY ° W AUVD TSHYITTIM 22€000 0000000
TWI0L IHd ¥dd 00 WI0L $Hd HIY 00°6¥1 WIO0L AJ3HY 00 w10l 2SI
012-£9¢-5921-009120- 001 120e/12/6 01991 ONU “SHOLOW ATY3IAVM 060000 0000000
WI0L 1Wd Vdd 00 WI0L 1IHd H)Y £2'116'1 Wi0Y HJHD 0 WDl "SI
01Z-192-6£21 0091200010 1202/10/0T  8-v2ve-882195¢ ££8000 0000000
012-v92-6221-009120-001F 1202/10/01  0-bpab2-H9905SE ££8000 0000000
012-¥92-6221-009120-001F 1202/10/01  £-52p2-8819¢1E 40 INIWIIYNYH ILSVM €/B000 0000000
WIOL 1Hd ¥d) 00 WI0L IHg HIY 81 (90°€Z WIOL ¥)3H) 00 WL0L 3510
012-552-0112-005120-001¢ 120¢/0E/6 96t6L10¢ AYLSIHGS 40 1430 VINIDHIA 652000 0000000
WI0L LHd ¥d) 00 WI0L 1Wd HOV ¥ EZ 6 WWI0L 3J3H) 00 wvioL Jsi0
018-228-0112-00€T80-001F [202/v1/01 1722 AWS 1118 1X3 JA1LvYId00D VINIOYIA 602100 0000000
iDL 1Wd ¥dD 00 WIOL 1Wd W)Y 06 L1p'T WLOL W23HD 007 WI0L 3510
Otc-1be-vEST-00k120-00TF 120z/01/01 £0BB6E0GE6 6E0000 000000
OEE-TIE-¥EZL-00LIED-00TF 120z/01/01 £0886E0686 6£0000 0000000
0EC-16¢-vEST-00TEC0-001Y 1202/01/01 £0886E0686 6E0000 0000000
01g-£92-vEZ1-009120-001F 1202/01/01 £0886E0686 6£0000 0000000
0ic-292-pECT-009120-001F 1202/01/01 £0886E0686 6E0000 0000000
01Z-E92-bEZT-0091Z0-001LP 1202/01/01 £0BB6E0686 6€0000 0000000
01Z-£52-pE21-009120-001F 1202/01/01 £08B86E0686 6E£0000 0000000
0iZ-cke-FEZ1-00F120-00LK 1202/01/01 £0886£0686 620000 0000000
012-1€2-pESL-00E120-00LK t202/01/01 £06886£0686 6E£0000 0000000
01Z2-122-vEZ1-00Z120-001r 1202/01/01 £0B86E0686 6E0000 0000000
£02-012-1i2-021¢-00E120-001k 120¢/01/01 £0BB6ENGEG 620000 0000000
Ole-Tie-vEet-001120-001p 1202/01/01 £0886£0686 6£0000 0000000
OLi-111-vEZL-0OT1LLO-00Lp 1202/01/01 £0886E06806 SSITIYIA NOZTHIA 6E0000 0000000
WI0L iHd ¥d3 00° WI0L IHd H)Y 92 045701 WIOL ¥I3HD 007 W0l JSI0
0i2-252-9921-005120-001F 120¢/8¢/6 65801 {80000 0000000
012-15¢-9921-005120-001p 1202/2é/6 685p1 £80000 0000000
012-19¢-9921-005120-001% 120¢/0¢/6 POEPE  ON1 Sldvd OENY 33370 NvA £80000 0000000
0N I a1va ON YN YOONIA O 0N
1RNO33V div 3DI0AN] 3D10AN1 HOGNIA 0'd

60 92 6 ~MIL YILSIIFY WIIMD d/Y ALNNOD X35SNS  1202/12/00 00LdY



0L 6018 oL GO
0t 6v0°18 w101 G0
12'29¢ w101 0l

08020500066 # 9E{10SJ)1edaY § dOUBUAIULEY SPUNOIY
08020500066 # 9EL10 531 |ddns |eLa0}Luep
08020500066 # 9E/1010d3Y 7 uley SWaISAS BuiplLng

NOILdi¥2530° AN] HOLYE 3530 LNNODDY /9 IH 1Hd
HIY HOY

WIOL IRd Ad3 00
WIOL IRd Ad3 00
WIOL iHd Ad3 00°

12£02¢ BL IS
12£0é¢ 6 62
122022 01 v¢

ON - INNOWY
A3HD 13N

‘03LSNCOY SV STVIOL L3NS D07 ATNIM JHL STVRD3
O3ENIHNI00 ATSMOIATE] HO MOTIE 031517 SHOI11dIDXT HLIM INIWAYD YO HILSIOIY SIHL JAOHddY ABIYIM [

WIOL IHd Y42 00
WI0L 1Wd ¥dd 00

WIOL iWd Vd3 00°
0l2-122-v/21-002120-001¥
01E-1¢¢-/vZ1-002120-001F
01¢-1¢¢-£L21-002120-001F

N
IRNGIIY

01/160¢ - Pd¥ 60 92 6 -IMIL

TI0L 1Hd HDY

WI0L 1Hd HY

WI0L 1Hd HJY
1202/01/8
120¢/£2/6
1202/€2/6

1¢7¢9t

1iva
JI0AN]

T
dsy

4ILS193Y HIIHD diY

0£ 6k0° 18
0g 6v0" 18

ve|fa

151257
“IC-0f

-0€ 600°18

WIOL Y23 00

TIOL 2033

00

WIOL ¥3H) 00

10{816
S18116
Si8li6

‘O
uu_o>z_

TWYN HOONIA

ALRNOD X3SSNS

WI0L IHL

WI0L "3SId

EEF100 0000000
EEYL00 0000000
tEv100 0000000

1202/12/01 001dY



00 02

4J143HS XISSNS ZE/10SH1ed3Yy § 3dueUTULEY B|ILLaA

1642’1

T2V # LEL10 S301A43S |BUOISSA)ONG JAID

¢l 08t

5059005010018 # (EL10I9W "J3y "sy00g © IsqnS © ang

22 226

£5EZBB66LTT09R0Y # LCL101BH "43Y “s300g "I5QnS °|gnd

ESEZBBGELITOOK0F # LEL10
ESEZBROGITTOOMOY # LCLT0
£GEZAB66I 11090V # LE410
ESEZBA66TT100K0F £ L£410
£SE28B661110000V £ L0410
€582886611T09Y0 # LELTD

68 152
JJ¥ 3JIH3HS XISSNS LELTO
DV AITUIHS XISSNS LELTO
2V JIIUIHS XISSAS LELTO

0z 002
130V ROSKHO 3 ZELTO
130V NOSNHOC 3 ZELTD
120V ROSHHOC '3 £E£10
130¥ NOSNHOT 3 ZELT0

120V SHIAID A LELTD
10 SHIRID A LELT0
130V SNIRID A LELTO
120¥ SHIR1D A LELTD
130V SN3ATD A (ELTD
133V SHIRTD A [EL10
130V SN2AID A LELTO

62 ELL'Y
13OV SNIAIS A LELTO
120V SNIAID A LEL10

L130¥ 3HIAM D LELT0

130V 3HDAM D LE210
130V ROSIHOW © LELTD
13V NOSTHOWH [ £LE£10
130V NOSIHOW © LELT0
LV NOSIHWWH T LE£10
L0V NOSTURA © ZEL10

wI0L 00
WI0L 00
WI0L IH
WI0L a0

abea| 1y

Gu)Gpoy

S|eay

S|ea

anupuaL Y Juawdinby
SJ3YIQ SNoaue||ads|K

WI0L 00
53 AJIS WD) fup
sayyddng &350
53} |ddng pood

wioL 00
segsabea) 1y
S|ead
sen/0be3| 1K
sen/abea) 1YW
saddng pooy
satddns pooy
53t ddng pooy
satddng pooy
satddng pooy
594 (ddng pooy
sai |ddng pooy

WI0L o
SASUIAXY [EDIPAY DIBWN]
sasuady3 |e2(pay 2R
S3JUatauoy pue sdoysyaoy
sai|ddng 331130
a1 |ddng an ) Jo
abeysog
S32U3J3JuU07 pue SAoySYIOM
SAZVIISJUY pue sdoysyIoM
abe1soy

L2V Ve £E£10440d3Y g adueudjuley Buipping

8BS 12
JPVLISISEAONLY # LELT0
JCVLISISEAONIY # L2210

NOLLAI¥D530 ANT HOLYE

[ 3wd

WI0L 00
sa1|ddng ad1))0
sa1|ddng 231340

WI0L 1Hd Ad3 G0

628022

00 02

WI0L 1Hd Ad3 00

8EE02¢

16°1¥2°1

WIDL 1Hd Ad3 00

{£E0¢e

2108t

WIDL IHd Ad3 00

9£E022
9EE0Z2
9EE0ze
9EE0Ze
9te0ze
9EElée
9te0ee

05 v9
¥i 9y
06 viv
05 88
SE'8E
56 68
88 6.1

WI0L JHd Ad3 00°

GEEDZ2
SEE0EE
SEE0ZE

00 002
68 [E
0002

W01 IWd Ad3 00

rEEDZE
vEENze
vEEDEE
vEEDZE
vEEDCE
vEEnZe
vEEDZE
vEEDZE
vEEDZE
vEEDZE
vEEDZE

0002
ko'l

00 DZ
0D DE
00 02
919

00 02
0182
00 0E
0n'v

[HH 4

WI0L 1Hd Ad3 OO

EEEDZE
EEEDLE
EEEDZE
EEEDZZ
EEE0ZZ
ECEDLZ
EEEDZE
£EE0Ze
EEC022
EEEDZE

6r ¢l
or 6

00 054
66 ol
01 26t
08 9

-00 001
oy 014
08§

IE 996'Z

WIO0L IWd Ad3 00

EEE0Ze
cetez

3530 INNOJDY WD 1Wd IWd QN

HIY HOY 03D

66 ¥
15 9§

LHNOWY
13K

Di/1e0e - PdI2Y

WI0L 1Wd ¥d) 00

015-215-59¢1-001150-001¢

WIOL IWd ¥dD 00°

OTt-11r-6221-00EEVD-0DLY

WIO0L 1Wd ¥dD 00

0E9-1£9-2021-001€96-001F

WI0L IWd ¥dD 00

012-192-20£1-0051¢0-001F
012-192-¥921-005120-001F
012-192-#021-009120-001%
012-192-5021-009120-001F
012-192-5021-009120-001¢
012-122-¥Se1-002120-001r
01€-11£-6621-001120-0011

TI0L IHg ¥dd 00°

015-¢15 Fpe1-001150-001F
015-915- 1ke1-001150-001F
015-T155-9ve1-005150-001F

WI0L 1Hd ¥dD 00°

015-Z15-P9Z1-001150-0011
015-215-S021-00T1%0-001¢
015-215-v9£1-001150-COTY
015-215-v921-001 150001
015-155-9¢1-005150-001¥
015-195-9¥¢1-005150- 001
015-155-9121-005190- 001
015-195-91¢1-005150- 001
015-155-921-005150- 001
015-155-91¢1-005150-001F
015-195-921-005150-001¢

WIOL 1Hd ¥d2 00°

015-155-€621-005150-001F
015-155-£621-005150-001F
015-915-202T-00T1S0-001¢
015-91G-[v21-001150-0011
015-915-1v21-001150-001F
015-215-1E21-0011%0-001¢
015-215-£021-001150-00T#
015-¢15-€021-001 150001t
015-155-1£21-005150-001F
015-195-2£21-005150-001F

WI0L 1Wd ¥dD 00

0E9-1£9-11+21-001£90-001F
0£9-1£9-1¥21-001£90-001¥

INNOJV

ve ¥5:6 -3HIL

WIOL IHd HJV 06 0
1202/0e/01

WI0L IWd HW 6 Lve’
120¢/02/01

WI0L IHd HOY ¢l 08C

1202/0€/8

WIOL JWd HOY ¢2 2éb
i20e/81/01
1202751701
1£0¢/51/01
Lege/vi/on
1202721701
1202/62/6
120¢/12/6

VI0L 1Rd HJY
120¢/5¢/6
1202/28/6
1202/02/6

WIOL 1Hd HOY
1202/62/6
120274216
1202/ 1216
1202/¥2/6
1202/90/01
1202/20/01
[202/20/01
1202/82/6
1202/ £1/6
1202/¥1/6
1202/E1/6

WI0L IWd BV 62 BLL”
1202/E1/6
1202/21/6
1202/£2/6
1802/22/6
1202/62/6
1208/6¢/6
1202/22/6
1202/22/6
1208/11/6
120¢/91/6

WI0L IHd HV 85 12
1202/90/01
120¢/Vvél6

68°15¢

027002

THIWV Jva
dfy 310AKH1

315193 HIIHD 47V

!

WIOL X03H)

8116

S09ES1

WIOL ¥I3HD

v65iB0L012NI

1201
1201
1201
1201
L0l
10l
1201

L0l
101
1201

1201
1201
101
1201
1¢01
1201
1e01
1201
1141
1201
12nt

1201
1201
1201
1201
1201
1201
1201
1201
1201
1201

Wi0L ¥)3HD

WI0L %33HD

5520
55¢0
5520

WI0L H23HD

8ye0
8¥0
8¥c0
8rz0
¢cel
2ezl
¢cel
2eél
¢cel
¢eél
22z0

£010

on

JINOANT

oL J51a

GNv ONIMOL S.331Ln8 8EL000 0000000
WI0L AIFHD

WI0L 351

"OHI 123410 SWd 6E9100 0000000

W01 "IS10

I1°VIOM 09€ IN78 08910¢ 0000OOC

WIOL “JS10
£9£100 D000DOO
£9/100 DODODOOG
£9£100 0000000
£9£100 0000000
£3£100 0000000
£94100 0000000

1389 /9/100 0000000

wioL “JsIG
010000 0000000
010000 0000000

VA J0ISHINOS 40 XNVE 010000 000DOOO

W01 “JSI4
010000 00DDOOD
010000 00D0DO0D
010000 0000O0O
010000 000ODOD
010000 0OODDCO
010000 000G000
010000 000000
010000 0OOOCOOO
010000 000CCCO
010000 000OOOO

VA 30ISHINGS 30 ¥NvE 010000 0QOOOOOO
WIBL ¥I3HD

WI0L JS10
010000 0000000
010000 0OROO0O
010000 CODODOD
010000 0ooOCOR
010000 GODO0OO
610000 0000000
GEO0GD 0000000
G16000 £000000
0t0000 0000000

VA 30[SHENOS 40 NvE 010000 00DDO0O

TVL0L ¥I3HD
1CED-PLNA-HAAT
TAdW-DXdY - WHHT

wLoL Js0o
L16100 0000000

SII[AYIS WILdvD NOZWWY L16100 0000000

1202/82/01 0014V



6 111°¢
ANIHISHNEHITY LELTO

00§51
ALNNOD X3SSNS ZELTO

Gl by
INIHISHNBATIY LELTO

06°¥5
YS19FIv6120P0 # LEL10
vSI9vIve1zov0 # (EL10

88 959
v6OS6SIL # LEZ1D

0D 82.°€L
120¢ Y3IM3ALdIS L8410
1202 YIMILdIS LELT0

W0t 00
sasuadx3 61-01AD)

W10L 00
sa| |ddns 321430

WIO0L 00

sayddns a0

w0t 0
Fueuajurey Juaudinby
$31|ddns |erdoyiuep

WI0L 00
[eIuaysasea juandinby

w01 0p

‘IW3 Pd - DAS “pau Lousbsawy
“IH3 Pd - JAS PaW Loudbaauwg

00 85 101 00
INIHISUNBA T IY ZELTO abe1sod
1L €00'€ WI0L o0
ALENOD X3SSAS £ei10teday 3 utey swaisds buip(ing
00 0v.°'S V101 00
ALNDGD X3ISSNS 8410 S@INAJIS |LUOLSSAI0Ud JayI)
926468 V101 00

100SNS # {EL10
100SNS # LE410
100SNS # ZEL10
100SNS # LEL10
160SNS # ZE410
1005NS # {€L10
1005NS # LEL10
100SNS # (£410

9t £t
S-L15€-2541 # L£410

257422
vol208/£8182/€ # L2410
2£yeSEN0ES2rIL # LE410

95SIyBZ10ESerLL # LEL1D

00 6SE
JJIY3HS X3SSNS LELT0

SE'245°1
00£0€009 # {EL10

HOILJIHIS3Q ANT HILVE

$3I1AJBS |PUDLSSIY0IY JIYID
S8ILAJIS |EUOLSSAIO0Nd J3YID
S3DLAJIS |PUODLSSJO0Id JAY10
S3ILAIBS |LUDLSSRY0Nd JaYI]
SBDIALDS |BUDLSSAJON J34IQ
S3D1AJIS | PUD|S5A)0.U4 JAYID
S331AJ3S |PUCLSSAOdd JAGI0
53J1AJ3S |EUOIS53)0.4d JAYID

W0l 0o
abeysog

wi0L 00
S3D1AJIS JITEM
S31A43S JAIEN
S3J1AJ43S J3TEM

W0 00

SBILAJES WAISAS LOITRULIO U]

w101 00
53} |ddng poo4

WI0L tHd Ad3 00
£5E022 62 Tl1°2

WIOL 1Wd Ad3 00
258022 00 65T

WIO0L IWd Add [
15£0¢¢ 61 vt

WI0L 1Hd Ad3 00
058022 96 €2
0502z ve O

WI0L IWd Ad3 00
6¥EDZC 88 999

IO IWd Ad3 B

Bregze 00 OpB 15
BYEQZZ 00 88812

WIO0L 1Wd Ad3 00
LpE0ZZ 00 8§

WI0L IHd Ad3 00
grenZz 1L £0K'E

WIO0L IHd Ad3 00
5¥80¢¢ 00 0VL'S

V0L IWd Ad3 00°
PPEDCE b 22l
prEdee eb fet’l
PPEDZE b 22171
Edce b 2211
ppE0ge F 22171
vreE0ZZ 2t 221°1
vet0de cF 221°1L
prE0ee 2k E€1°1

WI0L IHd Add DO
Evelee 9t 'EE

WI0L 1Hd Ad3 00
cve0eg 06 5
¢reoze €8 £0L
Zvelee 6/ 48

WI0L IHWd Ad3 OO
1vEdZe 00 6SE

WL0L IWd Ad3 00
OvEDZe SE 24671

ON LHNOWY
HIY H)Y 03D 13N

OE/T20E - PJIDY

WIOL 1Wd ¥d) 00 WI0L tHd HOV 62 TI1°2 WI0L XD 00 w10L JSia
£02-012-112-0212-001120-001F 102/62/9 126290-9500S  SIDNAYIS WIJDS XISSNS 989000 0000000
WIOL IHa VdD 00 WI0L 1Hd HOV 00 951 WIO0L A3HY 00 W01 ISIA
0€9-1€9-1pZT-001£90-001t i202/1i/e 6201 277 9NILHOd3IY AJIVHHS £66100 0000000
WI0L 1Hd ¥dd 00 WIOL IWd HY el vy TIOL ¥I3HD o0 WGl JSI
O1S-155-T¥21-005150-001¥ 120z2/61/01 1z610l st SIHY[ "QMNYHS /81000 1I0Q0OOD
WI0L IMd ¥d2 00 WIGL IWd HIY 06 b5 0L N3 00 L0L “JS00
012-122-¥5¢1-002120-001¥ 1202/ 12/6 699 2EB000 0000000
0ic-122-£bZ1-002120-001¢ 1202/12/6 699 13341a 8n13  S,WYS ZE8000 0000000
101 IWd ¥dD 00 TWIO0L 1Wd HOV 88 959 WI0L X3 oo TWIOL JSId
015-219-25¢1-001190-001F 1202/52/6 E6EGLEVIEE IM "SIMOB-AINLIG ¥OTO00 OOGOOOD
WI0L 1Hd ¥dD 00 WIOL IWd HOVY 00 8¢t WI0L WIHD) 00 Wi0L “Jsia
#25-012-25¢-0112-005120-001F 1202/0¢/01 120¢60AVM SLLI0D 0000090
pe&-012-292-0112-005120-001F 1202/02/01 12026025 JONVINGWY YY153417 SLITO0 0000000
WIOL lkd vdd 00 WA0L 1Hd HY 00 85 VADL XJIHY 00 WIOL IS
0£9-1€9-1£21-001£90-0011 1202792701 2920t 918 YT131S “SNIAID-337 566000 0000000
VA0L IKd ¥dd 00° WIOL IWd HOY 1£'E0p'E WI0L ¥03HD  bD° W01 "3S1a
0ig-i22-£/21-002120-001p 1éo2/toso1 ¥95£552¢ 3YE4 ST042NOD NOSNHOT OFZ100 0000000
WI0L fHd ¥d) 00 WL0L IWd HOY 0o ovs'S WIO0L XI3H) 00 W01 510
0i¢-cve-6e¢1-00r120-001r tede/ie/ol 1201-09-1003 231 INITING HO4 IINLILSHI 26100 OOODOODD
WVI0L IWd ¥dD 00 WIOL 1Wd HXY 9t 6468 WI0L ¥J3H) 00 Wi0L 510
012-¥92-6221-009120-001¢ 120¢/51/01 196yes £2/100 0000000
012-192-6¢21-009120-001F 1202/51/01 09612 €2£100 doo0000
012-192-6221-009120-001F 120e/51/01 656ve! £2£100 0000000
012-v92-65¢1-009120- 0011 1202/51/01 856ve! £2£100 0000000
012-F92-62¢1-009120-00T1 1202/51/01 {56¥eL £¢£100 0000000
01¢-r92-6221-009120-001¢ 1202/51/01 956veL £¢£100 0000000
01c-¥92-6¢21-009120-001t 120¢/51/01 S56¥2L £2£100 0000000
012-¥92-6221-009120-001¢ [zozssuiol bG6YEL 1AY3IS ALI¥NI3S QTHOMYAYYD £2£100 DOOODOO
Wi0L iHd ¥d2 00° Wi0L EWd HOY 9t £t WIOL HI3HD 00 Wi0L “3SI0
012-1lig-1E21-001120-00iF iebe/bis0l 1816£-9€5-4 X3034 9€0000 0000000
WIOL $Hd ¥dD 00 TWI0L 1Wd HIY AN 44 WI0L X033 00 WIOL 3SIa
OE3-EE9-4/CT-00EE90-001F 1202/%1/01 12b10T $9120€L 1£8000 DOBODOOD

01¢-112-4£21-001120-0011 1202/91/01 129101 Z/t2SEL 1£8000 0000000

DES-TES-LL21-001E90-001Y 1202/91/01 129101 9551¥821 SONTYIS TVISAYD 18000 QOCCOCD
WIOL 1Hd ¥d) 00 TIOL IWd HOV 00 65¢ WI0L ¥J3HD  0° Wi0L 3510

015-915-p221-001150-001F 120¢/p0/01 Ligvd  SID0TONHIAL INITWIANOD 6¥I00 0000000
WI0L IWd ¥dD 00 WI0L 1Hd HOY 8251 WIO0L A33HY 00 w101 3Sid

015-199-9v21-005150-001¢ 1202/02/01 626698126-21 SH3IHI0WA AIN3ND OE9100 00OD0OD

ON Y aiva ON IHYN HOONIA ON ON

1NNV d/y 3J10AN] JII0ANI HOGN3A 0d

b2-¥5-6 -3dlL YILSIO A3 drv ALINNOD X35SNS  1202/82/01 0014V



2910005/992E155 # [EL10
2910005/992E15S # LEL10
€910005£992E155 # (EL10
2910005992195 # [CL10
2910005/992E1S5 # LEL10
291000%£992E155 & (£L10
2910005/992E156G # (£L10
29100057992L15% # [EL10
2910005£992€155 # (£L10
2910005/992LT155 # LE410
2910005/992L14% # LELT0
2910005£992€155 # (EL10
2910005£992£155 # LE410
2910005/992€155 # (£/10
2910005£992€155 # L£L10

2910005/992€155 § L£L10
2910005£992E155 # (EL10
2910005£992E155 # L£L10

2910005£992£155 # L2210
2910005£992E15% # LEL10
€910005£992£155 # L££10
¢910005£992E155 # L££10
2910005/992E155 # (£L10

05 £2¢'s
e2-L0I-NS-vA £ €410
22-£01-NS-YA # /€210

v6 £19

SUDLIRILUMIB0IB| 3]
SUD| 1R | LNE0da| 3]
SU0L I LU0 | 3]
SUOLYEIIUMN0I3| 3]
SUOLRIUMB0IF| 31
SUO} eI §UNKN0I3| 3]
SUDL YR L LNIB0da | 3]
LT LRIV TERETET
SUOL eI U013 | 3]
SUD|1EI | UMII0Ja )
TR RTITG TTRETET
SUDL eI LLNWI0Ia| 3]
SUO| 1| UMII0I | 3]
SUO|EI|UNUB0IA| 3]
SUO}EDPUNI0II | 3]
SUO|JEDUNL0IA| 3]
IR RN, TR ETETY
SU0| €| UNUWOJ3 | 3
SuD1)eIL LN | 3]
54011831 UNuW0Ia | 3]
SUD| 1B UNIL0IA| 3]
SU01 782 UNUIDI3 (3
SUDL eI LUNUW0I3 | 3)

W01 a0
IULUNSU]
aouLINSUL 0Ny

WIO0L 00

YOZOGBT000 # £££10WIUN SU 135 - duO) §,J94J08

19 192
0-1VHOXS # {€L10
0-1VMIXS # LCL10
0-1VHIXS # LELT0
0-1YMIXS # LEL10

93 /0¥
JUVHS D3 DT HIA LELTO

09 162
JUVHS 938 J17T H3A LEL2T0

Si 2t
JUVHS D3d 311 H3AA LELT0

[¥ i

w101 00
53} 1ddng 234430
$3) |ddng 231))0
sal|ddng 221110
sal|ddng 2314)0

WI0L 00
SUMO| 07 punjay

W01 a0
SUMD] 07 punjay

WI0L 00
SUMD] 01 pUn)ay

Wil 00

2016555001 # Z£L1018W 1oy “sy00g ©I5QnS T gng

G €98

w101

00
ALNNOD X3SSNS ZE/10  Sasuadkd a|eg puey |ejapnr

NOT1dT¥HIS3G ANT HOLvE

£ 3

2530 INNOJDY /D tWd JHd  OW

29tnge
29t02e
29€0ee
29E022
29€0c¢
29£0z2
29¢022
29t02e
29£022
€902
29022
292022
29t02¢
298022
29202
€902
¢9t02e
€902
292022
292022
298022
¢960ee 65 (S
298022 €5 ef

WI0L IHd Ad3 00
192022 0G 165
198022 00 2€¢'¥

WI0L 1Hd Ad3 00
092022 ¥6 £iS

WIOL IRd Add 00
65€02¢ 96 S
65802 6V B6
65808 [2°€
65£022 68 101

WIOL IWd Ad] 00
85£02¢ 99 [0F

WI0L IHd Ad3 00
£5E0¢2 09 162

WI0L IWd AdJ 00
96e0¢2 Gi 2l

WI0L IHd Ad3 00
G5E022 If f0T

TWI0L IHd Ad3 00
pGeEDée 6L £58

65 L5
66 [§

INNOHY

HIY HIV  J3HD 1N

(18-219-PEZ1-001190-001F
019-¢19-PEZT-001190-001F
019-219-FECT-001190-0011
01%-219-PECT-001190-0011
012-112-PEZT-001120-001F
0ie-11e-vEeT-001120-001¢
019-119-pEZT-001190-001¥
019-119-vE21-001190-001¥
019-219-v£21-001190-001¥
019-219-¥ET-00T190-001¢
019-119-vL21-001190-001F
019-119-vE21-001190-001F
Oly-T1-+#E2T-001TRO-0OTY
0L2-T11E-¥E21-00T120-001F
0i2-£5¢-vE21-005120-001F
019-219-¥E21-001190-001F
0LE-L1E-¥E2T-D0TIED-001F
0£2-162-vE21-001E20-001)
012-T12-¥E21-001 10001
019-119-vE£21-001190-001F
019-¢19-+£21-001190-001¢
0£9-2E9-PECT-001E90-00 11
012-192-vE2L-009120-001F

WIDL IWd ¥dd 00°
015-215-¢9¢1-001150-001¥
015-615-2921-001150 -001F

WIOL IWd ¥dd 00
-B211-006660-001F

WIOL IWd Vd2 00°
0E9-1E9-1p21-001E90-001v
0E9-1£9-1121-001£90-001F
0E9-1E9-1v2l-001E90-001¥
0E9-1£9-1¥21-001£90-001F

WIOL IWd vd2 00
OLb-11¥-9621-0011+0-001¥

WL 1Hd ¥d2 00°
Olb-2l¥-9621-0011¢0-001v

WIGL IHd ¥dd 00
olb-21y-9621-001T#0-001¢

WIOL IWd Vd2 00
0£9-1£9-¢021-001£90-001¥

WI0L 1Wd vd2 00
OLb-11v-1621-00L1¥0-00TY

01/120¢ - Pd¥Y  ¥2°¥S5'6 -3HIL

3151934 WMD) J/Y

1202/12/01 1201
1202/12/01 1201
12oz/i2/01 1201
1202/12/0F 1201
1202/12/01 1201
1202/12/01 1201
1202/12/01 1201
L0/ 1201 1201
1202/12/01  1eDY
1202/12/01 12Dt
1202/12/01 10
1202/12/01 1201
[202/12/01 120t
1202/12/01 1261
1202/12/01 1201
1202/12/01 1201
1202/12/01 1201
120¢/12/01 1201
1202/1g/01 1201
120¢/1¢/01T 1201
1202/12/01 1201
120g/1e/01 1201
1ene/1e/01 1201

WIOL LWd HV 05 E2E'S
1202/82/6 Z
1202/82/6 2

WIOL IWd Hlv ve €15
1202/51/01 120

WI0L 1Wd HOY 19 19¢
1202/90/01
1202/v2/6
120¢/ L8/6
120¢/v2/6

WI0L IHd HY 99 tov
1202/02/01 120

Wi01 IKd HIY 09 162
1202/02/01 120

WI0L [Wd HDY 61 21
120¢/0¢/01

W01 1Wd HY {t e
1202/10/01

WI0L 1Hd HY Gl €58
120¢/1¢/01

THIW 3va
dfy 310m1

1¥£0521090 69000 0000000
Lp£0521090 69000 0000000
Lv£05¢1090 697000 0000000
LP£0SE1090 69000 0000000
120521090 697000 0000000
LPZ0S21090 697000 0000000
ib£0521090 69£000 0000000
1F£0521090 694000 0000000
1r£05¢1090 697000 0DDODOD
Lp£0521090 69£000 0000000
1k£0521090 69/000 0000000
1r£0521090 69000 0000000
0521090 69£000 0000000
EPL0SE1090 69/000 0DDDDOD
tr40521090 694000 0000000
Ir£0S21090 69000 0O0OOOD
Iv/0S21090 694000 000OCOD
1r£0521090 654000 0000000
1r£0521090 694000 0000000
1ri0521090 69000 0000GOD
40521090 69000 0ODODDD
[r£0521090 694000 0000000
120521090 NOZ1Y3A 692000 0000D0DD
wWi0L HI3HD o6 W0 JSia
o0Lny-as016 1€6000 0000000
-0LNY-05016 dy0JvA TEB000 0000000

TYI0L XJ3H) 00 Wiot 0Si0
E60 ONI YLD HOISSIWWO0D LN3WADTIMI VA EDE00D 0000000

WIOL ¥I3HD  O0° wioL Js[o
100-8250110 080000 0000000
100-6210KT0 080000 0000000
200-82r0F10 080000 0000000
100-82¢0v10  SLON00¥A 3D7430 ALTD Pyl 080000 000000D

WI0L X33H) 00 L0L JS10

T ATHAM HML ATYIAVA 40 NAOL BTEODD 0000000
TLO0L ¥23H) a0 0L JsI0

[ G144 KL Q13Ed3¥vM 30 WMOL £1E000 000D00D
WI0L ¥23HD - 00 Lol 3500

1201 35S KL A33HD ANOLS 40 WMOL 9T1E000 0000000
WI0L Y234 00 oL Js0o

evarrisys £SIM ROSHOHL SBK000 0000000
WI0L Y23HD 00 L0l JSI0

vBi{ TLINSKOD ALTHOHLOY ONIXVL 2/8100 0000000

ON JWYN HOONAA ON ON
FITOMNI 0d

ALNRDD X3SSNS  1202/82/0T 00Tdv



81 LEI 61
BT ZE176IT

S0 9E8
9IPEZBBEGITT09F0F # LEL10
9rECOR66ITT0or0r # 410
rECEBE6TTIOONOY # £€410

58481
[0000-1£50¢9506 # /€210

vE EL
Er6l # LEL10

0E 065°1
BEEZBBO6ITI0NOY # L£L10
8CEZBO66TTI09V0Y & L£/10
BEEZBBE6TITT0OVOY # £E£10

THi0L 00

w101 oo

Wi0L 1]
S3IUBIIJUOT PUB SOOUSYION
Buybpot
Sa0UIJIIJUD) pue SAoYSYLOp

Wi0L 0
A1y WO) f pund ya04 Bnag

wL0L 00
5331AJ435 JIIEH

WI0L 00
G 6poy

S3L|ddng | eJnynogaby
s311ddng |esnynatLby

BEEZABE6TITO9Y0F # [E£10uU017001 | ddy/34EM) 0S5 JBINGIO)

BELZBBE6III09V0Y # LE£10

86 98
ANFHISHNBETH LELT0

00 09

06°¢19°1
10000-¥2B029025 § L£L10
10000-¥2B029025 # LEL10
10000-¥28029025 # (E:10

56 '¥92°1
¢910005£992€15G # LE410
£910005£992E15S # LEL10

ROILAIYIS30 ANT HOLYE

s3y|ddng Juawadaogul Me

WIOL IHd Ad3 D0
WIO0L 1Wd Ad3 00

IO lkd Ad3 00
63t022 00 052
69802¢ SO IS¢
692022 00 SEi

WI0L 1Wd Ad3 00
B9E0¢Z S8 481

WI0L 1Hd Ad3 00
198022 vE EE

WIOL 1Hd Ad3 00
99E02¢ 92 6lc
99€02¢ 91 049
992022 0v'S0S
99€022 86 62
99£0¢¢ 05 S0t

WD) 00" WI0L IWd Ad3 00
say(ddng 3010 S9E0ZZ 86 98

101 00 WI0L IWd Ad3 00
PEL £ (EL10910 19dued 3 43S " J0ud Jy10 roceZZ 00 v09
vioL a0 WIL0L 1Hd Ad3 00°
SUOLIRI UMD | 3| £9702¢ 8L 612
SUTIRIUMUN0)S | 31 £9£022 9/ /69
SUOLIRIIUNIB0D3 |3 ) E9E0ZEZ 9{ {69

wiolL on- TI0L IWd Ad3 00
SUDLIEDLUNUN0IA| B 29¢02Z 09 IS
$J3Y10 Sno3ue| | 351K 298022 &5 L1
J530 IKN0IIY /9 Wd LWg ON INNOKY

H¥ HY  ¥IIHD 1IN

¥ 3d

Q3LSNCQY SY STVIOL 133HS 907 ATMIM 3HE ST

-8B LE176TT WI0L IHL

Q3ININNJ00 ATSNOEAIYA ¥0 MOT38 Q3LSTT SHOILAIDKI HLIM INFWAVD Y04 MILSIOIY SIHL IADUMAY AGIUIH I

WIOL iWHd YdD 00
WI0L LHd ¥d) 00

W01 IHd vdD {0
01<-112-€021-001120- 001y
0E9-1E9-¥021-001E9D- 001
0fc-1i2-£0Z1-001i20-00Ep

Wi0L 1Hd ¥dD 00
“TvBS-0041E0-S21F

WI0L IWd ¥d] 00
012-£92-1(21-009120-001Y

WIOL IRd ¥dD 00
01p-11y-v021-0011#0-001¢
012-192-2k2L-009120-001K
01e-192-2vZ1-009120-001¢
012-112-8S21-001120-001r
0T¢-192-GvZ1-009120-001F

W01 LHd ¥dD 00
0E9-1£9 - 1¥21-C01E90-001F

WIOL 1Kd vdd 00
01¢-122-6221-002120-001¥

WI0L iWd ¥d2 00
01S-155-VE2L-00S1S0-00Er
01G-9F5-PEEE-00TES0-00LY
015-215-¥EZT-001150-001

WIDL 1Wd ¥dd 00
OL4-114-PECT-00TLL0-S0TY
01c-112-6621-001120-001¢

‘0N
1NNO2Y

GE/TZ0Z - PAIY  ¥Z $S 6 -IMIL

WIOL LWd HOV 81 [E17611 WI0L ¥J3HD 00
WI0L 1Hd HOY 81 {81611 WI0L A23HY 00
WIOL iHd H)V 50°9¢8 WIOL J33H) 00 WIoL JS1a
1202/51401 £l 1201 9vEe {9100 00DOCOD
1202/91/01 20 1201 9vee {9100 0000000
1202/62/6 10 1201 9vee 1788 {94100 0000000
TIO0L 1Wd WOV 58 481 WI0L 933H) o0 WI0L 3510
Lzozsot/o1 £¢60Cr0686 SS3TIUIM NOZIYIA 6£0000 0000000
WI0L IHS HOY vE £t WI0L YI3HY  00° WIOL “3510
i20g/51/11 12511 £vel Q731433%M 40 NMOL £1E000 0000000
WI0L 1Wd HIY 0£°0651 WI0L ¥3HD  00° WioL "2S10
Lené/vi/ot S0 [201 BEEE {5100 0000000
L20é/ L0401 b0 1201 BEEZ £9£100 0000000
[¢0e/82/6 £0 1201 BEEZ {94100 0000000
120274246 20 1201 8EEZ £94100 0000000
1202/22/6 10 1201 Bee2 1998 {9/100 0000000
WIOL IWd HOV 86 98 WIOL 203D 00 WI0L "3sia
12029201 129201 M0 1L.NYG' IHOIUM £S6T00 0000000
WI0L IHd H)Y 00 +09 WI0L 33HY 00 WI0L "2S10
1202/80/8 PBIOL  dNOYZ ONTA4YIS VINISYIA E69100 0000000
WIOL EWd HIY 06 vi9'l TI0L M)3HD 00 W01 JSI0
E20C/eE/0E P5£90506666 6E0000 0000000
1202/21/01 ¥5£9050686 6E0000 0000000
120¢seisot r5£9050686 SSITIYIM NOZTHIA 6E0000 DOOCOO0
WI0L Idd HOY G6 r92°1 WIOL ¥J3HD 00 WIoL 3500
1e02/12/01 1201 1t/0521090 692000 0000000
1202/12/01 1201 1v/0521090 69£000 0000000
TV a1va ON INVN HOONIA ON ON
/v 3J10ANE JI10ANE HOONIA 0d

HALSTO WD drv

ALNNQD X355NS  1202/82/01 00TdY



PAYROLL
DEDUCTION
CHECKS




00000

00000
Goooo

nooco

60000

00000
[HHHI

00000
00000

00000
00000

[HEH
00000
00ooo
00000
06000
00060
00060
foooo

00000
00000
00000
00000

HlLvE

HOTEATHI530

/" oz

¢leoee
Zlenez

1120z
o1e02z
60z0zz

8020z2
8020¢2

£020¢2
L0202

902022
962022

S020z2
502022
502022
502022
502022
502022
S0Z022
1A

v0z0ze
vo2oze
v0e0ze

& p02022

ON
A3IHI

-29° 416795
29 £16°95

00 S9% T
00 S9v' 1

J LT
5864
96 BL1

BE B2t 2
Begzl e

EE 121
£e 121

¥8 6LE
¥B 6.1

00 0601
00 Sre
00 S¥B

5066
SE B6
0L 00

oo2iz’ee

0E'855°T
vl ElL
06109
6 221
{8°60L

ARNOHY
134

39vd

J\\\w\\; ,3\%

B Yar—an

031S0rgY SY STYIOL 133HS 907 ATAIIM 3HL STVII
GILN3WNI00 ATSNOTAIYA ¥O #0138 O31SET SHOTLDIINT HLIM INTWAVA HOJ HILSIDIY SIHL JAOUddY ABIWM |

TYLOL TWNEA
WI0L S5V1)
WIOL AJ3H)

WI0L W)3HD

WL0L ¥J3HD
WI0L ¥I3H)
WI0L HI3HD

WI0L ¥J3HD

TI0L A23HD

WI0L 234D

TI0L N)3HD

TVI0L %D3HD

~0010-002000-001

-0010-002000-50T
-0010-002000-001

-0010-002000-001

~0010-002000-001

-0010-002000-001

-0010-002000-50T
-0010-002000-001

-0010-002000-501

-0010-002000-001

0010002000501
-0010-00Z000-001

-0010-002000-001
-010-002000-001
-0010-002000-001
-0010-002000-001
-0010-002000-001
-0010-002000-00T
-0010-002000-501
-0010-002000-001

-0014-002000-501
-0010-002000-00%
-0010-002000-501
-0010-002000-001

‘O
1NNOJ0Y

¥2:51°89 -IIL

1202/S1/01

[202/51/01
[202/51/01

1202/51/01

1202/51/01

1202/51/01

1202/S1/401
1202/51/07

1208/51/01
1202/51/01L

1202/51/01
1202/51/01

[202/G1/01
1202/51401
1202/51/01
1202/51/01
[202/51/01
[202/51/01
1202/S1/01
1202/51/01

1202/51/01
1202/51/01
1202/51/01
1202/51/01

v
3010ANI

000TTEo1011216000

0001T29101125E020
0001129101125€030

000T129T011208030
000TT2910112PT120
0001T291011280120

00011291011206020
0001T29101T206030

00011291011200230
0001TZ910T1200220

000T12910112£6030
00DT12910T12£6000

0001129101125102¢
0001129101 1221000
0001129101129002¢
0001T2910112¥0000
0001129101TE0000
0001T231011220000
000T1291011210030
000TT2910L12T1000¢

0001129101121¢D20
000TT2910TTETROI
0001129101120K0J0
000T129101T20K030

“ON
II10ANT

SAJIH) ROTLIN030 TI0HAYd
HALSIOI AIFH] d/V

-29°L16°95

\w\w\ 7
T 07

WI0L 3L

INTHIHLL3Y D1TVA

dH0IvA

VINIDHIA 40 Y3NSvIHL

$53304d LY0ddNS dI1HD SAN

ATTHYI AISHIC MIN

INIWIATLIY OIMNOTIYN

02 SNI 3417 VIOSINNIW

0I3IHS WaN

OHY SSO043 3M8 WIKLKY

ML)

YOONZA

£20100

{£8000
1£6000

{ra00n
158100
045100

¢i8000
248000

120100
120100

{6£100
L6100

188000
188000
186000
188000
188000
£68000
186000
186000

52000
Sr2000
52000
5r2000

O
OK3IA

00000

00000
00000

00000

00000

00000

000090
00000

00000
nooce

too0o
00000

00000
00000
00000
00000
00000
00000
00000
00000

00000
00000
00000
00000

o
0/d

1202/51/0T  d00Tdv



00000

00000
00000

00000

o
\. 1EE0Z2

0EeEnee
0genze

gecnee
Beedee
L2eozz

9Z€0Z2
92e022

Sztee
S2E0z:

¥etiee
¥eeode

€20
XAX )4
£et0ce
£2t0ce
£2L0ez
£2e0ze
£28022

22e0ee
22022
2etnee
\, 22022

NOILJI¥IS30 0N
pSELN)

-19'9Fr' 5SS
19°9kp"SS

00 S9¢°1
00°59¢°1

BE BE1 2
BeE'BZ1'2

PO AN
EE 121

va 6Ll
¥8 641

00 060°1
00'SvE
00 5v8

50°66¢
St 86
0L 00%

00°560°8Y
00 9851
05 76

00 £06°2
00°081'T
05 808
00'998'¢
00 52228
580051
¥0 €11
56'£29

6y f21
£8°604

1NNCHY
1N

3vd

12.52-0/

7

‘OILSNCGY SV STVLIOL 133HS 907 ATHI3M 3HL STD3 =49 9vP'SS 101 3HL
(3LNIWNI0G ATSNOTAIYd O MOT3D ILSIT SHOTLJ3IXI HLIM INIWAV HOJ WALSIDIW SIHL IACHddY ABTUIM I

WIGL TWNid
WiaL SSY1D
101 ¥J3HD

WI0L HI3HI
= -0010-002000-S0E 1202/62/01 000TIZIEOTTZSEDDD

-0010-002000-001 1202/62/0T 000TTZIEOTIETE00 ANIWIIL3Y 21WA  £20100 00000

1€8000  DOOOD

- -00t0-002000-00t 1202/62/01 QOOTIZTIEOTI2SE0G dy0dvA  1£0000 000D

IO0L 3J3HD
TYLO0L AI3HD
WI0L AI3HD

WI0L NI
- -0010-002600-501 1202/62/00 0001121£011206000

0010-002000-00T 1202/62/01 COOTICTEOTIZ0B0DG VINIDYIA 40 HINSYIYL [¥2000 00000

-0010-002000-00t 1202/62/0T 0DOOTTZTEOITZPTTIIQ SS3004d 1¥0ddNS OTIHD SAN TSBLOO 00000

-0010-002000-061 1202/62/01 00DOTIZTIE01ITZBO10 ATIHY4 AISH3C MIN 05100 00000

28000  o0oo0co

- -0010-002000-001 1202/62/0T 000T121£011206030 INIWII13Y J0IMNOLLYN 20000 00000

W10L %I3HD
- -0010-002000-501 1202/62/07 000TTZIE0TIZ00220

120100  00C0O

= -0010-00Z000-001 1202/6¢/00  000TTZTIEOTT200230 03 SHI 3417 VI0S3IKNIH 120100 00000

WIOL 33D
- -0010-002000-501 1202/62/01 0001121£011246000

{6ET00 00000

- -0010-002000-001 1202/62/07 000TTZTIE0TTZ£6000 13148 WO (6E100 00000

W01 AJ3HI

- -0010-002000-00% [202/62/0T 00011Z1E0T12ST000
= -00T0-002000-001 1202/62/01 000TTZIE0TTEZT00]
© -0910-002000-001 [202/62/01 0O0TIZIE0T1290000
= -D0TO-002000-001 102/62/01 00011ZIE0TICEO0DQ
= -0010-002000-001 1202/62/01 000TIZIE0T1220000
< -0010-002000-50T 1202/6¢/0T 000T12IEOTT2T003Q

188000 00000
168000 00000
188000 00000

188000 00000
168600 00000
168000 00000

= -0010-002000-G0T 1202/62/01 0OOTTZTIEOTTZTO00A anv SSOH) 378 W3HINY 188000 00000

VI0L XI3HD
- -0010-002000-501 1202/62/01 QOOTTZIEOTIZTVO0)D
- -0010-002000-001 1202/62/01 DO0TIZTEOTIZTYO00
- -0010-002000-501 1202/62/01 QO0TISTENT1200000

SyZ000  .00000
§p2000 QOO0
SPZ000 00600

= -0010-002000-001 1202/62/01 000TIZTEOTTZ0¥03Q VIV Sk2000 00000
0N aLva oM ELLL OH ON
INNOJIY 1JI0ANT 3J10AN] YOGHIA “ON3A 0/d
. SAJ3H) NOLLINGID YI0UAV
9E S¥-¢1-IIL YILSI93Y WIFHD d/Y 1202/62/01 d00TdV



2.03

Sussex County
Treasurer’s Report
will be handed out

at the meeting.

Consent Agenda - Page 1



2.04

SUSSEX COUNTY

FINANCIAL UPDATE

SUBMITTED BY DESTE J. COX, TREASURER

October 31, 2021

TABLE OF CONTENTS

General Fund Revenue/Expenditure Summary

Capital Project Fund Revenue/Expenditure Summary
Reserve Fund Revenue/Expenditure Summary

Consent Agenda - Page 2


sricks
Highlight


REVENUE/EXPENDITURE SUMMARY REPORT
OCTOBER 2021

SUSSEX COUNTY - DESTE J. COX, TREASURER

General Fund

FUND BALANCE as of 10/31/21 = $ 6,047,672

PRIOR FY -
CURRENT Y7D
ANNUAL MONTH | YTD ACTUAL| Through | COLLECTED
REVENUES BUDGET | ACTIVITY | 10/31/2021 |10/31/2020| % YTD
Real Estate - 2021 4,950,093 596,410 596,410 296,713 12.0%
Public Service Corp - 2021 753,613 0 0 60 0.0%
Personal Property - 2021 2,705,677 200,766 200,766 108,728 7.4%
Machinery & Tools - 2021 804,883 15 15 0 0.0%
JLocal Sales & Use Taxes (net) 902,062 86,770 352,685 301,328 39.1%
Transient Occupancy Tax 40,000| 8,820 22,756 12,051] 56.9%
|Consumer Utility Taxes 88,()00I 3,390 27,930 28,996 31.7%
Business License Taxes 62,050 1,812 12,099 22,292 19.5%
Motor Vehicle Licenses 223,032 23,493 27,909 27,237 12.5%
tandfill Tipping Fees 4,851,000 452,293 | 1,829,079 2,005,567 37.7%
Delinquent Taxes RE 161,000 6,834 41,794 85,826 26.0%
Delinquent Tax Persanal Property 104,500 8,252 42,014 63,284 40.2%
Penalties - Alt Property 105,000 1,530 10,439 16,857 9.9%
Interest - All Property 26,000 1,416 6,519 12,645 25.1%
Court Fines 940,000 65,195 265,415 170,535| 28.2%
State 4,127,137 482,376 | 1,332,863 1,241,640, 32.3%
Federal 1,500 0 400 976,480 26.7%
Designated Use of Fund Balance 2,245,183 0 0 0 0.0%
PRIOR FY -
CURRENT Yio
ANNUAL MONTH | YTD ACTUAL| Through SPENT %
loxpenprrures | BUDGET | AcmviTy | 10/31/2021 |10/31/2020 YTD
|General Government 2,491,060 215,000| 739,439 1,477,848 29.7%
Judicial Administration 1,216,502 94,698 376,333 379,401 30.9%
Fire, Rescue, EMS 1,892,397 167,064 874,170 628,417 46.2%
Sheriff's Operations & Jail 5,609,577 359,097| 1,549,057| 1,418,473| 27.6%
Public Works 1,092,791 143,308 498,914 423,081 45.7%
Health & Welfare 1,175,528 69,698 604,505 302,820| 51.4%
Education 7,753,652 552,820 1,825,713| 1,359,005 23.5%
Parks Rec & Cultural Enrichment 255,151 46,538 154,436 138,533| 60.5%
Planning/Community Dev 1,647,949 60,680 247,331 608,120 15.0%
Debt Service 1,534,697 0 826,554 746,833 53.9%

**FYE21 includes CARES Act funding

Consent Agenda - Page 3

e



SUSSEX COUNTY
REVENUE/EXPENDITURE SUMMARY REPORT
OCTOBER 2021
FUND BALANCE as of 10/31/21 = $ 125,783 plus
e By L Runc 202 §701196 F&R Dedicated Funds
T
PRIOR FY -
CURRENT YTD
ANNUAL MONTH YTD ACTUAL| Through COLLECTED
{REVENUBS BUDGET | ACTIVITY | 10/31/2021 |10/31/2020| % YTD
Transfer from General Fund 0 0 0| 150,000 0.0%
- e ———————
Total Capital Projects Fund Revenues 0 0 0| 150,000 0.0%
PRIOR FY -
CURRENT Y7o
ANNUAL MONTH YTDACTUAL| Through SPENT %
|EXPENDITURES BUDGET ACTIVITY | 10/31/2021 | 10/31/2020 YTD
Replace £911 Equip 56,322.00 0 0 0 0.0%
Voting Machines 8,625.00 0 0 0 0.0%
Sheriff Patrol Vehicle 122,134.00 0 68,394 68,394 56.0%
Transfer to Other Funds 175,054 175,054 175,054 406,866 100.0%
Communications 20,000.00 0 0 0 0.0%
Renovations-Co. Buildings 256,303.00 0 0 0 0.0%
School Projects 27,000.00 0 0 0] 0.0%
Animal Shelter & Complex 0.001 0 0 23,880 0.0%
Total Capital Projects Fund Expenditures | 665,438 175,054 243,448 499,140| 36.6% I
SUSSEX COUNTY
REVENUE/EXPENDITURE SUMMARY REPORT
OCTOBER 2021
Reserve Fund 135 FUND BALANCE as of 10/31/21 = § 4,572,581
"PRIOR FY -
CURRENT Y1D
ANNUAL MONTH YTDACTUAL| Through COLLECTED
REVENUES BUDGET | ACTivITY | 10/31/2021 |10/31/2020| % YTD
0| 0 0 0 0.0%
Total Reserve Fund Revenues ) 0 0 0 0.0% |
Bl PRIOR FY -
CURRENT YTD
L ANNUAL MONTH YTDACTUAL| Through SPENT %
EXPENDITURES : BUDGET | AcCTiviTY | 10/31/2021 |10/31/2020 Y7D
Transfer to General Fund 176,020 158,270 176,020 0| 100.0%
Transfer to VPA Fund 579 579 579 0] 100.0%
Total Reserve Fund Expenditures | | 176,599 158,849 176,599| 0 100.09ﬁ

Consent Agenda - Page 4



PUBLIC WORKS
DEPARTMENT

Building Department

November 18,
2021
Monthly Report




BUILDING DEPARTMENT

JEFFREY GARY
BUILDING OFFICIAL
(434) 246-4390

DATE:

TO:

FROM:

SUBJECT:

MEMORANDUM

November 5, 2021
Richard Douglas, County Administrator
Jeffrey Gary, Building Official

October 2021 - Monthly Report

COUNTY OF SUSSEX, VIRGINIA
P. O. Box 1397 SUSSEX, VIRGINIA 23884
FAX (434) 246-8259

Please accept this as the October 2021 update for the Building Department.

BUILDING ACTIVITY

e October 2021
Building Electrical Plumbing & | Mechanical Field Improvement Revenue
Permits Permits Sprinkler Permits Inspections Value Generated
Permits
13 18 10 7 101 $1,146,325.00 | $5,824.88
e October 2020
Building Electrical Plumbing & | Mechanical Field Improvement Revenue
Permits Permits Sprinkler Permits Inspections Value Generated
Permits
12 11 6 7 47 $598,777.00 $3,950.44
e January 2021 — December 2021 (Yearly totals)
Building Electrical | Plumbing & | Mechanical Field Improvement Revenue
Permits Permits Sprinkler Permits Inspections Value Generated
Permits
126 125 46 67 734 $10,324,163.00 | $53,891.56

SUSSEXCOUNTYVA.GOV

Consent Agenda - Page 6




Monthly Report
November 18, 2021

Consent Agenda - Page 7




OFFICE OF PUBLIC SAFETY

G. REID FOSTER, JR.

PUBLIC SAFETY COORDINATOR

(804) 834-1305 EXT. 22

EMAIL: RFOSTER@SUSSEXCOUNTYVA.GOV

COUNTY OF SUSSEX, VIRGINIA
POST OFFICE BOX 1397

15080 COURTHOUSE ROAD
SUSSEX, VIRGINIA 23884

November 2, 2021
TO: Richard Douglas, County Administrator
FROM: G. Reid Foster, Jr., Public Safety Coordinator

SUBJECT: November 2021 Monthly Report

Enclosed you will find the monthly report for October 2021.

RADIO SYSTEM: Working with Harris to set up a meeting with county administrator, county
attorney and myself to get some type of resolution on paging system.

Had new recording system for radio system in stall under maintenance agreement.

RESCUE: Investigating complaint by Waverly rescue squad Treasurer. Having a hard time getting
the information from squad. Will be reaching out to get ODEMSA to get outside help on
complaint.

Still waiting on new medic for Stony Creek.

EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT: Still working with new GIS vendor on run area for Fire and Rescue
and to verify addresses are correct in CAD.

Working with LT. Wyche on new emergency medical dispatch. Trying to find a doctor to oversee
this. Assisted Sussex 1 & 2 State prisons with their inspections.

FIRE DEPARTMENTS: Responded to several major accidents on Route 460.

Got quotes on equipment for fire engines. Presented to the Board for approval.
Met with Fire and Rescue Association.
Working with Greensville to set up meeting on Jarratt Fire Truck.

Investigated house fire in Jarratt.

Consent Agenda - Page 8



Sheriff’s Department

u e
' |
28  SUSSEX COUN
SHERIFF'S
~ DEPART ENT

Monthly Report

November 18, 2021
BOS Meeting

nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn




Sussex County Sheriff’s Office Monthly Report

Month of OCTOBER 2021
PATROL
CALLS FOR SERVICE
Type: Total:
Sheriff 968
Fire 180
Rescue 439
Animal Control 47
Traffic 806
Town of Wakefield 47
TOTAL
COURTS
Days of
Court: Court:
Circuit Court 4
General District 11
JDR Court 5
Court: Judges:
Circuit Court 4
General District 4
JDR Court 2
CIVIiL
Type: Total:
Subpoenas Served 337
Jury Summoned 7
Criminal Warrants 48
DMV Notices 1
Levies 0
TDO 2
ECO 1
Other Civil 106

Consent Agenda - Page 10



Fines and Forfeitures $85,675.30

Sheriff’s Fees $292.00

Courthouse Security $8,347.89

\ Total Fuel Used: \ 1,683 gallons

JAIL

During the month of October 2021, our average daily population was 38.97 inmates. The jail

booked in 31 individuals during October.

The classification of these inmates as reported by the Commonwealth of Virginia’s LIDS

computer system is as follows:

Pre- Trial

29 inmates, having been confined a total of 588 days.

Sentenced Misdemeanant

10 inmates, having been confined a total of 41 days.

Sentenced Felons

9 inmates, having been confined a total of 279 days.

Others

11 inmates, convicted but not sentenced.

Weekenders

5 inmates, serving misdemeanor sentences.

Transports of inmates for various reasons are listed below:

Court / Jail

Medical

Juvenile

Road Crew

TDO

TOTAL

OINUNNO|O|N

Consent Agenda - Page 11




Solid Waste Management
Services

November 18, 2021
Monthly Report



Origin / Material Summary Report
Criteria: 10/01/2021 12:00 AM to 10/31/2021 11:59 PM
Business Unit Name: Atlantic Waste Disposal - 05136 (USA)

Origin Material Tons
DC Special Misc-Tons 394.17
Origin Total 394.17
DE MSWT 323.01
DE Sandblast Grit-Tons 19.71
DE Special Misc-Tons 2.04
Origin Total 344.76
MD MSWT 94.90
MD Sludge Indus-Tons 63.33
MD Sludgelndus-Tons 79.12
MD Special Misc-Tons 52.47
Origin Total 289.82
NC CDTC 45.38
NC MSWT 3,461.67
NC Special Misc-Tons 2,525.94
Origin Total 6,032.99
NY MSWT 71,825.61
Origin Total 71,825.61
PA MSWT 53.28
Origin Total 53.28
SUSS BUS MSWT 14.56
SUSS BUS Sludge Indus-Tons 1,403.02
Origin Total 1,417.58
SUSS RES CDTC 53.71
SUSS RES MSWT 450.78
Origin Total 504.49
VA CDTC 114.05
VA MSWT 21,091.08
VA Sludgelndus-Tons 76.55
VA Special Misc-Tons 1,631.38
Origin Total 22,913.06
Totals 103,775.76

Consent Agenda - Page 13




Planning Department

November 18, 2021
Monthly Report

Consent Agenda - Page 14




Planning & Zoning Department
Monthly Report for Cctober 2021

Michael Poarch, County Planner

Community Development/Special Programs Grant Administration

Current Developments
» The Fairfield Inn site remains under construction.
» Waste Management Atlantic Waste Disposal is working on plans to add a new borrow area at the landfill.

Sussex County Urgent Need (UNOS) Project
Seven (7) housing projects have been completed under the UNOS project, including four (4) substantial
reconstructions and three (3) rehabilitations.
One (1) housing rehabilitation project has work underway.
One (1) housing rehabilitation project is under contract.
Two (2) substantial reconstructions are under contract with emergency procurement.
One (1) housing project is currently under negotiation and up for consideration for housing rehabilitation.

A\ 4

YV V VYV V

Pocahontas Neighborhood Improvement Project
> Five (5) housing projects have been completed under the Pocahontas project, including three (3) substantial
reconstructions and two (2) rehabilitations.
> One (1) housing project is currently under negotiation and up for consideration for housing rehabilitation.

Planning & Zoning

»  The Planning Commission considered the following application at its October meeting:
O Pit Crew LLC Conditional Use Permit 2021-02. The Planning Commission voted to recommend approval
of the application subject to the following condiitions:
1. Provide screening for all operations from Route 460; 6 to 8 feet high fencing with landscaping.
2 Maintain existing tree line around the site.
The Board of Supervisors voted to approve the application contingent with the conditions stated above on
10/21/2021

> Eight (8) Zoning Applications were reviewed and approved for October; three (3) for new single-family
awelling, one (1) for replacement of a trailer, one (1) for garage, one (1) for carport, one (i) for lower and upper
deck, and one (1) for screen porch and decking.

Erosion & Sediment Control

»  Required Monthly Land Disturbance Report to DEQ are up-to-date.

Consent Agenda - Page 15



> Four (4) E&S projects are active with inspections being made within a two week period or after each significant
rainfall event.

Consent Agenda - Page 16



BOARD ACTION FORM

Agenda Item: Consent Agenda #2.06
Subject: Fuel Tank Donation to Surry County

Board Meeting Date: November 18 2021

Summary: Surry County has requested a donation of two oil/gas tanks located at the closed
elementary school property in Wakefield, to serve their administrative building. These tanks do
not serve a public purpose in their current location and are overgrown with vegetation.
Therefore, staff requests that these tanks be donated to Surry County to meet their immediate
need.

Recommendation: Staff recommends approval.

Attachment: Picture of the Tank

ACTION: That the Board approves the donation of the two oil/gas tanks located at the closed

elementary school property in Wakefield to Surry County to serve their administrative building.

MOTION BY: SECONDED BY:

Member Member

Fly Seward
D. Jones Tyler

W. Jones White
(Tie Breaker)







BOARD ACTION FORM

Agenda Item: Consent Agenda #2.07

Subject: Surry Building Official Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) Amendment

Board Meeting Date: November 18 2021

Summary: Attached for your consideration is an amended Memorandum of Agreement for
Shared Building Official and Inspection Services with Surry County that changes the fiscal agent
from Sussex County to Surry County. This change was requested by the selected candidate for
the building official position (Surry County offers family health insurance at a lower cost). The
Surry County Board of Supervisors approved the amended agreement on November 4,

Staff recommends approval.

Recommendation: That the Board approves the Surry Building Official MOA amendment

Attachment: Surry and Sussex Counties First Amended MOA for Shared Building Official and
Inspection Services

ACTION: That the Board approves the Surry Building Official MOA amendment

MOTION BY: SECONDED BY:

Member Member

Fly Seward
D. Jones Tyler

W. Jones White
(Tie Breaker)




SURRY AND SUSSEX COUNTIES
FIRST AMENDED MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT for SHARED BUILDING
OFFICIAL and INSPECTION SERVICES

The County of Surry, Virginia and the County of Sussex, Virginia, political subdivisions
of the Commonwealth of Virginia entered into a Memorandum of Agreement on September 16,
2021, for the shared services set out herein (“MOA”), and now desire to adopt this First Amended
Memorandum of Agreement to amend certain provisions of the MOA related to the designated
employer and applicable personnel policies.

Whereas, the County of Surry, Virgina and the County of Sussex, Virginia (the “Counties”)
have identified certain efficiencies and enhanced capabilities to benefit their citizens that would
be gained by sharing the services and associated costs of a building official and two building
inspectors; and

Whereas, localities may jointly employ or share the services of any person in pursuant to
Virginia Code 8 15.2-1513 et seq.; and

Whereas, the Counties desire to enter into this desire to enter into this First Amended
Memorandum of Agreement (“Agreement”) to establish the terms and conditions for sharing the
costs to employ these individuals; and

Whereas, upon adoption by the Counties this Agreement supplants and replaces the
previously adopted MOA in its entirety.

Now therefore, for and in consideration of the mutual obligations and promises contained
herein, the Counties hereby agree as follows:

1. Shared Services

The Counties agree to share the services of one certified building official and two certified building
inspectors to provide all building and inspection services required by state law and by each
County’s ordinances and policies to be provided individuals in these positions. Each County will
continue to have their own permit technicians or other administrative personnel to process their
respective permits and those individuals are not included in this Agreement.

2. Compensation, benefits and liability insurance of such persons

Every person employed under this Agreement, for purposes of salary, retirement, and other
employee benefits, public liability insurance and bonds, when required, shall be considered the
employee of Surry County. Sussex County shall pay Surry County one-half of the total costs of
salary, retirement, and other employee benefits and expenses for the building official and building
inspectors.

Surry County — Sussex County
First Amended Memorandum of Agreement for Shared Building Official and Inspection Services
Page 1 of 2

Consent Agenda - Page 20



3. Other job related expenses

The Counties agree to share all other job related and agreed upon expenses equally, including but
not limited to expenses such as vehicle fuel and maintenance, and professional training.

4. Hiring and disciplinary decisions

The county administrators for both Counties must agree in order to approve all hiring decisions
and employee disciplinary decisions. Otherwise, the Surry County personnel policies shall apply.

5. Office space and coverage

Each County shall provide office space to accommodate at least one building inspector and the
building official. The building official shall rotate offices between the Counties as necessary, and
County will provide the office of one building inspector. However, the inspectors shall cover both
Counties as needed. The Building Official shall be responsible for coordinating the schedules to
ensure appropriate services are being provided in a timely manner in both Counties by the
inspectors. Each County shall be solely responsible for the costs to establish, equip and maintain
its office space.

6. Term
This Agreement replaces the September 16, 2021 MOA in its entirety. It shall become effective

upon approval and execution by both parties, and shall continue in effect unless terminated
mutually or terminated by either County with 30 days’ written notice to the other County.

In witness whereof, the Counties have caused this Agreement to be signed by their respective duly
authorized agents.

Surry County Sussex County

By: By:

Date: Date:

Approved as to form: Approved as to form:
Surry County Attorney Sussex County Attorney

Surry County — Sussex County
First Amended Memorandum of Agreement for Shared Building Official and Inspection Services
Page 2 of 2

Consent Agenda - Page 21



BOARD ACTION FORM

Agenda Item: Consent Agenda #2.08
Subject: Opioid Settlement

Board Meeting Date: November 18 2021

Summary: Attached for your consideration are: 1) a resolution approving Sussex County’s
participation in a proposed state settlement of opioid-related claims; and 2) a resolution
approving the Virginia Abatement Fund and Settlement Allocation Memorandum of
Understanding. Also attached for your review is the MOU as well as a summary memorandum
prepared by the County Attorney providing detailed information on this issue. Adoption of these
resolutions are required in order for Sussex County to receive funds from the state opioid
settlement.

Recommendation: Staff recommends approval.

Attachments: (1) Resolution approving Sussex County’s participation in a proposed State
settlement of o the Virginia Abatement
Resolution Approving the Virginia Abatement Fund and Settlement Allocation
Memorandum of Understanding
MOU and summary memorandum

ACTION: That the Board approves the donation of the two oil/gas tanks located at the closed
elementary school property in Wakefield to Surry County to serve their administrative building.

MOTION BY: SECONDED BY:

Member Member

Fly Seward
D. Jones Tyler

W. Jones White
(Tie Breaker)

Consent Agenda - Page 22




Memorandum

To: Richard Douglas, Sussex County Administrator
From: Jeff Gore/ Danielle Powell, Hefty Wiley & Gore, PC.
Re: Settlement of National Opioid Litigation — Sussex County Participation Opportunity

Date: October 29, 2021

This Memorandum summarizes the recent informational webinar conducted by VACo/VML and
the Office of the Virgina Attorney General. It includes background on this litigation and settlement
and the steps the County must take by January 2, 2022, if the Board wants to participate in and
receive funds from this settlement.

l. Background on the Pending Opioid Distributor/Janssen Settlements

26-Billion-dollar national settlement
Approx. $530 million available to Virginia (potentially) but only if all
cities and counties vote to join and enter into settlement
agreement—>amount depends on participation of localities

e There is a possible lower number but settlement agreements are

complicated and did not provide any lower estimates

Of the $530 million, defendants are Janssen, Cardinal, McKesson
pharmaceutical companies.
Funds to be distributed over 18 years. Front loaded. In the early years
states and localities will receive more
Not only settlement in works. There are pending bankruptcy cases
involving Purdue Pharma and others that could also result in funds going
to the state. In addition., For example->McKinsey settlement reached
for $13.7 million (just btw Commonwealth and McKinsey but money
will be given to Virgina Opioid Abatement Authority as seed funding
for that entity.)
State responsible for litigating terms and negotiations
MOU provides for how funds can be used and provides percentage
shares and create Virginia Opioid Abatement Authority (“OAA”)
MOU approved and signed by AG in August this year.

I1. Breakdown of how settlement funds to be distributed:

e 15% —> participating localities MOU (*money can be used for
anything)
0 Unless settlement agreement provides otherwise.
0 *There is a chance that non-litigating localities would be
limited to opioid abatement uses, but that’s not clear yet.
Also, the agreement does provide that the funds can go
toward reimbursing the locality for funds it already spent
on opioid abatement. So, to that extent, there will likely
be some flexibility even if these funds are restricted.

Consent Agenda - Page 23



e 15% -> participating localities for abatement purposes. Defined
in MOU and state code
o Efforts to treat prevent opioid disorder or mediate opioid
epidemic. There are 10 examples in statute
o If not used for abatement, must report how funds were
used
0 Can be used for reimbursement for past expenditures
for opioid abatement or remediation
0 Chance that if did not initiate lawsuit, then all funds
may have to be tied only to abatement and
remediation
e 15% -> goes to Commonwealth without restriction
e 559% —> goes to opioid abatement fund (OAF). Funds distributed
as follows:
0 15% to participating localities for restricted use
0 35% to participating locating regional partnership (e.g.,
Community Services Boards)
0 15% to state agencies
0 35% unrestricted—any of the above and administrative
expenses
= Total up to 85% could go to localities

According to the Settlement Agreement Exhibit A: Sussex would receive an
estimated 0.08 % of the proceeds going directly to Virginia localities without
restriction on use. We estimate this to be approximately $64,000. Based on 15% x
$530M = $79.5 x .08% (Sussex share) = $63,600. Note: there would be additional
funding opportunities through the state fund allocation to localities for opioid
abatement, in addition to the 15% direct allocation to localities for opioid abatement
purposes.

= MOU pertains to multiple settlements not just the one currently pending

= Percentages to be distributed directly to localities developed by
litigating localities. Based on factors to assess opioid impact (death,
emergency Visits, products shipped to locality, participation in the
litigation, etc.)

I11.  The Virginia Opioid Abatement Authority (Va. Code §2.2-2365 et seq)

= 55% of settlements funds will go to OAA
e If do not participate now, will not be eligible for OAA funds

IV.  Logistics for Participation in Settlements/MOU

= About 50% of Virginia cities and counties have approved MOU already
= Need all localities to participate to maximize settlement to Virginia

= Stepl:

Consent Agenda - Page 24



e Join Virginia MOU
o0 Adopt resolution to accept MOU and participate in
settlement agreement
0 Once adopted copies sent to AG’s office and Ed Spivey
@ Kauffman and Canoles
= theshere@oag.state.va.us (804-823-6335) AND
wespivey@kaufcan.com

= Step 2:

e Signon to the settlement agreements and register on national
website. County should have already received its unique i.d.
number already door this purpose.

o0 Adopt resolution approving settlement and delating
authority to enter/execute the settlement to the relevant
subdivision

o Go to nationalopioidsettlement.com and register.
Provide name and email address of person will be
authority to sign formal and binding documents.

0 Once receive settlement participation documents, use the
DocuSign service to complete ethe execute the
documents and submit the completed and signed
documentation via the website

= Agree to release future opioid claims against
distributors or Janssen
= MUST COMPLETE ALL STEPS BY JANUARY 2, 2022.
o Towns with population below 10,000 will not receive notice

4+ Directions to Website:
0 www.nationalopioidsettlement.com >state specific
documents—>Virginia—>allocation deal—Virginia->shows MOU
o www.nationalopioidsettlement.comsubdivisions register here to receive
settlement agreement->Subdivisions register here to receive participation
agreements (put in state, name of subdivisions and registration code/unique
identifier)—> verify registration code—>

*Registration can be done immediately, without committing the County. Only approval of
the resolutions will do that. So, registration can be done now to ensure it is done, or it can
wait until after the Board of Supervisors considers and approves the two resolutions. But
it must be done by Jan. 2, 2022.

Consent Agenda - Page 25


mailto:tbeshere@oag.state.va.us
mailto:wespivey@kaufcan.com
http://www.nationalopioidsettlement.com/
http://www.nationalopioidsettlement.com/

RESOLUTION
2021-109

AT AREGULAR MEETING OF THE SUSSEX COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
HELD IN THE GENERAL DISTRICT COURTROOM OF THE GOVERNMENT CENTER
ON NOVEMBER 18, 2021, AT 6:00 P.M.

PRESENT: VOTE:

The Honorable Susan B. Seward, Chair

The Honorable Wayne O. Jones, Vice-Chairman
The Honorable C. Eric Fly

The Honorable Debbie P. Jones

The Honorable Rufus E. Tyler, Sr.

A RESOLUTION OF THE SUSSEX COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
APPROVING OF THE COUNTY’S PARTICIPATION IN THE PROPOSED
SETTLEMENT OF OPIOID-RELATED CLAIMS AGAINST MCKESSON,
CARDINAL HEALTH, AMERISOURCEBERGEN, JANSSEN, AND THEIR
RELATED CORPORATE ENTITIES, AND DIRECTING THE COUNTY
ATTORNEY AND THE COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR TO EXECUTE THE
DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO EFFECTUATE THE COUNTY’S
PARTICIPATION IN THE SETTLEMENTS

WHEREAS, the opioid epidemic that has cost thousands of human lives across the country
also impacts the Commonwealth of Virginia and its cities and counties by adversely impacting,
amongst other things, the delivery of emergency medical, law enforcement, criminal justice,
mental health and substance abuse services, and other services; and

WHEREAS, the Commonwealth of Virginia and its cities and counties have been required
and will continue to be required to allocate substantial taxpayer dollars, resources, staff energy and
time to address the damage the opioid epidemic has caused and continues to cause the citizens of
Virginia; and

WHEREAS, settlement proposals have been negotiated that will cause McKesson,
Cardinal Health, AmerisourceBergen, and Janssen to pay up to $26 billion nationwide to resolve
opioid-related claims against them.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors,
this 18" day of November, 2021, approves of the County’s participation in the proposed settlement
of opioid-related claims against McKesson, Cardinal Health, AmerisourceBergen, Janssen, and
their related corporate entities, and directs the County Attorney and, if required, the County
Administrator to execute the documents necessary to effectuate the County’s participation in the
settlements, including the required release of claims against settling entities.

Consent Agenda - Page 26



Adopted at the regular meeting of the Sussex County Board of Supervisors held on November
18, 2021.

Susan B. Seward, Chair
Sussex County Board of Supervisors

ATTEST:

Clerk to the Board of Supervisors

Consent Agenda - Page 27



RESOLUTION
2021-110

AT AREGULAR MEETING OF THE SUSSEX COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
HELD IN THE GENERAL DISTRICT COURTROOM OF THE GOVERNMENT CENTER
ON NOVEMBER 18, 2021 AT 6:00 P.M.

PRESENT: VOTE:

The Honorable Susan B. Seward, Chair

The Honorable Wayne O. Jones, Vice-Chairman
The Honorable C. Eric Fly

The Honorable Debbie P. Jones

The Honorable Rufus E. Tyler, Sr.

A RESOLUTION OF THE SUSSEX COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
APPROVING OF THE COUNTY’S PARTICIPATION IN THE VIRGINIA
OPIOID ABATEMENT FUND AND SETTLEMENT ALLOCATION
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (“MOU”) AND DIRECTING THE
COUNTY ATTORNEY AND THE COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR TO EXECUTE
THE DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO EFFECTUATE THE COUNTY’S
PARTICIPATION IN THE MOU

WHEREAS, the opioid epidemic that has cost thousands of human lives across the country
also impacts the Commonwealth of Virginia and its cities and counties by adversely impacting,
amongst other things, the delivery of emergency medical, law enforcement, criminal justice,
mental health and substance abuse services, and other services; and

WHEREAS, the Commonwealth of Virginia and its cities and counties have been required
and will continue to be required to allocate substantial taxpayer dollars, resources, staff energy and
time to address the damage the opioid epidemic has caused and continues to cause the citizens of
Virginia; and

WHEREAS, in order to advance their common interests, Virginia local governments and
the Commonwealth of Virginia, through legal counsel, have negotiated the terms of a
memorandum of understanding relating to the allocation and use of litigation recoveries relating
to the opioid epidemic;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors
this 8" day of November, 2021, hereby authorizes and approves of the Virginia Abatement Fund
and Settlement Allocation Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) attached hereto and
incorporated by reference as Exhibit “A,” and directs the County Attorney and, if required, the
County Administrator to execute the MOU.

Consent Agenda - Page 28



Adopted at the regular meeting of the Sussex County Board of Supervisors held on November 18,
2021,

Susan Seward Chair,
Sussex County Board of Supervisors

ATTEST:

Clerk to the Board of Supervisors

Consent Agenda - Page 29



BOARD ACTION FORM

Agenda Item: Recognition #3.01

Subject: Animal Services Update — Ms. Debbie Broughton

Board Meeting Date: November 18 2021

Summary: Debbie Broughton, Sussex County Animal Services Director, will provide an update
on Animal Services operations and improvements at the animal shelter.

Attachment: Animal Services First Quarter Report Handout

ACTION: None

MOTION BY: SECONDED BY:

Member Member

Fly Seward
D. Jones Tyler

W. Jones White
(Tie Breaker)

Recognitions - Page 1




Sussex County Animal Services

First Quarter Report
2021

ecognitions

- Page 2



Mission Statement
Revised 11/21

To Protect and Serve the citizens of Sussex County and the
animals In their care with the reduction and prevention of

animal related problems through the reasonable and responsible
application of education; intervention; warnings/citations; legal
system remedies; and, the human statutoraly safe keeping of all
animals In the custody of Sussex County Animal Services.




Jeremy Gordon- Kennel Tech, Kayla Eubanks-ASO,
Lisa Moseley- Asst. Chief, Debbie Broughton- : : il
Director of Services, Erin Dodson — Kennel Tech., A= W _.x V-
Sue Moss- Kennel Tech, Laurie Stalnaker-Kennel pS; '
Tech.

Recognitions - Page 4



OUARITERLY INTAKE REPORIT

QUARTER BEGINNING COUNT—- BEGINNING COUNT- OTHER TOTAL
1st Quarter | CANINE FELINE I
OWNER 27 21 3 51
SURRENDER
STRAY 51 28 1 80
SEIZED 9 6 0 15
TRANSFER IN 0 0 0 o
BITE CASE 0 0 0 0
OTHER 0 o/ 146
- ]
RTO 19 1 20
ADOFIED 10 13 0 23
TRANSFERED 26 29 0 55
OTHER 0 0 o 0
ON HAND EOQ 35 22 1 S8
EUTHANIZED 24 29 O 53
DIED
TOTALS 24./90 29/65 1 S3/156

R (T

87.3%

Recognitions - Page 5



ANIMAL INTAKE GROWTH

M Series1 ™ Columnl

Recognitions - Page 6



7/1/21 — 9/30/21 Calls For Service

ASO5 — 343
ASOb6 — 640
ASQO7 — 145
SCSO - 121
TCS — Through CAD 1,249
Visitors to Shelter - 54
Calls to Shelter - 450
Total Calls For Service — 1,753

Recognitions - Page 7



=—————10"%

|

5 N ¥ . ~ ° o‘?“‘
Sussex County Animal Services |
Center “J‘ !

14493 Robinson Road, Stony Creek Virginia g
S04-S98-5371

-

TO PROTECT AND SERVE. = ‘ 3‘

=== . & Public safe office building

Welcome to “OUR” world

SEE -
i 0

g

101151 101 1N

| Re-worked barn




Problems and Solutions 2021

COVID 19 PRECAUTIONS - Make visiting the Shelter safer for the public and staff - New office building
with secure entrance for visitors and staff with pass-through windows to conduct business safely. Built
outdoor showing pens for canines so the public does not have to enter the main animal holding facility on
site to meet a potential adoptable animal. Atrium and observation room for public to view cats safely. Newer
transport van to take animals to spay/neuter appointments.

PEST CONTROL - Eradicate the kennel building of rat infestation which caused animals to become sick
and food stores to become contaminated by feces and urine, and affecting the air quality thereby causing
death to some animals in our care. Partnered with pest control company to treat the infestation and perform
routine treatment measures to prevent further outbreaks. Replace exterior doors that did not seal properly
to keep pest out. Identified and sealed all holes in walls that allowed pests inside. Removed food storage
connex (door did not close all the way). Removed and disposed of all contaminated items In building.
Purchased secure food storage containers to protect animal food from rodents.

SAFE KEEPING OF AGRICULTURAL ANIMALS - Barn stalls and holding pens built inside existing
Butler Building to safely and securely house all manner of stock animals. Safe wood fences and gates
installed to allow grazing and holding areas for herd animals. Funding source partly funded by a grant from
the Federation of Public Shelters.

Recognitions - Page 9



Problems and Solutions 2021

PROPER DATA COLLECTION- Restructure method of completing and maintaining custody records for
animals in our care. Put procedures in place to count and track all animals in our care daily. Identify and
implement a functional tracking system for all animals in our custody that can be accessed for reporting to all
governing entities. Partner with Sussex County Sheriffs office to pull calls for service information from CAD
records for proper man-hour tracking and hiring needs. Obtained Grant funds through PetCo Foundation to
purchase Shelter Pro data collection and 2 computers to enter and house it.

DRAINAGE ISSUES—- Obtained services of Rotor Rooter to correct and maintain proper drainage in the kennel
building and correct back flow issues.

PROPER CLEANING METHODS- Mandated and put into place proper cleaning methods of facilities to comply with
Virginia Department of Agriculture Standards.

ANIMAL POPULATION CONTROL AND STATE MANDATE ADOPTION COMPLIANCE- Partnered with PETA for a low
cost spay/neuter van in Sussex County through a $10,000. grant from Federation of Public Shelters, donations
from the Town of Waverly, Town of Stony Creek, Cowling Brothers Hardware and private citizen donations. To
date 45 dogs and 65 cats have been sterilized through PETA and updated on vaccines. Partnered with Richmond
Animal League Loving Spay Neuter Clinic for low cost spay/neuter visits. To date 15 dogs and 25 cats have been
sterilized, microchipped and up to date on vaccinations. All dogs and cats adopted from Animal services must be
spayed or neutered.

Recognitions - Page 10



Problems and Solutions 2021

OLD SIGNAGE, BARBED WIRE FENCE- Design and replaced facility sign at entrance of the compound.
Contracted with Wyatt Signs to make and install a new sign welcoming visitors to the facility. Contracted
with Russell Fence Company to remove the unsound, unfriendly barbed wire fence around the kennel
facility, change its footprint and replace it with better configured fencing.

UNSAFE EMERGENCY LIGHTS ON VEHICLES- Replaced unsafe emergency lights on service vehicles
with state mandated red and white lights and ensure all lights work properly to safely respond and operate
the vehicles on interstate and busy highways 40, 35 and 301.

MANPOWER AND LEADERSHIP- Hired a Director for Animal Services to oversee and direct the
department. Hired additional part-time staff to help clean kennels. Currently staff consist of 2 full time
ACQO?s (to include the director) and 1 part-time. NEEDED — 1 more full time certified ACO. Kennel staff
consists of three part-time and 1 full time employees. NEEDED conversion of 1 part-time to a full time
position.

FLEET — Purchased a used canine vehicle from the Sheriff’s office. Corrected the ‘death-rattle’ issue with
the F-250 to make it safe to operate. Replaced an old redlined van with a newer one for transport. Total
fleet — 3 trucks, 1 SUV, 1 transport van, 1 old redlined van, 1 small pick-up (which will need to be replaced
soon.)

Recognitions - Page 11



Res

cued donkey

SR 8% il Mhecari 2

4G R ) (SRR B ) =

fou

Canine
chained
outside in
freezing

‘<
¥ \

s v

by . ] .
Dec 26, 2020'5%12:21 PM

\
)

']
st

\

N
mal

%Iﬂlﬂ?

IS

e

RETURN CHECK FFE




Ildentified Current Needs

» Purchase a horse/livestock trailer (Currently we use Dr. Cupp’s livestock trailer as needed.)
» Hire 1 full time ACO by amending the existing budget for 20-21 year to accommodate at $42,000.00
salary and full time benefit package.

Questions?

6 CUR AL Lo 9021 3:28:1

%" Si

Ferva\e. 0 m'lsqd 13343 SussexgDrivd

SroaQeddnire dal Ton/whd verly

un

“Tafer irginig

= a-3-2) q-M-21
T

Adoption Board Recognitions - Page 13 Livestock Love Kennel Identification cards



BOARD ACTION FORM

Agenda Item: Recognition #3.02

Subject: County Property Reassessment — Mr. Pearson

Board Meeting Date: November 18 2021

Summary: Mr. Robert Pearson, Pearson’s Appraisals Services, Inc., will be in attendance to
provide an update to the Board of Supervisors.

Attachment:

ACTION: None

MOTION BY: SECONDED BY:

Member Member

Fly Seward
D. Jones Tyler

W. Jones White
(Tie Breaker)

Recognitions - Page 14




BOARD ACTION FORM

Agenda Item: Public Hearing #4.01
Subject: Sale of County-owned Property

Board Meeting Date: November 18 2021

Summary: The purpose of this Public Hearing is to receive public comments, as well as receive
offers for purchase of the three County-owned properties, which includes:

The Former Chambliss Elementary School, located at 10415 Higgins Street;
The Branch Street Property which consists of three parcels located at the intersection of
Branch Street and Higgins Streets; and
The Pocahontas Park located at the intersection (corner) of Branch Street and Railroad
Avenue.
All properties are located in Wakefield, Virginia and offers to purchase can be submitted
separately for each of the three properties.

These properties were properly advertised.

Recommendation:

Attachment: Copy of the Notice of Public Hearing

ACTION: TBD

MOTION BY: SECONDED BY:

Member Member

Fly Seward
D. Jones Tyler

W. Jones White
(Tie Breaker)

Public Hearing - Page 1




Sussex-Surry Dispatch, Wednesday, November 3, 2021

Pag‘e i

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
SUSSEX COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

Pursuant to Va. Code § 15.2-1800, the Sussex County Board of
Suparvisors will hold a Public 'Hearing on Thursday, November
18, 2021 at approximately 6:00 p.m. at the Sussex County Gen-
aral District Courthouse, Sussex Judicial Center, 15098 Courl-
housa Road, Sussex, Virginia 23884, The purpose of the hearing
is to receive public commenis concerning the potential sale of
County-owned real properly end all Improvements thereon and
fixtures therelo, 1o include: the Former Chambliss Elementary

e et e PP aric CUb0! and gt

Street (across from Pocahontas Tempie {designated as Tax Map
# 61A4-A-15 (Lot C), Tax Map#61A4-A-18A (Lot B) and Tax Map
#81A4-A-18 (Lot A)); and the Pocahontas Park [located at the in-
tersaction of Branch Strest and Railroad Avenue) combined lots
designated as Tax Parcels #61A4-1-3-52, #61A4-1-3-53, #61A4-
1-3-54, #61A4-1-3-55, #61A4-1-3-56, #61A4-1-3-57, #61A415-8,
#61A415-9; #61A415-10, #61A415-10, #61A415-1, #61A415-2,
#51A415-3, #61A415-4, #61A415-5 and #G61A415-6, #81A415-
7}-all located in Wakefleld, Virginia,

Interasted parties can submit offers to purchase all or any of
these parcsls with the improvements and any fixtures thereon, for
consideration by the Board of Supervisors by mail to Mrs. Shilton
R. Butts, Assistant to the County Administrator, P.O. Box 1397,
Sussex, Virginia 23884 or hand defiver to 20135 Princeton Road,
Sussex, Virginia 23884. Deadline for submitta! of offers is Friday,
Novembar 12, 2021 at 4:00 p.m, More information on these prop-
ertles can be obtained from Gounty Administration at this ad-
dress.

Any and all persons are invited to appear before the Board to '
present evidence, give testimony or otherwise comment concern- |
ing these matters at the time and place stated above.

Authorized by:
Richard Douglas
County Administrator
11/3/2021

Public Hearing - Page 2



BOARD ACTION FORM

Agenda Item: Public Hearing #4.02

Subject: Regional Industrial Facilities Authority (RIFA) Consideration of Ordinance and
Resolutions

Board Meeting Date: November 18 2021

Summary: At the October regular meeting, ,Keith Boswell, Executive Director of Virginia’s
Gateway Region, presented an overview of a proposed Regional Industrial Facilities Authority
(RIFA) to accommodate joint economic development projects. At the direction of the Board, a
public hearing has been scheduled as a requirement in the RIFA establishment process.

Staff has been working with regional county administrators/city managers, Gateway staff, and
their retained legal counsel to develop this concept, and strongly recommends that the Board of
Supervisors move forward with the process of establishing a RIFA. A RIFA Agreement Creating
Virginia’s Gateway RIFA, RIFA ordinance, RIFA Bylaws, and draft Notice of Public Hearing are
attached for your review.

This public hearing has been properly advertised.
Recommendation: Staff recommends at the conclusion of the public hearing that the Board

consider adoption of the RIFA ordinance and RIFA Agreement Creating Virginia’s Gateway RIFA,
and authorize the County Administrator to sign all related documents.

Attachments: Agreement Creating the Virginia’s Gateway Region Industrial Facilities Authority;
RIFA Bylaws; RFIA Ordinance — Sussex; and RIFA Notice of Hearing — Sussex

ACTION:

MOTION BY: SECONDED BY:

Member Member

Fly Seward
D. Jones Tyler

W. Jones White
(Tie Breaker)

Public Hearing - Page 3




AGREEMENT CREATING THE VIRGINIA’S GATEWAY REGION
INDUSTRIAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY

WHEREAS, the Virginia Regional Industrial Facilities Act, Chapter 64, Title 15.2,
Section 15.2-6400. et seq., Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended (the “Act”) was enacted by
the General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Virginia to provide a regional authority
mechanism for member localities of such an authority to cooperate in developing, owning,
and operating one or more facilities through combined action; and

WHEREAS, the exercise of the power granted by the Act is to be in all aspects for
the benefit of the inhabitants of the geographic region included within the Member Localities,
as defined below (the “Region”) for the increase of their commerce, and for the promotion
of their safety, health, welfare, convenience and prosperity; and

WHEREAS, the governing bodies of the Member Localities (as defined below) have
determined that joint action through a regional industrial facility authority will facilitate the
development of needed and desired facilities in the Region; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act, the governing bodies of the City of Colonial Heights,
the County of Dinwiddie, the City of Hopewell, the City of Petersburg, the County of Prince George, the
County of Surry, and the County of Sussex (each, a “Member Locality” and collectively, the
“Member Localities”) by adoption of concurrent ordinances, have proposed to create the
Virginia’s Gateway Region Industrial Facilities Authority (the “Authority”) for the purpose
of enhancing the economic base for the Member Localities by developing, owning, and
operating one or more facilities on a cooperative basis involving its Member Localities, which
concurrent ordinances will be filed with the Secretary of the Commonwealth causing the
creation of the Authority; and

WHEREAS, the Member Localities have agreed to enter into this Agreement
Creating the Virginia’s Gateway Region Industrial Facilities Authority (this “Agreement”)
establishing and describing the respective rights and obligations of the Member Localities
with respect to the Authority.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises of the parties and
other good and valuable consideration herein stated, the Member Localities hereto agree as
follows.

ARTICLE 1
NAME AND OFFICE

The name of the authority shall be the “Virginia’s Gateway Region Industrial Facilities
Authority” (the “Authority”), and the address of its initial office is c/o Virginia’s Gateway
Region, 256 E. Ellerslie Ave, Suite D, Colonial Heights, Virginia 23834.

Page 1 of 16

Public Hearing - Page 4



ARTICLE 2
PARTIES TO THE VIRGINIA’S GATEWAY REGION
INDUSTRIAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY AGREEMENT

2.1.  The initial Member Localities of the Authority are:

County of Dinwiddie
County of Prince George
County of Surry

County of Sussex

City of Colonial Heights
City of Hopewell

City of Petersburg

2.2. At any time subsequent to the creation of this Authority, the membership of
the Authority may, with the approval of the Authority Board, be expanded to include
any locality within the region that would have been eligible to be an initial member. The
governing body of a locality seeking to become a member shall evidence its intent to
become a member by adopting an ordinance proposing to join the Authority that conforms
to the requirements established by Section 15.2-6402 of the Code of Virginia. The
admission of such additional member shall be completed upon the Authority Board
approving the admission, after presented with the requisite ordinance adopted by such
locality, which then shall be a Member Locality for all purposes, and with all rights, under
this Agreement and the Bylaws (as defined below).

ARTICLE 3
FINDINGS AND PURPOSE OF THE AUTHORITY

The Member Localities agree that this Authority has been established for the
following purpose and function.

3.1. The Member Localities agree that the creation of the Authority provides a
mechanism for the Member Localities to cooperate in the development of facilities needed
and desired in the Region.

3.2.  The exercise of the powers granted by the Act shall be in all aspects for the
benefit of the inhabitants of the Region for the increase of their commerce, and for the
promotion of their safety, health, welfare, convenience and prosperity. Special emphasis
shall be placed on directing these benefits to the inhabitants of the Member Localities, while
recognizing the regional benefit of the Member Localities’ economic development projects.

3.3.  The Authority shall be nonprofit and no part of its earnings remaining after
payment of its expenses and fulfillment of commitments in furtherance of the Authority's
purposes shall inure to the benefit of any individual, firm or corporation, and if the Authority
isdissolved in accordance with the provisions of the Act, the title to all funds and other property
owned by the Authority shall vest in the Member Localities which have contributed to the

Page 2 of 16
Public Hearing - Page 5



Authority in proportion to their respective contributions as provided by the Act. In order to
benefit from the dissolution, the Member Locality must be in good standing with this Agreement,
the Authority’s Bylaws and other documents describing the Member Localities’ obligations to
the Authority.

3.4. The Act provides the Member Localities with powers by which the Member
Localities may interact as one body or as individual participating groups consisting of more
than one Member Locality of the Authority which the members believe will give each local
government an opportunity to establish successful partnerships for the development of
economic projects which will serve the region.

3.5.  The governing body of each Member Locality has found that the economic
growth and development of the localities, and the comfort, convenience and welfare of the
citizens of the Member Localities require the development of facilities and that joint action
through the Authority will facilitate the development of such facilities.

ARTICLE 4
BOARD OF THE AUTHORITY

4.1.  All powers, rights and duties conferred by the Act, or other provisions of law,
upon the Authority shall be exercised by a Board of Directors, each of whom shall be a resident
of the Commonwealth of Virginia (the “Board”). The Board shall consist of two board
members from each Member Locality appointed by the governing body of each Member
Locality pursuant to Section 15.2-6403 (A) of the Act. Tofsm1] encourage participation, and to
reduce meeting and regulatory conflicts, Board members should not be an elected member of
the locality’s governing body. Each Board member shall serve for a term of four years and
may be reappointed for as many terms asthe Member Locality’s governing body desires. Ifa
vacancy occurs by reason of death, disqualification or resignation, the governing body of
the Member Locality that appointed the Authority Board member shall appoint a successor to
fill the unexpired term.

4.2.  The governing body of each Member Locality may appoint up to two alternate
Board members. An alternate may serve as an alternate for either Board member from the
Member Locality that appoints the alternate. Alternates shall be appointed for terms that
coincide with one or more of the Board members from the Member Locality that appoints the
alternate. If either Board member for a Member Locality is not present at a meeting of the
Authority, an alternate shall have all the voting and other rights of the Board member not
present and shall be counted for purpose of determining a quorum and all other purposes at
that meeting.

4.3. The Board shall elect from its membership, for each calendar year, a Chair,
Vice Chair, Treasurer, and Secretary.

4.4.  Appointments, officers, Board meetings and procedures shall be held and
conducted in accordance with the Act, this Agreement, and with the Bylaws of this Authority,
attached hereto as Exhibit A and fully incorporated into this Agreement (the “Bylaws”).

Page 3 of 16
Public Hearing - Page 6



45.  The Board shall submit an annual report of the Authority's activities of the
preceding year to the governing bodies of the Member Localities, including a complete
operating and financial statement.

4.6. The Board may establish dues or other annual financial fees for the operation
of the Authority and its approved purposes (“Operational Dues”) to be paid by the Member
Localities. Such Operational Dues shall be approved by all Member Localities, including
(without limitation) by or through a Member Locality’s Economic Development Authority, by
appropriate resolutions or ordinances. Such Operational Dues may be separate from amounts
due in accordance with Participation Agreements (as defined in Article 5 below). Member
Localities who agree to a Participation Agreement in accordance with Article 5 below may agree
to have Operational Dues assessed pro rata by the Board against a Project (as defined in Section
5.2 below), or split among the various Projects as determined by the Board.

4.7 No Board member shall receive compensation, but shall be reimbursed for actual
expenses incurred in the performance of his or her duties from funds available to the Authority.

4.8.  The Authority is vested with the powers of a body corporate, including the
powers to sue and be sued in its own name, plead and be impleaded, and adopt and use a
common seal and alter the same as may be deemed expedient.

ARTICLE 5
PARTICIPATION AGREEMENTS FOR FACILITIES

5.1.  The Authority may enter into participation agreements with more than one or
more Member Localities by which any facilities allowed by the Act may be constructed,
developed and operated in the Region (“Participation Agreement(s)”). Such Participation
Agreements may include participation by public and private entities who are not Member
Localities of the Authority (“Other Participants”). The Authority, and the Board (to the extent
applicable) shall not have the authority or right to vote on any Project level decision among the
Member Localities who elect to participate in a Project.

5.2. Each Member Locality may consider its terms in the participation in each
proposed economic development project (a “Project”). The cost for such Participation
Agreements and any remuneration from the creation of a Participation Agreement shall only
be shared by the Member Localities and Other Participants in accordance with the
Participation Agreement for that project. Any individual Member Locality may, at its
discretion and as allowed by law, choose to enter into, or not enter into, any particular Project.
Any Member Locality not entering into a Participation Agreement for a Project (i) shall
have no monetary obligation or other duty or responsibility in relation to that Project, and (ii)
its Member Locality status and participation in other Projects shall not be modified by any
decision not to participate in any particular Project. A Project’s Participation Agreement shall
include a provision to cover the costs associated with administration of the agreement as part of
the Project costs.

Page 4 of 16
Public Hearing - Page 7



5.3  The Authority may from time to time finance a Project pursuant to a Participation
Agreement through the issuance of notes and bonds by the Authority (“Bonds”). Such Bonds
shall be limited obligations of the Authority to be paid solely from revenues and receipts
of that particular Project and from revenues that may be received pursuant to any Participation
Agreement or other agreement related to the Project being financed, and may be secured by
collateral encumbered or pledged in support of the financing (“Project-Based Financing”).
Project-Based Financing is approved and consented to by the Member Localities.

ARTICLE 6
DONATIONS; REMITTANCE OF TAX REVENUE;
REVENUE SHARING AGREEMENTS

6.1. Member Localities, including (without limitation) by or through a Member
Locality’s Economic Development Authority, are hereby authorized to lend, or donate money or
other property to the Authority for any of its purposes. The Member Locality, including (without
limitation) by or through a Member Locality’s Economic Development Authority, making a
grant or loan may restrict the use of such grants or loans to a specific facility owned by the
Authority within or outside of that Member Locality.

6.2. The governing body of the Member Locality in which a facility owned by
the Authority is located may direct, by resolution or ordinance, that all tax revenues collected
with respect to the facility shall be remitted to the Authority. Such revenues may be used
for the payment of debt service on bonds of the Authority and other obligations of the Authority
incurred with respect to such facility. The action of such governing body shall not constitute a
pledge of the credit or taxing power of such Member Locality.

6.3.  Notwithstanding the requirements of Chapter 34 of Title 15.2 of the Code of
Virginia (Section 15.2-3400 et seq.), the Member Localities may agree to a revenue and
economic growth sharing arrangement with respect to tax revenues and other income and
revenues generated by any properties owned, controlled or managed by the Authority. The
obligations of the parties to any such agreement shall not be construed to be debt within the
meaning of Article VII, Section 10 of the Constitution of Virginia. Any such agreement shall be
approved by a majority vote of the governing bodies of the Member Localities reaching such
an agreement, but shall not require any other approval.

ARTICLE 7
BOND ISSUES

The Authority may, including by request of Project participants, at any time issue bonds
for any valid purpose, including the establishment of reserves and the payment of interest only
in accordance with the Act. Any such bonds issued pursuant to the Act shall comply with all
terms and conditions identified in Sections 15.2-6409, 15.2-6410, 15.2-6411, and 15.2-6412 of
the Code of Virginia, as amended.

ARTICLE 8
ACCOUNTS AND RECORDS

Page 5 of 16
Public Hearing - Page 8



The accounts and records of the Authority showing the receipt and disbursement of
funds from whatever source derived shall be in such form as the Auditor of Public Accounts
prescribes, provided that such accounts correspond as nearly as possible to the accounts and
records for such matters maintained by corporate enterprises. The accounts and records of the
Authority shall be subject to audit pursuant to Section 30-140 of the Code of Virginia and the
costs of such audit services shall be borne by the Authority. The Authority’s fiscal year shall be
the same as the Commonwealth's.

Until the Authority’s Board determines otherwise, or until a resignation of the
following duties, the Virginia’s Gateway Region will act as the staff and the fiscal agent for
the Authority. The Authority may elect to provide compensation to Virginia’s Gateway
Region for such services, but the Authority will reimburse Virginia’s Gateway Region for all
costs and expenses incurred for or on behalf of the Authority. The VGR will not have any
authority to bind the Authority.

ARTICLE 9
MEMBER LOCALITIES APPROVALS

The Authority may request action or approvals by the governing bodies of the
Member Localities for any appropriate matters or actions in accordance with the Act. The
Authority shall not act without approvals of the governing bodies of the Member Localities
for any of the following:

0] Participation Agreements for individual Projects in accordance with
Article 5 of this Agreement;

(i)  tax revenue remittances in accordance with Section 15.2-6406.B of the
Act;

(iii)  revenue sharing agreements in accordance with Section 15.2-6407 of
the Act and Article 6 of this Agreement;

(iv)  Operational Dues in accordance with Article 4, Section 6 of this
Agreement;

(v)  Any modification of the Board provisions in Article 4 Sections 1 and 2
of this Agreement; and

(vi)  Any other requirement or limitation as may be imposed by the Act, as
may be amended.

Any Member Locality which does not elect to participate in a Project (in accordance
with Article 5) shall not have any right or authority to vote on or interfere with any Project
level decision.

Page 6 of 16
Public Hearing - Page 9



ARTICLE 10
DISSOLUTION OF AUTHORITY

10.1. Any Member Locality of the Authority may withdraw from the Authority (i)
upon dissolution of the Authority as set forth herein, or (ii) with majority approval of all other
Member Localities of the Authority, upon a resolution adopted by the governing body of
such Member Locality and after satisfaction of such Member Locality's legal obligations,
including repayment of its portion of any debt incurred with regard to the Authority, or after
making contractual provisions for the repayment of its portion of any debt incurred with
regard to the Authority, as well as pledging to pay any Operational Dues for the Authority
for the current and succeeding fiscal year following the effective date of withdrawal.

No Member Locality seeking withdrawal shall retain, without the consent of a
majority of the remaining Member Localities, any rights to contributions made by such
Member Locality, to any property held by the Authority or to any revenue sharing as allowed
by the Act.

Upon withdrawal, the withdrawing Member Locality also shall return to the
Authority any dues or other contributions refunded to such Member Locality during its
membership in the Authority.

10.2. Whenever the Board determines that the purpose for which the Authority was
created has been substantially fulfilled or is impractical or impossible to accomplish and that
all obligations incurred by the Authority have been paid or that cash or sufficient amount of
approved securities has been deposited for their repayment, or provisions satisfactory for the
timely payment of all its outstanding obligations have been arranged, the Board may adopt
resolutions declaring and finding that the Authority shall be dissolved.

Appropriate attested copies of such resolutions shall be delivered to the Governor so
that legislation dissolving the Authority may be introduced in the General Assembly. The
dissolution of the Authority shall become effective according to the terms of such legislation.
The title to all funds and other property owned by the Authority at the time of such dissolution
shall vest (i) in the Member Localities which have contributed to the Authority in proportion
to their respective contributions, (ii) as stated in the Authority’s dissolution resolution(s), or
(iii) as otherwise mutually agreed upon by the Member Localities.

ARTICLE 11
MISCELLANEQOUS

This Agreement may be amended or altered, from time to time, in any manner not
inconsistent with the provisions of the Act and other applicable law. This Agreement shall
be amended or altered only by an amendment, resolution or other approval of all of the
governing bodies of the Member Localities. No such amendment shall reduce the rights, or
modify the obligations of a Member Locality, for any previously approved Participation
Agreement. All amendments shall be in writing and shall be signed by the Authority Chairman

Page 7 of 16
Public Hearing - Page 10



and Secretary after approval in accordance with this Agreement and the Bylaws. The Authority
shall provide a copy of any amendment to each Member Locality not later than ten (10) days
after final approval of all Member Localities.

The title of and article headings in this Agreement are solely for convenience of
reference and shall not constitute a part of this Agreement nor shall they affect its meaning,
construction or effect.

This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be
an original and all of which together shall constitute but one and the same instrument.

If any clause, provision or section of this Agreement shall be held illegal or invalid by
any court, the illegality or invalidity of such clause, provision or section shall not affect the
remainder of this Agreement which shall be construed and enforced as if such illegal or
invalid clause, provision or section had not been contained in this Agreement. Ifany
agreement or obligation contained in this Agreement is held to be in violation of law, then
such agreement or obligation shall be deemed to be the agreement or obligation of the parties
hereto only to the extent permitted by law. In the event that the General Assembly amends the
Act in amanner that conflicts herewith, the provisions of this Agreement are hereby amended
in conformity with such amendment of the Act.

(Signatures on the following pages)

Page 8 of 16
Public Hearing - Page 11



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the governing bodies identified, by authorized action, have
caused this Agreement to be executed and their respective seals to be affixed hereto and

attested by their respective clerks or secretaries commencing effective on the date when fully
executed.

CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS

By:
Name:
Title:

ATTEST:

By:

Name:

Title:

Approved as to form:

By:

, City Attorney

[Signatures continue on next page]

Page 9 of 16
Public Hearing - Page 12



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the governing bodies identified, by authorized action, have
caused this Agreement to be executed and their respective seals to be affixed hereto and

attested by their respective clerks or secretaries commencing effective on the date when fully
executed.

COUNTY OF DINWIDDIE

By:
Name:
Title:
ATTEST:
By:
Name:
Title:
Approved as to form:
By:
, County Attorney

[Signatures continue on next page]

Page 10 of 16
Public Hearing - Page 13



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the governing bodies identified, by authorized action, have
caused this Agreement to be executed and their respective seals to be affixed hereto and

attested by their respective clerks or secretaries commencing effective on the date when fully
executed.

CITY OF HOPEWELL

By:
Name:
Title:

ATTEST:

By:

Name:

Title:

Approved as to form:

By:

, City Attorney

[Signatures continue on next page]

Page 11 of 16
Public Hearing - Page 14



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the governing bodies identified, by authorized action, have
caused this Agreement to be executed and their respective seals to be affixed hereto and

attested by their respective clerks or secretaries commencing effective on the date when fully
executed.

CITY OF PETERSBURG

By:
Name:
Title:
ATTEST:
By:
Name:
Title:

Approved as to form:

By:

, City Attorney

[Signatures continue on next page]

Page 12 of 16
Public Hearing - Page 15



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the governing bodies identified, by authorized action, have
caused this Agreement to be executed and their respective seals to be affixed hereto and

attested by their respective clerks or secretaries commencing effective on the date when fully
executed.

COUNTY OF PRINCE GEORGE

By:
Name:
Title:
ATTEST:
By:
Name:
Title:
Approved as to form:
By:
, County Attorney

[Signatures continue on next page]

Page 13 of 16
Public Hearing - Page 16



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the governing bodies identified, by authorized action, have
caused this Agreement to be executed and their respective seals to be affixed hereto and

attested by their respective clerks or secretaries commencing effective on the date when fully
executed.

COUNTY OF SURRY
By:
Name:
Title:
ATTEST:
By:
Name:
Title:
Approved as to form:
By:
, County Attorney

[Signatures continue on next page]

Page 14 of 16
Public Hearing - Page 17



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the governing bodies identified, by authorized action, have
caused this Agreement to be executed and their respective seals to be affixed hereto and

attested by their respective clerks or secretaries commencing effective on the date when fully
executed.

COUNTY OF SUSSEX
By:
Name:
Title:
ATTEST:
By:
Name:
Title:
Approved as to form:
By:
, County Attorney

Page 15 of 16
Public Hearing - Page 18



EXHIBITA

BYLAWS

Page 16 of 16 _
Public Hearing - Page 19



VIRGINIA’S GATEWAY REGION INDUSTRIAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
BYLAWS

ARTICLE |
NAME; FORMATION; POWERS OF AUTHORITY; CERTAIN DEFINITIONS

Section 1

The name of the authority (the “Authority”) shall be “Virginia’s Gateway Region Industrial
Facilities Authority.”

Section 2

The Authority was formed in accordance with the Virginia Regional Industrial Facilities Act,
Chapter 64, Title 15.2, Section 15.2-6400 et seq., Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended (the
“Act”). The initial Member Localities have entered into that certain Agreement Creating the
Virginia’s Gateway Region Industrial Facilities Authority, as the same may be amended
from time to time (the “RIFA Agreement”).

Section 3

The Authority is vested with the powers of a body corporate, including the power to sue and be
sued in its own name, plead and be impleaded, and adopt and use a common seal and alter the
same as may be deemed expedient. In addition to additional powers set forth in the Act, the
Authority may, to the extent of available resources:

1. adopt bylaws, rules and regulations to carry out the provisions of the Act;

2. employ, either as regular employees or as independent contractors, consultants,
engineers, architects, accountants, attorneys, financial experts, construction experts
and personnel, superintendents, managers and other professional personnel,
personnel, and agents as may be necessary in the judgment of the Authority, and
fix their compensation;

3. determine the locations of, develop, establish, construct, erect, repair, remodel, add
to, extend, improve, equip, operate, regulate, and maintain facilities to the extent
necessary or convenient to accomplish the purposes of the Authority;

4. acquire, own, hold, lease, use, sell, encumber, transfer, or dispose of, in its own
name, any real or personal property or interests therein;

5. invest and reinvest funds of the Authority;

Public Hearing - Page 20



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

enter into contracts of any kind, and execute all instruments necessary or convenient
with respect to its carrying out the powers in the Act to accomplish the purposes of
the Authority;

expend such funds as may be available to it for the purpose of developing facilities,
including but not limited to (i) purchasing real estate; (ii) grading sites; (iii)
improving, replacing, and extending water, sewer, natural gas, electrical, and other
utility lines; (iv) constructing, rehabilitating, and expanding buildings; (v)
constructing parking facilities; (vi) constructing access roads, streets, and rail lines;
(vii) purchasing or leasing machinery and tools; and (viii) making any other
improvements deemed necessary by the Authority to meet its objectives;

fix and revise from time to time and charge and collect rates, rents, fees, or other
charges for the use of facilities or for services rendered in connection with the
facilities;

borrow money from any source for any valid purpose, including working capital
for its operations, reserve funds, or interest; mortgage, pledge, or otherwise
encumber the property or funds of the Authority; and contract with or engage the
services of any person in connection with any financing, including financial
institutions, issuers of letters of credit, or insurers;

issue bonds under the Act;

accept funds and property from the Commonwealth of Virginia (the
“Commonwealth”), persons, counties, cities, and towns and use the same for any
of the purposes for which the Authority is created;

apply for and accept grants or loans of money or other property from any federal
agency for any of the purposes authorized in the Act and expend or use the same in
accordance with the directions and requirements attached thereto or imposed
thereon by any such federal agency;

make loans or grants to, and enter into cooperative arrangements with, any person,
partnership, association, corporation, business or governmental entity in
furtherance of the purposes of the Act, for the purposes of promoting economic and
workforce development, provided that such loans or grants shall be made only from
revenues of the Authority that have not been pledged or assigned for the payment
of any of the Authority's bonds, and to enter into such contracts, instruments, and
agreements as may be expedient to provide for such loans, and any security
therefor. The word "revenues" as used in this subsection includes grants, loans,
funds and property, as set out in subsections 11 and 12 immediately above;

enter into agreements with any other political subdivision of the Commonwealth

for joint or cooperative action in accordance with Section 15.2-1300 of the Code
of Virginia, 1950, as amended; and

Page 2 of 6

Public Hearing - Page 21


http://law.lis.virginia.gov/vacode/15.2-1300/

15.  do all things necessary or convenient to carry out the purposes of the Act.

Section 4

Capitalized terms used in these Bylaws and not otherwise defined shall have the meanings
prescribed in the Act.

ARTICLE II
BOARD

Section 1

The Authority shall be governed by a board as prescribed in Section 15.2-6403 of the Act and
provided in the RIFA Agreement (the “Board”). The Board shall consist of such number of Board
members as provided in the RIFA Agreement. Board members and alternate Board members shall
be appointed and shall serve for such terms as provided in the RIFA Agreement. The chair (the
“Chair”), vice chair (“Vice Chair”), treasurer (“Treasurer”) and secretary (“Secretary”) of the
Board shall be appointed as provided in the RIFA Agreement. By adopting these Bylaws the Board
appoints Virginia’s Gateway Region as the initial staff and fiscal agent for the Authority, in
accordance with the RIFA Agreement, Article 8.

Section 2

A. The Chair of the Board shall conduct the meetings of the Board, execute documents
on behalf of the Board, function as the chief executive officer of the Authority, and execute such
duties as the Board may delegate to the Chair by resolution.

B. The Vice Chair of the Board shall serve in the place and stead of the Chair when he
or she is unable or unwilling to serve in such capacity.

C. The Secretary shall have the responsibility for preparing and maintaining custody
of minutes of the Board’s meetings, for maintaining the records, and for authenticating records of
the Authority. The Secretary shall also perform such other duties as may be assigned from time to
time by the Board.

D. The Treasurer shall keep or cause to be kept complete and accurate books of
account. Whenever required by the Board, the Treasurer shall render a financial statement showing
all transactions of the Authority and the financial condition of the Authority. The Treasurer shall
also perform such other duties as may be assigned from time to time by the Board.

Section 3
The Board may appoint an executive director (“Executive Director”) and such other staff who
shall discharge such functions as may be directed by the Board. The Executive Director and any

staff members shall be paid from funds received by the Authority.

Page 3 of 6

Public Hearing - Page 22



Section 4

Each member of the Board shall, before entering upon the discharge of the duties of his
or her office, take and subscribe to the oath prescribed in Section 49-1 of the Code of
Virginia, 1950, as amended. Each member of the Board is an “officer” under the State and
Local Government Conflict of Interests Act (Va. Code § 2.2-3100 et seq.) (“COIA”).

Section 5

Members of the Board shall be reimbursed for actual expenses incurred in the
performance of their duties from funds available to the Authority. No Board member shall
receive compensation.

Section 6

6.1  The regular meetings of the Board shall occur not less than once every six months on
such dates and at such places and hours as may be agreed upon by the members of the Board.
Regular meetings of the Board may be adjourned or continued, without further public notice,
from day to day or from time to time or from place to place, but not beyond the time fixed for
the next regular meeting, until the business before the Board is completed. The Board may
agree to modify the frequency, dates, schedule or other details for regular meetings by a
regular vote of the Board in accordance with these Bylaws. All meetings of the Authority and
its committees shall comply with the Virginia Freedom of Information Act (Title 2.2, Chapter 37
of the Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended); and the Board and its committees may hold closed
sessions as permitted therein.

6.2 A quorumfor the transaction of business at any meeting of the Board shall exist when a
majority of the Member Localities are represented by at least one member of the Board.
Except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws, the affirmative vote of a quorum of the Board
shall be necessary for any action taken by the Board. No vacancy in the membership of the Board
shall impair the right of a quorum to exercise all the rights and perform all of the duties of the
Board.

6.3 The affirmative vote of members of the Board representing two-thirds of the total number
of members of the Board (a “Supermajority”) shall be required for the following actions of the
Board:

(i)  sale or transfer of all or substantially all of the Authority assets;

(i) causing or permitting the Authority to incur any indebtedness for borrowed money
in excess of $50,000 over the term of such borrowing (taking in to account any
permitted renewals or extensions thereof), except pursuant to a budget that has been
approved by a Supermajority;

(iii)  causing or permitting the Authority to make any loan, capital expenditure, call or
other contribution with respect to any security, asset, venture or investment project

Page 4 of 6

Public Hearing - Page 23



or item held or engaged in by the Authority, or any series of related loans,
expenditures, calls or other contributions, except pursuant to a budget that has been
approved by a Supermajority;

(iv) causing or permitting the Authority to enter into any contract or agreement with a
term in excess of one year, other than in the ordinary course of business, or
involving payments by or to the Authority in excess of $50,000 over the term of
such contract or agreement (taking in to account any permitted renewals or
extensions thereof), except pursuant to a budget that has been approved by a
Supermajority;

(v)  making any distributions of Authority cash or other property, except as specifically
provided in the RIFA Agreement, these Bylaws or any Participation Agreement;
and

(vi)  issuance of any Bonds by the Authority.

6.4  No member of the Board present shall abstain from voting unless the member has a
conflict of interest in the matter being voted upon. For the purposes of this paragraph, a “conflict
of interest” shall exist when there is an actual conflict: (1) pursuant to COIA; or (2) pursuant to
any applicable policy adopted by the Authority; or (3) as stated by the member unless objected to
by a vote of a quorum of the Board.

6.5  Anytwo or more Board members representing two or more Member Localities may call
a special meeting of the Board. Any such request for a special meeting shall be in writing, and
the request shall specify the time and place of the meeting and the matters to be considered at the
meeting. A reasonable effort shall be made to provide each member of the Board with notice of
any special meeting. No matter not specified in the notice shall be considered at such special
meeting unless all the members of the Board are present. Special meetings may be adjourned or
continued, without further public notice, from day to day or from time to time or from place to
place, not beyond the time fixed for the next regular meeting, until the business before the Board
is completed.

Section 7

The Authority’s fiscal year shall be the same as the fiscal year of the Commonwealth of
Virginia. The Board, within one hundred twenty (120) days following the close of the fiscal year,
shall submit an annual report of the Authority's activities of the preceding year to the governing
body of each Member Locality. Each such report shall set forth a complete operating and financial
statement covering the operation of the Authority during such year. The Authority’s books and
records shall be kept in such form as the Auditor of Public Accounts prescribes, but otherwise shall
correspond as nearly as possible to accounts and records maintained by corporate enterprises, all
subject to and in accordance with Section 15.2-6413 of the Act.

Page 5 of 6

Public Hearing - Page 24



ARTICLE Il
OFFICE OF AUTHORITY; TITLE TO PROPERTY

The Board shall maintain the principal office of the Authority within a Member Locality. All
records shall be kept at such office. The title to all property of every kind belonging to the
Authority shall be titled to the Authority, which shall hold it for the benefit of the Member
Localities.

ARTICLE IV
AMENDMENT OF BYLAWS

These Bylaws may be altered, amended or repealed only by an amendment, resolutions, or
ordinance approved by the affirmative vote of members of the Board representing two-thirds of
the total number of the Board. No such amendment shall be inconsistent with the Act, the RIFA
Agreement, or other applicable law, nor shall any such amendment reduce the rights, or modify
the obligations of a Member Locality, for any previously approved Participation Agreement (as
defined in the RIFA Agreement).

Adopted as of
, 2021

for the Authority

By:
Name:
Title: Chair

Attest:

, Secretary

Page 6 of 6

Public Hearing - Page 25



ORDINANCE NO. 21-08

AN ORDINANCE CREATING A REGIONAL INDUSTRIAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
PURSUANT TO SECTION 15.2-6400 ET SEQ. OF THE CODE OF VIRGINIA (the “Act”)

WHEREAS, this Board of Supervisors recognizes that providing a mechanism for localities in the local
region to cooperate in the development of economic development projects and facilities is needed and
desired in the Region (as defined below); and

WHEREAS, this Board of Supervisors acknowledges that the purpose of a regional industrial facility
authority is to enhance the economic base for its member localities by developing, owning and operating
one or more facilities on a cooperative basis involving its member localities; and

WHEREAS, this Board of Supervisors finds that economic growth and development of the County of
Sussex, Virginia (the “County”), and the comfort, convenience and welfare of the citizens of the County
require the development of facilities, and that the collaborative and collective action through a regional
industrial facility authority by the City of Colonial Heights, the County of Dinwiddie, the City of Hopewell,
the City of Petersburg, the County of Prince George, the County of Surry, and the County of Sussex will
facilitate the development of the needed facilities within the region that comprises said geographic areas

(the “Region™).

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Supervisors of the County of Sussex,
Virginia (the “Board of Supervisors”), that:

1. The name of the Regional Industrial Facility Authority shall be the “Virginia’s Gateway Region
Industrial Facilities Authority” (the “Authority”).

2. The initial member localities shall be the City of Colonial Heights, the County of Dinwiddie, the
City of Hopewell, the City of Petersburg, the County of Prince George, the County of Surry, and the County
of Sussex (each, a “Member Locality” and collectively, the “Member Localities”). Each Member Locality’s
participation shall become effective on the date their respective governing body enacts an ordinance
substantially similar to this ordinance authorizing the creation of the Authority. At any time subsequent to
the creation of the Authority, the membership of the Authority may, with the approval of the Authority
Board (as hereinafter defined and as more fully described in the Bylaws of the Authority), be expanded to
include any locality within the region that would have been eligible to be an initial member. The governing
body of a locality seeking to become a member shall evidence its intent to become a member by adopting
an ordinance substantially similar to this ordinance (and otherwise in conformance with Section 15.2-6402
of the Act). The admission of such member shall be completed upon the Authority Board approving the
admission, after being presented with the requisite ordinance adopted by such locality.

3. The Authority shall be governed by an initial board (the “Authority Board™) consisting of two (2)
board members from each Member Locality. Authority Board members shall be appointed by their
respective Member Locality’s governing body.

Each governing body of each Member Locality may appoint up to two (2) alternate Authority Board
members. Alternates shall be appointed for terms that coincide with one or more of the Authority Board
members from the Member Locality that appoints the alternate. If either Authority Board member for a
Member Locality is not present at a meeting of the Authority, an alternate shall have all the voting and other
rights of the Board member not present and shall be counted for purpose of determining a quorum and all
other purposes of that meeting.

Public Hearing - Page 26



In the event that additional Member Localities shall enact an ordinance to join the Authority and
are admitted upon the Authority Board approving the admission, the number of members of the Authority
Board shall be increased by two (2) members for each additional Member Locality, with Authority Board
members to be appointed in accordance with the criteria set forth above for initial Authority Board Members
and alternates.

Each member of the Authority Board shall serve for a term of four (4) years and may be reappointed
for as many terms as the governing body from said Authority Board member’s Member Locality desires.

4. The Authority Board shall have such authority and exercise such powers as are permitted by the
Code of Virginia, the Agreement Creating Authority (as defined below), and in the Bylaws of the Authority
Board (a draft copy of which is attached hereto and which shall be approved by the Authority in
substantially the same form as said draft).

5. The Authority Board shall elect from its membership a Chair, Vice Chair, Treasurer and Secretary
for each calendar year. The Authority Board may also appoint an Executive Director and staff who shall
discharge such functions as may be directed by the Authority Board. The Executive Director and staff may
be paid from funds received by the Authority.

6. This Board of Supervisors authorizes approval, by appropriate execution by the designated
representative of the County, an agreement (the “Agreement Creating Authority”) among the Member
Localities whereby the Authority shall be established and further whereby the respective rights and
obligations of the Member Localities with respect to the Authority, in accordance with the provisions of
the Act, shall be set forth (a draft copy of which is attached hereto and which shall be approved by the
Authority in substantially the same form as said draft). The Agreement Creating Authority shall (i) establish
the terms for participation in the Authority by Member Localities and (ii) further describe the participation
agreements (the “Participation Agreements”) that the Authority may enter into with one or more Member
Localities by which any facilities allowed by the Act may be constructed and developed. This authorization
includes, but is not limited to, authority for this Board of Supervisors to approve, by ordinance, Participation
Agreements by which Authority projects shall be constructed and developed and which may be funded
from this Board of Supervisors’ commitment of loans or grants and in the event that a facility will be located
within the County, future tax revenue derived from the Authority’s project facilities located within the
County, pursuant to Section 15.2-6406 of the Act.

7. If and to the extent one or more of the Member Localities named herein does not pass an ordinance
substantially similar to this ordinance, this ordinance shall be deemed to automatically remove said Member
Locality without further action or vote of this Board of Supervisors; it being the intent of this ordinance
that it shall be adopted with any number and composition of the Member Localities named herein so long
as said ordinance, and the Authority created herein, shall be in compliance with all applicable statutes.

PASSED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE COUNTY OF SUSSEX _,2021

County Administrator

A true copy, teste:

County Clerk

Public Hearing - Page 27



Sussex-Surry Dispatch, Wednesday, November 3,2021 Page?

COUNTY OF SUSSEX
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

NOTICE is hereby given that the Board of Supervisors of the
County of Sussex, Virginia, will conduct a public hearing on
November 18, 2021 at 6:00 p.m., or as soon thereafter as
may be heard, In the Sussex Judicial Center, 15088 Court-
house Road, Sussex, Virginia 23884, to conslder the follow-
Ing:

Ordinance No, 21-102, AN ORDINANCE TO JOIN THE REGION-
AL INDUSTRIAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY PURSUANT TO
SECTION 15.2-6400 ET SEQ. OF THE CODE OF VIRGINIA,
1850, AS AMENDED:

The Board of Supervisors of the County of Sussex, Virginla, wil
conduct a public hearing regarding the adoption of an ordinance
to Join the Virginia's Gateway Region industrial Facilities Authority
in collaboration and cooperation with the City of Colonial Haights,
the County of Dinwiddie, the City of Hopawell, the City of Petars-
burg, the County of Prince George, and the County of Surry, to
foster. ecanomic| 7 Wﬂt of the County of Sus-
sax and the reglmggrpmoti‘ ja comifort, c&%?;enl‘énoe and x
welfare of the cilizens of the County of Sussex by developing,
owning and operating one or more faciiities on a cooperative ba-
sis with the other member localities.

All interested persons are invited to attend the mesting. The ordi-
nance materials are aon file in the County Administrator's Office
and may be viewed during normal office hours at 20135 Princeton
Road, Sussex, Virginia 23884.

Persons requiring an accommodation In order 1o participate in the
hearing should call (434) 246- 1000, County Administrator's Of-
fice, at least three (3) days in advancs of the meeting.

RICHARD DOUGLAS
COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR
1113 & 1110/2021

Public Hearing - Page 28



BOARD ACTION FORM

Agenda Item: Appointments #5.01
Subject: Nominations for Appointments to the Board of Equalization

Board Meeting Date: November 18 2021

Summary: This item was on the October 2021 regular Board agenda. The County is currently
undergoing a reassessment. As part of the reassessment, the County makes recommendations for
nomination to the Circuit Clerk Judge for appointment to the Board of Equalization. In 2018, the
Board of Equalization was put in place; however, no terms were set and one member is no longer
eligible to continue to serve. Staff contacted members appointed in 2018. They were willing to
continue to serve if it’s the Board’s desire.

The four members currently serving on the Board of Equalization are: (1) Ms. Antionette Jones,
13174 Shands Road, Stony Creek, Virginia 23882; (2) Mr. Dennis Mason, 407 East Main Street,
Wakefield, VA 23888; (3) Ms. Carla Mayes, 28237 Petersburg Road, Waverly, VA 23890; and, (4)
Mr. Jerry Parham, 33117 Sussex Drive, Waverly, VA 23890.

FYI: The Board of Equalization is composed of five members. Staff has contacted members
appointed by the Circuit Court Judge in 2018. All are willing to continue serve, if reappointed.

The five member panel must meet the following requirements: (1) Each member must be a
resident of the County; (2) A majority of the board must be freeholders; (3) Thirty percent shall be
commercial or residential real estate appraisers, other real estate professionals, builders,
developers or legal or financial professionals; and, (4) Each member shall attend and participate
in the basic course of instruction given by the Department of Taxation.

Recommendation: That the Board recommends an individual(s) for nomination for appointment
by the Circuit Court Judge to fill the vacancy and set the terms for the Board of Equalization.

Attachments: Code of Virginia 15.2-716.1 Board of Equalization and Roster of current members

ACTION: That the Board recommends an individual(s) for nomination for appointment by the
Circuit Court Judge to fill the vacancy and set the terms for the Board of Equalization.

Member Aye Nay Member Aye Nay

Fly Seward
D. Jones L Tyler

W. Jones _ White
(Tie Breaker)

Appointments - Page 1




Independent Body

A Board of Equalization is a Governmental Agency, and is a component part of the judicial or
legislative branch of local government. Board members are appointed by the Circuit Court or by the
local governing body, and are Officers of the appointing body.

Boards should be conscious of maintaining a degree of separation from the Assessing Officer,
members of the local governing body, or governmental administration. Confidence in a Board may
be undermined if property owners/taxpayers believe that the Board is not acting as an impartial and
independent citizen body.

Organization of a Board of Equalization

Boards are typically comprised of not less than three or more than five members, and are to be made
up of local citizens, the majority of which are property owners. Members are appointed by the local
circuit court to a permanent Board or one serving until the end of the tax year following the year of
reassessment, or by the local Board of Supervisors under county executive or county manager form
of government.

Under the County Manager form of government Board membership may range from three to eleven
persons. Other provisions for a Board of Equalization under the County Manager form of
government are specified in §15.2-716.1 of the Code of Virginia (see Appendix A).

Board members must be broadly representative of the community, and at least 30 percent of a Board
must be commercial or residential real estate appraisers, other real estate professionals, builders,
developers, or legal or financial professionals, and at least one such member shall sit in all cases
involving commercial, industrial or multi-family residential property, unless waived by the taxpayer.
Statute provides for alternate Board members to be appointed.

A Board will only address the values of the reassessment. All values are as of the tax day, January
1* or July 1%, as established by the locality. By local ordinance, the submission of appeal
applications and the final disposition of all applications may be limited to specific dates. Otherwise,
the term of a Board shall expire one year after the effective date of the assessment for which they
were appointed.

Following the required training, prospective members become an official Board when the Presiding
Judge of the locality swears them in. In their first public meeting, Board members should hold an
organizational meeting to elect a Chairman who will preside over the appeal hearings, and a
Secretary who will be responsible for the recording of the minutes and the preparation of notices and
reports. At this meeting, the members should also attend to procedural matters and address the
conduct of its hearings. For example, a Board may decide to limit the time allotted for individual
appellant presentations. Whatever procedural guidelines adopted by a Board must comply with
statute and applied evenly to all appellants.

Sittings of a Board

Having provided the public at least a ten-calendar day advance notice of its meetings, a Board can then
convene to hear appeals. The Chairman will preside over the hearings, call on each appellant to present
his or her case, make introductions, and may swear in the appellant and other witnesses. The appellant

Virginia Department of Taxation,

Board of Equalization Manual

Revised January 28,

Chapter 2, Page 18

2020 Appointments - Page 2 Ll



Board of Equalization
May 2018

Jeffrey-Gary Conflict of Interest
AL D e e o]

WaverlyVA-23890
804.898.0714

Ms. Antionette Jones

13174 Shands Road

Stony Creek, Virginia 23882
804.720.8247 (c)

Dennis Mason

407 East Main Street
Wakefield, Virginia 23888
757.647.9799 (c)

Carla Mayes, Realtor
(Harris & Associates, Inc.)
28237 Petersburg Road
Waverly, Virginia 23890
mayesbhg@aol.com
804.720.9379

Jerry Parham

33117 Sussex Drive
Waverly, Virginia 23890
Parham823@verizon.net
804.943.5664 (c)

Appointments - Page 3


mailto:mayesbhg@aol.com
mailto:Parham823@verizon.net

BOARD ACTION FORM

Agenda Item: Appointments #5.02
Subject: Appointment to the Sussex Service Authority

Board Meeting Date: November 18 2021

Summary: This item was on the October 2021 Board agenda. Staff was advised by Mr. Frank
Irving, of Sussex Service Authority, that there was a vacancy for an unexpired term on the Sussex
Service Authority for an alternate in the At-Large position.

The position is for any citizen who resides in Sussex County (prefer them to be in our service area,
but not mandatory) and is not an elected official. The position is currently held by Sam Harrison
but he has moved out of Sussex County and is no longer eligible. He will continue to serve until
his replacement has been appointed.

This position will serve through December 2022 at which time they can be renewed for another
four-year term.

Recommendation: That Board makes an appointment to fill the unexpired term of the alternate

in the At-Large position on the Sussex Service Authority Board, through expiring December 31,
2022 at which time a reappointment for a four-year term will need to be made.

Attachment: None

ACTION: That Board makes an appointment to fill the unexpired term of the alternate in the At-
Large position on the Sussex Service Authority Board, through expiring December 31, 2022 at
which time a reappointment for a four-year term will need to be made.

MOTION BY: SECONDED BY:

Member Member

Fly Seward
D. Jones Tyler

W. Jones White
(Tie Breaker)

Appointments - Page 4




BOARD ACTION FORM

Agenda Item: Appointments #5.03
Subject: Appointments to the Department of Social Services Advisory Board

Board Meeting Date: November 18 2021

Summary: This item was tabled from previous Board of Supervisors regular meetings agenda.

The Board discussed contacting members of the former DSS Administrative Board in regards to
their interest in serving on the Advisory Board. There was also the Board’s general consensus to
have representation from each district. A list of names was also provided by Mr. Hagy, the
Director of Social Services.

Three members—Stony Creek, Wakefield and Waverly Districts—were interested contingent
upon further information provided.

Recommendation: None

Attachment: None

ACTION: TBD

MOTION BY: SECONDED BY:

Member Member

Fly Seward
D. Jones Tyler

W. Jones White
(Tie Breaker)

Appointments - Page 5




BOARD ACTION FORM

Agenda Item: Action Item #6.01
Subject: Use of American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (ARPA) Funds

Board Meeting Date: November 18 2021

Summary: A public hearing was held to receive public input on the use of American Rescue Plan
Act of 2021 (ARPA).

As previously mentioned, the majority of the ARPA funds are proposed to be used for operating
and capital items removed in the current year operating budget, as well as matching funds for
the proposed VATI broadband project.

Recommendation: That the Board appropriates ARPA funds for the requested items, to include
any amendments by the Board of Supervisors

Attachments: List of Proposed ARPA Fund Uses; SLFRP Fact Sheet; and CSFRF/CLFRF, or Fiscal
Recovery Funds Frequently Ask Questions Sheet

REQUESTED ACTION:

MOTION BY: SECONDED BY:

Member Member

Fly Seward
D. Jones Tyler
W. Jones White

(Tie Breaker)

Action Items - Page 1




Office of the County Administrator
American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA)

Year 1 Proposed| Year 1 Modified Proposed
Proposed Use of Funds Initial Proposal (FY22) (FY22) (FY23)
General Government Economic Development Director 65,000.00 48,000.00 40,000.00 -
Human Resource Director 33,000.00 15,000.00 10,000.00 -
Front Desk/Secretary 41,000.00 25,000.00 20,000.00 -
Voting Machine* 8,000.00 8,000.00 8,000.00 -
Sub-Total 147,000.00 96,000.00 78,000.00
Public Works Additional Planning Support 20,000.00 20,000.00 10,000.00 -
Convenience Sites - Bulk Hauling 45,000.00 40,000.00 40,000.00 -
Convenience Sites - Contract (Staffing cut 50%) 163,000.00 163,000.00 200,000.00 =
Buildings & Grounds Projects* 63,800.00 63,800.00 40,000.00
Solid Waste Vehicle* 44,000.00 - -
Sub-Total 335,800.00 286,800.00 290,000.00
Fire, Resuce & Emergency Additional Allocation to Fire 10,000.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 -
Additional Allocation to EMS 4,000.00 4,000.00 4,000.00 -
Lifestar Contract (cut 50%) 465,000.00 465,000.00 465,000.00 -
Generator - EOC* 75,000.00 - - -
Animal Control (MISC)* 47,000.00 47,000.00 47,000.00 -
Sub-Total 601,000.00 526,000.00 526,000.00
Parks, Recreation & Cultural GIS Upgrades 50,000.00 50,000.00 30,000.00 -
Sub-Total 50,000.00 50,000.00 30,000.00
Sheriff's Operations & Jail  Sheriff Sanitizing Machines 56,000.00 56,000.00 56,000.00 -
E-tickets* 30,000.00 30,000.00 30,000.00 -
Sub-Total 86,000.00 86,000.00 86,000.00
Outside Agencies Waverly Wastewater 25,000.00 25,000.00 5,000.00 -
Sub-Total 25,000.00 25,000.00 5,000.00
Broadband PGECE/Tobacco Commission/Cameron Foundation 500,000.00 - 500,000.00
Sub-Total 500,000.00
Total Proposed Use of Funds S 1,744,800.00 | $ 2,139,600.00 | $ 1,015,000.00 S 500,000.00

$422,705.00

S 1,083,752.50

$1,083,752.50 S 1,083,752.50

Unallocated Balance

$ 1,322,095.00

$ (1,055,847.50)

S 68,752.50 S  583,752.50

* = FY22 Department Requested Capital Projects

Total ARPA Funds Allocated to Sussex

$

2,167,505.00

Action Items - Page 2




FACT SHEET: The Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds Will Deliver
$350 Billion for State, Local, Territorial, and Tribal Governments to Respond to the
COVID-19 Emergency and Bring Back Jobs

May 10, 2021

Aid to state, local, territorial, and Tribal governments will help turn the tide on the pandemic, address its
economic fallout, and lay the foundation for a strong and equitable recovery

Today, the U.S. Department of the Treasury announced the launch of the Coronavirus State and Local
Fiscal Recovery Funds, established by the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021, to provide $350 billion in
emergency funding for eligible state, local, territorial, and Tribal governments. Treasury also released
details on how these funds can be used to respond to acute pandemic response needs, fill revenue
shortfalls among these governments, and support the communities and populations hardest-hit by the
COVID-19 crisis. With the launch of the Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds, eligible
jurisdictions will be able to access this funding in the coming days to address these needs.

State, local, territorial, and Tribal governments have been on the frontlines of responding to the
immense public health and economic needs created by this crisis — from standing up vaccination sites to
supporting small businesses — even as these governments confronted revenue shortfalls during the
downturn. As a result, these governments have endured unprecedented strains, forcing many to make
untenable choices between laying off educators, firefighters, and other frontline workers or failing to
provide other services that communities rely on. Faced with these challenges, state and local
governments have cut over 1 million jobs since the beginning of the crisis. The experience of prior
economic downturns has shown that budget pressures like these often result in prolonged fiscal
austerity that can slow an economic recovery.

To support the immediate pandemic response, bring back jobs, and lay the groundwork for a strong and
equitable recovery, the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 established the Coronavirus State and Local
Fiscal Recovery Funds, designed to deliver $350 billion to state, local, territorial, and Tribal governments
to bolster their response to the COVID-19 emergency and its economic impacts. Today, Treasury is
launching this much-needed relief to:

e Support urgent COVID-19 response efforts to continue to decrease spread of the virus and bring
the pandemic under control;

* Replace lost public sector revenue to strengthen support for vital public services and help retain
jobs;

e Support immediate economic stabilization for households and businesses; and,

e Address systemic public health and economic challenges that have contributed to the inequal
impact of the pandemic on certain populations.

The Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds provide substantial flexibility for each jurisdiction
to meet local needs—including support for households, small businesses, impacted industries, essential
workers, and the communities hardest-hit by the crisis. These funds also deliver resources that
recipients can invest in building, maintaining, or upgrading their water, sewer, and broadband
infrastructure.

Action Items - Page 3



Starting today, eligible state, territorial, metropolitan city, county, and Tribal governments may request
Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds through the Treasury Submission Portal. Concurrent
with this program launch, Treasury has published an Interim Final Rule that implements the provisions
of this program.

FUNDING AMOUNTS

The American Rescue Plan provides a total of $350 billion in Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery
Funds to help eligible state, local, territorial, and Tribal governments meet their present needs and build
the foundation for a strong recovery. Congress has allocated this funding to tens of thousands of
jurisdictions. These allocations include:

Amount
Type ($ billions)
States & District of Columbia $195.3
Counties $65.1
Metropolitan Cites S45.6
Tribal Governments $20.0
Territories $4.5
Non-Entitlement Units of $19.5

Local Government

Treasury expects to distribute these funds directly to each state, territorial, metropolitan city, county,
and Tribal government. Local governments that are classified as non-entitlement units will receive this
funding through their applicable state government. Treasury expects to provide further guidance on
distributions to non-entitlement units next week.

Local governments should expect to receive funds in two tranches, with 50% provided beginning in May
2021 and the balance delivered 12 months later. States that have experienced a net increase in the
unemployment rate of more than 2 percentage points from February 2020 to the latest available data as
of the date of certification will receive their full allocation of funds in a single payment; other states will
receive funds in two equal tranches. Governments of U.S. territories will receive a single payment.
Tribal governments will receive two payments, with the first payment available in May and the second
payment, based on employment data, to be delivered in June 2021.

USES OF FUNDING

Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds provide eligible state, local, territorial, and Tribal
governments with a substantial infusion of resources to meet pandemic response needs and rebuild a
stronger, more equitable economy as the country recovers. Within the categories of eligible uses,
recipients have broad flexibility to decide how best to use this funding to meet the needs of their
communities. Recipients may use Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds to:

Action Items - Page 4



* Support public health expenditures, by funding COVID-19 mitigation efforts, medical expenses,
behavioral healthcare, and certain public health and safety staff;

* Address negative economic impacts caused by the public health emergency, including
economic harms to workers, households, small businesses, impacted industries, and the public
sector;

* Replace lost public sector revenue, using this funding to provide government services to the
extent of the reduction in revenue experienced due to the pandemic;

* Provide premium pay for essential workers, offering additional support to those who have
borne and will bear the greatest health risks because of their service in critical infrastructure
sectors; and,

* Invest in water, sewer, and broadband infrastructure, making necessary investments to
improve access to clean drinking water, support vital wastewater and stormwater
infrastructure, and to expand access to broadband internet.

Within these overall categories, Treasury’s Interim Final Rule provides guidelines and principles for
determining the types of programs and services that this funding can support, together with examples
of allowable uses that recipients may consider. As described below, Treasury has also designed these
provisions to take into consideration the disproportionate impacts of the COVID-19 public health
emergency on those hardest-hit by the pandemic.

1. Supporting the public health response

Mitigating the impact of COVID-19 continues to require an unprecedented public health response from
state, local, territorial, and Tribal governments. Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds
provide resources to meet these needs through the provision of care for those impacted by the virus
and through services that address disparities in public health that have been exacerbated by the
pandemic. Recipients may use this funding to address a broad range of public health needs across
COVID-19 mitigation, medical expenses, behavioral healthcare, and public health resources. Among
other services, these funds can help support:

* Services and programs to contain and mitigate the spread of COVID-19, including:

v Vaccination programs v' Enhancement of healthcare capacity,
v" Medical expenses including alternative care facilities
v' Testing v’ Support for prevention, mitigation, or
v Contact tracing other services in congregate living
v’ Isolation or quarantine facilities and schools
v' PPE purchases v' Enhancement of public health data
v’ Support for vulnerable populations to systems
access medical or public health services v Capital investments in public facilities to
v" Public health surveillance (e.g., meet pandemic operational needs
monitoring for variants) v" Ventilation improvements in key settings
v" Enforcement of public health orders like healthcare facilities
v Public communication efforts

Action Iltems - Page 5



Services to address behavioral healthcare needs exacerbated by the pandemic, including:

v" Mental health treatment v’ Crisis intervention

v" Substance misuse treatment v Services or outreach to promote access
v' Other behavioral health services to health and social services

v" Hotlines or warmlines

Payroll and covered benefits expenses for public health, healthcare, human services, public
safety and similar employees, to the extent that they work on the COVID-19 response. For
public health and safety workers, recipients can use these funds to cover the full payroll and
covered benefits costs for employees or operating units or divisions primarily dedicated to the
COVID-19 response.

2. Addressing the negative economic impacts caused by the public health emergency

The COVID-19 public health emergency resulted in significant economic hardship for many Americans.
As businesses closed, consumers stayed home, schools shifted to remote education, and travel declined
precipitously, over 20 million jobs were lost between February and April 2020. Although many have
since returned to work, as of April 2021, the economy remains more than 8 million jobs below its pre-
pandemic peak, and more than 3 million workers have dropped out of the labor market altogether since
February 2020.

To help alleviate the economic hardships caused by the pandemic, Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal
Recovery Funds enable eligible state, local, territorial, and Tribal governments to provide a wide range
of assistance to individuals and households, small businesses, and impacted industries, in addition to
enabling governments to rehire public sector staff and rebuild capacity. Among these uses include:

Delivering assistance to workers and families, including aid to unemployed workers and job
training, as well as aid to households facing food, housing, or other financial insecurity. In
addition, these funds can support survivor’s benefits for family members of COVID-19 victims.

Supporting small businesses, helping them to address financial challenges caused by the
pandemic and to make investments in COVID-19 prevention and mitigation tactics, as well as to
provide technical assistance. To achieve these goals, recipients may employ this funding to
execute a broad array of loan, grant, in-kind assistance, and counseling programs to enable
small businesses to rebound from the downturn.

Speeding the recovery of the tourism, travel, and hospitality sectors, supporting industries that
were particularly hard-hit by the COVID-19 emergency and are just now beginning to mend.
Similarly impacted sectors within a local area are also eligible for support.

Rebuilding public sector capacity, by rehiring public sector staff and replenishing
unemployment insurance (Ul) trust funds, in each case up to pre-pandemic levels. Recipients
may also use this funding to build their internal capacity to successfully implement economic
relief programs, with investments in data analysis, targeted outreach, technology infrastructure,
and impact evaluations.

Action Items - Page 6



3. Serving the hardest-hit communities and families

While the pandemic has affected communities across the country, it has disproportionately impacted
low-income families and communities of color and has exacerbated systemic health and economic
inequities. Low-income and socially vulnerable communities have experienced the most severe health
impacts. For example, counties with high poverty rates also have the highest rates of infections and
deaths, with 223 deaths per 100,000 compared to the U.S. average of 175 deaths per 100,000.

Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds allow for a broad range of uses to address the
disproportionate public health and economic impacts of the crisis on the hardest-hit communities,
populations, and households. Eligible services include:

* Addressing health disparities and the social determinants of health, through funding for
community health workers, public benefits navigators, remediation of lead hazards, and
community violence intervention programs;

* Investments in housing and neighborhoods, such as services to address individuals
experiencing homelessness, affordable housing development, housing vouchers, and residential
counseling and housing navigation assistance to facilitate moves to neighborhoods with high
economic opportunity;

* Addressing educational disparities through new or expanded early learning services, providing
additional resources to high-poverty school districts, and offering educational services like
tutoring or afterschool programs as well as services to address social, emotional, and mental
health needs; and,

¢ Promoting healthy childhood environments, including new or expanded high quality childcare,
home visiting programs for families with young children, and enhanced services for child
welfare-involved families and foster youth.

Governments may use Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds to support these additional
services if they are provided:

* within a Qualified Census Tract (a low-income area as designated by the Department of Housing
and Urban Development);

e to families living in Qualified Census Tracts;
* by aTribal government; or,

» to other populations, households, or geographic areas disproportionately impacted by the
pandemic.

4. Replacing lost public sector revenue

State, local, territorial, and Tribal governments that are facing budget shortfalls may use Coronavirus
State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds to avoid cuts to government services. With these additional
resources, recipients can continue to provide valuable public services and ensure that fiscal austerity
measures do not hamper the broader economic recovery.

Action Items - Page 7



Many state, local, territorial, and Tribal governments have experienced significant budget shortfalls,
which can yield a devastating impact on their respective communities. Faced with budget shortfalls and
pandemic-related uncertainty, state and local governments cut staff in all 50 states. These budget
shortfalls and staff cuts are particularly problematic at present, as these entities are on the front lines of
battling the COVID-19 pandemic and helping citizens weather the economic downturn.

Recipients may use these funds to replace lost revenue. Treasury’s Interim Final Rule establishes a
methodology that each recipient can use to calculate its reduction in revenue. Specifically, recipients
will compute the extent of their reduction in revenue by comparing their actual revenue to an
alternative representing what could have been expected to occur in the absence of the pandemic.
Analysis of this expected trend begins with the last full fiscal year prior to the public health emergency
and projects forward at either (a) the recipient’s average annual revenue growth over the three full
fiscal years prior to the public health emergency or (b) 4.1%, the national average state and local
revenue growth rate from 2015-18 (the latest available data).

For administrative convenience, Treasury’s Interim Final Rule allows recipients to presume that any
diminution in actual revenue relative to the expected trend is due to the COVID-19 public health
emergency. Upon receiving Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds, recipients may
immediately calculate the reduction in revenue that occurred in 2020 and deploy funds to address any
shortfall. Recipients will have the opportunity to re-calculate revenue loss at several points through the
program, supporting those entities that experience a lagged impact of the crisis on revenues.

Importantly, once a shortfall in revenue is identified, recipients will have broad latitude to use this
funding to support government services, up to this amount of lost revenue.

5. Providing premium pay for essential workers

Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds provide resources for eligible state, local, territorial,
and Tribal governments to recognize the heroic contributions of essential workers. Since the start of the
public health emergency, essential workers have put their physical well-being at risk to meet the daily
needs of their communities and to provide care for others.

Many of these essential workers have not received compensation for the heightened risks they have
faced and continue to face. Recipients may use this funding to provide premium pay directly, or through
grants to private employers, to a broad range of essential workers who must be physically present at
their jobs including, among others:

v’ Staff at nursing homes, hospitals, v" Truck drivers, transit staff, and
and home-care settings warehouse workers

v" Workers at farms, food production v" Childcare workers, educators, and school
facilities, grocery stores, and restaurants staff

v Janitors and sanitation workers v Social service and human services staff

v Public health and safety staff

Treasury’s Interim Final Rule emphasizes the need for recipients to prioritize premium pay for lower
income workers. Premium pay that would increase a worker’s total pay above 150% of the greater of
the state or county average annual wage requires specific justification for how it responds to the needs
of these workers.

Action Items - Page 8



In addition, employers are both permitted and encouraged to use Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal
Recovery Funds to offer retrospective premium pay, recognizing that many essential workers have not
yet received additional compensation for work performed. Staff working for third-party contractors in
eligible sectors are also eligible for premium pay.

6. Investing in water and sewer infrastructure

Recipients may use Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds to invest in necessary
improvements to their water and sewer infrastructures, including projects that address the impacts of
climate change.

Recipients may use this funding to invest in an array of drinking water infrastructure projects, such as
building or upgrading facilities and transmission, distribution, and storage systems, including the
replacement of lead service lines.

Recipients may also use this funding to invest in wastewater infrastructure projects, including
constructing publicly-owned treatment infrastructure, managing and treating stormwater or subsurface
drainage water, facilitating water reuse, and securing publicly-owned treatment works.

To help jurisdictions expedite their execution of these essential investments, Treasury’s Interim Final
Rule aligns types of eligible projects with the wide range of projects that can be supported by the
Environmental Protection Agency’s Clean Water State Revolving Fund and Drinking Water State
Revolving Fund. Recipients retain substantial flexibility to identify those water and sewer infrastructure
investments that are of the highest priority for their own communities.

Treasury’s Interim Final Rule also encourages recipients to ensure that water, sewer, and broadband
projects use strong labor standards, including project labor agreements and community benefits
agreements that offer wages at or above the prevailing rate and include local hire provisions.

7. Investing in broadband infrastructure

The pandemic has underscored the importance of access to universal, high-speed, reliable, and
affordable broadband coverage. Over the past year, millions of Americans relied on the internet to
participate in remote school, healthcare, and work.

Yet, by at least one measure, 30 million Americans live in areas where there is no broadband service or
where existing services do not deliver minimally acceptable speeds. For millions of other Americans, the
high cost of broadband access may place it out of reach. The American Rescue Plan aims to help remedy
these shortfalls, providing recipients with flexibility to use Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery
Funds to invest in broadband infrastructure.

Recognizing the acute need in certain communities, Treasury’s Interim Final Rule provides that
investments in broadband be made in areas that are currently unserved or underserved—in other
words, lacking a wireline connection that reliably delivers minimum speeds of 25 Mbps download and 3
Mbps upload. Recipients are also encouraged to prioritize projects that achieve last-mile connections to
households and businesses.

Using these funds, recipients generally should build broadband infrastructure with modern technologies
in mind, specifically those projects that deliver services offering reliable 100 Mbps download and 100

Action Items - Page 9



Mbps upload speeds, unless impracticable due to topography, geography, or financial cost. In addition,
recipients are encouraged to pursue fiber optic investments.

In view of the wide disparities in broadband access, assistance to households to support internet access
or digital literacy is an eligible use to respond to the public health and negative economic impacts of the
pandemic, as detailed above.

8. Ineligible Uses

Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds provide substantial resources to help eligible state,
local, territorial, and Tribal governments manage the public health and economic consequences of
COVID-19. Recipients have considerable flexibility to use these funds to address the diverse needs of
their communities.

To ensure that these funds are used for their intended purposes, the American Rescue Plan Act also
specifies two ineligible uses of funds:

e States and territories may not use this funding to directly or indirectly offset a reduction in net
tax revenue due to a change in law from March 3, 2021 through the last day of the fiscal year
in which the funds provided have been spent. The American Rescue Plan ensures that funds
needed to provide vital services and support public employees, small businesses, and families
struggling to make it through the pandemic are not used to fund reductions in net tax revenue.
Treasury’s Interim Final Rule implements this requirement. If a state or territory cuts taxes, they
must demonstrate how they paid for the tax cuts from sources other than Coronavirus State
Fiscal Recovery Funds—by enacting policies to raise other sources of revenue, by cutting
spending, or through higher revenue due to economic growth. If the funds provided have been
used to offset tax cuts, the amount used for this purpose must be paid back to the Treasury.

* No recipient may use this funding to make a deposit to a pension fund. Treasury’s Interim
Final Rule defines a “deposit” as an extraordinary contribution to a pension fund for the purpose
of reducing an accrued, unfunded liability. While pension deposits are prohibited, recipients
may use funds for routine payroll contributions for employees whose wages and salaries are an
eligible use of funds.

Treasury’s Interim Final Rule identifies several other ineligible uses, including funding debt service, legal
settlements or judgments, and deposits to rainy day funds or financial reserves. Further, general
infrastructure spending is not covered as an eligible use outside of water, sewer, and broadband
investments or above the amount allocated under the revenue loss provision. While the program offers
broad flexibility to recipients to address local conditions, these restrictions will help ensure that funds
are used to augment existing activities and address pressing needs.

Action Items - Page 10



AS OF JULY 19, 2021

Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds

Frequently Asked Questions

AS OF JULY 19, 2021

This document contains answers to frequently asked questions regarding the Coronavirus State
and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds (CSFRF / CLFRF, or Fiscal Recovery Funds). Treasury will
be updating this document periodically in response to questions received from stakeholders.
Recipients and stakeholders should consult the Interim Final Rule for additional information.

e For overall information about the program, including information on requesting funding,
please see https://home.treasury.gov/policy-issues/coronavirus/assistance-for-state-local-
and-tribal-governments

e For general questions about CSFRF / CLFRF, please email SLFRP@treasury.gov

e Treasury is seeking comment on all aspects of the Interim Final Rule. Stakeholders are
encouraged to submit comments electronically through the Federal eRulemaking Portal
(https://www.requlations.gov/document/ TREAS-DO-2021-0008-0002) on or before July
16, 2021. Please be advised that comments received will be part of the public record and
subject to public disclosure. Do not disclose any information in your comment or
supporting materials that you consider confidential or inappropriate for public disclosure.

Questions added 5/27/21: 1.5, 1.6, 2.13, 2.14, 2.15, 3.9, 4.5, 4.6, 10.3, 10.4 (noted with “[5/27]")
Questions added 6/8/21: 2.16, 3.10, 3.11, 3.12, 4.7, 6.7, 8.2, 9.4, 9.5, 10.5 (noted with “[6/8]”)
Questions added 6/17/21: 6.8, 6.9, 6.10, 6.11 (noted with “[6/17])

Questions added 6/23/21: 1.7, 2.17, 2.18, 2.19, 2.20, 3.1 (appendix), 3.13, 4.8, 6.12 (noted with
‘6[6/23]’9)

Question added 6/24/21: 2.21 (noted with “[6/24])

Questions added 7/14/21: 1.8, 3.14, 3.15, 4.9, 4.10, 4.11, 4.12, 6.13, 6.14, 6.15, 6.16, 6.17, 10.3
updated (noted with “[7/14]”)

Answers to frequently asked questions on distribution of funds to non-entitlement units of local
government (NEUSs) can be found in this FAQ supplement, which is regularly updated.

1. Eligibility and Allocations

1.1.  Which governments are eligible for funds?

Action Items - Page 11


https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2021-05-17/pdf/2021-10283.pdf
https://home.treasury.gov/policy-issues/coronavirus/assistance-for-state-local-and-tribal-governments
https://home.treasury.gov/policy-issues/coronavirus/assistance-for-state-local-and-tribal-governments
mailto:SLFRP@treasury.gov
https://www.regulations.gov/document/TREAS-DO-2021-0008-0002
https://home.treasury.gov/system/files/136/NEU-FAQs.pdf
https://www.regulations.gov/document/TREAS-DO-2021-0008-0002
mailto:SLFRP@treasury.gov
https://home.treasury.gov/policy-issues/coronavirus/assistance-for-state-local

AS OF JULY 19, 2021

The following governments are eligible:

States and the District of Columbia

Territories

Tribal governments

Counties

Metropolitan cities

Non-entitlement units, or smaller local governments

1.2.  Which governments receive funds directly from Treasury?

Treasury will distribute funds directly to each eligible state, territory, metropolitan city,
county, or Tribal government. Smaller local governments that are classified as non-
entitlement units will receive funds through their applicable state government.

1.3.  Are special-purpose units of government eligible to receive funds?

Special-purpose units of local government will not receive funding allocations; however,
a state, territory, local, or Tribal government may transfer funds to a special-purpose unit
of government. Special-purpose districts perform specific functions in the community,
such as fire, water, sewer or mosquito abatement districts.

1.4. How are funds being allocated to Tribal governments, and how will Tribal
governments find out their allocation amounts?*

$20 billion of Fiscal Recovery Funds was reserved for Tribal governments. The
American Rescue Plan Act specifies that $1 billion will be allocated evenly to all eligible
Tribal governments. The remaining $19 billion will be distributed using an allocation
methodology based on enrollment and employment.

There will be two payments to Tribal governments. Each Tribal government’s first
payment will include (i) an amount in respect of the $1 billion allocation that is to be
divided equally among eligible Tribal governments and (ii) each Tribal government’s pro
rata share of the Enrollment Allocation. Tribal governments will be notified of their
allocation amount and delivery of payment 4-5 days after completing request for funds in
the Treasury Submission Portal. The deadline to make the initial request for funds is
June 21, 2021.

The second payment will include a Tribal government’s pro rata share of the
Employment Allocation. There is a $1,000,000 minimum employment allocation for
Tribal governments. In late-June, Tribal governments will receive an email notification
to re-enter the Treasury Submission Portal to confirm or amend their 2019 employment
numbers that were submitted to the Department of the Treasury for the CARES Act’s
Coronavirus Relief Fund. To receive an Employment Allocation, including the minimum
employment allocation, Tribal governments must confirm employment numbers by July

! The answer to this question was updated on July 19, 2021.

2

Action Items - Page 12



1.5.

1.6.

1.7.

1.8.

AS OF JULY 19, 2021

23, 2021. Treasury will calculate employment allocations for those Tribal governments
that confirmed or submitted amended employment numbers by the deadline. In August,
Treasury will communicate to Tribal governments the amount of their portion of the
Employment Allocation and the anticipated date for the second payment.

My county is a unit of general local government with population under 50,000. Will
my county receive funds directly from Treasury? [5/27]

Yes. All counties that are units of general local government will receive funds directly
from Treasury and should apply via the online portal. The list of county allocations is
available here.

My local government expected to be classified as a non-entitlement unit. Instead, it
was classified as a metropolitan city. Why? [5/27]

The American Rescue Plan Act defines, for purposes of the Coronavirus Local Fiscal
Recovery Fund (CLFRF), metropolitan cities to include those that are currently
metropolitan cities under the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) program
but also those cities that relinquish or defer their status as a metropolitan city for purposes
of the CDBG program. This would include, by way of example, cities that are principal
cities of their metropolitan statistical area, even if their population is less than 50,000. In
other words, a city that is eligible to be a metropolitan city under the CDBG program is
eligible as a metropolitan city under the CLFRF, regardless of how that city has elected to
participate in the CDBG program.

Unofficial allocation estimates produced by other organizations may have classified
certain local governments as non-entitlement units of local government. However, based
on the statutory definitions, some of these local governments should have been classified
as metropolitan cities.

In order to receive and use Fiscal Recovery Funds, must a recipient government
maintain a declaration of emergency relating to COVID-19? [6/23]

No. Neither the statute establishing the CSFRF/CLFRF nor the Interim Final Rule
requires recipients to maintain a local declaration of emergency relating to COVID-19.

Can non-profit or private organizations receive funds? If so, how? [7/14]

Yes. Under section 602(c)(3) of the Social Security Act, a State, territory, or Tribal
government may transfer funds to a “private nonprofit organization . . . , a Tribal
organization . . ., a public benefit corporation involved in the transportation of
passengers or cargo, or a special-purpose unit of State or local government.” Similarly,
section 603(c)(3) authorizes a local government to transfer funds to the same entities
(other than Tribal organizations). The Interim Final Rule clarifies that the lists of
transferees in sections 602(c)(3) and 603(c)(3) are not exclusive, and recipients may
transfer funds to constituent units of government or private entities beyond those

Action Items - Page 13


https://home.treasury.gov/policy-issues/coronavirus/assistance-for-state-local-and-tribal-governments/state-and-local-fiscal-recovery-fund/request-funding
https://home.treasury.gov/system/files/136/fiscalrecoveryfunds_countyfunding_2021.05.10-1a-508A.pdf

AS OF JULY 19, 2021

specified in the statute. A transferee receiving a transfer from a recipient under sections
602(c)(3) and 603(c)(3) will be considered to be a subrecipient and will be expected to
comply with all subrecipient reporting requirements.

The ARPA does not authorize Treasury to provide CSFRF/CLFRF funds directly to non-
profit or private organizations. Thus, non-profit or private organizations should seek
funds from CSFRF/CLFRF recipient(s) in their jurisdiction (e.g., a State, local, territorial,
or Tribal government).

2. Eligible Uses — Responding to the Public Health Emergency / Negative

2.1.

2.2.

2.3.

Economic Impacts

What types of COVID-19 response, mitigation, and prevention activities are
eligible?

A broad range of services are needed to contain COVID-19 and are eligible uses,
including vaccination programs; medical care; testing; contact tracing; support for
isolation or quarantine; supports for vulnerable populations to access medical or public
health services; public health surveillance (e.g., monitoring case trends, genomic
sequencing for variants); enforcement of public health orders; public communication
efforts; enhancement to health care capacity, including through alternative care facilities;
purchases of personal protective equipment; support for prevention, mitigation, or other
services in congregate living facilities (e.g., nursing homes, incarceration settings,
homeless shelters, group living facilities) and other key settings like schools; ventilation
improvements in congregate settings, health care settings, or other key locations;
enhancement of public health data systems; and other public health responses. Capital
investments in public facilities to meet pandemic operational needs are also eligible, such
as physical plant improvements to public hospitals and health clinics or adaptations to
public buildings to implement COVID-19 mitigation tactics.

If a use of funds was allowable under the Coronavirus Relief Fund (CRF) to
respond to the public health emergency, may recipients presume it is also allowable
under CSFRF/CLFRF?

Generally, funding uses eligible under CRF as a response to the direct public health
impacts of COVID-19 will continue to be eligible under CSFRF/CLFRF, with the
following two exceptions: (1) the standard for eligibility of public health and safety
payrolls has been updated; and (2) expenses related to the issuance of tax-anticipation
notes are not an eligible funding use.

If a use of funds is not explicitly permitted in the Interim Final Rule as a response to

the public health emergency and its negative economic impacts, does that mean it is
prohibited?

Action Items - Page 14



2.4.

2.5.

2.6.

AS OF JULY 19, 2021

The Interim Final Rule contains a non-exclusive list of programs or services that may be
funded as responding to COVID-19 or the negative economic impacts of the COVID-19
public health emergency, along with considerations for evaluating other potential uses of
Fiscal Recovery Funds not explicitly listed. The Interim Final Rule also provides
flexibility for recipients to use Fiscal Recovery Funds for programs or services that are
not identified on these non-exclusive lists but which meet the objectives of section
602(c)(1)(A) or 603(c)(1)(A) by responding to the COVID-19 public health emergency
with respect to COVID-19 or its negative economic impacts.

May recipients use funds to respond to the public health emergency and its negative
economic impacts by replenishing state unemployment funds?

Consistent with the approach taken in the CRF, recipients may make deposits into the
state account of the Unemployment Trust Fund up to the level needed to restore the pre-
pandemic balances of such account as of January 27, 2020, or to pay back advances
received for the payment of benefits between January 27, 2020 and the date when the
Interim Final Rule is published in the Federal Register.

What types of services are eligible as responses to the negative economic impacts of
the pandemic?

Eligible uses in this category include assistance to households; small businesses and non-
profits; and aid to impacted industries.

Assistance to households includes, but is not limited to: food assistance; rent, mortgage,
or utility assistance; counseling and legal aid to prevent eviction or homelessness; cash
assistance; emergency assistance for burials, home repairs, weatherization, or other
needs; internet access or digital literacy assistance; or job training to address negative
economic or public health impacts experienced due to a worker’s occupation or level of
training.

Assistance to small business and non-profits includes, but is not limited to:

e loans or grants to mitigate financial hardship such as declines in revenues or
impacts of periods of business closure, for example by supporting payroll and
benefits costs, costs to retain employees, mortgage, rent, or utilities costs, and
other operating costs;

e Loans, grants, or in-kind assistance to implement COVID-19 prevention or
mitigation tactics, such as physical plant changes to enable social distancing,
enhanced cleaning efforts, barriers or partitions, or COVID-19 vaccination,
testing, or contact tracing programs; and

e Technical assistance, counseling, or other services to assist with business planning
needs

May recipients use funds to respond to the public health emergency and its negative
economic impacts by providing direct cash transfers to households?

Action Items - Page 15



2.7.

2.8.

2.9.

2.10.

AS OF JULY 19, 2021

Yes, provided the recipient considers whether, and the extent to which, the household has
experienced a negative economic impact from the pandemic. Additionally, cash transfers
must be reasonably proportional to the negative economic impact they are intended to
address. Cash transfers grossly in excess of the amount needed to address the negative
economic impact identified by the recipient would not be considered to be a response to
the COVID-19 public health emergency or its negative impacts. In particular, when
considering appropriate size of permissible cash transfers made in response to the
COVID-19 public health emergency, state, local, territorial, and Tribal governments may
consider and take guidance from the per person amounts previously provided by the
federal government in response to the COVID crisis.

May funds be used to reimburse recipients for costs incurred by state and local
governments in responding to the public health emergency and its negative
economic impacts prior to passage of the American Rescue Plan?

Use of Fiscal Recovery Funds is generally forward looking. The Interim Final Rule
permits funds to be used to cover costs incurred beginning on March 3, 2021.

May recipients use funds for general economic development or workforce
development?

Generally, not. Recipients must demonstrate that funding uses directly address a negative
economic impact of the COVID-19 public health emergency, including funds used for
economic or workforce development. For example, job training for unemployed workers
may be used to address negative economic impacts of the public health emergency and be
eligible.

How can recipients use funds to assist the travel, tourism, and hospitality
industries?

Aid provided to tourism, travel, and hospitality industries should respond to the negative
economic impacts of the pandemic. For example, a recipient may provide aid to support
safe reopening of businesses in the tourism, travel and hospitality industries and to
districts that were closed during the COVID-19 public health emergency, as well as aid a
planned expansion or upgrade of tourism, travel and hospitality facilities delayed due to
the pandemic.

Tribal development districts are considered the commercial centers for tribal hospitality,
gaming, tourism and entertainment industries.

May recipients use funds to assist impacted industries other than travel, tourism,
and hospitality?

Yes, provided that recipients consider the extent of the impact in such industries as

compared to tourism, travel, and hospitality, the industries enumerated in the statute. For
example, nationwide the leisure and hospitality industry has experienced an

Action Items - Page 16



2.11.

AS OF JULY 19, 2021

approximately 17 percent decline in employment and 24 percent decline in revenue, on
net, due to the COVID-19 public health emergency. Recipients should also consider
whether impacts were due to the COVID-19 pandemic, as opposed to longer-term
economic or industrial trends unrelated to the pandemic.

Recipients should maintain records to support their assessment of how businesses or
business districts receiving assistance were affected by the negative economic impacts of
the pandemic and how the aid provided responds to these impacts.

How does the Interim Final Rule help address the disparate impact of COVID-19 on
certain populations and geographies?

In recognition of the disproportionate impacts of the COVID-19 virus on health and
economic outcomes in low-income and Native American communities, the Interim Final
Rule identifies a broader range of services and programs that are considered to be in
response to the public health emergency when provided in these communities.
Specifically, Treasury will presume that certain types of services are eligible uses when
provided in a Qualified Census Tract (QCT), to families living in QCTs, or when these
services are provided by Tribal governments.

Recipients may also provide these services to other populations, households, or
geographic areas disproportionately impacted by the pandemic. In identifying these
disproportionately-impacted communities, recipients should be able to support their
determination for how the pandemic disproportionately impacted the populations,
households, or geographic areas to be served.

Eligible services include:

e Addressing health disparities and the social determinants of health, including:
community health workers, public benefits navigators, remediation of lead paint
or other lead hazards, and community violence intervention programs;

e Building stronger neighborhoods and communities, including: supportive housing
and other services for individuals experiencing homelessness, development of
affordable housing, and housing vouchers and assistance relocating to
neighborhoods with higher levels of economic opportunity;

e Addressing educational disparities exacerbated by COVID-19, including: early
learning services, increasing resources for high-poverty school districts,
educational services like tutoring or afterschool programs, and supports for
students’ social, emotional, and mental health needs; and

e Promoting healthy childhood environments, including: child care, home visiting

programs for families with young children, and enhanced services for child
welfare-involved families and foster youth.

Action Items - Page 17



2.12.

2.13.

2.14.

AS OF JULY 19, 2021

May recipients use funds to pay for vaccine incentive programs (e.g., cash or in-kind
transfers, lottery programs, or other incentives for individuals who get vaccinated)?

Yes. Under the Interim Final Rule, recipients may use Coronavirus State and Local
Fiscal Recovery Funds to respond to the COVID-19 public health emergency, including
expenses related to COVID-19 vaccination programs. See 31 CFR 35.6(b)(1)(i).
Programs that provide incentives reasonably expected to increase the number of people
who choose to get vaccinated, or that motivate people to get vaccinated sooner than they
otherwise would have, are an allowable use of funds so long as such costs are reasonably
proportional to the expected public health benefit.

May recipients use funds to pay “back to work incentives” (e.g., cash payments for
newly employed workers after a certain period of time on the job)? [5/27]

Yes. Under the Interim Final Rule, recipients may use Coronavirus State and Local
Fiscal Recovery Funds to provide assistance to unemployed workers. See 31 CFR
35.6(b)(4). This assistance can include job training or other efforts to accelerate rehiring
and thus reduce unemployment, such as childcare assistance, assistance with
transportation to and from a jobsite or interview, and incentives for newly employed
workers.

The Coronavirus Relief Fund (CRF) included as an eligible use: ""Payroll expenses
for public safety, public health, health care, human services, and similar employees
whose services are substantially dedicated to mitigating or responding to the
COVID-19 public health emergency." What has changed in CSFRF/CLFRF, and
what type of documentation is required under CSFRF/CLFRF? [5/27]

Many of the expenses authorized under the Coronavirus Relief Fund are also eligible uses
under the CSFRF/CLFRF. However, in the case of payroll expenses for public safety,
public health, health care, human services, and similar employees (hereafter, public
health and safety staff), the CSFRF/CLFRF does differ from the CRF. This change
reflects the differences between the ARPA and CARES Act and recognizes that the
response to the COVID-19 public health emergency has changed and will continue to
change over time. In particular, funds may be used for payroll and covered benefits
expenses for public safety, public health, health care, human services, and similar
employees, including first responders, to the extent that the employee’s time that is
dedicated to responding to the COVID-19 public health emergency.

For administrative convenience, the recipient may consider a public health and safety
employee to be entirely devoted to mitigating or responding to the COVID-19 public
health emergency, and therefore fully covered, if the employee, or his or her operating
unit or division, is primarily dedicated (e.g., more than half of the employee’s time is
dedicated) to responding to the COVID-19 public health emergency.

Recipients may use presumptions for assessing whether an employee, division, or
operating unit is primarily dedicated to COVID-19 response. The recipient should

Action Items - Page 18



2.15.

2.16.

2.17.

AS OF JULY 19, 2021

maintain records to support its assessment, such as payroll records, attestations from
supervisors or staff, or regular work product or correspondence demonstrating work on
the COVID-19 response. Recipients need not routinely track staff hours. Recipients
should periodically reassess their determinations.

What staff are included in “public safety, public health, health care, human
services, and similar employees”? Would this include, for example, 911 operators,
morgue staff, medical examiner staff, or EMS staff? [5/27]

As discussed in the Interim Final Rule, funds may be used for payroll and covered
benefits expenses for public safety, public health, health care, human services, and
similar employees, for the portion of the employee’s time that is dedicated to responding
to the COVID-19 public health emergency.

Public safety employees would include police officers (including state police officers),
sheriffs and deputy sheriffs, firefighters, emergency medical responders, correctional and
detention officers, and those who directly support such employees such as dispatchers
and supervisory personnel. Public health employees would include employees involved
in providing medical and other health services to patients and supervisory personnel,
including medical staff assigned to schools, prisons, and other such institutions, and other
support services essential for patient care (e.g., laboratory technicians, medical examiner
or morgue staff) as well as employees of public health departments directly engaged in
matters related to public health and related supervisory personnel. Human services staff
include employees providing or administering social services; public benefits; child
welfare services; and child, elder, or family care, as well as others.

May recipients use funds to establish a public jobs program? [6/8]

Yes. The Interim Final Rule permits a broad range of services to unemployed or
underemployed workers and other individuals that suffered negative economic impacts
from the pandemic. That can include public jobs programs, subsidized employment,
combined education and on-the-job training programs, or job training to accelerate
rehiring or address negative economic or public health impacts experienced due to a
worker’s occupation or level of training. The broad range of permitted services can also
include other employment supports, such as childcare assistance or assistance with
transportation to and from a jobsite or interview.

The Interim Final Rule includes as an eligible use re-hiring public sector staff up to the
government’s level of pre-pandemic employment. “Public sector staff” would not
include individuals participating in a job training or subsidized employment program
administered by the recipient.

The Interim Final Rule states that “assistance or aid to individuals or businesses

that did not experience a negative economic impact from the public health
emergency would not be an eligible use under this category.” Are recipients

Action Items - Page 19



AS OF JULY 19, 2021

required to demonstrate that each individual or business experienced a negative
economic impact for that individual or business to receive assistance? [6/23]

Not necessarily. The Interim Final Rule allows recipients to demonstrate a negative
economic impact on a population or group and to provide assistance to households or
businesses that fall within that population or group. In such cases, the recipient need only
demonstrate that the household or business is within the population or group that
experienced a negative economic impact.

For assistance to households, the Interim Final Rule states, “In assessing whether a
household or population experienced economic harm as a result of the pandemic, a
recipient may presume that a household or population that experienced unemployment or
increased food or housing insecurity or is low- or moderate-income experienced negative
economic impacts resulting from the pandemic.” This would allow, for example, an
internet access assistance program for all low- or moderate-income households, but
would not require the recipient to demonstrate or document that each individual low- or -
moderate income household experienced a negative economic impact from the COVID-
19 public health emergency apart from being low- or -moderate income.

For assistance to small businesses, the Interim Final Rule states that assistance may be
provided to small businesses, including loans, grants, in-kind assistance, technical
assistance or other services, to respond to the negative economic impacts of the COVID-
19 public health emergency. In providing assistance to small businesses, recipients must
design a program that responds to the negative economic impacts of the COVID-19
public health emergency, including by identifying how the program addresses the
identified need or impact faced by small businesses. This can include assistance to adopt
safer operating procedures, weather periods of closure, or mitigate financial hardship
resulting from the COVID-19 public health emergency.

As part of program design and to ensure that the program responds to the identified need,
recipients may consider additional criteria to target assistance to businesses in need,
including to small businesses. Assistance may be targeted to businesses facing financial
insecurity, with substantial declines in gross receipts (e.g., comparable to measures used
to assess eligibility for the Paycheck Protection Program), or facing other economic harm
due to the pandemic, as well as businesses with less capacity to weather financial
hardship, such as the smallest businesses, those with less access to credit, or those serving
disadvantaged communities. For example, a recipient could find based on local data or
research that the smallest businesses faced sharply increased risk of bankruptcy and
develop a program to respond; such a program would only need to document a population
or group-level negative economic impact, and eligibility criteria to limit access to the
program to that population or group (in this case, the smallest businesses).

In addition, recognizing the disproportionate impact of the pandemic on disadvantaged
communities, the Interim Final Rule also identifies a set of services that are

presumptively eligible when provided in a Qualified Census Tract (QCT); to families and
individuals living in QCTs; to other populations, households, or geographic areas

10

Action Items - Page 20



2.18.

2.19.

AS OF JULY 19, 2021

identified by the recipient as disproportionately impacted by the pandemic; or when these
services are provided by Tribal governments. For more information on the set of
presumptively eligible services, see the Interim Final Rule section on Building Stronger
Communities through Investments in Housing and Neighborhoods and FAQ 2.11.

Would investments in improving outdoor spaces (e.g. parks) be an eligible use of
funds as a response to the public health emergency and/or its negative economic
impacts? [6/23]

There are multiple ways that investments in improving outdoor spaces could qualify as
eligible uses; several are highlighted below, though there may be other ways that a
specific investment in outdoor spaces would meet eligible use criteria.

First, in recognition of the disproportionate negative economic impacts on certain
communities and populations, the Interim Final Rule identifies certain types of services
that are eligible uses when provided in a Qualified Census Tract (QCT), to families and
individuals living in QCTs, or when these services are provided by Tribal governments.
Recipients may also provide these services to other populations, households, or
geographic areas disproportionately impacted by the pandemic.

These programs and services include services designed to build stronger neighborhoods
and communities and to address health disparities and the social determinants of health.
The Interim Final Rule provides a non-exhaustive list of eligible services to respond to
the needs of communities disproportionately impacted by the pandemic, and recipients
may identify other uses of funds that do so, consistent with the Rule’s framework. For
example, investments in parks, public plazas, and other public outdoor recreation spaces
may be responsive to the needs of disproportionately impacted communities by
promoting healthier living environments and outdoor recreation and socialization to
mitigate the spread of COVID-109.

Second, recipients may provide assistance to small businesses in all communities.
Assistance to small businesses could include support to enhance outdoor spaces for
COVID-19 mitigation (e.g., restaurant patios) or to improve the built environment of the
neighborhood (e.g., fagade improvements).

Third, many governments saw significantly increased use of parks during the pandemic
that resulted in damage or increased maintenance needs. The Interim Final Rule
recognizes that “decrease[s to] a state or local government’s ability to effectively
administer services” can constitute a negative economic impact of the pandemic.

Would expenses to address a COVID-related backlog in court cases be an eligible
use of funds as a response to the public health emergency? [6/23]

The Interim Final Rule recognizes that “decrease[s to] a state or local government’s

ability to effectively administer services,” such as cuts to public sector staffing levels, can
constitute a negative economic impact of the pandemic. During the COVID-19 public

11

Action Items - Page 21



2.20.

2.21.

AS OF JULY 19, 2021

health emergency, many courts were unable to operate safely during the pandemic and, as
a result, now face significant backlogs. Court backlogs resulting from inability of courts
to safely operate during the COVID-19 pandemic decreased the government’s ability to
administer services. Therefore, steps to reduce these backlogs, such as implementing
COVID-19 safety measures to facilitate court operations, hiring additional court staff or
attorneys to increase speed of case resolution, and other expenses to expedite case
resolution are eligible uses.

Can funds be used to assist small business startups as a response to the negative
economic impact of COVID-19? [6/23]

As discussed in the Interim Final Rule, recipients may provide assistance to small
businesses that responds to the negative economic impacts of COVID-19. The Interim
Final Rule provides a non-exclusive list of potential assistance mechanisms, as well as
considerations for ensuring that such assistance is responsive to the negative economic
impacts of COVID-109.

Treasury acknowledges a range of potential circumstances in which assisting small
business startups could be responsive to the negative economic impacts of COVID-19,
including for small businesses and individuals seeking to start small businesses after the
start of the COVID-19 public health emergency. For example:

e A recipient could assist small business startups with additional costs associated
with COVID-19 mitigation tactics (e.g., barriers or partitions; enhanced cleaning;
or physical plant changes to enable greater use of outdoor space).

e Arecipient could identify and respond to a negative economic impact of COVID-
19 on new small business startups; for example, if it could be shown that small
business startups in a locality were facing greater difficult accessing credit than
prior to the pandemic, faced increased costs to starting the business due to the
pandemic, or that the small business had lost expected startup capital due to the
pandemic.

e The Interim Final Rule also discusses eligible uses that provide support for
individuals who have experienced a negative economic impact from the COVID-
19 public health emergency, including uses that provide job training for
unemployed individuals. These initiatives also may support small business
startups and individuals seeking to start small businesses.

Can funds be used for eviction prevention efforts or housing stability services?
[6/24]

Yes. Responses to the negative economic impacts of the pandemic include “rent,
mortgage, or utility assistance [and] counseling and legal aid to prevent eviction or
homelessness.” This includes housing stability services that enable eligible households to
maintain or obtain housing, such as housing counseling, fair housing counseling, case
management related to housing stability, outreach to households at risk of eviction or
promotion of housing support programs, housing related services for survivors of

12

Action Items - Page 22



AS OF JULY 19, 2021

domestic abuse or human trafficking, and specialized services for individuals with
disabilities or seniors that supports their ability to access or maintain housing.

This also includes legal aid such as legal services or attorney’s fees related to eviction
proceedings and maintaining housing stability, court-based eviction prevention or
eviction diversion programs, and other legal services that help households maintain or
obtain housing.

Recipients may transfer funds to, or execute grants or contracts with, court systems, non-
profits, and a wide range of other organizations to implement these strategies.

3. Eligible Uses — Revenue Loss

3.1.

3.2.

3.3.

How is revenue defined for the purpose of this provision? [appendix added 6/23]

The Interim Final Rule adopts a definition of “General Revenue” that is based on, but not
identical, to the Census Bureau’s concept of “General Revenue from Own Sources” in the
Annual Survey of State and Local Government Finances.

General Revenue includes revenue from taxes, current charges, and miscellaneous
general revenue. It excludes refunds and other correcting transactions, proceeds from
issuance of debt or the sale of investments, agency or private trust transactions, and
revenue generated by utilities and insurance trusts. General revenue also includes
intergovernmental transfers between state and local governments, but excludes
intergovernmental transfers from the Federal government, including Federal transfers
made via a state to a locality pursuant to the CRF or the Fiscal Recovery Funds.

Tribal governments may include all revenue from Tribal enterprises and gaming
operations in the definition of General Revenue.

Please see the appendix for a diagram of the Interim Final Rule’s definition of General
Revenue within the Census Bureau’s revenue classification structure.

Will revenue be calculated on an entity-wide basis or on a source-by-source basis
(e.g. property tax, income tax, sales tax, etc.)?

Recipients should calculate revenue on an entity-wide basis. This approach minimizes
the administrative burden for recipients, provides for greater consistency across
recipients, and presents a more accurate representation of the net impact of the
COVID- 19 public health emergency on a recipient’s revenue, rather than relying on
financial reporting prepared by each recipient, which vary in methodology used and
which generally aggregates revenue by purpose rather than by source.

Does the definition of revenue include outside concessions that contract with a state
or local government?

13

Action Items - Page 23



3.4.

3.5.

AS OF JULY 19, 2021

Recipients should classify revenue sources as they would if responding to the U.S.
Census Bureau’s Annual Survey of State and Local Government Finances. According to
the Census Bureau’s Government Finance and Employment Classification manual, the
following is an example of current charges that would be included in a state or local
government’s general revenue from own sources: “Gross revenue of facilities operated by
a government (swimming pools, recreational marinas and piers, golf courses, skating
rinks, museums, zoos, etc.); auxiliary facilities in public recreation areas (camping areas,
refreshment stands, gift shops, etc.); lease or use fees from stadiums, auditoriums, and
community and convention centers; and rentals from concessions at such facilities.”

What is the time period for estimating revenue loss? Will revenue losses experienced
prior to the passage of the Act be considered?

Recipients are permitted to calculate the extent of reduction in revenue as of four points
in time: December 31, 2020; December 31, 2021; December 31, 2022; and December 31,
2023. This approach recognizes that some recipients may experience lagged effects of the
pandemic on revenues.

Upon receiving Fiscal Recovery Fund payments, recipients may immediately calculate
revenue loss for the period ending December 31, 2020.

What is the formula for calculating the reduction in revenue?

A reduction in a recipient’s General Revenue equals:

Max {[Base Year Revenue* (1+Growth Adjustment) (ﬁ)] - Actual General Revenue, ; 0}

Where:

Base Year Revenue is General Revenue collected in the most recent full fiscal year prior
to the COVD-19 public health emergency.

Growth Adjustment is equal to the greater of 4.1 percent (or 0.041) and the recipient’s
average annual revenue growth over the three full fiscal years prior to the COVID-19
public health emergency.

n equals the number of months elapsed from the end of the base year to the calculation
date.

Actual General Revenue is a recipient’s actual general revenue collected during 12-month
period ending on each calculation date.

Subscript t denotes the calculation date.

14

Action Items - Page 24


https://www2.census.gov/govs/pubs/classification/2006_classification_manual.pdf

3.6.

3.7.

3.8.

3.9.

AS OF JULY 19, 2021

Are recipients expected to demonstrate that reduction in revenue is due to the
COVID-19 public health emergency?

In the Interim Final Rule, any diminution in actual revenue calculated using the formula
above would be presumed to have been “due to” the COVID-19 public health emergency.
This presumption is made for administrative ease and in recognition of the broad-based
economic damage that the pandemic has wrought.

May recipients use pre-pandemic projections as a basis to estimate the reduction in
revenue?

No. Treasury is disallowing the use of projections to ensure consistency and
comparability across recipients and to streamline verification. However, in estimating
the revenue shortfall using the formula above, recipients may incorporate their average
annual revenue growth rate in the three full fiscal years prior to the public health
emergency.

Once a recipient has identified a reduction in revenue, are there any restrictions on
how recipients use funds up to the amount of the reduction?

The Interim Final Rule gives recipients broad latitude to use funds for the provision of
government services to the extent of reduction in revenue. Government services can
include, but are not limited to, maintenance of infrastructure or pay-go spending for
building new infrastructure, including roads; modernization of cybersecurity, including
hardware, software, and protection of critical infrastructure; health services;
environmental remediation; school or educational services; and the provision of police,
fire, and other public safety services.

However, paying interest or principal on outstanding debt, replenishing rainy day or other
reserve funds, or paying settlements or judgments would not be considered provision of a
government service, since these uses of funds do not entail direct provision of services to
citizens. This restriction on paying interest or principal on any outstanding debt
instrument, includes, for example, short-term revenue or tax anticipation notes, or paying
fees or issuance costs associated with the issuance of new debt. In addition, the
overarching restrictions on all program funds (e.qg., restriction on pension deposits,
restriction on using funds for non-federal match where barred by regulation or statute)
would apply.

How do I know if a certain type of revenue should be counted for the purpose of
computing revenue loss? [5/27]

As discussed in FAQ #3.1, the Interim Final Rule adopts a definition of “General
Revenue” that is based on, but not identical, to the Census Bureau’s concept of “General
Revenue from Own Sources” in the Annual Survey of State and Local Government
Finances.

15

Action Items - Page 25



3.10.

3.11.

3.12.

3.13.

AS OF JULY 19, 2021

Recipients should refer to the definition of “General Revenue” included in the Interim
Final Rule. See 31 CFR 35.3. If a recipient is unsure whether a particular revenue source
is included in the Interim Final Rule’s definition of “General Revenue,” the recipient may
consider the classification and instructions used to complete the Census Bureau’s Annual
Survey.

For example, parking fees would be classified as a Current Charge for the purpose of the
Census Bureau’s Annual Survey, and the Interim Final Rule’s concept of “General
Revenue” includes all Current Charges. Therefore, parking fees would be included in the
Interim Final Rule’s concept of “General Revenue.”

The Census Bureau’s Government Finance and Employment Classification manual is
available here.

In calculating revenue loss, are recipients required to use audited financials? [6/8]

Where audited data is not available, recipients are not required to obtain audited data.
Treasury expects all information submitted to be complete and accurate. See 31 CFR
35.4(c).

In calculating revenue loss, should recipients use their own data, or Census data?
[6/8]

Recipients should use their own data sources to calculate general revenue, and do not
need to rely on published revenue data from the Census Bureau. Treasury acknowledges
that due to differences in timing, data sources, and definitions, recipients’ self-reported
general revenue figures may differ somewhat from those published by the Census
Bureau.

Should recipients calculate revenue loss on a cash basis or an accrual basis? [6/8]

Recipients may provide data on a cash, accrual, or modified accrual basis, provided that
recipients are consistent in their choice of methodology throughout the covered period
and until reporting is no longer required.

In identifying intergovernmental revenue for the purpose of calculating General
Revenue, should recipients exclude all federal funding, or just federal funding
related to the COVID-19 response? How should local governments treat federal
funds that are passed through states or other entities, or federal funds that are
intermingled with other funds? [6/23]

In calculating General Revenue, recipients should exclude all intergovernmental transfers
from the federal government. This includes, but is not limited to, federal transfers made
via a state to a locality pursuant to the Coronavirus Relief Fund or Fiscal Recovery
Funds. To the extent federal funds are passed through states or other entities or
intermingled with other funds, recipients should attempt to identify and exclude the

16

Action Items - Page 26


https://www2.census.gov/govs/pubs/classification/2006_classification_manual.pdf

3.14.

AS OF JULY 19, 2021

federal portion of those funds from the calculation of General Revenue on a best-efforts
basis.

What entities constitute a government for the purpose of calculating revenue loss?
[7/14]

In determining whether a particular entity is part of a recipient’s government for purposes
of measuring a recipient’s government revenue, recipients should identify all the entities
included in their government and the general revenue attributable to these entities on a
best-efforts basis. Recipients are encouraged to consider how their administrative
structure is organized under state and local statutes. In cases in which the autonomy of
certain authorities, commissions, boards, districts, or other entities is not readily
distinguishable from the recipient’s government, recipients may adopt the Census
Bureau’s criteria for judging whether an entity is independent from, or a constituent of, a
given government. For an entity to be independent, it generally meets all four of the
following conditions:

e The entity is an organized entity and possesses corporate powers, such as
perpetual succession, the right to sue and be sued, having a name, the ability to
make contracts, and the ability to acquire and dispose of property.

e The entity has governmental character, meaning that it provides public services,
or wields authority through a popularly elected governing body or officers
appointed by public officials. A high degree of responsibility to the public,
demonstrated by public reporting requirements or by accessibility of records for
public inspection, also evidences governmental character.

e The entity has substantial fiscal independence, meaning it can determine its
budget without review and modification by other governments. For instance, the
entity can determine its own taxes, charges, and debt issuance without another
government’s supervision.

e The entity has substantial administrative independence, meaning it has a
popularly elected governing body, or has a governing body representing two or
more governments, or, in the event its governing body is appointed by another
government, the entity performs functions that are essentially different from those
of, and are not subject to specification by, its creating government.

If an entity does not meet all four of these conditions, a recipient may classify the entity
as part of the recipient’s government and assign the portion of General Revenue that
corresponds to the entity.

To further assist recipients in applying the forgoing criteria, recipients may refer to the
Census Bureau’s Individual State Descriptions: 2017 Census of Governments
publication, which lists specific entities and classes of entities classified as either
independent (defined by Census as “special purpose governments”) or constituent
(defined by Census as “dependent agencies™) on a state-by-state basis. Recipients should
note that the Census Bureau’s lists are not exhaustive and that Census classifications are
based on an analysis of state and local statutes as of 2017 and subject to the Census
Bureau’s judgement. Though not included in the Census Bureau’s publication, state

17

Action Items - Page 27


https://www.census.gov/library/publications/2019/econ/2017isd.html

3.15.

AS OF JULY 19, 2021

colleges and universities are generally classified as dependent agencies of state
governments by the Census Bureau.

If an entity is determined to be part of the recipient’s government, the recipient must also
determine whether the entity’s revenue is covered by the Interim Final Rule’s definition
of “general revenue.” For example, some cash flows may be outside the definition of
“general revenue.” In addition, note that the definition of general revenue includes Tribal
enterprises in the case of Tribal governments. Refer to FAQ 3.1 (and the Appendix) for
the components included in General Revenue.

The Interim Final Rule’s definition of General Revenue excludes revenue generated
by utilities. Can you please clarify the definition of utility revenue? [7/14]

As noted in FAQs 3.1 and 3.9, the Interim Final Rule adopts a definition of “general
revenue” that is based on, but not identical to, the Census Bureau’s concept of “General
Revenue from Own Sources” in the Annual Survey of State and Local Government
Finances. Recipients should refer to the definition of “general revenue” included in the
Interim Final Rule. See 31 CFR 35.3. If a recipient is unsure whether a particular
revenue source is included in the Interim Final Rule’s definition of “general revenue,” the
recipient may consider the classification and instructions used to complete the Census
Bureau’s Annual Survey.

According to the Census Bureau’s Government Finance and Employment Classification
manual, utility revenue is defined as “[g]ross receipts from sale of utility commodities or
services to the public or other governments by publicly-owned and controlled utilities.”
This includes revenue from operations of publicly-owned and controlled water supply
systems, electric power systems, gas supply systems, and public mass transit systems (see
pages 4-45 and 4-46 of the manual for more detail).

Except for these four types of utilities, revenues from all commercial-type activities of a
recipient’s government (e.g., airports, educational institutions, lotteries, public hospitals,
public housing, parking facilities, port facilities, sewer or solid waste systems, and toll
roads and bridges) are covered by the Interim Final Rule’s definition of “general
revenue.” If a recipient is unsure whether a particular entity performing one of these
commercial-type activities can be considered part of the recipient’s government, please
see FAQ 3.14.

4. Eligible Uses — General

4.1.

May recipients use funds to replenish a budget stabilization fund, rainy day fund, or
similar reserve account?

No. Funds made available to respond to the public health emergency and its negative

economic impacts are intended to help meet pandemic response needs and provide
immediate stabilization for households and businesses. Contributions to rainy day funds

18

Action Items - Page 28


https://www2.census.gov/govs/pubs/classification/2006_classification_manual.pdf
https://www2.census.gov/govs/pubs/classification/2006_classification_manual.pdf

4.2.

4.3.

44.

4.5.

AS OF JULY 19, 2021

and similar reserves funds would not address these needs or respond to the COVID-19
public health emergency, but would rather be savings for future spending needs.
Similarly, funds made available for the provision of governmental services (to the extent
of reduction in revenue) are intended to support direct provision of services to citizens.
Contributions to rainy day funds are not considered provision of government services,
since such expenses do not directly relate to the provision of government services.

May recipients use funds to invest in infrastructure other than water, sewer, and
broadband projects (e.g. roads, public facilities)?

Under 602(c)(1)(C) or 603(c)(1)(C), recipients may use funds for maintenance of
infrastructure or pay-go spending for building of new infrastructure as part of the general
provision of government services, to the extent of the estimated reduction in revenue due
to the public health emergency.

Under 602(c)(1)(A) or 603(c)(1)(A), a general infrastructure project typically would not
be considered a response to the public health emergency and its negative economic
impacts unless the project responds to a specific pandemic-related public health need
(e.g., investments in facilities for the delivery of vaccines) or a specific negative
economic impact of the pandemic (e.g., affordable housing in a Qualified Census Tract).

May recipients use funds to pay interest or principal on outstanding debt?

No. Expenses related to financing, including servicing or redeeming notes, would not
address the needs of pandemic response or its negative economic impacts. Such expenses
would also not be considered provision of government services, as these financing
expenses do not directly provide services or aid to citizens.

This applies to paying interest or principal on any outstanding debt instrument, including,
for example, short-term revenue or tax anticipation notes, or paying fees or issuance costs
associated with the issuance of new debt.

May recipients use funds to satisfy nonfederal matching requirements under the
Stafford Act? May recipients use funds to satisfy nonfederal matching requirements
generally?

Fiscal Recovery Funds are subject to pre-existing limitations in other federal statutes and
regulations and may not be used as non-federal match for other Federal programs whose
statute or regulations bar the use of Federal funds to meet matching requirements. For
example, expenses for the state share of Medicaid are not an eligible use. For information
on FEMA programs, please see here.

Are governments required to submit proposed expenditures to Treasury for
approval? [5/27]

19

Action Items - Page 29


https://www.fema.gov/press-release/20210203/fema-statement-100-cost-share

4.6.

4.7.

AS OF JULY 19, 2021

No. Recipients are not required to submit planned expenditures for prior approval by
Treasury. Recipients are subject to the requirements and guidelines for eligible uses
contained in the Interim Final Rule.

How do I know if a specific use is eligible? [5/27]

Fiscal Recovery Funds must be used in one of the four eligible use categories specified in
the American Rescue Plan Act and implemented in the Interim Final Rule:

a) To respond to the public health emergency or its negative economic impacts,
including assistance to households, small businesses, and nonprofits, or aid to
impacted industries such as tourism, travel, and hospitality;

b) To respond to workers performing essential work during the COVID-19 public
health emergency by providing premium pay to eligible workers;

¢) For the provision of government services to the extent of the reduction in revenue
due to the COVID-19 public health emergency relative to revenues collected in
the most recent full fiscal year prior to the emergency; and

d) To make necessary investments in water, sewer, or broadband infrastructure.

Recipients should consult Section Il of the Interim Final Rule for additional information
on eligible uses. For recipients evaluating potential uses under (a), the Interim Final Rule
contains a non-exclusive list of programs or services that may be funded as responding to
COVID-19 or the negative economic impacts of the COVID-19 public health emergency,
along with considerations for evaluating other potential uses of Fiscal Recovery Funds
not explicitly listed. See Section Il of the Interim Final Rule for additional discussion.

For recipients evaluating potential uses under (c), the Interim Final Rule gives recipients
broad latitude to use funds for the provision of government services to the extent of
reduction in revenue. See FAQ #3.8 for additional discussion.

For recipients evaluating potential uses under (b) and (d), see Sections 5 and 6.

Do restrictions on using Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds to
cover costs incurred beginning on March 3, 2021 apply to costs incurred by the
recipient (e.g., a State, local, territorial, or Tribal government) or to costs incurred
by households, businesses, and individuals benefiting from assistance provided using
Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds? [6/8]

The Interim Final Rule permits funds to be used to cover costs incurred beginning on
March 3, 2021. This limitation applies to costs incurred by the recipient (i.e., the state,
local, territorial, or Tribal government receiving funds). However, recipients may use
Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds to provide assistance to households,
businesses, and individuals within the eligible use categories described in the Interim

20

Action Items - Page 30



4.8.

AS OF JULY 19, 2021

Final Rule for economic harms experienced by those households, businesses, and
individuals prior to March 3, 2021. For example,

e Public Health/Negative Economic Impacts — Recipients may use Coronavirus
State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds to provide assistance to households — such
as rent, mortgage, or utility assistance — for economic harms experienced or costs
incurred by the household prior to March 3, 2021 (e.g., rental arrears from
preceding months), provided that the cost of providing assistance to the household
was not incurred by the recipient prior to March 3, 2021.

e Premium Pay — Recipients may provide premium pay retrospectively for work
performed at any time since the start of the COVID-19 public health emergency.
Such premium pay must be “in addition to”” wages and remuneration already
received and the obligation to provide such pay must not have been incurred by
the recipient prior to March 3, 2021.

e Revenue Loss — The Interim Final Rule gives recipients broad latitude to use
funds for the provision of government services to the extent of reduction in
revenue. The calculation of lost revenue begins with the recipient’s revenue in
the last full fiscal year prior to the COVID-19 public health emergency and
includes the 12-month period ending December 31, 2020. However, use of funds
for government services must be forward looking for costs incurred by the
recipient after March 3, 2021.

e Investments in Water, Sewer, and Broadband — Recipients may use Coronavirus
State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds to make necessary investments in water,
sewer, and broadband. See FAQ Section 6. Recipients may use Coronavirus
State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds to cover costs incurred for eligible
projects planned or started prior to March 3, 2021, provided that the project costs
covered by the Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds were incurred
after March 3, 2021.

How can | use CSFRF/CLFRF funds to prevent and respond to crime, and support
public safety in my community? [6/23]

Under Treasury’s Interim Final Rule, there are many ways in which the State and Local
Fiscal Recovery Funds (“Funds”) under the American Rescue Plan Act can support
communities working to reduce and respond to increased violence due to the pandemic.
Among the eligible uses of the Funds are restoring of public sector staff to their pre-
pandemic levels and responses to the public health crisis and negative economic impacts
resulting from the pandemic. The Interim Final Rule provides several ways for recipients
to “respond to” this pandemic-related gun violence, ranging from community violence
intervention programs to mental health services to hiring of public safety personnel.

Below are some examples of how Fiscal Recovery Funds can be used to address public
safety:

In all communities, recipients may use resources to rehire police officers and other public
servants to restore law enforcement and courts to their pre-pandemic levels.

21

Action Items - Page 31



AS OF JULY 19, 2021

Additionally, Funds can be used for expenses to address COVID-related court backlogs,
including hiring above pre-pandemic levels, as a response to the public health emergency.
See FAQ 2.19.

e In communities where an increase in violence or increased difficulty in accessing or
providing services to respond to or mitigate the effects of violence, is a result of the
pandemic they may use funds to address that harm. This spending may include:

o Hiring law enforcement officials — even above pre-pandemic levels — or paying
overtime where the funds are directly focused on advancing community policing
strategies in those communities experiencing an increase in gun violence associated
with the pandemic

o Community Violence Intervention (CVI) programs, including capacity building
efforts at CVI programs like funding and training additional intervention workers

o Additional enforcement efforts to reduce gun violence exacerbated by the pandemic,
including prosecuting gun traffickers, dealers, and other parties contributing to the
supply of crime guns, as well as collaborative federal, state, and local efforts to
identify and address gun trafficking channels

o Investing in technology and equipment to allow law enforcement to more efficiently
and effectively respond to the rise in gun violence resulting from the pandemic

As discussed in the Interim Final Rule, uses of CSFRF/CLFRF funds that respond to an

identified harm must be related and reasonably proportional to the extent and type of

harm experienced; uses that bear no relation or are grossly disproportionate to the type or
extent of harm experienced would not be eligible uses.

e Recipients may also use funds up to the level of revenue loss for government services,
including those outlined above.

Recognizing that the pandemic exacerbated mental health and substance use disorder needs
in many communities, eligible public health services include mental health and other
behavioral health services, which are a critical component of a holistic public safety
approach. This could include:

e Mental health services and substance use disorder services, including for individuals
experiencing trauma exacerbated by the pandemic, such as:

- Community-based mental health and substance use disorder programs that deliver
evidence-based psychotherapy, crisis support services, medications for opioid use
disorder, and/or recovery support

- School-based social-emotional support and other mental health services

e Referrals to trauma recovery services for crime victims.

Recipients also may use Funds to respond to the negative economic impacts of the public
health emergency, including:

e Assistance programs to households or populations facing negative economic impacts of
the public health emergency, including:

22

Action Items - Page 32



AS OF JULY 19, 2021

- Assistance to support economic security, including for the victims of crime;

- Housing assistance, including rent, utilities, and relocation assistance;

- Assistance with food, including Summer EBT and nutrition programs; and

- Employment or job training services to address negative economic or public
health impacts experienced due to a worker’s occupation or level of training.

e Assistance to unemployed workers, including:

- Subsidized jobs, including for young people. Summer youth employment
programs directly address the negative economic impacts of the pandemic on
young people and their families and communities;

- Programs that provide paid training and/or work experience targeted primarily to
(1) formerly incarcerated individuals, and/or (2) communities experiencing high
levels of violence exacerbated by the pandemic;

- Programs that provide workforce readiness training, apprenticeship or pre-
apprenticeship opportunities, skills development, placement services, and/or
coaching and mentoring; and

- Associated wraparound services, including for housing, health care, and food.

Recognizing the disproportionate impact of the pandemic on certain communities, a broader
range of services are eligible in those communities than would otherwise be available in
communities not experiencing a pandemic-related increase in crime or gun violence. These
eligible uses aim to address the pandemic’s exacerbation of public health and economic
disparities and include services to address health and educational disparities, support
neighborhoods and affordable housing, and promote healthy childhood environments. The
Interim Final Rule provides a non-exhaustive list of eligible services in these categories.

These services automatically qualify as eligible uses when provided in Qualified Census
Tracts (QCTs), low-income areas designated by HUD; to families in QCTs; or by Tribal
governments. Outside of these areas, recipient governments can also identify and serve
households, populations, and geographic areas disproportionately impacted by the pandemic.

Services under this category could include:

e Programs or services that address or mitigate the impacts of the COVID-19 public health
emergency on education, childhood health and welfare, including:
o Summer education and enrichment programs in these communities, which include
many communities currently struggling with high levels of violence;
o Programs that address learning loss and keep students productively engaged;
o Enhanced services for foster youths and home visiting programs; and
o Summer camps and recreation.

e Programs or services that provide or facilitate access to health and social services and
address health disparities exacerbated by the pandemic. This includes Community
Violence Intervention (CVI) programs, such as:

o Evidence-based practices like focused deterrence, street outreach, violence
interrupters, and hospital-based violence intervention models, complete with

23

Action Items - Page 33



AS OF JULY 19, 2021

wraparound services such as behavioral therapy, trauma recovery, job training,
education, housing and relocation services, and financial assistance; and,

o Capacity-building efforts at CVI programs like funding more intervention workers;
increasing their pay; providing training and professional development for intervention
workers; and hiring and training workers to administer the programs.

Please refer to Treasury’s Interim Final Rule for additional information.

4.9.

4.10.

May recipients pool funds for regional projects? [7/14]

Yes, provided that the project is itself an eligible use of funds and that recipients can
track the use of funds in line with the reporting and compliance requirements of the
CSFRF/CLFRF. In general, when pooling funds for regional projects, recipients may
expend funds directly on the project or transfer funds to another government that is
undertaking the project on behalf of multiple recipients. To the extent recipients
undertake regional projects via transfer to another government, recipients would need to
comply with the rules on transfers specified in the Interim Final Rule, Section V. A
recipient may transfer funds to a government outside its boundaries (e.g., county transfers
to a neighboring county), provided that the recipient can document that its jurisdiction
receives a benefit proportionate to the amount contributed.

May recipients fund a project with both ARP funds and other sources of funding
(e.g., blending, braiding, or other pairing funding sources), including in conjunction
with financing provided through a debt issuance? [7/14]

Cost sharing or matching funds are not required under CSFRF/CLFRF. Funds may be
used in conjunction with other funding sources, provided that the costs are eligible costs
under each source program and are compliant with all other related statutory and
regulatory requirements and policies. The recipient must comply with applicable
reporting requirements for all sources of funds supporting the CSFRF/CLFRF projects,
and with any requirements and restrictions on the use of funds from the supplemental
funding sources and the CSFRF/CLFRF program. Specifically,

e All funds provided under the CSFRF/CLFRF program must be used for projects,
investments, or services that are eligible under the CSFRF/CLFREF statute,
Treasury’s Interim Final Rule, and guidance. See 31 CFR 35.6-8; FAQ 4.6.
CSFRF/CLFRF funds may not be used to fund an activity that is not, in its
entirety, an eligible use under the CSFRF/CLFRF statute, Treasury’s Interim
Final Rule, and guidance. For example,

o CSFRF/CLFRF funds may be used in conjunction with other sources of
funds to make an investment in water infrastructure, which is eligible
under the CSLFREF statute, and Treasury’s Interim Final Rule.

o CSFRF/CLFRF funds could not be used to fund the entirety of a water
infrastructure project that was partially, although not entirely, an eligible
use under Treasury’s Interim Final Rule. However, the recipient could use
CSFRF/CLFRF funds only for a smaller component project that does

24

Action Items - Page 34



AS OF JULY 19, 2021

constitute an eligible use, while using other funds for the remaining
portions of the larger planned water infrastructure project that do not
constitute an eligible use. In this case, the “project” under this program
would be only the eligible use component of the larger project.

¢ In addition, because CSFRF/CLFRF funds must be obligated by December 31,
2024, and expended by December 31, 2026, recipients must be able to, at a
minimum, determine and report to Treasury on the amount of CSFRF/CLFRF
funds obligated and expended and when such funds were obligated and expended.

4.11. May Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds be used to make loans or
other extensions of credit (“loans”), including loans to small businesses and loans to
finance necessary investments in water, sewer, and broadband infrastructure?
[7/14]

Yes. Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds (“Funds”) may be used to
make loans, provided that the loan is an eligible use and the cost of the loan is tracked
and reported in accordance with the points below. See 31 CFR 35.6. For example, a
recipient may use Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds to make loans to
small businesses. See 31 CFR 35.6(b)(6). In addition, a recipient may use Funds to
finance a necessary investment in water, sewer or broadband, as described in the Interim
Final Rule. See 31 CFR 35.6(e).

Funds must be used to cover “costs incurred” by the recipient between March 3, 2021,
and December 31, 2024, and Funds must be expended by December 31, 2026. See
Section I11.D of the Interim Final Rule; 31 CFR 35.5. Accordingly, recipients must be
able to determine the amount of Funds used to make a loan.

e For loans that mature or are forgiven on or before December 31, 2026, the recipient
must account for the use of funds on a cash flow basis, consistent with the approach
to loans taken in the Coronavirus Relief Fund.

o Recipients may use Fiscal Recovery Funds to fund the principal of the loan
and in that case must track repayment of principal and interest (i.e., “program
income,” as defined under 2 CFR 200).

o When the loan is made, recipients must report the principal of the loan as an
expense.

o Repayment of principal may be re-used only for eligible uses, and subject to
restrictions on timing of use of funds. Interest payments received prior to the
end of the period of performance will be considered an addition to the total
award and may be used for any purpose that is an eligible use of funds under
the statute and IFR. Recipients are not subject to restrictions under 2 CFR
200.307(e)(1) with respect to such payments.

e For loans with maturities longer than December 31, 2026, the recipient may use
Fiscal Recovery Funds for only the projected cost of the loan. Recipients may
estimate the subsidy cost of the loan, which equals the expected cash flows associated

25

Action Items - Page 35



4.12.

5.

5.1.

AS OF JULY 19, 2021

with the loan discounted at the recipient’s cost of funding. A recipient’s cost of
funding can be determined based on the interest rates of securities with a similar
maturity to the cash flow being discounted that were either (i) recently issued by the
recipient or (ii) recently issued by a unit of state, local, or Tribal government similar
to the recipient. Recipients that have adopted the Current Expected Credit Loss
(CECL) standard may also treat the cost of the loan as equal to the CECL-based
expected credit losses over the life of the loan. Recipients may measure projected
losses either once, at the time the loan is extended, or annually over the covered
period.

Under either approach for measuring the amount of funds used to make loans with
maturities longer than December 31, 2026, recipients would not be subject to
restrictions under 2 CFR 200.307(e)(1) and need not separately track repayment of
principal or interest.

Any contribution of Fiscal Recovery Funds to a revolving loan fund must follow the
approach described above for loans with maturities longer than December 31, 2026. In
other words, a recipient could contribute Fiscal Recovery Funds to a revolving loan fund,
provided that the revolving loan fund makes loans that are eligible uses and the Fiscal
Recovery Funds contributed represent the projected cost of loans made over the life of
the revolving loan fund.

May funds be used for outreach to increase uptake of federal assistance like the
Child Tax Credit or federal programs like SNAP? [7/14]

Yes. Eligible uses to address negative economic impacts include work “to improve
efficacy of programs addressing negative economic impacts, including through use of
data analysis, targeted consumer outreach, improvements to data or technology
infrastructure, and impact evaluations.” See 31 CFR 35.6(b)(10). Of note, per the
CSFRF/CLFRF Reporting Guidance, allowable use of funds for evaluations may also
include other types of program evaluations focused on program improvement and
evidence building. In addition, recipients may use funds to facilitate access to health and
social services in populations and communities disproportionately impacted by the
COVID-19 pandemic, including benefits navigators or marketing efforts to increase
consumer uptake of federal tax credits, benefits, or assistance programs that respond to
negative economic impacts of the pandemic. See 31 CFR 35.6(b)(12).

Eligible Uses — Premium Pay

What criteria should recipients use in identifying essential workers to receive
premium pay?

Essential workers are those in critical infrastructure sectors who regularly perform in-
person work, interact with others at work, or physically handle items handled by others.

26

Action Items - Page 36


https://home.treasury.gov/system/files/136/SLFRF-Compliance-and-Reporting-Guidance.pdf

5.2.

5.3.

AS OF JULY 19, 2021

Critical infrastructure sectors include healthcare, education and childcare, transportation,
sanitation, grocery and food production, and public health and safety, among others, as
provided in the Interim Final Rule. Governments receiving Fiscal Recovery Funds have
the discretion to add additional sectors to this list, so long as the sectors are considered
critical to protect the health and well-being of residents.

The Interim Final Rule emphasizes the need for recipients to prioritize premium pay for
lower income workers. Premium pay that would increase a worker’s total pay above
150% of the greater of the state or county average annual wage requires specific
justification for how it responds to the needs of these workers.

What criteria should recipients use in identifying third-party employers to receive
grants for the purpose of providing premium pay to essential workers?

Any third-party employers of essential workers are eligible. Third-party contractors who
employ essential workers in eligible sectors are also eligible for grants to provide
premium pay. Selection of third-party employers and contractors who receive grants is at
the discretion of recipients.

To ensure any grants respond to the needs of essential workers and are made in a fair and
transparent manner, the rule imposes some additional reporting requirements for grants to
third-party employers, including the public disclosure of grants provided.

May recipients provide premium pay retroactively for work already performed?
Yes. Treasury encourages recipients to consider providing premium pay retroactively for

work performed during the pandemic, recognizing that many essential workers have not
yet received additional compensation for their service during the pandemic.

6. Eligible Uses — Water, Sewer, and Broadband Infrastructure

6.1.

What types of water and sewer projects are eligible uses of funds?

The Interim Final Rule generally aligns eligible uses of the Funds with the wide range of
types or categories of projects that would be eligible to receive financial assistance

through the Environmental Protection Agency’s Clean Water State Revolving Fund
(CWSREF) or Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (DWSRF).

Under the DWSRF, categories of eligible projects include: treatment, transmission and
distribution (including lead service line replacement), source rehabilitation and
decontamination, storage, consolidation, and new systems development.

Under the CWSRF, categories of eligible projects include: construction of publicly-
owned treatment works, nonpoint source pollution management, national estuary
program projects, decentralized wastewater treatment systems, stormwater systems, water

27

Action Items - Page 37


https://www.epa.gov/sites/production/files/2019-10/documents/dwsrf_eligibility_handbook_june_13_2017_updated_508_versioni.pdf
https://www.epa.gov/sites/production/files/2016-07/documents/overview_of_cwsrf_eligibilities_may_2016.pdf

6.2.

6.3.

6.4.

6.5.

AS OF JULY 19, 2021

conservation, efficiency, and reuse measures, watershed pilot projects, energy efficiency
measures for publicly-owned treatment works, water reuse projects, security measures at
publicly-owned treatment works, and technical assistance to ensure compliance with the
Clean Water Act.

As mentioned in the Interim Final Rule, eligible projects under the DWSRF and CWSRF
support efforts to address climate change, as well as to meet cybersecurity needs to
protect water and sewer infrastructure. Given the lifelong impacts of lead exposure for
children, and the widespread nature of lead service lines, Treasury also encourages
recipients to consider projects to replace lead service lines.

May construction on eligible water, sewer, or broadband infrastructure projects
continue past December 31, 2024, assuming funds have been obligated prior to that
date?

Yes. Treasury is interpreting the requirement that costs be incurred by December 31,
2024 to only require that recipients have obligated the funds by such date. The period of
performance will run until December 31, 2026, which will provide recipients a
reasonable amount of time to complete projects funded with Fiscal Recovery Funds.

May recipients use funds as a non-federal match for the Clean Water State
Revolving Fund (CWSRF) or Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (DWSRF)?

Recipients may not use funds as a state match for the CWSRF and DWSRF due to
prohibitions in utilizing federal funds as a state match in the authorizing statutes and
regulations of the CWSRF and DWSRF.

Does the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) apply to eligible infrastructure
projects?

NEPA does not apply to Treasury’s administration of the Funds. Projects supported with
payments from the Funds may still be subject to NEPA review if they are also funded by
other federal financial assistance programs.

What types of broadband projects are eligible?

The Interim Final Rule requires eligible projects to reliably deliver minimum speeds of
100 Mbps download and 100 Mbps upload. In cases where it is impracticable due to
geography, topography, or financial cost to meet those standards, projects must reliably
deliver at least 100 Mbps download speed, at least 20 Mbps upload speed, and be
scalable to a minimum of 100 Mbps download speed and 100 Mbps upload speed.

Projects must also be designed to serve unserved or underserved households and

businesses, defined as those that are not currently served by a wireline connection that
reliably delivers at least 25 Mbps download speed and 3 Mbps of upload speed.

28

Action Items - Page 38



6.6.

6.7.

6.8.

AS OF JULY 19, 2021

For broadband investments, may recipients use funds for related programs such as
cybersecurity or digital literacy training?

Yes. Recipients may use funds to provide assistance to households facing negative
economic impacts due to Covid-19, including digital literacy training and other programs
that promote access to the Internet. Recipients may also use funds for modernization of
cybersecurity, including hardware, software, and protection of critical infrastructure, as
part of provision of government services up to the amount of revenue lost due to the
public health emergency.

How do I know if a water, sewer, or broadband project is an eligible use of funds?
Do I need pre-approval? [6/8]

Recipients do not need approval from Treasury to determine whether an investment in a
water, sewer, or broadband project is eligible under CSFRF/CLFRF. Each recipient
should review the Interim Final Rule (IFR), along with the preamble to the Interim Final
Rule, in order to make its own assessment of whether its intended project meets the
eligibility criteria in the IFR. A recipient that makes its own determination that a project
meets the eligibility criteria as outlined in the IFR may pursue the project as a
CSFRF/CLFRF project without pre-approval from Treasury. Local government
recipients similarly do not need state approval to determine that a project is eligible under
CSFRF/CLFRF. However, recipients should be cognizant of other federal or state laws
or regulations that may apply to construction projects independent of CSFRF/CLFRF
funding conditions and that may require pre-approval.

For water and sewer projects, the IFR refers to the EPA Drinking Water and Clean Water
State Revolving Funds (SRFs) for the categories of projects and activities that are eligible
for funding. Recipients should look at the relevant federal statutes, regulations, and
guidance issued by the EPA to determine whether a water or sewer project is eligible. Of
note, the IFR does not incorporate any other requirements contained in the federal
statutes governing the SRFs or any conditions or requirements that individual states may
place on their use of SRFs.

For broadband infrastructure investments, what does the requirement that
infrastructure “be designed to” provide service to unserved or underserved
households and businesses mean? [6/17]

Designing infrastructure investments to provide service to unserved or underserved
households or businesses means prioritizing deployment of infrastructure that will bring
service to households or businesses that are not currently serviced by a wireline
connection that reliably delivers at least 25 Mbps download speed and 3 Mbps of upload
speed. To meet this requirement, states and localities should use funds to deploy
broadband infrastructure projects whose objective is to provide service to unserved or
underserved households or businesses. These unserved or underserved households or
businesses do not need to be the only ones in the service area funded by the project.

29

Action Items - Page 39


https://www.epa.gov/sites/production/files/2019-10/documents/dwsrf_eligibility_handbook_june_13_2017_updated_508_versioni.pdf
https://www.epa.gov/sites/production/files/2016-07/documents/overview_of_cwsrf_eligibilities_may_2016.pdf

6.9.

6.10.

6.11.

AS OF JULY 19, 2021

For broadband infrastructure to provide service to “unserved or underserved
households or businesses,” must every house or business in the service area be
unserved or underserved? [6/17]

No. It suffices that an objective of the project is to provide service to unserved or
underserved households or businesses. Doing so may involve a holistic approach that
provides service to a wider area in order, for example, to make the ongoing service of
unserved or underserved households or businesses within the service area economical.
Unserved or underserved households or businesses need not be the only households or
businesses in the service area receiving funds.

May recipients use payments from the Funds for “middle mile” broadband
projects? [6/17]

Yes. Under the Interim Final Rule, recipients may use payments from the Funds for
“middle-mile projects,” but Treasury encourages recipients to focus on projects that will
achieve last-mile connections—whether by focusing on funding last-mile projects or by
ensuring that funded middle-mile projects have potential or partnered last-mile networks
that could or would leverage the middle-mile network.

For broadband infrastructure investments, what does the requirement to “reliably”
meet or exceed a broadband speed threshold mean? [6/17]

In the Interim Final Rule, the term “reliably” is used in two places: to identify areas that
are eligible to be the subject of broadband infrastructure investments and to identify
expectations for acceptable service levels for broadband investments funded by the
Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds. In particular:

e The IFR defines “unserved or underserved households or businesses” to mean one
or more households or businesses that are not currently served by a wireline
connection that reliably delivers at least 25 Mbps download speeds and 3 Mbps of
upload speeds.

e The IFR provides that a recipient may use Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal
Recovery Funds to make investments in broadband infrastructure that are
designed to provide service to unserved or underserved households or businesses
and that are designed to, upon completion: (i) reliably meet or exceed
symmetrical 100 Mbps download speed and upload speeds; or (ii) in limited
cases, reliably meet or exceed 100 Mbps download speed and between 20 Mbps
and 100 Mbps upload speed and be scalable to a minimum of 100 Mbps download
and upload speeds.

The use of “reliably” in the IFR provides recipients with significant discretion to assess
whether the households and businesses in the area to be served by a project have access
to wireline broadband service that can actually and consistently meet the specified

thresholds of at least 25Mbps/3Mbps—i.e., to consider the actual experience of current

30

Action Items - Page 40



6.12.

AS OF JULY 19, 2021

wireline broadband customers that subscribe to services at or above the 25 Mbps/3 Mbps
threshold. Whether there is a provider serving the area that advertises or otherwise
claims to offer speeds that meet the 25 Mbps download and 3 Mbps upload speed
thresholds is not dispositive.

When making these assessments, recipients may choose to consider any available data,
including but not limited to documentation of existing service performance, federal
and/or state-collected broadband data, user speed test results, interviews with residents
and business owners, and any other information they deem relevant. In evaluating such
data, recipients may take into account a variety of factors, including whether users
actually receive service at or above the speed thresholds at all hours of the day, whether
factors other than speed such as latency or jitter, or deterioration of the existing
connections make the user experience unreliable, and whether the existing service is
being delivered by legacy technologies, such as copper telephone lines (typically using
Digital Subscriber Line technology) or early versions of cable system technology
(DOCSIS 2.0 or earlier).

The IFR also provides recipients with significant discretion as to how they will assess
whether the project itself has been designed to provide households and businesses with
broadband services that meet, or even exceed, the speed thresholds provided in the rule.

May recipients use Funds for pre-project development for eligible water, sewer, and
broadband projects? [6/23]

Yes. To determine whether Funds can be used on pre-project development for an eligible
water or sewer project, recipients should consult whether the pre-project development use
or cost is eligible under the Drinking Water and Clean Water State Revolving Funds
(CWSRF and DWSREF, respectively). Generally, the CWSRF and DWSRF often allow
for pre-project development costs that are tied to an eligible project, as well as those that
are reasonably expected to lead to a project. For example, the DWSRF allows for
planning and evaluations uses, as well as numerous pre-project development costs,
including costs associated with obtaining project authorization, planning and design, and
project start-up like training and warranty for equipment. Likewise, the CWSRF allows
for broad pre-project development, including planning and assessment activities, such as
cost and effectiveness analyses, water/energy audits and conservation plans, and capital
improvement plans.

Similarly, pre-project development uses and costs for broadband projects should be tied
to an eligible broadband project or reasonably expected to lead to such a project. For
example, pre-project costs associated with planning and engineering for an eligible
broadband infrastructure build-out is considered an eligible use of funds, as well as
technical assistance and evaluations that would reasonably be expected to lead to
commencement of an eligible project (e.g., broadband mapping for the purposes of
finding an eligible area for investment).

31

Action Items - Page 41


https://www.epa.gov/sites/production/files/2017-06/documents/dwsrf_eligibility_handbook_june_13_2017_updated_508_version.pdf
https://www.epa.gov/sites/production/files/2016-07/documents/overview_of_cwsrf_eligibilities_may_2016.pdf

6.13.

6.14.

6.15.

6.16.

AS OF JULY 19, 2021

All funds must be obligated within the statutory period between March 3, 2021 and
December 31, 2024, and expended to cover such obligations by December 31, 2026.

May State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds be used to support energy or
electrification infrastructure that would be used to power new water treatment
plants and wastewater systems? [7/14]

The EPA’s Overview of Clean Water State Revolving Fund Eligibilities describes
eligible energy-related projects. This includes a “[p]ro rata share of capital costs of
offsite clean energy facilities that provide power to a treatment works.” Thus, State and
Local Fiscal Recovery Funds may be used to finance the generation and delivery of clean
power to a wastewater system or a water treatment plant on a pro-rata basis. If the
wastewater system or water treatment plant is the sole user of the clean energy, the full
cost would be considered an eligible use of funds. If the clean energy provider provides
power to other entities, only the proportionate share used by the water treatment plant or
wastewater system would be an eligible use of State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds.

How should states and local governments assess whether a stormwater management
project, such as a culvert replacement, is an eligible project for State and Local
Fiscal Recovery Funds? [7/14]

FAQ 6.7 describes the overall approach that recipients may take to evaluate the eligibility
of water or sewer projects. For stormwater management projects specifically, as noted in
the EPA’s Overview of Clean Water State Revolving Fund Eligibilities, “Stormwater
projects must have a water quality benefit.” Thus, to be eligible under CSFRF/CLFRF,
stormwater management projects should be designed to incorporate water quality benefits
consistent with the goals of the Clean Water Act. Summary of the Clean Water Act.

May recipients use Funds for road repairs and upgrades that occur in connection
with an eligible water or sewer project? [7/14]

Yes, recipients may use State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds for road repairs and
upgrades directly related to an eligible water or sewer project. For example, a recipient
could use Funds to repair or re-pave a road following eligible sewer repair work beneath
it. However, use of Funds for general infrastructure projects is subject to the limitations
described in FAQ 4.2. Water and sewer infrastructure projects are often a single
component of a broader transportation infrastructure project, for example, the
implementation of stormwater infrastructure to meet Clean Water Act established water
quality standards. In this example, the components of the infrastructure project that
interact directly with the stormwater infrastructure project may be funded by Fiscal
Recovery Funds.

May Funds be used to build or upgrade broadband connections to schools or
libraries? [7/14]

32

Action Items - Page 42


https://www.epa.gov/sites/production/files/2016-07/documents/overview_of_cwsrf_eligibilities_may_2016.pdf
https://www.epa.gov/sites/production/files/2016-07/documents/overview_of_cwsrf_eligibilities_may_2016.pdf
https://www.epa.gov/laws-regulations/summary-clean-water-act

6.17.

AS OF JULY 19, 2021

As outlined in the IFR, recipients may use Fiscal Recovery Funds to invest in broadband
infrastructure that, wherever it is practicable to do so, is designed to deliver service that
reliably meets or exceeds symmetrical upload and download speeds of 100 Mbps to
households or businesses that are not currently serviced by a wireline connection that
reliably delivers at least 25 Mbps download speed and 3 Mbps of upload speed. Treasury
interprets “businesses” in this context broadly to include non-residential users of
broadband, including private businesses and institutions that serve the public, such as
schools, libraries, healthcare facilities, and public safety organizations.

Are eligible infrastructure projects subject to the Davis-Bacon Act? [7/14]

The Davis-Bacon Act requirements (prevailing wage rates) do not apply to projects
funded solely with award funds from the CSFRF/CLFRF program, except for
CSFRF/CLFRF-funded construction projects undertaken by the District of Columbia.
The Davis-Bacon Act specifically applies to the District of Columbia when it uses federal
funds (CSFRF/CLFRF funds or otherwise) to enter into contracts over $2,000 for the
construction, alteration, or repair (including painting and decorating) of public buildings
or public works. Recipients may be otherwise subject to the requirements of the Davis-
Bacon Act, when CSFRF/CLFRF award funds are used on a construction project in
conjunction with funds from another federal program that requires enforcement of the
Davis-Bacon Act. Additionally, corollary state prevailing-wage-in-construction laws
(commonly known as “baby Davis-Bacon Acts”) may apply to projects. Please refer to
FAQ 4.10 concerning projects funded with both CSFRF/CLFRF funds and other sources
of funding.

Treasury has indicated in its Interim Final Rule that it is important that necessary
investments in water, sewer, or broadband infrastructure be carried out in ways that
produce high-quality infrastructure, avert disruptive and costly delays, and promote
efficiency. Treasury encourages recipients to ensure that water, sewer, and broadband
projects use strong labor standards, including project labor agreements and community
benefits agreements that offer wages at or above the prevailing rate and include local hire
provisions, not only to promote effective and efficient delivery of high-quality
infrastructure projects, but also to support the economic recovery through strong
employment opportunities for workers. Using these practices in construction projects
may help to ensure a reliable supply of skilled labor that would minimize disruptions,
such as those associated with labor disputes or workplace injuries.

Treasury has also indicated in its reporting guidance that recipients will need to provide
documentation of wages and labor standards for infrastructure projects over $10 million,
and that that these requirements can be met with certifications that the project is in
compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act (or related state laws, commonly known as “baby
Davis-Bacon Acts”) and subject to a project labor agreement. Please refer to the
Reporting and Compliance Guidance, page 21, for more detailed information on the
reporting requirement.

33

Action Items - Page 43



AS OF JULY 19, 2021

7. Non-Entitlement Units (NEUS)

8.

8.1.

8.2.

Answers to frequently asked questions on distribution of funds to NEUs can be found in
this FAQ supplement, which is regularly updated.

Ineligible Uses

What is meant by a pension “deposit”? Can governments use funds for routine
pension contributions for employees whose payroll and covered benefits are eligible
expenses?

Treasury interprets “deposit” in this context to refer to an extraordinary payment into a
pension fund for the purpose of reducing an accrued, unfunded liability. More
specifically, the interim final rule does not permit this assistance to be used to make a
payment into a pension fund if both: (1) the payment reduces a liability incurred prior to
the start of the COVID-19 public health emergency, and (2) the payment occurs outside
the recipient’s regular timing for making such payments.

Under this interpretation, a “deposit” is distinct from a “payroll contribution,” which
occurs when employers make payments into pension funds on regular intervals, with
contribution amounts based on a pre-determined percentage of employees’ wages and
salaries. In general, if an employee’s wages and salaries are an eligible use of Fiscal
Recovery Funds, recipients may treat the employee’s covered benefits as an eligible use
of Fiscal Recovery Funds.

May recipients use Fiscal Recovery Funds to fund Other Post-Employment Benefits
(OPEB)? [6/8]

OPEB refers to benefits other than pensions (see, e.g., Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, “Other Post-Employment Benefits”). Treasury has determined that
Sections 602(c)(2)(B) and 603(c)(2), which refer only to pensions, do not prohibit
CSFRF/CLFREF recipients from funding OPEB. Recipients of either the CSFRF/CLFRF
may use funds for eligible uses, and a recipient seeking to use CSFRF/CLFRF funds for
OPEB contributions would need to justify those contributions under one of the four
eligible use categories.

9. Reporting

On June 17, 2021, Treasury released Guidance on Recipient Compliance and Reporting
Responsibilities for the Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds. Recipients should

consult this guidance for additional detail and clarification on recipients’ compliance and
reporting responsibilities. A users’ guide will be provided with additional information on how
and where to submit required reports.

34

Action Items - Page 44


https://home.treasury.gov/system/files/136/NEU-FAQs.pdf
https://www.gasb.org/jsp/GASB/Page/GASBBridgePage&cid=1176164129754
https://www.gasb.org/jsp/GASB/Page/GASBBridgePage&cid=1176164129754
https://home.treasury.gov/system/files/136/SLFRF-Compliance-and-Reporting-Guidance.pdf
https://home.treasury.gov/system/files/136/SLFRF-Compliance-and-Reporting-Guidance.pdf

9.1.

9.2.

AS OF JULY 19, 2021

What records must be kept by governments receiving funds?

Financial records and supporting documents related to the award must be retained for a
period of five years after all funds have been expended or returned to Treasury,
whichever is later. This includes those which demonstrate the award funds were used for
eligible purposes in accordance with the ARPA, Treasury’s regulations implementing
those sections, and Treasury’s guidance on eligible uses of funds.

What reporting will be required, and when will the first report be due?

Recipients will be required to submit an interim report, quarterly project and expenditure
reports, and annual Recovery Plan Performance Reports as specified below, regarding
their utilization of Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds.

Interim reports: States (defined to include the District of Columbia), territories,
metropolitan cities, counties, and Tribal governments will be required to submit one
interim report. The interim report will include a recipient’s expenditures by category at
the summary level and for states, information related to distributions to non-entitlement
units of local government must also be included in the interim report. The interim report
will cover activity from the date of award to July 31, 2021 and must be submitted to
Treasury by August 31, 2021. Non-entitlement units of local government are not required
to submit an interim report.

Quarterly Project and Expenditure reports: State (defined to include the District of
Columbia), territorial, metropolitan city, county, and Tribal governments will be required
to submit quarterly project and expenditure reports. This report will include financial
data, information on contracts and subawards over $50,000, types of projects funded, and
other information regarding a recipient’s utilization of award funds. Reports will be
required quarterly with the exception of non-entitlement units, which will report
annually. An interim report is due on August 31, 2021. The reports will include the
same general data as those submitted by recipients of the Coronavirus Relief Fund, with
some modifications to expenditure categories and the addition of data elements related to
specific eligible uses. The initial quarterly Project and Expenditure report will cover two
calendar quarters from the date of award to September 30, 2021 and must be submitted to
Treasury by October 31, 2021. The subsequent quarterly reports will cover one calendar
quarter and must be submitted to Treasury within 30 days after the end of each calendar
quarter.

Non-entitlement units of local government will be required to submit the project and
expenditure report annually. The initial annual Project and Expenditure report for non-
entitlement units of local government will cover activity from the date of award to
September 30, 2021 and must be submitted to Treasury by October 31, 2021. The
subsequent annual reports must be submitted to Treasury by October 31 each year.

Recovery Plan Performance Reports: States (defined to include the District of Columbia),
territories, metropolitan cities, and counties with a population that exceeds 250,000

35

Action Items - Page 45



9.3.

9.4.

AS OF JULY 19, 2021

residents will also be required to submit an annual Recovery Plan Performance Report to
Treasury. This report will include descriptions of the projects funded and information on
the performance indicators and objectives of each award, helping local residents
understand how their governments are using the substantial resources provided by
Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds program. The initial Recovery Plan
Performance Report will cover activity from date of award to July 31, 2021 and must be
submitted to Treasury by August 31, 2021. Thereafter, the Recovery Plan Performance
Reports will cover a 12-month period and recipients will be required to submit the report
to Treasury within 30 days after the end of the 12-month period. The second Recovery
Plan Performance Report will cover the period from July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2022 and
must be submitted to Treasury by July 31, 2022. Each annual Recovery Plan
Performance Report must be posted on the public-facing website of the recipient. Local
governments with fewer than 250,000 residents, Tribal governments, and non-entitlement
units of local government are not required to develop a Recovery Plan Performance
Report.

Please see the Guidance on Recipient Compliance and Reporting Responsibilities for
more information.

What provisions of the Uniform Guidance for grants apply to these funds? Will the
Single Audit requirements apply?

Most of the provisions of the Uniform Guidance (2 CFR Part 200) apply to this program,
including the Cost Principles and Single Audit Act requirements. Recipients should refer
to the Assistance Listing for detail on the specific provisions of the Uniform Guidance
that do not apply to this program. The Assistance Listing will be available on

beta. SAM.gov.

Once a recipient has identified a reduction in revenue, how will Treasury track use
of funds for the provision of government services? [6/8]

The ARPA establishes four categories of eligible uses and further restrictions on the use
of funds to ensure that Fiscal Recovery Funds are used within the four eligible use
categories. The Interim Final Rule implements these restrictions, including the scope of
the eligible use categories and further restrictions on tax cuts and deposits into

pensions. Reporting requirements will align with this structure.

Consistent with the broad latitude provided to recipients to use funds for government
services to the extent of the reduction in revenue, recipients will be required to submit a
description of services provided. As discussed in IFR, these services can include a broad
range of services but may not be used directly for pension deposits, contributions to
reserve funds, or debt service. Recipients may use sources of funding other than Fiscal
Recovery Funds to make deposits to pension funds, contribute to reserve funds, and pay
debt service, including during the period of performance for the Fiscal Recovery Fund
award.

36

Action Items - Page 46


https://home.treasury.gov/system/files/136/SLFRF-Compliance-and-Reporting-Guidance.pdf
https://beta.SAM.gov

9.5.

AS OF JULY 19, 2021

For recipients using Fiscal Recovery Funds to provide government services to the extent
of reduction in revenue, the description of government services reported to Treasury may
be narrative or in another form, and recipients are encouraged to report based on their
existing budget processes and to minimize administrative burden. For example, a
recipient with $100 in revenue replacement funds available could indicate that $50 were
used for personnel costs and $50 were used for pay-go building of sidewalk
infrastructure.

In addition to describing the government services provided to the extent of reduction in
revenue, all recipients will also be required to indicate that Fiscal Recovery Funds are not
used directly to make a deposit in a pension fund. Further, recipients subject to the tax
offset provision will be required to provide information necessary to implement the
Interim Final Rule, as described in the Interim Final Rule. Treasury does not anticipate
requiring other types of reporting or recordkeeping on spending in pensions, debt service,
or contributions to reserve funds.

These requirements are further detailed in the guidance on reporting requirements for the
Fiscal Recovery Funds available here.

What is the Assistance Listing and Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA)
number for the program? [6/8]

The Assistance Listing for the Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds
(CSLFRF) was published May 28, 2021 on SAM.gov. This includes the final CFDA
Number for the program, 21.027.

The assistance listing includes helpful information including program purpose, statutory
authority, eligibility requirements, and compliance requirements for recipients. The
CFDA number is the unique 5-digit code for each type of federal assistance, and can be
used to search for program information, including funding opportunities, spending on
usaspending.gov, or audit results through the Federal Audit Clearinghouse.

To expedite payments and meet statutory timelines, Treasury issued initial payments
under an existing CFDA number. If you have already received funds or captured the
initial CFDA number in your records, please update your systems and reporting to reflect
the final CFDA number 21.027. Recipients must use the final CFDA number for all
financial accounting, audits, subawards, and associated program reporting
requirements.

To ensure public trust, Treasury expects all recipients to serve as strong stewards of these
funds. This includes ensuring funds are used for intended purposes and recipients have in
place effective financial management, internal controls, and reporting for transparency
and accountability.

Please see Treasury’s Interim Final Rule and the Guidance on Recipient Compliance and
Reporting Responsibilities for more information.

37

Action Items - Page 47


https://home.treasury.gov/system/files/136/SLFRF-Compliance-and-Reporting-Guidance.pdf
https://sam.gov/fal/7cecfdef62dc42729a3fdcd449bd62b8/view
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2021-05-17/pdf/2021-10283.pdf
https://home.treasury.gov/system/files/136/SLFRF-Compliance-and-Reporting-Guidance.pdf
https://home.treasury.gov/system/files/136/SLFRF-Compliance-and-Reporting-Guidance.pdf
https://usaspending.gov

AS OF JULY 19, 2021

10. Miscellaneous

10.1.

10.2.

10.3.

10.4.

May governments retain assets purchased with Fiscal Recovery Funds? If so, what
rules apply to the proceeds of disposition or sale of such assets?

Yes, if the purchase of the asset was consistent with the limitations on the eligible use of
funds. If such assets are disposed of prior to December 31, 2024, the proceeds would be
subject to the restrictions on the eligible use of payments.

Can recipients use funds for administrative purposes?

Recipients may use funds to cover the portion of payroll and benefits of employees
corresponding to time spent on administrative work necessary due to the COVID-19
public health emergency and its negative economic impacts. This includes, but is not
limited to, costs related to disbursing payments of Fiscal Recovery Funds and managing
new grant programs established using Fiscal Recovery Funds.

Are recipients required to remit interest earned on CSFRF/CLFRF payments made
by Treasury? [5/27, updated 7/14]

No. CSFRF/CLFRF payments made by Treasury to states, territories, and the District of
Columbia are not subject to the requirement of the Cash Management Improvement Act
and Treasury’s implementing regulations at 31 CFR part 205 to remit interest to
Treasury. CSFRF/CLFRF payments made by Treasury to local governments and Tribes
are not subject to the requirement of 2 CFR 200.305(b)(8)—(9) to maintain balances in an
interest-bearing account and remit payments to Treasury. Moreover, interest earned on
CSFRF/CLFRF payments is not subject to program restrictions. Finally, States may
retain interest on payments made by Treasury to the State for distribution to NEUSs that is
earned before funds are distributed to NEUs, provided that the State adheres to the
statutory requirements and Treasury’s guidance regarding the distribution of funds to
NEUSs. Such interest is also not subject to program restrictions.

Among other things, States and other recipients may use earned income to defray the
administrative expenses of the program, including with respect to NEUs.

Is there a deadline to apply for funds? [5/27]
The Interim Final Rule requires that costs be incurred by December 31, 2024. Direct
recipients are encouraged to apply as soon as possible. For direct recipients other than

Tribal governments, there is not a specific application deadline.

Tribal governments do have deadlines to complete the application process and should
visit www.treasury.gov/SLFRPTribal for guidance on applicable deadlines.

38

Action Items - Page 48


http://www.treasury.gov/SLFRPTribal

10.5.

AS OF JULY 19, 2021

Non-entitlement units of local government should contact their state government for
information on applicable deadlines.

May recipients use funds to cover the costs of consultants to assist with managing
and administering the funds? [6/8]

Yes. Recipients may use funds for administering the CSFRF/CLFRF program, including
costs of consultants to support effective management and oversight, including
consultation for ensuring compliance with legal, regulatory, and other requirements.

11. Operations

11.1.

11.2.

11.3.

11.4.

How do I know if my entity is eligible?

The Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds American Rescue Plan Act of
2021 set forth the jurisdictions eligible to receive funds under the program, which are:

e States and the District of Columbia

e Territories

e Tribal governments

e Counties

e Metropolitan cities (typically, but not always, those with populations over 50,000)

¢ Non-entitlement units of local government, or smaller local governments

(typically, but not always, those with populations under 50,000)

How does an eligible entity request payment?
Eligible entities (other than non-entitlement units) must submit their information to the

Treasury Submission Portal. Please visit the Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal
Recovery Fund website for more information on the submission process.

I cannot log into the Treasury Submission Portal or am having trouble navigating
it. Who can help me?

If you have questions about the Treasury Submission Portal or for technical support,
please email covidreliefitsupport@treasury.gov.

What do | need to do to receive my payment?

All eligible payees are required to have a DUNS Number previously issued by Dun &
Bradstreet (https://www.dnb.com/).

All eligible payees are also required to have an active registration with the System for
Award Management (SAM) (https://www.sam.gov).

39

Action Items - Page 49


https://portal.treasury.gov/cares/s/slt
https://home.treasury.gov/policy-issues/coronavirus/assistance-for-state-local-and-tribal-governments/state-and-local-fiscal-recovery-fund
https://home.treasury.gov/policy-issues/coronavirus/assistance-for-state-local-and-tribal-governments/state-and-local-fiscal-recovery-fund
mailto:covidreliefitsupport@treasury.gov
https://www.dnb.com/
https://www.sam.gov/

11.5.

11.6.

11.7.

11.8.

11.9.

AS OF JULY 19, 2021

And eligible payees must have a bank account enabled for Automated Clearing House
(ACH) direct deposit. Payees with a Wire account are encouraged to provide that
information as well.

More information on these and all program pre-submission requirements can be found on
the Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Fund website.

Why is Treasury employing id.me for the Treasury Submission Portal?

ID.me is a trusted technology partner to multiple government agencies and healthcare
providers. It provides secure digital identity verification to those government agencies
and healthcare providers to make sure you're you — and not someone pretending to be you
—when you request access to online services. All personally identifiable information
provided to ID.me is encrypted and disclosed only with the express consent of the user.
Please refer to ID.me Contact Support for assistance with your ID.me account. Their
support website is https://help.id.me.

Why is an entity not on the list of eligible entities in Treasury Submission Portal?

The ARPA statute lays out which governments are eligible for payments. The list of
entities within the Treasury Submission Portal includes entities eligible to receive a direct
payment of funds from Treasury, which include states (defined to include the District of
Columbia), territories, Tribal governments, counties, and metropolitan cities.

Eligible non-entitlement units of local government will receive a distribution of funds
from their respective state government and should not submit information to the Treasury
Submission Portal.

If you believe an entity has been mistakenly left off the eligible entity list, please email
SLFRP@treasury.gov.

What is an Authorized Representative?

An Authorized Representative is an individual with legal authority to bind the
government entity (e.g., the Chief Executive Officer of the government entity). An
Authorized Representative must sign the Acceptance of Award terms for it to be valid.

How does a Tribal government determine their allocation?

Tribal governments will receive information about their allocation when the submission
to the Treasury Submission Portal is confirmed to be complete and accurate.

How do I know the status of my request for funds (submission)?

Entities can check the status of their submission at any time by logging into Treasury
Submission Portal.

40

Action Items - Page 50


https://home.treasury.gov/policy-issues/coronavirus/assistance-for-state-local-and-tribal-governments/state-and-local-fiscal-recovery-fund
https://help.id.me/
mailto:SLFRP@treasury.gov
https://portal.treasury.gov/cares/s/slt
https://portal.treasury.gov/cares/s/slt

11.10.

11.11.

11.12.

11.13.

AS OF JULY 19, 2021

My Treasury Submission Portal submission requires additional
information/correction. What is the process for that?

If your Authorized Representative has not yet signed the award terms, you can edit your
submission with in the into Treasury Submission Portal. If your Authorized
Representative has signed the award terms, please email SLFRP@treasury.gov to request
assistance with updating your information.

My request for funds was denied. How do I find out why it was denied or appeal the
decision?

Please check to ensure that no one else from your entity has applied, causing a duplicate
submission. Please also review the list of all eligible entities on the Coronavirus State
and Local Fiscal Recovery Fund website.

If you still have questions regarding your submission, please email
SLFRP@treasury.gov.

When will entities get their money?

Before Treasury is able to execute a payment, a representative of an eligible government
must submit the government’s information for verification through the Treasury
Submission Portal. The verification process takes approximately four business days. If
any errors are identified, the designated point of contact for the government will be
contacted via email to correct the information before the payment can proceed. Once
verification is complete, the designated point of contact of the eligible government will
receive an email notifying them that their submission has been verified. Payments are
generally scheduled for the next business day after this verification email, though funds
may not be available immediately due to processing time of their financial institution.

How does a local government entity provide Treasury with a notice of transfer of
funds to its State?

For more information on how to provide Treasury with notice of transfer to a state, please
email SLRedirectFunds@treasury.gov.

41

Action Items - Page 51


https://portal.treasury.gov/cares/s/slt
mailto:SLFRP@treasury.gov
https://home.treasury.gov/policy-issues/coronavirus/assistance-for-state-local-and-tribal-governments/state-and-local-fiscal-recovery-fund
https://home.treasury.gov/policy-issues/coronavirus/assistance-for-state-local-and-tribal-governments/state-and-local-fiscal-recovery-fund
mailto:SLFRP@treasury.gov
https://portal.treasury.gov/cares/s/slt
https://portal.treasury.gov/cares/s/slt
mailto:SLRedirectFunds@treasury.gov

AS OF JULY 19, 2021

Appendix: Interim Final Rule Definition of General Revenue Within the Census Bureau Classification Structure of Revenue

Revenue

l General Revenue
I

Intergovernmental
Revenue

Source: U.S. Bureau of the Census Government Finance and Employment Classification Manual, 2006; Annual Survey of State and Local Government Finances

42

Action Items - Page 52


https://www2.census.gov/govs/pubs/classification/2006_classification_manual.pdf
https://www.census.gov/data/datasets/2018/econ/local/public-use-datasets.html

BOARD ACTION FORM

Agenda Item: Action Item #6.02
Subject: Board of Supervisors Vacancy — Waverly District

Board Meeting Date: November 18 2021
Summary: The Honorable Marian D. Johnson resigned from the Board of Supervisors, effective
November 5, 2021.

The County Attorney will discuss at the meeting.

Recommendation:

Attachments: Sussex Special Election Board of Supervisors Petition and Sussex Special Election
Draft Order and Interim Appointment Provision (with name left blank)

REQUESTED ACTION:

MOTION BY: SECONDED BY:

Member Member

Fly Seward
D. Jones Tyler

W. Jones White
(Tie Breaker)

Action Item - Page 53




VIRGINIA:

IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE COUNTY OF SUSSEX

IN RE:

Petition for Special Election to

Fill a Vacancy on the Board of
Supervisors of the County of Sussex
Case No.

COUNTY OF SUSSEX, VIRGINIA,

Petitioner.

N N N N N N N N N N N N

PETITION FOR WRIT OF ELECTION

COMES NOW the Petitioner, the COUNTY OF SUSSEX, VIRGINIA, by and through

counsel, pursuant to the requirements of Virginia Code § 24.2-226, and states as follows:

FACTS

1. The election for the Board of Supervisors is held every four years in November.

2. In November 2019, Ms. Marian D. Johnson was elected as a member of the Board of
Supervisors of Sussex County from the Waverly District to serve a four-year term.

3. Ms. Johnson’s term expires December 31, 2023.

4. Effective November 5, 2021, Ms. Johnson resigned as a member of the Board of Supervisors
of Sussex County. See Exhibit A.

5. Virginia Code § 24.2-226 requires that the governing body petition the circuit court to issue a
writ of election within 15 days of the occurrence of the vacancy.

6. Further, pursuant to Virginia Code § 24.2-226(A), “[U]pon receipt of the petition... the court

shall issue the writ ordering the election promptly and shall order the special election to be

Action Item - Page 54



held on the date of the next general election in November...However, if the governing body
...requests in its petition a different date for the election, the court shall order the special
election be held on that date...”

7. The Board of Supervisors respectfully requests that the date of November 8, 2022, which is
the date of the next scheduled general election, be the date of the special election to fill the
vacancy on the Board of Supervisors of the County of Sussex, Virginia, pursuant to Virginia
Code § 24.2-682.

[8. At its regular meeting on November 19, 2021, pursuant to authority granted under Virginia
Code § 24.2-228, the Board of Supervisors appointed [insert name], a qualified voter in the
election district in which the present vacancy occurred, as an interim member of the Board of
Supervisors to hold such office until such time as the qualified voters fill the vacancy by special

election pursuant to Virginia Code § 24.2-682 and the person so elected has qualified.]

WHEREFORE, pursuant to Virginia Code 88 24.2-226(A) and 24.2-682, the Petitioner
respectfully requests that the Court order a special election to be held November 8, 2022, to fill

the vacancy on the Board of Supervisors of the County of Sussex, Virginia.

COUNTY OF SUSSEX, VIRGINIA
By Counsel

Jeffrey S. Gore (VSB #44874)
Hefty Wiley & Gore, P.C.

100 West Franklin Street, Suite 300
Richmond, VA 23220

Telephone No.: (804) 780-3143
Facsimile No.: (804) 225-8728
jeff@heftywiley.com

Action Item - Page 55



VIRGINIA:

IN THE CIRCUIT COURT FOR THE COUNTY OF SUSSEX, VIRGINIA

)
IN RE: )
Petition for Special Election to )
Fill a Vacancy on the Board of )
Supervisors of the County of Sussex )
) Case No.
)
COUNTY OF SUSSEX, VIRGINIA, )
)
Petitioner. )
)
)
ORDER

UPON CONSIDERATION of the Petition for Writ of Election and the reasons stated therein,
and pursuant to Virginia Code §§ 24.2-226 and 24.2-682, the Court finds that a special election is
hereby ordered, and the Sussex County Electoral Board is directed to take steps and prepare such
means as may be necessary to hold the special election to fill the Board of Supervisors vacancy on
Tuesday, November 8, 2022. This Court further ORDERS the Electoral Board and Registrar to
observe the directives set forth in 8§ 24.2-681 et seq. of the Code of Virginia when conducting this
Special Election. This Court further ORDERS that the Secretary of the Electoral Board shall post
a copy of this Writ on the official website for the Sussex County and have notice of the election
published once in a newspaper of general circulation in this jurisdiction at least ten (10) days before

the special election.

NOTHING FURTHER remaining to be done herein, this matter is removed from the active
docket of this Court and placed among the ended cases. The Clerk is directed to send an attested

copy of this Order to counsel of record.

Action Item - Page 56



ENTERED:

We ask for this:
SUSSEX COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

By Counsel

Jeffrey S. Gore (VSB #44874)
Hefty Wiley & Gore, P.C.

100 West Franklin Street, Suite 300
Richmond, VA 23220

Telephone No.: (804) 780-3143
Facsimile No.: (804) 225-8728
jeff@heftywiley.com

JUDGE

Action Item - Page 57



	#1 11 18 2021 agenda
	#2.01 Minutes
	#2.01-1 10 21 2021 Regular BOS meeting minutes
	#2.01-2 9 16 2021 Regular BOS meeting minutes 9 16 2021 (00000002)
	Resolution #21-80 authorizing the issuance of a General obligation school refunding bond of the County of Sussex, Virginia, to be sold to the Virginia public school authority and providing for the form and details thereof:
	1. UAuthorization of Local School Bond and Use of ProceedsU.  The Board hereby determines that it is advisable to contract a debt and issue and sell its general obligation school refunding bond in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $4,250,000...
	2. USale of the Local School BondU.  The sale of the Local School Bond, within the parameters set forth in paragraph 4 of this Resolution, to VPSA is authorized.  Given the VPSA Purchase Price Objective and market conditions, the County acknowledges t...
	3. UDetails of the Local School BondU.  The Local School Bond shall be dated 17 days prior to the date of its issuance and delivery or such other date designated by VPSA; shall be designated "General Obligation School Refunding Bond, Series 2021 [  ]"...
	4. UInterest Rates and Principal InstallmentsU.  Each Delegate is hereby authorized and directed to accept the interest rates on the Local School Bond established by VPSA, provided that each interest rate shall be five one-hundredths of one percent (0...
	5. UForm of the Local School BondU.  The Local School Bond shall be initially in the form of a single, temporary typewritten bond substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A.
	6. UPayment; Paying Agent and Bond RegistrarU.  The following provisions shall apply to the Local School Bond:
	(a) For as long as VPSA is the registered owner of the Local School Bond, all payments of principal, premium, if any, and interest on the Local School Bond shall be made in immediately available funds to VPSA at, or before 11:00 a.m. on the applicable...
	(b) All overdue payments of principal and, to the extent permitted by law, interest shall bear interest at the applicable interest rate or rates on the Local School Bond.
	(c) The County Administrator is authorized to designate a Bond Registrar and Paying Agent for the Local School Bond.  The County may, in its sole discretion, replace at any time the Bond Registrar with another qualified bank or trust company as succes...

	7. UPrepayment or RedemptionU.  Unless otherwise directed by VPSA, the Principal Installments of the Local School Bond held by VPSA coming due on or before July 15, 2031, and the definitive bond for which the Local School Bond held by VPSA may be exch...
	UProvidedU, UhoweverU, that the Principal Installments of the Local School Bond shall not be subject to prepayment or redemption prior to their stated maturities as described above without first obtaining the written consent of  VPSA or other registe...
	If VPSA refunds the VPSA Bonds in the future and such refunding causes the Local School Bond to be deemed refunded, the prepayment or redemption of the Local School Bond will be subject to VPSA approval and subject to similar prepayment or redemption...
	8. UExecution of the Local School BondU.  The Chairman or Vice Chairman and the Clerk or any Deputy Clerk of the Board are authorized and directed to execute and deliver the Local School Bond and to affix the seal of the County thereto.
	9. UPledge of Full Faith and CreditU.  For the prompt payment of the principal of, premium, if any, and the interest on the Local School Bond as the same shall become due, the full faith and credit of the County are hereby irrevocably pledged, and in ...
	10. UUse of Proceeds Certificate and Tax Compliance AgreementU.  The Chairman of the Board, the County Administrator and such other officer or officers of the County or the School Board as either may designate are hereby authorized and directed to exe...
	11. UState Non-Arbitrage Program; Proceeds AgreementU.  The Board hereby determines that it is in the best interests of the County to authorize and direct the County Treasurer to participate in the State Non-Arbitrage Program in connection with the Lo...
	12. UContinuing Disclosure AgreementU.  The Chairman of the Board, the County Administrator and such other officer or officers of the County as either may designate are hereby authorized and directed to execute a Continuing Disclosure Agreement, as se...
	13. URefundingU.  The Board hereby acknowledges that VPSA may issue refunding bonds to refund any bonds previously issued by VPSA, including the VPSA Bonds issued to purchase the Local School Bond, and that the purpose of such refunding bonds would be...
	14. UFiling of ResolutionU.  The appropriate officers or agents of the County are hereby authorized and directed to cause a certified copy of this Resolution to be filed with the Circuit Court of the County.
	15. UElection to Proceed under Public Finance ActU.  In accordance with Section 15.2-2601 of the Virginia Code, the Board elects to issue the Local School Bond pursuant to the provisions of the Public Finance Act of 1991, Chapter 26 of Title 15.2 of t...
	16. UFurther ActionsU.  The members of the Board and all officers, employees and agents of the County are hereby authorized to take such action as they or any one of them may consider necessary or desirable in connection with the issuance and sale of ...
	17. UEffective DateU.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately.


	#2.02 October 2021 Warrants  Vouchers
	October 2021

	#2.03-8 Consent Agenda
	#2.03 Treasurer's Report
	#2.04 Financial Update
	#2.05-1 Public Works
	#2.05-2 BLDG October 2021 Report
	#2.05-3 Public Safety
	#2.05-4 Public Safety Monthly Report
	#2.05-5 Sheriff's Dept.
	#2.05-6 Sheriff's October 2021
	#2.05-7 SW Cover
	#2.05-8 October 2021 Tonnage Report
	#2.05-9 Planning Department
	#2.05-10 October Monthly BOS Report
	#2.06-1 Donation of Property
	#2.06-2 Surry Tank IMG_3398
	#2.07-1 Surry BO MOA Amendment
	#2.07-2 Surry.Sussex.BldOfficals.AmendedMOA 10.29.21 DRAFT
	#2.08-1 Opioid Settlement
	#2.08-2 Opioid Settlement Memo 10.29.21 rev
	#2.08-3 Sussex Opioid Settlement Participation Resolution one 10.28.21 rev
	#2.08-4 Sussex Opioid Settlment MOU Resolution two 10.28.21 (002)

	#3 Recognitions
	#3.01-1 AS Update
	#3.01-2 AS Presentation
	#3.02-1 County Property Reassessment

	#4 Public Hearing
	#4.01-1 PH Sale of County Property
	#4.01-2
	#4.02-1 PH RIFA
	#4.02-2 RIFA Agreement Creating Virginia's Gateway RIFA 10.01.2021 (002)
	ARTICLE 2
	ARTICLE 3

	#4.02-3 RIFA Bylaws 10.01.2021
	ARTICLE III
	OFFICE OF AUTHORITY; TITLE TO PROPERTY

	#4.02-4 RIFA Ordinance - SUSSEX 09.17.2021 (003)
	#4.02-5 ad

	#5 Appointments
	#5.01-3 Board of Equalization
	#5.02-1 Sussex Svc Authority
	#5.03-1 DSS
	#5.01-1 Appointments -Board of Equalization.pdf
	BOARD ACTION FORM


	#6 Action Items
	#6.01-1 Use of ARPA Funds
	#6.01A attachments
	#6.01-2 FY22 ARPA Supplmntl Budget
	Sheet1

	#6.01-3 SLFRP-Fact-Sheet-FINAL1-508A
	FACT SHEET: The Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds Will Deliver $350 Billion for State, Local, Territorial, and Tribal Governments to Respond to the COVID-19 Emergency and Bring Back Jobs

	#6.01-4 FAQ July 19 2021

	#6.1.pdf
	#6.02-1 BOS Vacancy (Waverly) 2
	#6.02-2 Sussex Special Election BoS Petition 11.11.21 Draft
	FACTS
	1. The election for the Board of Supervisors is held every four years in November.
	2. In November 2019, Ms. Marian D. Johnson was elected as a member of the Board of Supervisors of Sussex County from the Waverly District to serve a four-year term.
	3. Ms. Johnson’s term expires December 31, 2023.
	4. Effective November 5, 2021, Ms. Johnson resigned as a member of the Board of Supervisors of Sussex County. See Exhibit A.
	5. Virginia Code § 24.2-226 requires that the governing body petition the circuit court to issue a writ of election within 15 days of the occurrence of the vacancy.
	6. Further, pursuant to Virginia Code § 24.2-226(A), “[U]pon receipt of the petition… the court shall issue the writ ordering the election promptly and shall order the special election to be held on the date of the next general election in November…Ho...
	7. The Board of Supervisors respectfully requests that the date of November 8, 2022, which is the date of the next scheduled general election, be the date of the special election to fill the vacancy on the Board of Supervisors of the County of Sussex,...
	[8. At its regular meeting on November 19, 2021, pursuant to authority granted under Virginia Code § 24.2-228, the Board of Supervisors appointed [insert name], a qualified voter in the election district in which the present vacancy occurred, as an in...
	WHEREFORE, pursuant to Virginia Code §§ 24.2-226(A) and 24.2-682, the Petitioner respectfully requests that the Court order a special election to be held November 8, 2022, to fill the vacancy on the Board of Supervisors of the County of Sussex, Virgin...

	#6.02-3 Sussex Special Election Draft Order  11.11.21





